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tributions related to our capital stock, including dividends, 
redemptions, repurchases, liquidation payments or guarantee 
payments. Also, during the deferral period, we may not make any 
payments on or redeem or repurchase any debt securities that are 
equal in right of payment with, or subordinated to, the hybrids. 

N O T E 20. SUBSIDIARY PREFERRED STOCK 

Dominion is authorized to issue up to 20 million shares of pre­
ferred stock, however, none were issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2007 or 2006. 

Virginia Power is authorized to issue up to 10 million shares 
of preferred stock, $100 liquidation preference, and had 
2.59 million preferred shares issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Upon involuntary liquidation, 
dissolution or winding-up of Virginia Power, each share would be 
entitled to receive $100 plus accrued dividends. Dividends are 
cumulative. 

Holders of Virginia Power's outstanding preferred stock are 
not entided to voting rights except, under certain provisions of 
the amended and restated articles oflncorporation and related 
provisions of Virginia law restricting corporate action, or upon 
defaidt in dividends, or in special statutory proceedings and as 
required by Virginia law (such as mergers, consolidations, sales of 
assets, dissolution and changes in voting rights or priorities of 
preferred stock). 

Presented below are the series of Virginia Power preferred 
stock not subject to mandatory redemption that were outstanding 
as of December 31, 2007: 

Dividend 

Issued and 
Outstanding 

Shares 
Entitled Per Share 
Upon Liquidation 

$5.00 
4.04 
4.20 
4.12 
4.80 
7.05 
6.98 

Flex MMP 12/02, Series A 

(thousands) 

107 

13 

15 

32 
73 

500 
600 

1.250 

$112.50 

102.27 

102.50 

103.73 

101.00 

102.12*" 

102.10'2> 
100.00<3> 

Total 2,590 

(1) Through 7/31/2008; $101.77 commencing 8/1/2008; amounts decUne 
in steps thereafter to $100.00 by 8/1/2013. 

(2) Through 8/31/2008; $101.75 commencing 9/1/2008; amounts decline 
in steps thereafter to $100.00 by 9/1/2013. 

(3) Dividend rate was 5-50% through 12/20/2007. Dividend rate is now 
6.25% thrau^ 3/20/2011; after which, the rate will be determined 
according to periodic auctions for periods established by Virginia Power 
at the time ofthe auction process. 

N O T E 21. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Issuance of Common Stock 
In 2007, we received cash proceeds of $226 million for 
7.6 million shares issued in connection with the exercise of 
employee stock options. During 2007, we purchased our com­
mon stock on the open market with the proceeds received 
through Dominion Direct® (a dividend reinvestment and open 
enrollment direct stock purchase plan) and employee savings 

plans, rather than having additional new common shares issued. 
In January 2008, we began issuing additional new common shares 
to be used for these programs. 

Repurchases of Common Stock 
In 2007, we repurchased 129.0 million shares of common stock 
for approximately $5.8 billion. This amount includes the com­
pletion of our equity tender offer in August 2007, in which we 
purchased approximately 115.5 million shares at a price of $45.50 
per share fbr a total cost of approximately $5.3 billion, excluding 
fees and expenses related to the tender. 

In December 2006, we entered into a prepaid accelerated 
share repurchase agreement (ASR) with a financial institution as 
the counterparty. Under the ASR, we would receive between 
11.2 million and 13.0 million shares in exchange for the prepay­
ment. At the time of execution of the ASR, we made a prepay­
ment of $500 million and the counterparty initially delivered 
approximately 10.1 million shares to us. The final niunber of 
shares to be delivered to the Company was determined by the 
volume weighted average price of our common stock over the 
period commencm.^ on December \2 , 2006 and terminating on 
May 16, 2007. In May 2007, the counterparty delivered approx­
imately 1.6 milhon additional shares to us in completion ofthe 
ASR. 

At December 31, 2007, the remaining stock repurchase 
authorization provided by our Board of Directors is the lesser of 
54 million shares or $2.7 billion of oiur outstanding common 
stock. 

Shares Reserved for Issuance 
At December 31, 2007, we had a total of 46 million shares 
reserved and available for issuance for the following: Dominion 
Direct®, employee stock awards, employee savings plans, director 
stock compensation plans and contingent convertible senior 
notes. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
Presented in the table below is a summary of AOCI by 
component: 

At December 31, 2007 2006 

(millions) 

Net unrealized losses on derivatives—hedging 
activities, net of tax of $30 and $266, respectively 

Net unrealized gains on investment securities, net of 
tax of $116 and $187, respectively 

Net unrecognized pension and other postretirement 
benefit costs, net of tax of $149 and $239, 
respectively 

Foreign currency translation adjustments 

$ (42) $(422) 

180 282 

(150) (335) 
—til 50 

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (12) $(425) 

(1) Decrease is due to the sale of our Canadian E&P butiness in June 2007. 

Stock-Based Awards 
In April 2005, our shareholders approved the 2005 Incentive 
Compensation Plan (2005 Incentive Plan) for employees and the 
Non-Employee Directors Compensation Plan (Non-Employee 
Directors Plan). The 2005 Incentive Plan permits stock-based 
awards that include restricted stock, performance grants, goal-
based stock and stock options, and the Non-Employee Directors 
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Plan permits restricted stock and stock options. Under provisions 
of both plans, employees and non-employee directors may be 
granted options to purchase common stock at a price not less than 
its lair market value at the date of grant with a maximum term of 
eight years. Option terms are set at the discretion ofthe Compen­
sation, Governance and Nominating (CGN) Committee ofthe 
Board of Directors or the Board of Directors itself, as provided 
under each individual plan. At December 31, 2007, approx­
imately 29 million shares were available for futute grants under 
these plans. Prior to April 2005, we had an incentive compensa­
tion plan that provided stock options and restricted stock awards 
to directors, executives and other key employees with vesting 
periods from one to five years. Stock options generally had con­
tractual terms from six and one half to ten years in length. 

Our results for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 
2005 include $57 million, $31 million and $25 miUion, 
respectively, of compensation costs and $21 million, $11 million 
and $ 10 million, respectively, of income tax benefits related to 
our stock-based compensation arrangements. Stock-based 
compensation cost is reponed in other operations and main­
tenance expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income. 

STOCK O P T I O N S 

The following table provides a siunmary of changes In amounts of 
stock options outstanding as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. No options were granted 
under any plan in 2007, 2006 or 2005. 

Outstanding at 
December 31, 
2004 

Exercisable at 
December 31, 
2004 

Exercised 
Forfeited/expired 

Outstanding and 
exercisable at 
December 31, 
2005 

Exercised 
Forfeited/expired 

Outstanding and 
exercisable at 
December 31, 
2006 

Exercised 
Forfeited/expired 

Outstanding and 
exercisable at 
December 31, 
2007 

Sliares 

(thousands) 

27,616 

21,536 

(11,158) 
(30) 

16,428 

(1,895) 
(42) 

14,491 

(7,453) 
(17) 

7,021 

Weighted-
average 

Exercise Price 

$30.09 

$30.01 

$29.90 
$31.27 

$30.21 

$29.88 
$30.40 

$30,25 

$30.06 
$30.44 

$30.46 

Weighted-
average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 

(years) 

2.8 

Aggregated 
Intrinsic 
Value 11' 

(mil)ions) 

$ 77 

$ 19 

$108 

$120 

(1) Intrinsic value represents the difference between the exercise price ofthe 
option and the market value of our stock. 

We issue new shares to satisfy stock option exercises. We 
received cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options of 
approximately $226 million, $54 million and $335 million in the 
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

RESTRICTED STOCK 

The fair value of our restricted stock awards is equal to the market 
price of our stock on the date of grant. These awards generally 
vest over a three-year service period and are settled by issuing new 
shares. The following table provides a summary of restricted stock 
activity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005: 

Weighted-
average 

Grant 
Date Fair 

Shares Value 

Nonvested at December 31, 2004 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

(thousands) 

1,920 
498 
(60) 
(96) 

$30.17 
37.26 
31.23 
31.64 

Nonvested at December 31, 2005 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

2,262 
675 

(361) 
(83) 

$31.64 
35.22 
30.38 
33.77 

Nonvested at December 31, 2006 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

2,493 
508 

(897) 
(90) 

$32.72 
44.53 
33.00 
38.33 

Nonvested at December 31, 2007 2,014 $35.31 

As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation cost 
related to nonvested restricted stock awards totaled $25 million 
and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period 
of 1.5 years. The fair value of restricted stock awards that vested 
was $30 million, $14 million and $2 million in 2007, 2006 and 
2005, respectively. Employees may elect to have shares of 
restriaed stock withheld upon vesting to satisfy tax withholding 
obligations. The number of shares withheld will vary for each 
employee depending on the vesting date fair value of Dominion 
stock and the applicable federal, state and local tax withholding 
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GOAL-BASED STOCK 

Goal-based stock awards are generally granted to key non-officer 
employees on an annual basis. Goal-based stock awards were also 
granted in lieu of cash-based performance grants to certain offi­
cers who had not achieved a certain level of share ownership. The 
issuance of awards is based on the achievement of multiple per­
formance metrics dming a two-year period, including return on 
invested capital and total shareholder return relative to that of a 
peer group of companies. The actual number of shares issued will 
vary between 2ero and 200% of targeted shares depending on the 
level of performance metrics achieved. The fair value of goal-
based stock is equal to the market price of our stock on the date 
of grant. These awards generally vest over a three-year service 
period and are settled by issuing new shares. The following table 
provides a summary of goal-based stock activity for the years 
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006: 

Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

Nonvested at December 31 

2005 

2006 

2007 

Targeted 
Number of 

Shares 

(thousands) 

200 

(6) 

194 
160 
(32) 
(33) 

289 

Weighted-
average 

Grant 
Date Fair 

Value 

$ -
34.77 

34.77 

$34.77 
44.24 
34.77 
35.03 

$39.16 

At December 31, 2007, the targeted number of shares 
expected to be issued under these awards was approximately 289 
thousand. In January 2008, the CGN determined that the total 
number of shares expected to be issued under the goal-based stock 
awards is 359 thousand, based on the actual performance against 
metrics, as amended in January 2008, established for those awards 
whose performance period ended on December 31, 2007. 

As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation cost 
related to nonvested goal-based stock awards totaled $8 million 
and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period 
of 1.5 years. 

CASH-BASED PERFORMANCE GRANT 

In April 2006, a cash-based performance grant was made to offi­
cers. Payout ofthe performance grant will occur by March 15, 
2008 and is based on the achievement of two performance met­
rics during 2006 and 2007: return on invested capital and total 
shareholder return relative to that of a peer group of companies. 
Actual payout will vary between zero and 200% ofthe targeted 
amount, .depending on the level of performance metrics achieved. 
At December 31, 2007, the targeted amount ofthe grant was $13 
million, however the actual payout will be $18 million based on 
the performance metrics achieved. 

In April 2007, a cash-based performance grant was made to 
officers. Payout ofthe performance grant will occur by March 15, 
2009 and is based on the achievement of two performance met­
rics during 2007 and 2008: remrn on invested capital and total 
shareholder return relative to that of a peer group of companies. 

At December 31, 2007, the targeted amount ofthe grant is $14 
million, but actual payout will vary between zero and 200% of 
the tai^eted amount depending on the level of performance met­
rics achieved. 

At December 31, 2007, a liability of $25 million has been 
accrued for these awards. 

N O T E 22. DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS 

The Virginia Commission may prohibit any public service com­
pany, including Virginia Power, from declaring or paying a divi­
dend to an affiliate, if found to be detrimental to the public 
interest. At December 31, 2007, the Virginia Commission had 
not restriaed the payment of dividends by Virginia Power. 

Certain agreements associated with our credit faciUties contain 
resttictions on the ratio of our debt to total capitalization. These 
limitations did not restrict our ability to pay dividends or receive 
dividends from our subsidiaries at December 31, 2007. 

See Note 19 for a description of potential restrictions on divi­
dend payments by us and certain of our subsidiaries in connection 
with the deferral of distribution payments on trust preferred secu­
rities or interest payments on enhanced junior subordinated 
notes. 

N O T E 23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

We provide certain benefits to eligible active employees, retirees 
and qualifying dependents. Under the terms of otu benefit plans, 
we reserve the right to change, modify or terminate the plans. 
From time to time in the past, benefits have changed, and some 
of these changes have reduced benefits. 

We maintain qualified noncontributory defined benefit pen­
sion plans covering virtually all employees. Retirement benefits 
are based primarily on years of service, age and the employee's 
compensation. Our fonding policy is to generally contribute 
annually an amount that is in accordance with the provisions of 
the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The 
pension program also provides benefits to certain retired execu­
tives under company-sponsored nonqualified employee benefit 
plans. Certain of these nonqualified plans are fiinded through 
contributions to a grantor trust. 

We provide retiree health care and life insurance benefits with 
annual employee premiums based on several fiictors such as age, 
retirement date and years of service. 

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, 
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Medicare Act) 
was signed into law. The Medicare Act introduces a prescription 
drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D), as well as a 
federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that 
provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare 
Part D. We have determined that the prescription drug benefit 
offered under our other postretirement benefit plans is at least 
actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D and therefore, we expect 
to receive the federal subsidy offered under the Medicare Act. 

We use December 31 as the measurement date for all of our 
employee benefit plans. We use the market-related value of pen­
sion plan assets to determine the expected return on pension plan 
assets, a component of net periodic pension cost. The market-
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related value recognizes changes in foir value on a straight-line 
basis over a four-year period. Changes in ^ r value are measured 
as the difference between the expected and actual plan asset 
returns, including dividends, interest and realized and unrealized 
investment gains and losses. 

The following table summarizes the changes in our pension 
and other postretirement benefit plan obligations and plan assets 
and includes a statement of the plans' fonded status: 

other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

9r Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

(millions) 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at 

beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gain) loss during 

the year̂ iJ 
Plan amendments 
Curtailments 

$3,6B6 $3,834 $1,297 $1,622 
112 124 55 72 
222 210 77 81 

(164) (175) (69) {72} 

(139) 
4 
(8) 

(329) 
2 

125 (395) 
(14) {11} 

(7) — 

Benefit obligation at end of 
year $3,693 $3,666 $1,464 $1,297 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at 

beginning ot year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Contributions 
Benefits paid from plan 

$4,793 
461 

8 

$4,350 
589 

19 

$ 909 
59 
25 

$ 794 
85 
68 

assets 

Fair value of plan assets at end 
of year 

Funded status at end of year 

(1B4) 

$5,098 

$1,405 

(175) 

$4,793 

$1,127 

(33) 

$ 960 

$ (504) 

{38} 

$ 909 

$ (388) 

Amounts recognized in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
at December 31: 

Noncurrent pension and other 
postretirement benefit assets 

Other current liabilities 
Other deferred credits and 

$1,544 
(29) 

$1,240 
(2) 

21 
(2) 

other liabilities 

Net amount recognized 

(110) 

$1,405 

(111) 

$1,127 

(523) 

$ (504) 

(394) 

$ (388) 

(1) The actuarial gains for pension benefits primarily resulted from an 
increase in the discount rate for 2007 and an increase in the discount 
rate and the expected retirement age for 2006. The 2006 actuarial gain 

for other postretirement benefits primarily resulted from an increase in 
the discount rate and a decrease in expected foture benefit claims. 

The acciunulated benefit obligation (ABO) for all of oiu: 
defined benefit pension plans was $3.2 billion each at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Under our fiinding policies, we 
evaluate plan fimding requirements annually, usually in the 
fourth quarter after receiving updated plan information from our 
actuary. Based on the fiinded status of each plan and other fac­
tors, we determine the amount of contributions for the current 
year, if any, at that time. 

We do not expect any pension or postretirement benefit plan 
assets to be returned to the Company during 2008. 

The following table provides information on the benefit obli­
gation and fair value of plan assets for plans with a benefit obliga­
tion in excess of plan assets: 

As of December 31, 

(millions) 

Benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Pension Benefits 

2007 

$139 

2005 

$131 
18 

Other Postretirement 
Benefits 

2007 

$1,328 
803 

2006 

$1,159 
755 

The following table provides information on the ABO and 
fair value of plan assets for pension plans with an ABO in excess 
of plan assets: 

As of December 31, 2007 2006 

Cmillions) 

Accumulated benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

$84 $65 
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The following benefit payments, which reflect expected fiiture service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

other 
Pension Postrelirement 
Benefits Beneffts 

(millions) 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013-2017 

194 
177 
191 
198 
212 
341 

$ 83 
90 
97 

104 
110 
637 

The above benefit payments for other postretirement benefit plans are expected to be offset by Medicare Part D subsidies of approx­
imately $5 million annually for 2008 and 2009, approximately $6 million annually for the period 2010 through 2012 and approximately 
$39 million during die period 2013 through 2017. 

Our overall objective for investing our pension and other postretirement plan assets is to achieve the best possible long-term rates of 
return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. To minimize risk, funds are broadly diversified among asset classes, investment strategies 
and investment advisors. The strat^ic target asset allocation for our pension fiinds is 34% U.S. equity securities, 12% non-U.S. equity 
securities, 22% debt securities, 7% real estate and 25% other, such as private equity investments, Financial derivatives may be used to 
obtain or man^e market exposures and to hedge assets and liabilities. The asset allocations for our pension plans and other postretirement 
plans follow: 

As of December 31, 

Fair 
Value 

2007 

%of 
Total 

Pension Plans 

2006 

Fair % of 
Value Total 

Fair 
Value 

Other Postretirement Plans 

2007 2006 

% of Fair % of 
Total Value Total 

(millions, except percentaees) 

Equity securities: 
U.S. 
International 

Debt securities 
Real estate 
Other 

1,767 
757 

1,228 
408 
940 

35% 
15 
24 
8 

16 

$1,491 
751 

1,356 
376 
819 

31% 
16 
28 
8 

17 

$384 
107 
347 

31 
91 

40% 
11 
36 
3 

10 

$369 
106 
335 

25 
74 

41 
11 
37 
3 
8 

Total $5,098 100% $4.793 100% $960 100% $909 100% 
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The components 
latory liabilities were 

Year Ended December 31. 

of the provision 

as follows: 

for net periodic benefit (credit) cost other comprehensive income 

2007 

and re 

Pension Benefits 

2006 2005 

gulatory assets and regu-

Other Postretirement Benefits 

2007 2005 2005 

(millions) 

Sen/ice cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 
Amortization of transition obligation 
Amortization of net loss 
Settlements and curtailments'^' 
Plan amendmentsf̂ J 

$112 
222 

(391) 
4 

— 
37 
11 
4 

$124 
210 

(357) 
4 

— 
89 
12 
^ 

$110 
201 

(341) 
3 

— 
77 
— 
— 

$ 55 
77 

(71) 
(6) 
3 
6 

(3) 
9 

$ 72 
81 

(62) 
(4) 
3 

24 

— 
_ 

$ 64 
S3 

(51) 
(1) 
3 

19 

— 
__ 

Net periodic benefit (crediO cost $ (1) 82 50 $ 70 $114 $117 

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in ottier comprehenshre income 
and regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities-. 

Current year net actuarial (gain) loss $(209) 
Prior service (credit) cost 3 
Transition asset — 
Settlements and curtailments (21) 
Less amounts included in net periodic benefit (credit) cost: 

Amortization of net loss (37) 
Amortization of prior service credit (cost) (4) 
Amortization of transition obligation — 

Plan amendments — 
Change in additional minimum liability — -

- $137 
- (8) 
- (17) 

(B) 
6 

(3) 
(2) 

(17) (7) 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income and regulatory assets and regulatory 
liabilities $(268) $ [17] $ (7) $107 $ 

(1) Relates to the sale of our non-Appalachian E&P operations and the planned sale of Peoples and Hope for 2007 and 2006, respectively, and the impact of 
distributions to retired executives. 

(2) Represents a one-time benefit enhancement for certain employees in connection with the disposition of our non-Appalachian E&P business. 

The components of A O C I and r e ^ h t o r y assets and regu­

latory liabilities that have not been recognized as components of 

periodic benefit (credit) cost: 

other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

Significant g^sumptions used in determining the net periodic 

cost recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Income were 

as follows, on a weighted-average basis: 

Pension Benefits Ottier Postrelirement Benefits 

As of December 31, 2007 2006 20[]7 2006 
Year Ended 
December 31 , 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 

(millions) 

Transition obligation 
Net actuarial loss 
Prior sen/ice (credit) cost 

$ -
365 
23 

$ -
631 
25 

$ -
185 
(40) 

$20 
57 

(39) 

Total*" $388 $656 $145 $38 

(1) Ofthe $388 million and $145 miUion related to pension benefits and 
other postretirement benefits, respectively, as of December 31, 2007, 
$183 million and $116 miUion, respectively, are included in AOCI Of 
the $656 million and $38 million related to pension benefits and other 
postretirement benefits, respectively, as of December 31, 2006, $561 
miUion and$13 million, respectively, are included in AOCI. 

The following table provides the components of AOCI, regu­
latory assets and regulatory liabilities as of December 3 1 , 2007 
that are expected to be amortized as components of periodic 
benefit cost in 2008: 

other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

Discount rate 
Expected return 

on plan assets 
Rate of increase 

for comp­
ensation 

Medical cost 
trend rate*i' 

6.20% 5.60% 5.00% 6.10% 5.50% 6.00% 

8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 

4.79% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 4.70% 

9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 

(1) The medical cost trend rate for 2007 is assumed to ^adually decrease to 
5.00% by 2011 and continues at that rate for years thereafter. 

Significant assumptions used in determining the projected 

pension benefit and postretirement benefit obligations recognized 

in our Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows, on a 

weighted-average basis: 

(millions) 

Net actuarial loss 
Prior sen/ice (credit) cost 

Pension 
Benefits 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

$7 
4 

$8 
(6) 

At December 31, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Discount rate 6.60% 6.20% 6.50% 6.10% 
Rate of increase for compensation 4.79% 4.79% 4.70% 4.70% 
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We determine the expected long-term rates of return on plan 
assets for pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans by 
using a combination of: 
• Historical retum analysis to determine expected future risk 

premiums; 
• Forward-looking return expectations derived from the yield 

on long-term bonds and the price earnings rados of major 
stock market indices; 

• Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions; and 
• The types of investments expected to be held by the plans. 

We develop assumptions, which are then compared to the 
forecasts of other independent investment advisors to ensure rea­
sonableness. An internal committee selects the final assumptions. 

We determine discount rates from analyses of AA/Aa rated 
bonds with cash flows matching the expected payments to be 
made under our plans. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect 
on the amounts reported for our retiree health care plans. A 
one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend 
fates would have had the following effeas: 

One 
percentage 

point 
increase 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

One 
percentage 

poirt 
decrease 

(millions) 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
components for 2007 $ 20 $ (17) 

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation at 
December 31, 2007 184 (140) 

In addition, we sponsor defined contribution thrifi:-type sav­
ings plans. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized $37 
million, $36 million and $33 million, respectively, as con­
tributions to these plans. 

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recov­
ered in utility customers' rates for other postretirement benefits, 
in excess of benefits actually paid during the year, must be 
deposited in trust fiinds dedicated for the sole purpose of paying 
such benefits. Accordingly, cenain of our subsidiaries fimd post-
retirement benefit costs thtough Voluntary Employees' Benefi­
ciary Associations (VEBAs). Our remaining subsidiaries do not 
preftmd postretirement benefit costs but instead pay claims as 
presented. We expect to contribute $32 million to the Dominion 
VEBAs in 2008. 

N O T E 24. COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES 

As the result of issues generated in the ordinary coiuse of business, 
we are involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings before 
various courts, regulatory commissions and governmental ^en-
cies, some of which involve substantial amounts of money. The 
ultimate outcome of such proceedings cannot be prediaed at this 
time, however, for current proceedings not specifically reported 
herein, management does not anticipate that the liabilities, if any, 
arising from such proceedings woidd have a material effect on oiu: 
financial position, liquidity or residts of operations. 

Long-Term Purchase Agreements 
At December 31. 2007, we had the following long-term commit­
ments that are noncancelable or are cancelable only under certain 
conditions, and that third parties have used to secure financing 
for the facilities that wdl provide the contracted goods or services: 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total 

(millions! 

Purchased electric 
capacity*" $383 $364 $349 $348 $352 $1,857 $3,653 

(1) Commitments represent estimated amounts payable for capacity under 
power purchase contracts with qualifying fiicilities and independent 
power producers, the last of which ends in 2021. Capacity payments 
under the contracts are generally based on fixed dollar amounts per 
month, subject to escalation using broad-based economic indices. At 
December 31, 2007, the present value of our total commitment for 
capacity payments is $2.4 billion. Capacity payments totaled $410 mil­
lion, $437 million and $472 million, and energy pttyments totaled 
$360 million, $291 million and $378 million for 2007. 2006 and 
2005, respectively. 

Lease Commitments 
We lease various faciUties, vehicles and equipment primarily 
under operating leases. Payments under certain leases are escalated 
based on an index such as the consumer price index. Future 
minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating and 
capital leases that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of 
one year as of December 31, 2007 are as follows: 

(millions) 

2008 

$81 

2009 

$72 

2010 

$58 

2011 

$50 

2012 

$41 

Thereafter 

$151 

Total 

$453 
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Rental expense totaled $185 million, $178 million and $160 
million fot 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, the majority of 
which is reflected in other operations and maintenance expense. 

We lease the Faidess power station (Fairless) in Pennsylvania, 
which b^an commercial operations in June 2004. During con­
stmction, we acted as the construction agent for the lessor, con­
trolled the design and construction ofthe facility and have since 
been reimbursed for all project costs ($898 million) advanced to 
the lessor. We make annual lease payments of $53 million that 
are reflected in the lease commitments table. The lease expires in 
2013 and at that time, we may renew the lease at negotiated 
amoimts based on original project costs and current market con­
ditions, subject to lessor approval; purchase Fairless at Its original 
construction cost; or sell Fairless, on behalfofthe lessor, to an 
independent third party. If Fairless is sold and the proceeds from 
the sale are less than its original construction cost, we would be 
required to make a payment to the lessor in an amount up to 
70.75% ofthe original project costs adjusted for certain other 
costs as specified in the lease. The lease agreement does not con­
tain any provisions that involve credit rating or stock price tri^er 
events. 

Wind Farm Power Projects 

M T . STORM W I N D FARM 

In December 2006, we acquired a 50% interest in a joint venture 
with Shell WindEnergy Inc. (Shell) to develop a wind-turbine 
facility in Grant County, West Virginia (NedPower). NedPower 
consists of two construction phases totaling 264 Mw. The first 
phase (164 Mw) is expected to become fijlly operational by June 
2008 and the second phase is expected to be fiilly operational by 
December 2008. During 2007, we made cash contributions of 
$67 million to NedPower and expect to contribute an additional 
$57 million in 2008. The remaining cost of both phases is 
expected to be funded by NedPower through non-recourse con­
struction financing with third-party banks. 

FOWLER RIDGE W I N D FARM 

In January 2008i we acquired a 50% interest in a joint venture 
with BP Alternative Energy Inc. (BP) to develop a wind-turbine 
facility in Benton County, Indiana. The facility is expected to be 
built in two phases and generate a total of 750 Mw. We will 
jointly own 650 Mw with BP and BP will retain sole ownership 
of 100 Mw. We have committed to contribute approximately 
$340 million of cash at various dates through January 2009, 
which includes our initial investment and funding for the 
development ofthe first 300 Mw phase. Construction ofthe 
second 350 Mw phase could begin as early as 2009, with fiinding 
to be contributed to the joint venture to maintain 50/50 owner­
ship between the partners. Our ultimate fimding requirements 
may decrease to the extent that the joint venture obtains non­
recourse constmction and term financing. 

Environmental Matters 
We are subject to costs resulting from a number of federal, state 
and local laws and regulations designed to protect hirnian health 
and the environment. These laws and regulations affect future 
planning and existing operations. They can result in increased 
capital, operating and other costs as a result of compliance, 
remediation, containment and monitoring obligations. 

To the extent environmental costs are incurred in connection 
with operations regulated by the Viiginia Commission during the 
period ending December 31, 2008, in excess ofthe level currently 
included in Virginia jurisdictional rates, our results of operations 
could decrease. After that date, we may seek recovery through 

rates. 

SUPERFUND SITES 

From time to time, we may be identified as a potentially respon­
sible party (PRP) to a Superfund site. The EPA (or a state) can 
either (a) allow such a party to conduct and pay for a remedial 
investigation, feasibility study and remedial action or (b) conduct 
the remedial investigation and action and then seek reimburse­
ment from the parties. Each party can be held jointly, severally 
and strictly liable for all costs. These parties can also bring con­
tribution actions against each other and seek reimbursement from 
their insurance companies. As a result, we may be responsible for 
the costs of remedial investigation and actions under the Super-
fund Act or other laws or regulations regarding the remediation of 
waste. We do not believe that any currendy identified sites will 
result in significant liabilities. 

O T H E R 

We have determined that we are associated with 21 former manu­
factured gas plant sites. Smdies conduaed by other utilities at 
their former manufactured gas plants have indicated that their 
sites contain coal tar and other potentially harmfid materials. 
None of the 21 former sites with which we are associated is under 
investigation by any state or federal environmental agency. One 
ofthe former sites is conductii^ a state-approved post closure 
groundwater monitoring program and an envirorunental land use 
restriction has been recorded. At another site we have been 
accepted into a state-based voluntary remediation program and 
have not yet esrimated the future remediation costs. It is not 
known to what degree the other former sites may contain 
environmental contamination. We are not able to estimate the 
cost, if any, that may be required for the possible remediation of 
these other sites. 

Nuclear Operations 

NUCLEAR D E C O M M I S S I O N I N G — M I N I M U M 

FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 

The Nuclear Regidatory Commission (NRC) requires nuclear 
power plant owners to annually update minimum financial assur­
ance amounts for the future decommissioning of their nuclear 
fiicilities. Our 2007 calculation for the NRC minimum financial 
assurance amoimt, aggregated for our nuclear units, was $2.4 bil­
lion and has been satisfied by a combination ofthe funds being 
collected and deposited in the nuclear decommissioning trusts 
and the real annual rate of return growth of the fiinds allowed by 
die NRC. 

NUCLEAR INSURANCE 

The Price-Anderson Act provides the public up to $10.8 billion 
of liability protection per nuclear incident via obligations required 
of owners of nuclear power plants. The Price-Anderson Act 
Amendment of 1988 allows for an inflationary provision adjust­
ment every five years. We have purchased $300 million of 
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coverage from commercial insurance pools with the remainder 

provided through a mandatory industry risk-sharing program. In 

the event of a nuclear incident at any Ucensed nuclear reactor in 

the U.S., we could be assessed up to $100.6 million for each of 

our seven licensed reactors not to exceed $ 15 million per year per 

r^ictor. There is no fimit to the number of incidents for which 

this retrospective premium can be assessed. The Price-Anderson 

Act was first enacted in 1957 and was renewed again in 2005. 

O u r current level of property insurance cover^e ($2.55 bil­

lion for North Anna power station (North Anna), $2.55 billion 

for Surry power station, $2.75 billion for Millstone power station 

(Millstone), and $1.8 billion for Kewaunee) exceeds the N R C 

minimum requirement for nuclear power plant licensees of $1.06 

billion per reactor site and includes coverage for premature 

decommissioning and functional total loss. The N R C requires 

that the proceeds from this insurance be used first, to return the 

reactor to and maintain it in a safe and stable condition and sec­

ond, to decontaminate the reactor and station site in accordance 

with a plan approved by the N R C . Our nuclear property 

insurance is provided by the Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited 

(NEIL), a mutual insurance company, and is subject to retro­

spective premium assessments in any policy year in which losses 

exceed the fijnds available to the insurance company. The max­

imum assessment for the current policy period is $99 million. 

Based on the severity of the incident, the board ofdirectors of our 

nuclear insurer has the discretion to lower or eliminate the max­

imum retrospective premium assessment. We have the financial 

responsibility for any losses that exceed the limits or for which 

insurance proceeds are not available because they must first be 

used for stabilizarion and decontamination. 

W e purchase insurance from NEIL to cover the cost of replace­

ment power during the prolonged outage of a nuclear unit due to 

direct physical damage of the unit. Under this program, we are 

subject to a retrospective premium assessment for any policy year 

in which losses exceed fiinds available to NEIL. The current 

poHcy period's maximum assessment is $35 million. 

Old Dominion Electric Cooperative, a part owner of North 

Anna, and Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company 

and Central Vermont Public Service Corporation, part owners of 

Millstone's Unit 3 , are responsible to us for their share of the 

nuclear decommissioning obligation and insurance premiums on 

applicable units, including any retrospective premium assessments 

and any losses not covered by insurance. 

S P E N T N U C L E A R F U E L 

Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, we 
have entered into contracts with the Department of Energy 
(DOE) for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The D O E failed to 
begin accepting the spent fiiel on January 3 1 , 1998, the date pro­
vided by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act and by our contracts with 
the D O E . In January 2004, we and certain of our direct and 
indirect subsidiaries filed lawsuits in the U.S. Court of Federal 
Claims against the D O E requesting damages in connection with 
its failure to commence accepting spent nuclear fliel. Trial is 
scheduled for May 2008. W e will continue to manage our spent 
fuel until it is accepted by the D O E . 

Guarantees, Surety Bonds and Letters of Credit 
At December 3 1 , 2007, we had issued $41 million of guarantees 

to suppon third parties and equity method investees. Addition­

ally, we have issued a limited-scope guarantee and indemnifi­

cation for one-half of the project-level financing for phase one of 

the NedPower wind farm project. Under this guarantee, we 

would be required to repay one-half of NedPower's debt, only if it 

is unable to do so, as a direct result of an unfavorable ruling asso­

ciated with current litigation seeking to halt the project. T h e 

guarantee will terminate when a fmal non-appealable ruling in 

favor ofthe project is received. W e do not expect an unfiivorable 

ruling and no significant amounts have been recorded. Our 

exposure under the guarantee totaled $56 million as of 

December 3 1 , 2007 and will increase to $103 million in 2008 

based upon NedPower's future expeaed borrowings to complete 

phase one. Shell has provided an identical guarantee for the other 

one-half of NedPower's borrowings. 

We also enter into guarantee arrangements on behalf of our 

consolidated subsidiaries, primarily to facilitate their commercial 

transactions with third parties. T o the extent that a Uability sub­

ject to a guarantee has been incurred by one of our consoUdated 

subsidiaries, that liability is included in our Consolidated Finan­

cial Statements. W e are not required to recognize Habilities for 

guarantees issued on behalf of our subsidiaries unless it becomes 

probable that we will have to perform under the guarantees. W e 

believe it is unlikely that we would be required to perform or 

otherwise incur any losses associated with guarantees of our sub­

sidiaries' obligations. At December 3 1 , 2007, we had issued the 

following subsidiary guarantees: 

(millions) 

Subsidiary debt'̂ i 
Commodity transactions'̂ ) 
Lease obligation for power generation facilityi^i 
Nuclear obligations'̂ ' 
Other 

Total 

Stated Limit 

$ 48 
2,985 

917 
383 
341 

$4,674 

Value'" 

$ 48 
328 
917 
302 
192 

$1,785 

(1) Represents the estimated portion ofthe guarantee's stated limit that is 
utilized as of December 31, 2007 based upon prevailing economic con­
ditions and fact pattems spedfic to each guarantee arrangement. For 
those guarantees related to obligations that are recorded^ liabiUties by 
our subsidiaries, the value includes the recorded amount. 

(2) Guarantees of debt of a DEI subsidiary. In the event of default by the 
subtidiary, we would be obUgated to repay such amounts. 

(3) Guarantees related to energy trading and marketing activities and other 
commodity commitments of certain subsidiaries, including subsidiaries of 
Virginia Poiver and DEI. These guarantees were provided to counter­

parties in order to facilitate physical and financial transactions in gas, 
oil, electricity, pipeline capadty, transportation and related commodities 
and services. If any of these subsidiaries fail to perform or pay underthe 
contracts and the counterparties seek performance or payment, we would 
be obligated to satisfy such obligation. We and our subsidiaries recdve 
similar guarantees as collateral for credit extended to others. The value 
provided includes certain guarantees that do not have stated limits. 

(4) Guarantee of a DEI subsidiary's leasing obligation for Fairless. 
(5) Guarantees related to certain DEI subsidiaries'potential retrospective 

premiums that could be assessed if there is a nuclear incident under our 
nuclear insurance programs and guarantees for a DEI subsidiary's and 
Virginia Power's commitment to buy nuclear foel In addition to the 
guarantees listed above, we have also a^eed to provide up to $150 
miUion and $60 million to two DEI subsidiaries, to pay the operating 
expenses of Millstone and Kewaunee, respectively, in the event of a 
prolonged outage, as part of satisfying certain NRC requirements con­
cerned with ensuring adequate fonding for the operations of nuclear 
power stations. 
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Additionally, as of December 31, 2007, we had purchased $56 
miUion of surety bonds and authorized the issuance of standby 
letters of credit by financial institutions of $230 mllUon to facili­
tate commercial transactions by our subsidiaries with third parties. 

Indemnifications 

As paK of commercial contraa negotiations in the normal course 
of business, we may sometimes agree to make payments to 
compensate or indemnify other parries for possible future 
unfavorable financial consequences resulting from specified events. 
The specified events may involve an adverse judgment in a lawsuit 
or the imposition of additional taxes due to a change in tax law or 
interpretation of the tax law. We are unable to develop an estimate 
ofthe maximum potential amount of future payments under these 
contracts because events that would obligate us have not yet 
occurred or, if any such event has occurred, we have not been noti­
fied ofits occurrence. However, at December 31, 2007, we believe 
future payments, if any, that could ultimately become payable 
under these contract provisions, would not have a material impact 
on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position. 

We have entered into other types of contracts that require 
indemnifications, such as purchase and sale agreements and 
financing agreements. These agreements may include, but are not 
limited to, indemnifications around certain title, tax, contractual 
and environmental matters. With respea to sale agreements, our 
exposure generally does not exceed the sale price and is typically 
limited in duration depending on the nature of the indemnified 
matter. Since January 1, 2005, we have entered into sale agree­
ments with maximum exposute related to the collective purchase 
prices of approximately $15 billion. We believe that it is improb­
able that we wotdd be required to perform under these 
indemnifications and have not recognized any significant 
liabilities related to these arrangements. • 

Status of Electric Regulation in Virginia 

2007 ViRGiNn RESTRUCTURING A C T AND 
FUEL FACTOR AMENDMENTS 

On July 1, 2007, legislation amendii^ the Virginia Electric 
Utility Restructuring Act (the Restructuring Act) and the fuel 
factor became effective, which significantly changes electricity 
regulation in Virginia. Prior to the Restructuring Aa, our base 
rates in Virginia were capped at 1999 levels until December 31, 
2010, The Restructuring Act ends capped rates two years early, 
on December 31, 2008. Afi:er capped rates end, retail choice will 
be eliminated for all but individual retail customers with a 
demand of more than 5 Mw and non-residential retail customers 
who obtain Virginia Commission approval to aggregate their load 
to reach the 5 Mw threshold. Individual retail customers will be 
permitted to purchase renewable energy from competitive suppli­
ers ifthe incumbent electric utility does not offer a renewable 
energy tariff. Also after the end of capped rates, the Virginia 
Commission will set our base rates under a modified 
cost-of-service model. Among other features, the new model pro­
vides for the Virginia Commission to: 
• Initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, 

reviewing the 2008 test year, as a result of which the Virginia 
Commission: 
• shall establish a return on equity (ROE) no lower than 

that reported by at least a majority of a group of utiUties 

within the southeastern U.S., with certain hmitations, as 
described in the legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis 
points based on generating plant perfiarmance, customer 
service and operatit^ efficiency, if appropriate; 

• shall increase base rates, if needed, to allow the Company 
the opportunity to recover its costs and earn a feir rate of 
return if we are found to have earnings more than 50 basis 
points below the established ROE; or 

• may reduce rates prospectively upon completion of the 
2009 review or, alternatively, order a credit to customers if 
we are found to have test year earnings of more than 50 
basis points above the established ROE. 

• After the initial rate case, review base rates biennially, as a 
result of which the Virginia Commission: 
• shall establish an ROE no lower than that reported by at 

least a majority of a group of utilities within the south­
eastern U.S., with certain limitations, as described in the 
legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis 
points based on generating plant performance, customer 
service and operating efficiency, if appropriate; 

• after 2010, authorize an increased ROE on overall rate 
base upon achieving the goals established for the renew­
able energy portfolio standard programs. Such increased 
ROE would be in lieu ofany increased or decreased ROE 
from the preceding paragraph, unless there has been an 
increase to the ROE awarded under the preceding para­
graph that is higher than the renewable energy portfolio 
standard increase; and 

• shall increase base rates, if needed, to allow the Company 
the opponunity to recover its costs and earn a fitir rate of 
return if we are found to have earned, during the test 
period, more than 50 basis points below the then cur­
rentiy established ROE; or 

• may order a credit to customers if we are found to have 
earned, during the test period, more than 50 basis points 
above the then currendy established ROE, and reduce 
rates if we are found to have such excess earnings during 
two consecutive biennial review periods. 

• Authorize stand-alone rate adjustments for recovery of certain 
costs, including new generation projects, major generating 
unit modifications, environmental compliance projects, 
FERC-approved costs for transmission service and energy 
efficiency, conservation, and renewable energy programs; and 

• Authorize an eidianced ROE on new capital expenditures as a 
financial incentive for construction of certain major gen­
eration projects. 

The l^islation also continues statutory provisions directing us 
to file annual fiiel cost recovery cases with the Virginia Commis­
sion beginning in 2007 and continuing thereafter, as discussed in 
Virginia Fuel Expenses. 

As discussed previously, the legislation provides for the 
Viiginia Commission to initiate a base rate case during the first 
six months of 2009, as a result of which the Virginia Commission 
may reduce rates or alternatively, order a credit to customers if we 
are fbimd to have earnings more than 50 basis points above the 
established ROE. We are unable to predict the outcome of future 
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rate aaions at this time, however an unfavorable outcome could 
adversely afiect our results of operations. 

VIRGINIA FUEL EXPENSES 

Under amendments to the Virginia fuel cost recovery statute 
passed in 2004, our fiiel fector provisions were frozen until July 1, 
2007. Fuel ptices have increased considerably since 2004, which 
resulted in our fiiel expenses being significantly in excess of our 
fuel cost recovery. Pursuant to the 2007 amendments to the fuel 
cost recovery statute, annual fiiel rate adjustments, with deferred 
fuel accounting fbr over- or under-recoveries of fuel costs, were 
re-instituted on July 1, 2007. While the 2007 amendments did 
not allow us to collect any unrecovered fiiel expenses that were 
incurred prior to July 1, 2007, once our fiiel faaor was adjusted, 
this mechanism ensures dollar-for-dollar recovery for prudently 
incurred fuel costs. 

In April 2007, we filed a Virginia fiiel factor application with 
the Virginia Commission. The application showed a need for an 
annual increase in fiiel expense recovery for the period July 1, 
2007 through June 30, 2008 of approximately $662 million; 
however, the requested increase was limited to $219 million 
under the 2007 amendments to the fiiel cost recovery statute. 
Undet these amendments, our fuel factor increase as of July 1, 
2007 was hmited to an amount that results in the residential 
customer class not receiving an Increase of more than 4% of total 
rates in effect as ofJune 30, 2007. The Virginia Commission 
approved the fuel factor increase for Virginia jurisdictional cus­
tomers of approximately $219 million, effective July 1, 2007, 
with the balance of approximately $443 million to be deferred 
and subsequently recovered subject to Virginia Commission 
approval, without interest, during the period commencing July 1, 
2008 and ending June 30, 2011. 

STRANDED COSTS 

Stranded costs are generation-related costs incurred or commit­
ments made by utilities under cost-based regulation that may not 
be reasonably expected to be recovered in a competitive market. 
In the past, our exposure to potential stranded costs included 
long-term power purchase contracts that could ultimately be 
determined to be above market prices; generating plants that 
could possibly become uneconomical in a deregulated environ­
ment; and unfunded obligations for nuclear plant decommission­
ing and postretirement benefits. Capped electric retail rates 
provided an opportunity to recover our potential stranded costs, 
depending on market prices of electricity and other fiictors. 
Recovery of our potential stranded costs was subject to numerous 
risks even in the capped-rate environment. Those risks included, 
among others, exposure to long-term power purchase commit­
ment losses, fiiture environmental compliance requirements, 
changes in certain tax laws, nuclear decommissioning costs, 
increased fuel costs, inflation, increased capital costs and lecovery 
of certain other items. However, with the return to a modified 
cost-of-service rate model under the 2007 Virginia Restructuring 
Act Amendments, our exposure to potential stranded costs and 
the risk of non-recovery will be eliminated. 

North Carolina Regulation 

In 2004, the North Carolina Commission commenced an inves­
tigation into our North Carolina base rates and subsequently 

ordered us to file a general rate case to show cause why our North 
Carolina jurisdictional base rates should not be reduced. The rate 
case was filed in September 2004, and in March 2005 the North 
Carolina Commission approved a settlement that included a 
prospective $12 million annual reduaion in current base rates 
and a five-year base rate moratorium, effective as of April 2005. 
Fuel rates are still subject to change under annual fiiel cost 
adjustment proceedings. 

Dominion Transmission Rates 

In May 2005, FERC approved a comprehensive rate settlement 
with our subsidiary, DTI, and its customers and interested state 
commissions. The setdement, which became effective July 1, 
2005, revised our natural gas transmission rates and reduced fiiel 
retention levels for storage service customers. As part ofthe 
settlement, DTI and all signatory parties agreed to a rate mor­
atorium until 2010. 

In December 2007, DTI and the Independent Oil and Gas 
Association of West Virginia, Inc. reached a settlement agreement 
on DTI's gathering and processing rates for rhe period January 1, 
2009 through December 31, 2011. This setdement maintains the 
gas retain^e fee structure that DTI has had since 2001. Under 
the setdement, the gathering retain^e rate increases from 9.25% 
to 10.5% and the processing retainage rate—in recognition ofthe 
increased market value of natural gas liquids—decreases from 
3.25% to 0.5%. 

This reduction in the combined retainage, from 12.5% to 
11%, should provide a lower overall cost for most producers. Due 
to the increase in natural gas prices from three years ^ o , the 
consolidated impact of these rate changes is expeaed to increase 
DTI's gathering and processing revenues. In addition, DTI will 
continue to retain all revenues from its liquids sales, thus main­
taining its cash flow from this aaivity. 

In conneaion with the setdement, DTI also agreed to invest 
at least $20 million annually in Appalachian gathering-related 
assets. The new rates are subject to FERC approval. 

Dominion Cove Point Rates 
In June 2006, we filed a general rate proceeding for Dominion 
Cove Point LNG, LP (DCP). The rates established in this case 
took effect on January 1, 2007- This rate proceeding enabled 
DCP to update the cost of service underlying its rates, including 
recovery of costs associated with the 2002 to 2003 reaaivation of 
the LNG import terminal. The FERC-approved settlement estab­
lished a rate moratorium that ends in mid-2011. 

Litigation 
In 2006, Gary P. Jones and others filed suit against DTI, DEPI 
and Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (DRS). The plaintiffs are 
royalty owners, seeking to recover damages as a residt ofthe 
Dominion defendants allegedly underpaying royalties by improp­
erly deducting post-production costs and not paying fair market 
value for the gas produced from their leases. The plaintiffs seek 
class action status on behalf of all West Virginia residents and 
others who are parties to or beneficiaries of oil and gas leases with 
the Dominion defendants. DRS is erroneously named as a 
defendant as the parent company of DTI and DEPI. During 
2007, we established a litigation reserve representing our best 
estimate ofthe probable loss related to this matter. We do not 
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believe that the final resolution of this matter will have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition. 

N O T E 25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 

Substantially all of our financial instmments are recorded at fair 
value, with the exception ofthe instruments described below that 
are reported at historical cost. Fair values have been determined 
using available market information and valuation methodologies 
considered appropriate by management. The financial 
instruments' carrying amounts and fair values are as follows: 

At December 31, 

{millions) 

Long-term debt'̂ i 
Junior subordinated notes 

payable to: 
Affiliates 
Ottier 

Carrying 
Amount 

$13,23B 

678 
798 

2007 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value'" 

$13,377 

681 
804 

Carrying 
Amount 

$15,320 

1,151 
798 

2006 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value'i> 

$15,576 

1.209 
828 

(1) Fair value is estimated using market prices, where available, and interest 
rates currently available for issuance of debt with similar terms and 
remaining maturities. The carrying amount of debt issues with short-
term maturities and variable rates refinanced at current market rates is a 
reasonable estimate of their fair value. 

(2) Includes securities due within one year and amounts which represent the 
valuation of certain fair value hedges associated with our fixed-rate debt. 

N O T E 26. CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk is our risk of financial loss if counterparties foil to 
perform their contractual obligations. In order to minimize over­
all credit risk, we maintain credit policies, including the evalua­
tion of counterparty financial condition, collateral requirements 
and the use of standardized agreements that facilitate the netting 
of cash flows associated with a single counterparty. In addition, 
counterparties may make available collateral, including letters of 
credit or cash held as margin deposits, as a result of exceeding 
agreed-upon credit limits, or may be required to prepay the 
transaction. 

We maintain a provision for credit losses based on factors 
surrounding the credit risk of our customers, historical trends and 
other information. We believe, based on our credit policies and 
our December 31, 2007 provision for credit losses, that it is 
unlikely that a material adverse effect on our financial position, 
results of operations or cash flows would occur as a result of coun­
terparty nonperformance. 

As a diversified energy company, we transact with major 
companies in the energy industry and with commercial and resi­
dential energy consumers. These transactions principally occur in 
the Northeast, mid-Adantic and Midwest regions ofthe U.S, We 
do not believe that this geographic concentration contributes sig­
nificandy to our overall exposure to credit risk. In addition, as a 
result of our large and diverse customer base, we are not exposed 
to a significant concentration of credit risk for receivables arising 
from electric and gas utility operations, including transmission 
services and retail energy sales. 

Our exposure to credit risk is concentrated primarily within 
our energy marketing and price risk management activities, as we 
transact with a smaller, less diverse group of counterparties and 
transactions may involve large notional volumes and potentially 
volatile commodity prices. Energy marketing and price risk 
management activities include trading of energy-related commod­
ities, marketing of merchant generation output, structured trans­
actions and the use of financial contracts fbr enterprise-wide 
hedging purposes. Gross credit exposure for each counterparty is 
calculated as outstanding receivables plus any unrealized on or 
off-balance sheet exposure, taking Into account contractual net­
ting rights. Gross credit exposure is calctdated prior to the 
application of collateral. At December 31, 2007, our gross credit 
exposure totaled $808 million. After the application of collateral, 
our credit exposure is reduced to $705 million. Of this amount, 
investment grade counterparties, including those internally rated, 
represented 94% and no single counterparty exceeded 12%. 

N O T E 27. EQUITY AND C O S T - M E T H O D 
INVESTMENTS 

Equity-Method Investments 
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, our equity method investments 
totaled $331 million and $289 million, respectively, and equity 
earnings on these investments totaled $35 million in 2007, $37 
million in 2006 and $43 million in 2005. We received dividend 
income from these investments of $16 million, $21 miUion and 
$28 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During 2007, 
we recognized an impairment loss of $11 million in connection 
with the expected sale of one of our equity method investments. 
During 2006, we sold two of our equity method investments, 
resulting in a net loss of $3 million. Our equity method invest­
ments are reported in our Consolidated Balance Sheets in other 
investments. Equity earnings on these investments are reported in 
other income In our ConsoUdated Statements of Income. 

Cost-Method Investments 
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the carrying value of our cost-
method investments totaled $34 million and $37 million, 
respectively. Our cost method investments are reported in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets in other investments. In 2007 and 
2006, we reviewed all of our cost method investments for evi­
dence of adverse changes In fair value; however, we did not esti­
mate the fair value of our cost-method investments unless we 
identified events or changes in circumstances that had a sig­
nificant adverse effect on the fair value of the investments. 
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N O T E 28. DOMINION CAPITAL, INC. 

Out ConsoUdated Balance Sheets reflect the following DCI assets: 

At December 31, 2007 2006 

(millions) 

Current assetstn 
Loans held for resale 
Loans receivable, net 
Available-for-sale securities 
Other investments 
Property, plant and equipment, net 
Deferred charges and other assets 

$266 
323 

34 

72 

127 

$229 

399 
39 
81 
10 
83 

Total $822 $841 

(1) Includes $30 million of loans heUlfor resale in 2007. Includes $36 mil­
lion of bans receivable, net in 2006. 

Securitizations of Financial Assets 
At December 31, 2006, DCI held $39 million of retained inter­
ests from the securitization of financial assets, which were classi­
fied as available-for-sale securities. The retained interests resulted 
from prior year securitizations of CDO and collateralized mort­
gage obligation (CMO) transactions. During 2007, DCI recog­
nized impairment losses of $27 million ($16 miUion after-tax) 
due to changes in market valuations. DCI also sold three of the 
residual ttusts in the fourth quarter of 2007. DCI stiU owns sk 
residual trusts with no book basis. 

We executed certain agreements in 2003 that resulted in the 
sale of certain financial assets in exchange for an investment in the 
subordinated notes of a third-party CDO entity. This investment 
consisted of $100 million of Class B-I Notes, 7.5% current pay 
interest and $148 million of Class B-2 Notes, 3% paid-in-kind 
(PIK) interest. The equity interest in the new CDO entity, a 
voting interest entity, were held by an entity that is not affiliated 
with us. The CDO entity's primary focus is the purchase and 
origination of middle market senior secured first and second lien 
commercial and industrial loans in both the primary and secon­
dary loan markets. 

Prior to June 2006, our intent was to rate and market the B-1 
Notes and hold the B-2 Notes to maturity. DCI also had a 
commitment to fimd up to $15 miUion of liquidity to the CDO 
entity, but this commitment has expired. 

In 2006, we decided to pursue the sale ofthe B-2 Notes and 
recorded an $85 miUion charge in other operations and main­
tenance expense reflecting an other-than-temporary decline in the 
feir value of the B-2 Notes. An impairment was required because 
of a further increase in interest rates, an increase in our credit risk 
associated with the equity reduaion discussed below and because 
we no longer expected the fair value ofthe B-2 Notes to recover 
prior to a sale. During 2007, we recorded a LOCOM adjustment 
on the B-1 and B-2 notes of $54 million ($35 miUion after-tax) 
due to a deterioration in value of the underlying collateral, DCI 
wiU continue its efforts to sell the B-1 and B-2 notes in 2008. 

DCI's investments in the CDO entity were previously 
included in available-for-sale securities in our Consolidated Bal­
ance Sheet. In 2006, the equity investor reduced its equity at risk 
in the CDO entity, which required a redetermination of whether 
the CDO entity is a VIE under FIN 46R. We concluded that the 
CDO entity is a VIE and that DCI is the primary beneficiary of 
the CDO entity, which we consoUdate in accordance with FIN 
46R. Due to its consolidation, we reflect the assets and liabilities 

ofthe CDO entity in our Consolidated Balance Sheet. At 
December 31. 2007 and 2006, die CDO entity had $460 milhon 
and $385 miUion, respectively, of notes payable that mature in 
January 2017 and are nonrecourse to us. The CDO entity held 
the following assets that served as collateral for its obligations: 

As of December 31 , 2007 2006 

(millions] 

Other current assets''* 
Loans held for resale 
Loans receivable, net 
Other investments 

$257 $183 
323 — 

— 367 
32 36 

Total assets $612 $586 

(1) Includes $30 million of loans held for resale in 2007. Includes $36 mil­
lion of loans receivable, net in 2006. 

There were no mortgage securitizations in 2006 or 2007. 
Activity for the subordinated notes related to the CDO entity, 
retained interests from securitizations of CMOs and CDO 
retained interests is summarized as follows: 

Retained Interests 
CMO —CDO* 11 

(millions) 

Balance at January 1, 2006 
Interest income 
Consolidation of CDO 
Cash received 
Fair value adjustment 

$38 

(1) 
2 

$255 
12 

(171) 
(11) 
(85) 

Balance at December 31, 2006 

Cash received 
Fair value adjustment 

Balance at December 31, 2007 

$39 

(10) 
(29)(2) 

$ ^ 

$ -
— 

$ -

(1) Includes interest receivable. 
(2) Includes the reversal of an unrealized gain of$2 miUion recorded in 

2006, plus a $27 milUon impairment loss due to the write-down ofthe 
CMOs. 

Loans Related to the CDO Entity 
Presented below are the significant accounting policies associated 
with loans held for resale reflected on our Consolidated Balance 
Sheet due to consoUdation of the CDO entity. 

LOANS H E L D FOR RESALE 

We report loans held for resale at LOCOM. We determine any 
LOCOM adjustment to the loans held for sale on a pool basis by 
aggregating those loans based on similar risks and characteristics. 
The fair value ofthe loans are calculated by discountii^ sched­
uled cash flows through the estimated maturity using estimated 
market discount rates that reflect the credit and interest rate risk 
inherent in the loan, current economic conditions, and lending 
conditions. The estimates of maturity are based on historical 
experience with repayments for each loan classification. 

A loan is considered non-performing if it meets the definition 
of either a (i) Defeulted Security, or (ii) PIK Security, where 
interest has been deferred or paid-in-kind for three months (or 6 
months in the case of a security that is otdy required to pay inter­
est on a quarterly basis). 
• In general, a Defatdted Security is: I) a loan where a default as 

to the payment of principal and/or interest has occurred and 
is continuing, 2) a loan that has a Standard & Poor's rating of 
"D" or "SD" or has a Moody's rating of "Ca" or lower; or, 
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N o t e s t o Conso l ida ted Financial S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

3) a loan that in the reasonable business judgment of the 

C D O entity's collateral manager, is a Defaulted Security. 

In general, a PIK Security is a loan with respect to which the 

obligor has the right to defer or capitaUze all or a portion of 

the interest due on such loan as principal, unless such asset Is 

required on each payment date to pay in cash a spread of at 

least die LIBOR plus 2.50%. 

The C D O entity's loan balances are summarized as follows: 

As of December 31, 

(millions) 

Loans'!' 
Unamortized 

premiums, 
discounts and 
other cost basis 
adjustments, 
net 

LOCOM 
adjustments'̂ ' 

Allowance for 
loan losses 

Loans, net 

Perlorming 

$538 

(131) 

(54) 

— 
$353 

Non-
perfDrmine 

$11 

(3) 

(8) 

— 
$ -

2007 

Total 

$549 

(134) 

(62) 

— 
$353 

Performing 

$521 

(127) 

— 

(2) 

$392 

Non-
performing 

$21 

(5) 

— 

(5) 

$11 

2006 

Total 

$542 

(132) 

— 

(7) 

$403 

(1) Current portion: Performing—$30 million and $28 million in 2007 
and 2006, respectively; Non-performing—$8 milUon in 2006. 

(2) Includes $1 million and $7 million of allowances for loan losses recorded 
during 2007 prior to the reclassification of loans receivable to loans held 
for resale for performing and non-performing respectively. 

The notional value of the non-performing portfolio at 

December 3 1 , 2007 and 2006, was $149 million and $148 mil­

lion, respectively. During 2006, the C D O entity recorded provi­

sions for loan losses of $7 mUlion and recorded direct write-ofife, 

net of recoveries amounting to $20 million. The interest income 

earned from cash collections on non-performing loans in 2007 

and 2006, was $5 million and $1 miUion, respectively. 

A L L O W A N C E F O R L O A N L O S S E S 

The allowance for loan losses is a significant estimate that repre­
sents the C D O entity's estimate of probable losses inherent in the 
loan portfolio and equity investments as determined by the C D O 
entity's collateral manager. 

In calculating the allowance for loan losses, the C D O entity's 
collateral manager applies a systematic and consistent approach 
that considers among other fiictors: historical payment experience, 
past-due status, current financial information, ability of the debt­
ors to generate cash flows and realizable value of coUateral on a 
loan by loan basis. Each material non-performing loan and 
material equity investment is reviewed on a quarterly basis. A 
range of probable losses is estimated for each loan after which a 
probable loss is determined. 

A loan is written off when it is considered fiilly uncoUectible 
and of such little value that its continuance as an asset is not 
warranted. A loan or equity investment is also written off if the 
borrower has ceased operations, the majority of the borrower's 
assets have been liquidated or sold, or the remaining collections 
of the loans are speculative and expected to be minimal or highly 
contingent. 

L O A N O R I G I N A T I O N F E E S A N D C O S T S 

Loan origination fees and costs are deferred and recorded as part 
of loans held for resale and then amortized over the life of the 
loan as an adjustment to the yield in interest income. 

D E F E R R E D F I N A N C I N G C L O S I N G 

Costs incurred to refinance debt are deferred and amortized over 

the life ofthe notes. All costs associated with any notes that are 

paid in fiill are expensed at the date of the payoff. 

Key Economic Assumptions and Sensitivity Analyses 
The loans held for resale held hy the C D O entity are subject to 

credit loss and interest rate risk. Adverse changes of up to 10% in 

credit losses and interest rates are estimated In each case to have 

less than a $40 million pre-tax impact on future results of oper­

ations. 

Impairment Losses 
T h e table below presents a summary of asset impairment losses 

associated with D C I operations. 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

(milliors) 

Retained interests from CMO securitizations'̂ * 
Loans held for resale*̂ ' 
Retained interests from CDO securitizations'̂ * 
Venture capital and other equity investments'̂ ) 

$27 
54 
— 
17 

$ -
— 
85 
6 

$25 
— 
^ 
10 

Total $98 $91 $35 

(1) Reflects the result of economic conditions and historically low interest 
rates and the resulting impact on credit losses and prepayment speeds. We 
recorded impairments of our retained interests from CMO securitizations 
in 2007 arid 2005 and retained interests from CDO securitizations in 
2006. We updated our credit loss and prepayment assumptions to reflect 
our recent experience. 

(2) During 2007, we recorded LOCOM adjustments of $54 miUion on our 
bans held for resale. 

(3) Impairments were recorded primarily due to our decision to dispose of 
the assets when it became probable we would not recover the assets 
recorded basis. 

N O T E 29. OPERATING SEGMENTS 
W e are organized primarily on the basis of products and services 
sold in the U.S. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we realigned 
our business units to reflect our strategic refocusing and began 
managing our daily operarions through four operating segments. 
All s ^ m e n t information for prior years has been recast to con­
form to the new segment structure. A description of our segments 
follows: 

DVP includes our regulated electric distribution and electric 
transmission operations in Virginia and North Carolina, as well as 
nonregulated retail energy marketing and all customer service 
operations. 

Dominion Energy inc lude our Ohio r^u la ted natural gas dis­
tribution company, regulated gas transmission pipeline and stor­
age operations, including gathering and extraction activities, 
regulated LNG operations and our Appalachian natural gas E&P 
business. Dominion Energy also includes producer services, which 
aggregates gas supply, provides market-based services related to 
gas transportation and storage and engages in associated gas trad­
ing and marketing. 
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Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of our 
electric utUity and merchant fleet, as well as energy marketing and 
price risk management activities associated with our generation 
assets. 

Corporate and Other includes our corporate, service company, 
corporate-wide enterprise commodity risk management services 
and other functions (including unallocated debt). In addition, 
this segment includes the remaining assets and operarions of DCI, 
which are in the process of being divested, the net impact of dis­
continued operations, our non-Appalachian natutal gas and oil 
E&P operations that were sold and our regulated gas distribution 
subsidiaries that are held for sale. In addition, the contribution to 
net income by our primary operating s^ments is determined 
based on a measure of profit that executive manj^ement believes 
represents the segments' core earnings. As a result, certain specific 
items attributable to those segments are not included in profit 
measures evaluated by executive management in assessing the 
segments' performance or allocating resources among the seg­
ments and are instead reported in the Corporate and Other seg­
ment. In 2007, we reported net expenses of $618 million in the 
Corporate and Other s^ment attributable to our operating seg­
ments. The net expenses in 2007 primarily related to the impact 
ofthe foUowing items attributable to Dominion Generation: 
• A $387 mUlion ($252 miUion after-tax) charge related to the 

impairment of Dresden; 
• A $259 mUlion ($158 miUion after-tax) extraordinary charge 

due to the reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia juris­
diction of our utility generation operations; and 

' A $231 million ($137 million afrer-tax) charge resulting from 
the termination ofthe long-term power sales agreement asso­
ciated with State Line. 

In 2006, we reported net expenses of $10 million in the 
Corporate and Other segment attributable to our operating seg­
ments. The net expenses in 2006 primarUy related to the impact 
ofthe following; 
• A $21 million tax benefit from the partial reduction of pre­

viously recorded valuation allowances on certain federal and 
state tax loss carryforwards (attributable to Dominion 
Generation), since these carryforwards were expected to be 
utilized to oflfeet capital gain income that would have been 
generated from the planned sale of Peoples and Hope; 

• A $27 miUion ($17 miUion after-tax) charge residting from 
the cancellation of a pipeline project, attributable to 
Dominion Energy; and 

• A $26 million impairment ($15 milUon afrer-tax) charge 
resulting from a change in our method of assessing other-
than-temporary declines in the fair value of securiries held as 
investments in our nuclear decommissioning trusts; attribut­
able to Dominion Generation. 

In 2005, we reported net expenses of $133 miUion in the 
Corporate and Other segment attributable to our operating seg­
ments. The net expenses in 2005 primarUy related to the impact 
of the following Items attributable to Dominion Generation: 
• A $77 million charge ($47 million after-tax) resulting from 

the termination of a long-term power purchase agreement; 
and 

• A $51 million charge related to credit exposure associated 
with the bankruptcy of Calpine Corporation. At December 
31, 2005, we had not recognized any deferred tax benefits 
related to the charge, since realization of tax benefits was not 
anticipated based on our expected future tax profile at that 
time. 

Intersegment sales and transfers are based on underlying con­
tractual arrangements and i^reements and may result in 
intersegment profit or loss. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

The following table presents segment information pertaining to our operations: 

Year Ended December 31, DVP 
Dominion 

Energy 

Dominion 
Generation 

Corporate 
and 

Other 
Adjustmaits &. 

Eliminations 
Consolidated 

Tolal 

(millions) 

2007 J 
Total re\?enue from external customers 
Intersegment revenue 

$2,757 
140 

2,897 
300 

1 
14 

147 
263 
— 
— 

415 
6 

564 
8.4 

$1,970 
1,525 

3,495 
243 

13 
32 

109 
241 
— 
— 

387 
97 

937 
9.4 

$7,606 
135 

7.741 
363 

15 
67 

264 
494 
— 
_ 

756 
181 

1,026 
16.9 

$2,089 
596 

2,685 
465 

6 
172 
795 
785 

(158) 
(8) 

981 
47 

1,445 
13.6 

$ 1,252 
(2,396) 

(1,144) 
(3) 
— 

(140) 
(140) 

_ 
— 
— 
— 
— 
__ 

(9.2) 

$15,674 

— 
15.674 
1.368 

35 
145 

1,175 
1,783 
(158) 

(8) 
2,539 

331 
3,972 
39.1 

Total operating revenue 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Intome tax expense 
Extraordinary item, net of tax 
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 
Net income 
Investment in equity method investees 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) 

2006 
Total revenue from external customers 
Intersegment revenue 

$2,514 
76 

$2,313 
1,218 

$6,971 
137 

$3,564 
621 

$ 935 
(2,052) 

$16,297 

— 
Total operating revenue 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income tax expense 
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 
Net income 
Investment in equity method Investees 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) 

Total operating revenue 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income tax expense (benefit) 
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 

2,590 
294 

1 
11 

143 
253 
— 

411 
6 

523 
7.8 

3,531 
197 

12 
26 

118 
232 
— 

347 
98 

493 
8.4 

7,108 
311 

18 
65 

259 
351 
— 

537 
119 

1,018 
16.1 

4,185 
758 

6 
100 
595 
81 

(150) 
85 
66 

2,018 
25.2 

(1,117) 
(3) 

_ 
(87) 
(87) 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

(8.2) 

16,297 
1,557 

37 
115 

1,028 
927 

(150) 
1,380 

289 
4,052 

49.3 

2005 
Total revenue from external customers 
Intersegment revenue 

$2,357 
56 

$2,783 
1,365 

$8,035 
203 

$3,320 
502 

$ 1,314 
(2,126) 

$17,809 
— 

2,413 
282 

1 
6 

156 
233 
_ 
— 

378 

4,148 
ISO 
13 
17 

104 
230 
— 
— 

362 

8,238 
351 

21 
51 

264 
224 

— 
— 

416 

3,822 
548 

8 
146 
558 

(114) 
6 

(5) 
(123) 

(812) 
(2) 

_ 
(138) 
(138) 

_ 
— 
„ 

— 

17,809 
1,359 

43 
92 

944 
573 

6 
(6) 

1,033 

At December 31, 2007, none of our long-lived assets and no significant pe rcen t^ of our operating revenues were associated with inter­
national operations. As of December 31, 2006, approximately 2% of our total long-lived assets were associated with international oper­
ations. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately 1% of our operating revenues were associated with international 
operations. 
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N O T E 30. GAS AND OIL PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED) 

Capitalized Costs 
The a^regate amounts of costs capitalized for gas and oil producing activities, and related aggregate amounts of accumulated depletion 
foUow; 

At December 31, 2Q07 2006 

(rnillions) 

Capitalized costs: 

Proved properties 

Unproved properties 

Total capitalized costs 

Accumulated depletion: 

Proved properties 

Unproved properties 

Total accumulated depletion 

Net capitalized costs 

$1,789 

10 

1,799 

104 

104 

$1,695 

$11,747 

1,980 

13,727 

3,506 
144 

3,650 

$10,077 

Total Costs Incurred 
The following costs were incurred in gas and oil producing activities: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Total U.S. 

2007 

Canada Total U.S. 

2006 

Canada Total U.S. 

2005 

Canada 

(rnillions) 

Property acquisition costs: 
Proved properties 
Unproved properties 

19 
77 

$ 19 
75 

$ -
2 

$ 87 
171 

$ 87 
165 

$ -
6 

$ 118 
151 

$ lis 
137 14 

Total property acquisition costs 

Exploration costs 

Development costs^i' 

Total 

96 

132 

1,114 

$1,342 

94 

126 

1,036 

$1,306 

2 

6 

28 

$36 

258 

399 

1,451 

$2,108 

252 

383 

1,365 

$2,000 

6 

15 

86 

$108 

269 

235 

1,207 

$1,711 

255 

230 

1,128 

$1,613 

14 

5 

79 

$98 

(1) Development costs incurred for proved undeveloped reserves were $445 million, $302 million and $284 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Results of Operations 
^ e caution that the following standardized disclosures required by the FASB do not represent our results of operations based on our histor­
ical financial statements. In addition to requiring different determinations of revenue and costs, the disclosures exclude the impaa of 
interest expense and corporate overhead. 

Year Ended December 31, 

Total U.S. 

2007 

Canada Total U.S. 

2006 

Canada Total U.S. 

2005 

Canada 

(rnillions) 

Revenue (net of royalties) from: 

Sales to nonaffiliated companies 
Transfers to other operations 

Total 

$1,367 

298 

1,665 

$1,291 

298 

1,589 

$76 

76 

$1,883 
253 

2,136 

$1,749 
253 

2,002 

$134 

134 

$1,499 

268 

1,767 

$1,359 

268 

1,637 

$130 

130 

Less; 
Production (lifting) costs 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Income tax expense 

396 
536 
271 

369 
514 
262 

27 
22 

9 

552 
801 
285 

510 
750 
271 

42 
51 
14 

443 
564 
283 

406 
525 
264 

37 
39 
19 

Results of operations $462 $ 444 $18 498 $ 471 $ 27 $ 477 $ 442 $ 35 
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Company-Owned Reserves 
Estimated net quantities of proved gas and oU (including condensate) reserves in the U.S. and Canada at December 31 , 2007, 2006 and 

2005, and changes in the reserves during those years, are shown in the two schedules that follow: 

Cbillion cubic feet) 

Proved developed and undeveloped 
reserves—Gas 

At January 1 
Changes in reserves: 

Extensions, discoveries and other additions 
Revisions of previous estimates 
Production 
Purchases of gas in place 
Sales of gas in place 

At December 31 

Proved developed reserves—Gas 
At January 1 
At December 31 

Proved developed and undeveloped 
reserves—Oil 

(thousands of barrels) 
At January 1 
Changes in reserves: 

Extensions, discoveries and other additions 
Revisions of previous estimatestii 
Production 
Purchases of oil in place 
Sales of oil in place 

At December 31*21 

Proved developed reserves—Oil 
At January 1 
At December 31 

Total 

5,136 

139 
88 

(214) 
44 

(4,174) 

1,019 

3,55B 
638 

232,259 

3,094 
932 

(12,185) 
3 

(211,490) 

12,613 

180,779 
12,613 

U.S. 

4,961 

130 
88 

(206) 
44 

(3,998) 

1,019 

3,424 
636 

216,849 

2,853 
932 

(11,626) 
3 

(196,398) 

12,613 

173,718 
12,613 

2007 

Canada 

175 

9 
— 
(8) 
— 

(176) 

— 

132 
— 

15,410 

241 
— 

(559) 
— 

(15,092) 

— 

7,061 
— 

Total 

4,962 

431 
109 

(318) 
48 
(96) 

5,135 

3,706 
3,556 

217,698 

11,373 
38,010 
(24,947) 

615 
(10,490) 

232,259 

152,889 
180,779 

U.S. 

4,856 

393 
58 

(302) 
48 
(92) 

4,961 

3,605 
3,424 

198,602 

10,678 
40,629 
(23,923) 

615 
(9,752) 

216,849 

145,735 
173,718 

2006 

Canada 

106 

38 
51 
(16) 

— 
(4) 

175 

101 
132 

19,096 

695 
(2,619) 
(1,024) 

— 
(738) 

15,410 

7,154 
7,061 

Total 

4,910 

299 
73 

(290) 
55 

(85) 

4,962 

3.585 
3.706 

164.062 

5,681 
63,884 

(15,575) 
69 

(1,423) 

217,698 

113,992 
152,889 

U.S. 

4,814 

276 
71 

(275) 
55 

(85) 

4,856 

3,591 
3,505 

144,007 

5.399 
65,264 
(14.714) 

69 
(1.423) 

198,502 

102,152 
145,735 

2005 

Canada 

96 

23 
2 

(15) 

— 
_ 

106 

94 
101 

20,055 

1,282 
(1,380) 

(861) 

— 
— 

19,096 

11,840 
7,154 

(1) The decrease in the U.S. revision in 2007 is primarily attributable to the sale of our non-Appabchian E&P operations. The 2006 U.S. revision is comprised 
of approximately 27.6 million barrels of natural gas liquids and 13 million barrels of oil/condensate. Natural gas liquids revisions were primarily the result 
of additional contractual changes with third-party gas processors in which we now take title to our processed natural gas liquids, and residue gas and liquids 
reserve amounts recognized under such contracts. OiUcondensate revisions were primarily the result of positive performance revisions at Gulf of Mexico deep-
water bcations. The 2005 U.S. revision is primarily due to an increase in plant liquids that resulted frorn a contractual change for a portion of our gas proc­
essed by third parties. We now take title to and market the natural gas liquids extracted from this gas. 

(2) Ending reserves for 2007, 2006 and 2005 included 0.3 million, 114.6 million and 127.6 million barrels ofoiUcondensate, respectively, and 12.3, 117.7 
and 90.1 miUion barrels of natural gas liquids, respectively. 

110 Dominion 2007 Annual Repon 



Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows and Changes Therein 
The following tabulation has been prepared in accordance with the FASB's rules for disclosure of a standardized measure of discounted 

future net cash flows relating to proved gas and oil reserve quantities that we own: 

(millions) 

Future cash inflows'i' 
Less: 

Future development costs'̂ ) 
Future production costs 
Future income tax expense 

Future cash flows 
Less annual discount (10% a year) 

Standardized measure of discounted future net 
cash flows 

Total 

$8,128 

671 
1,235 
2,432 

3,790 
2,346 

$1,444 

U.S. 

$8,128 

671 
1,235 
2,432 

3,790 
2,346 

$1,444 

2007 

Canada 

$ -

— 

$ -

Total 

$38,326 

3,226 
7,421 
9,112 

18,557 
10,458 

$ 8,109 

U.S. 

$35,604 

3.052 
5.935 
8,782 

17.834 
10.143 

$ 7.591 

2006 

Canada 

$1,722 

174 
485 
330 

733 
315 

$ 418 

Total 

$53,004 

1,979 
8,127 

19,019 

33,879 
18,916 

$14,963 

U.S. 

$61,112 

1,877 
7,718 

18,527 

32,990 
18,560 

$14,430 

2005 

Canada 

$1,892 

102 
409 
492 

889 
356 

$ 533 

(1) Amounts exclude the effect of derivative instruments designated as hedges of foture sales of production at year-end. 
(2) Estimated foture devebpment costs, excluding abandonment, for proved undeveloped reserves are estimated to be $80 million, $79 million and $87 million 

for2008, 2009and2010, respectively 

In the foregoing determination of Riture cash inflows, sales prices for gas and oil were based on contractual arrangements or market 

prices at year-end. Future costs of developing and producing the proved gas and oil reserves reported at the end of each year shown were 

based on costs determined at each such year end, assuming the continuation of existing economic conditions. Future income taxes were 

computed by applying the appropriate year-end or future stamtory tax rate to fiiture pretax net cash flows, less the tax basis of the proper­

ties involved, and giving effect to tax deductions, permanent differences and tax credits. 

It is not intended that the FASB's standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows represent the fiiir market value of our 

proved reserves. W e caution that the disclosures shown are based on estimates of proved reserve quantities and future production schedules 

which are inherently imprecise and subject to revision, and the 10% discount rate is arbitrary. In addition, costs and prices as of the meas­

urement date are used in the determinations, and no value may be assigned to probable or possible reserves. 

The following tabulation is a summary of changes between the total standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at the 

beginning and end of each year: 

2007 2006 2005 

(millions) 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at January 1 
Changes in the year resulting from: 

Sales and transfers of gas and oil produced during the year, less production costs 
Prices and production and development costs related to future production 
Extensions, discoveries and other additions, less production and development costs 
Previously estimated development costs incurred during the year 
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 
Accretion of discount 
Income taxes 

Other purchases and sales of proved reserves in place 
Other (principally timing of production) 

$ 8 , 1 0 9 $ 14,953 9,025 

(1,270) 
289 
419 
467 
286 
181 

3,173 
(10,197) 

(13) 

(2,791) 
(11,788) 

758 
302 
409 

2,327 
4,352 
(346) 

(77) 

(2,502) 
8.929 
1.395 

284 
27 

1.367 
.(3,659) 

140 
(45) 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at December 31 $ 1 , 4 4 4 $ 8,109 $14,963 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

N O T E 31. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL AND COMMON STOCK DATA (UNAUDITED) 

A summary of our quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 follows. Amounts reflect all adjust­

ments necessary in the opinion of management for a ̂ r statement ofthe results for the interim periods. Results for interim periods may 

fluctuate as a result of weather conditions, changes in rates and other factors. As described in Note 6, we reported the operations of our 

Canadian E&P business and certain DCI businesses as discontinued operations begiiming in the second quarter of 2007. Prior quarters fbr 

2007 and 2006 have been recast to conform to this presentation. All differences between amounts presented below and those previously 

reported in our Quarterly Reports on Forms 10-Q during 2007 and 2006 are a result of reponing the results of these businesses as dis­

continued operations and the November 2007 stock split. 

First Second 
Quarter Quarter 

Third 
Quarter 

Fourtti 
Quarter Full Year 

(millions, except per share amounts) 

2007 

Operating revenue 
Income (loss) from operations 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Extraordinary item, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 

$4,661 $3,730 $3,589 $3,694 $15,674 
1,000 

475 
(22) 

453 

(380) 
(392) 

20 
(158) 
(530) 

4,215 
2,320 

(3) 

2,317 

732 
302 

(3) 

299 

5,567 
2,705 

(8) 
(158) 

2,539 

Basic EPS: 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Extraordinary item, net of tax 
Net income 

0.68 
(0.03) 

0.65 

(0.56) 
0.03 

(0.23) 
(0.76) 

3.65 
(0.01) 

3.64 

0.53 
(0.01) 

0.52 

4.15 
(0.01) 
(0.24) 
3.90 

Diluted EPS: 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Extraordinary item, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 

0.68 
(0.03) 

0.65 

(0.56) 
0.03 
(0.23) 
(0.76) 

3.63 
(0.01) 

3.62 

0.53 
(0.01) 

0.52 

4.13 
(0.01) 
(0.24) 
3.88 

1.46 
$49.38-

39.84 

Dividends paid per share 
Common stock prices (high-low) 

0.35 
$44.71-

39.84 

0.36 
$46.82-

40.03 

0.36 
$46.00-

40.76 

0.39 
$49.38-

42.23 

2006 
Operating revenue 
Income from operations 
Income from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Net income 

$ 4,906 
952 
534 

534 

$ 3,496 
474 
146 
15 

151 

$ 3,973 
1,294 

655 
(1) 

654 

$ 3,922 
598 
195 

(164) 
31 

$16,297 
3,318 
1,530 
(150) 

1.380 

Basic EPS: 
Income from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Net income 

0.77 

0.77 

0.21 
0.02 
0.23 

0.93 

0.93 

0.28 
(0.24) 
0.04 

2.19 
(0.22) 
1.97 

Diluted EPS: 
Income from continuing operations 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Net income 

0.77 

0.77 

0.21 
0.02 
0.23 

0.92 

0.92 

0.28 
(0.24) 
0.04 

2.17 
(0.21) 
1.95 

Dividends paid per share 
Common stock prices (high-low) 

0.34 0.35 
$40.21- $38.01-

34.44 34.36 

0.34 0.35 
$40.71- $42.22-

37.22 38.02 

1.38 
$42.22-

34.36 
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Our 2007 results include the impact ofthe following 
significant items: 
• Second quarter results include a $341 million after-tax charge 

due to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas 
and oU derivatives associated with the sale of our 
non-Appalachian E&P operations, a $252 million after-tax 
impairment charge associated with tKe sale of Dresden, a 
$158 million after-tax extraordinary chaj^e due to the 
reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of 
our UtUity generation operations and a $108 million after-tax 
charge for the recognirion of cenain forward gas contracts that 
no longer qualified for the normal purchase and sales exemp­
tion due to the sale of our U,S. non-Appalachian E&P 
operations. 

• Third quarter results include a $2.1 billion after-tax gain from 
the disposition of oiu: U.S. non-Appalachian E&P operations. 
Results also include a $140 million after-tax charge for the 
recognition of a long-term power sales agreement at State Line 
that no longer qualified for the normal purchase and sales 
exemption due to the termination of the agreement in the 
fourth quarter of 2007. 

Our 2006 results include the impact of the foUowing 
significant items: 
• First quarter results include a $94 million after-tax chaise 

resulting from the write-off of certain regulatory assets related 
to the planned sale of Peoples and Hope, a $222 milUon tax 
benefit from the partial reversal of previously recorded valu­
ation allowances on certain federal and state tax loss carryfor­
wards expected to be utilized to offset capital gain income 
that would have been generated from the planned sale and 
the establishment of $141 million of deferred tax liabilities 
associated with the excess of our financial reporting basis 
over the tax basis in the stock of Peoples and Hope. Results 
also include a $76 million after-tax benefit resulting from 
fevorable changes In the fair value of certain gas and oil 
derivatives that were de-designated as hedges foUowing the 
2005 hurricanes. 

• Second quaner residts include an $85 miUion charge residting 
from the impairment of a DCI investment for which no tax 
benefit had been recognized at that time. 

• Third quarter results include a $171 million after-tax benefit 
from business interruption insurance revenue related to the 
2005 hurricanes. 

• Fourth quaner results include a $164 million after-tax charge 
associated with the impairment of the Peaker facilities that 
were sold in March 2007. 
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Directors 

Peter W. Brown, M.O., 65 
Physician, 
Virginia Surgical Associates 

Mark J. Kington, 48 
Managing Director, 
X-10 Capital Management, LLC (investments) 

George A. Davidson, Jr., 69 
Retired Chairman, 
Dominion Resources, Inc, 

Benjamin J. Lambert, III, 71 
Optometrist 

Thomas F. Farrell II, 53 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Dominion Resources, Inc. 

Margaret A. McKenna, 62 
President, 
The Wal-Mart Foundation 

John W.Harris, 80 
President, 
Lincoln Harris, LLC (real estate consulting firm) 

Robert S. Jepson, Jr., 65 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 
Jepson Associates, Inc. (private investments) 

Frank S. Royal, M.D., 68 
Physician 

David A. Wollard, 70 
Founding Chairman ofthe Board, 
Emeritus, Exempla Healthcare 
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Executive Officers 

Thomas F. Farrell II, 53 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Cifficer 

David A. Christian, 53 
President and Chief Nuclear Officer, 
Dominion Nuclear 

Thomas N. Chev^ning, 62 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Eva Teig Hardy, B3 
Executive Vice President, 
Public Policy & Corporate Communications 

Mary C. Doswell, 49 
Senior Vice President, 
Regulation and Integrated Planning 

G. Scott Hetzer, 51 
Senior Vice President and Treasurer 

JayLJohnson, 61 
Executive Vice President 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Dominion Virginia Power 

Steven A. Rogers, 46 
Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer 
President and Chief Administrative Officer, 
Dominion Resources Services 

Paul D. Koonce, 48 
Executive Vice President 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Dominion Energy 

James F. Stutts, 63 
Senior Vice President and General Counsel 

Mark F. McGettrick, 50 
Executive Vice President 
President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Dominion Generation 

Thomas P. Wohlfarth, 47 
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer 
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Shareholder Information 

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. is the transfer agent and 
registrar for Dominion's common stock. Our Shareholder Services 
staff provides personal assistance for any inquiries Monday 
through Friday from 9 a.m. to noon and from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m. 
(ET). In addition, automated information is available 24 hoiu:s a 
day through our voice response system. 

1-800-552-4034 (toll-free) 
1-804-775-2500 

Major press releases and other company information may be 
obtained by visiting our Web site at www.dom.com. Shareholders 
also may obtain account-specific information by visiting this site. 
To sign up for this service, visit www.dom.com and click 
"Investors"and then select "Acc^s Your Account Online." Once 
you have accessed the sign-in page, click "First Time Visitor" in 
the upper-left corner ofthe screen and follow the directions 
for "New Member Sign Up." Aiter you have signed up, you will 
be able to monitor your account, make changes and review your 
Dominion Activity statements at your convenience. 

Direct Stock Purchase Plan 
You may buy Dominion common stock through Dominion 
Direct®. Please contact Shareholder Services for a prospectus and 
enrollment form or visit www.dom.com and click "Investots." 

Common Stock Listing 
New York Stock Exchange 
Trading symbol: D 

Common Stock Price Range* 

First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 
Year 

2007 

High 

$44.71 
46.82 
45.00 
49.38 

$49.38 

Low 

$39.84 
40.03 
40.76 
42.23 

$39.84 

2006 

High 

$40.21 
38.01 
40.71 
42.22 

$42,22 

Low 

$34.44 
34.36 
37.22 
38.02 

$34.36 

*All per-share stock prices reflect the November 2007 2-for-l stock split. 

Dividends on Dominion common stock are paid as declared by 
the board. Dividends are typically paid on the 20th of March, 
June, September and December. Dividends can be paid by check 
or electronic deposit, or they may be reinvested. 

On December 31,2007, there were approximately 154,000 
registered shareholders, including approximately 62,000 certificate 
holders. 

Certifications 
Each year, Dominion is required to submit to the New York 
Stock Exchange (NYSE) a certification by its chief executive 
officer that he is not aware ofany violation by the company of 
NYSE corporate governance listing standards subject to any 
necessary qualifications. In 2007 an unqualified cenification was 
submitted. Dominion has filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission certifications regarding the quality of the company's 
public disclosure by its chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 in its Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31,2007. 

Annual Meeting 
This year's Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Dominion 
Resources, Inc. will be held Friday, May 9, at 9:30 a.m. (CT) at 
1400 S. Lake Shore Dtive, Chicago, lUinois. 

Performance Graph 
This graph and table below show the five-year cumulative total 
return comparison between Dominion, the Sfidi* 500 Index, and 
the S&P 500 Utilities Index. 

Indexed Returns 

Years Ending December 31 

Dominion 
S&P 500 
S&P 500 Utilities 

2002 

100 
100 
100 

2003 

121.41 
128.68 
126.26 

Base Period 

2004 20D5 

13416 158.54 
142.69 149.70 
156.91 183.34 

2006 

178.44 
173.34 
221.82 

2007 

208.73 
182.88 
264.80 

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN 

• Dominion 
• S&P 500 
• S&P 500 Utilities $264.80 

$208.73 

$182.86 
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Corporate Street Address 
Dominion Resources, Inc. 
120 Tredegar Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Mailing Address 
Dominion Resources, Inc. 
P.O. Box 26532 
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532 

Web Site 
www.dom.com 

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Richmond, Virginia 

Shareholder Inquiries 
Shareholder. Services @ dom.com 

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. 
Shareholder Services 
P.O. Box 26532 
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532 

Additional Information 
Copies of Dominion s Annual Report, Proxy Statement and 
reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form S-K are 
available without charge. These items can be viewed by visiting 
www.dom.com, or requests for these items can be made 
by writing to; 

Corporate Secretary 
Dominion Resources, Inc. 
EO. Box 26532 
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532 

Electronic Reports 
Please visit Dominion's Investor site at www.dom.com/investors. 
On this site, you can view financial documents including our 
Annual Report and Proxy Statement. 

F S C 

^ Mixed Sources 
product group from well-i 
forests, contiolleil sources and 
recycled wDad or libef 
www.fscorg Certno.SW^DC-1 
0 1 9 H Forest Stawanblilp Council 

The Forest Stewardsliip Council (FSC) is an international organization that 
brings people together to find solutions which promote responsible steward­
ship of the world's forests. The FSC has a set of 10 principles that define 
responsible forest management and address issues such as indigenous 
people's rights, community relations and labor rights, legal concerns, and 
environmental impacts surrounding forest management. Its product label 
allows consumers worldwide to recognize products that support the growth 
of responsible forest management. 
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RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILFTIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-2 "SEC FJMngs" 

Enclosed herewith, please find an original and ten copies ofthe most recent 10-K and 8-K 
filings of parent company Dominion Resources, Inc. Website references to those same 
filings are noted below. 

2007 10-K filing: 
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/715957/000119312508041046/0001193125-08-
041046-index.htm 

2008 8-K filing: 
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/715957/000119312508134396/d8k.htm 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/715957/000119312508041046/0001193125-08041046-index.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/715957/000119312508041046/0001193125-08041046-index.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/715957/000119312508134396/d8k.htm
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FORM 10-K 
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Annual report which provides a comprehensive overview of the company for the past year 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 
(Mark One) 

\m ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT O F 1934 
For the flscal year ended December 31, 2007 

OR 

a TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) O F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT O F 1934 
For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number 001-08489 

^ 1 Dominionf 
DOMINION RESOURCES, INC. 

(EKact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Virginia 54-1229715 
(Stat^ or other jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer 

of incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 

120 Tredega r Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) 

(804) 819-2000 
(Registrant's teleplione number) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Name of Each Exchange 
Title of Each Class on Which Registered 

Common stock, no par value New York Stock Exchange 
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 

None 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 ofthe Securities Act. Yes EJ No D 
Indicate by check marie ifthe registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) ofthe Exchange Act. Yes D No (Zl 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing 
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes lEl No D 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to hem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the 
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this 
Form 10-K. D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See 
the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Exchange Act. 

Large accelerated filer ID Accelerated filer D Non-accelerated filer D Smaller reporting company D 
(Do not check i f a smaller 

reporting company) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Exchange Act). Yes • No [H] 
The aggregate market value oflhe common stock held by non-affiliates ofthe registrant was approximately $24.5 billion based on the closing price of 

Dominion's common stock as reported on the New Yoric Stock Exchange as ofthe last day ofthe registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter. 
As of February 1,2008, Dominion had 574,841,692 shares of common stock outstanding. 

DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BV REFERENCE. 

(a)Portions ofthe 2008 Proxy Statement are incorporated by reference in Part III. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K, February 28, 2008 
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Parti 

Item 1. Business 

THE COMPANY 

Dominion Resources, Inc. (Dominion), headquartered in Richmond, 
Virginia and incorporated in Virginia in 1983, is one ofthe nation's largest 
producers and transporters of energy. Our strategy is to be a leading 
provider of electricity, natural gas and related services to customers 
primarily in the eastern region ofthe United Stales (U.S.). Our portfolio of 
assets includes approximately 26,500 megawatts (Mw) of generation, 
6,000 miles of electric transmission lines, 55,000 miles of electric 
distribution lines in Virginia and North Carolina, 14,000 miles of natural 
gas transmission, gathering and storage pipeUne, 28,000 miles of gas 
distribution pipeline, exclusive of service lines of two inches in diameter or 
less, and 1.1 trillion cubic feet equivalent (Tcfe) of natural gas and oil 
reserves. Dominion also owns the nation's largest underground natural gas 
storage system and operates over 975 billion cubic feet (bcf) of storage 
capacity and serves retail energy customers in eleven states. On June 30, 
2007, we merged our wholly-owned subsidiary, Consolidated Natural Gas 
Company (CNG) with our holding company, Dominion. As a result ofthe 
merger, all of CNG's subsidiaries became direct subsidiaries of Dominion. 

We completed the sale of our non-Appalachian natural gas and oil 
exploration and production (E&P) operations during the third quarter of 
2007. We chose to retain otu- Appalachian assets due to their strategic fit 
with our natural gas transmission and storage assets. 

The terms "Dominion," "Company," "we," "our" and "us" are used 
throughout this report and, depending on the context of their use, may 
represent any ofthe following: the legal entity. Dominion Resources, Inc., 
one or more of Dominion Resources, Inc.'s consolidated subsidiaries or 
operating segments or the entirety of Dominion Resources, Inc. and its 
consolidated subsidiaries. 

Following the sale of our non-Appalachian E&P operations, our 
principal direct legal subsidiaries are Virginia Electric and Power 
Company (Virginia Power), Dominion Energy, Inc. (DEI), Dominion 
Transmission, Inc. (DTI), Virginia Power Eneigy Mariceting, Inc. (VPEM), 
Dominion Exploration and Production, Inc. (DEPI) and The East Ohio Gas 
Company (Dominion East Ohio). Virginia Power is a regulated public 
utility that generates, transmits and distributes electricity for sale in 
Virginia and nonheastem North Carolina. As of December 31,2007, 
Virginia Power served approximately 2.4 million retail customer accounts, 
including govemmental agencies, as well as, wholesale customers such as 
rural electric cooperatives and municipalities. DEI is involved in merchant 
generation, energy marketing and price risk management activities and 
natural gas and oil exploration and production in the Appalachian basin of 
the U.S. DTI operates a regulated interstate natural gas transmission 
pipeline and undei^ound storage system in the Northeast, mid-Adantic 
and Midwest states and is engaged in the production, gathering and 
extraction of natural gas in the Appalachian basin. VPEM provides fuel, 
gas supply management and price risk management services to other 
Dominion affiliated and engages in energy trading activities. DEPI explores 
for, develops and produces gas and oil in the Appalachian basin ofthe U.S. 

As of December 31, 2007, our regulated gas distribution subsidiaries, 
Dominion East Ohio, Peoples Natural Gas Company (Peoples) and Hope 
Gas, Inc. (Hope), served approximately 1.7 million residential, commercial 
and industrial gas sales and transportation customer accounts in Ohio, 
Pennsylvania and West Virginia. Of these customers, approximately 
500,000 are served by Peoples and Hope, which are held for sale as 
discussed in Dispositions under Significant Developments. We also operate 
a liquefied natural gas (LNG) import and storage facility in Maryland. Our 
producer services operations involve the aggregation of natural gas supply 
and related wholesale activities. We also have nonregulated retail energy 
marketing operations that include the marketing of gas, electricity and 
related products and services to residential and small commercial 
customers. As of December 31,2007, our retail e n e i ^ marketing 
businesses served approximately 1.6 million residential and commercial 
customer accounts in the Northeast, mid-Atlantic and Midwest regions of 
the U.S. 

As of December 31,2007, we had approximately 17,000 full-time 
employees. Approximately 6,500 employees are subject to collective 
bargaining agreements. 

Our principal executive offices are located at 120 Tredegar Street, 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 and our telephone number is (804) 819-2000. 
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION 

ABOUT DOMINION 

We file our annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and 
other information with the Seciuities and Exchange Commission (SEC).' 
Our SEC filings are available to the public over the Intemet at the SEC's 
website at http://www.sec.gov (File No. 001-08489). You may also read 
and copy any document we file at the SEC's public reference room at 100 
F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 
1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. 

Our website address is www.dom.com. We make available, free of 
charge through our website, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarteriy 
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments 
to those reports as soon as practicable after filing or furnishing the material 
to the SEC. You may also request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by 
writing or telephoning us at: Corporate Secretary, Dominion, 120 Tredegar 
Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219, Telephone (804) 819-2000. Information 
contained on our website is not incorporated by reference in this report. 

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS 

Following are significant acquisitions and divestitures during the last five 
years as well as a discussion of a November 2007 stock split. 

Acquisitions 

PABLO ENERGY, LLC 

In February 2006, we completed the acquisition of Pablo Energy, LLC 
(Pablo) for approximately $92 million in cash. Pablo held producing and 
other properties located in the Texas Panhandle 
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area. The operations of Pablo were included in our former Dominion E&P 
operating segment. Following the disposition of these, and all of our other 
non-Appalachian E&P operations during 2007, and the realignment of our 
business units in the fourth quarter of 2007, the historical results of these 
operations are now included in our Corporate and Other segment. 

KEWAUNEE NUCLEAR POWER STATION 

In July 2005, we completed the acquisition oflhe 556 Mw Kewaunee 
nuclear power station (Kewaunee), located in northeastern Wisconsin, from 
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, a subsidiary of WPS Resources 
Corporation, and Wisconsin Power and Light Company, a subsidiary of 
Alliant E n e i ^ Corporation for approximately $192 million in cash. The 
operations of Kewaunee are included in our Dominion Generation 
operating segment. 

USGEN POWER STATIONS 

In January 2005, we completed the acquisition of three fossii-fijel fired 
generation facilities fi^om USGen New England, Inc. for $642 million in 
cash. The facilities include the 1,568 Mw Brayton Point power station 
(Brayton Point) in Somerset, Massachusetts; the 754 Mw Salem Harbor 
power station in Salem Massachusetts; and the 432 Mw Manchester Street 
power station in Providence, Rhode Island. The operations of these 
facilities are included in our Dominion Generation operating segment. 

Dispositions 

SALE OF E & P PROPERTIES 

In 2007, we completed the sale of our non-Appaiachian natural gas and oil 
E&P operations and assets for approximately $13.9 billion. At 
December 31, 2006, our non-Appalachian natural gas and oil assets 
included about 5.5 Tcfe of proved reserves. A more detailed description of 
the 2007 disposition of our non-Appalachian E&P operations and assets 
can be found in Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. 
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

In 2006, we received approximately $393 million of proceeds fi-om sales 
of certain gas and oil properties, primarily resulting from the sale of certain 
properties located in Texas and New Mexico. 

In December 2004, we sold the majority of our natural gas and oil assets 
in British Columbia, Canada for $476 million. 

The results of these divested operations were formerly included in our 
Dominion E&P segment; however, following the realignment of our 
business units in the fourth quarter of 2007, the historical results of these 
operations are now included in our Corporate and Other segment. 

SALE OF MERCHANT FACILITIES 

In March 2007, we sold three of our natural gas-fired merchant generation 
peaking facilities (Peaker facilities) for net cash proceeds of $254 million. 
The Peaker facihties include the 625 Mw Armstrong facility in Shelocta, 
Pennsylvania; the 600 Mw Troy facility in Luckey, Ohio; and the 313 Mw 
Pleasants facility in St. Mary's, West Virginia. Following our decision to 
sell these assets in December 2006, the results of these operations were 
reclassified 

to discontinued operations and are presented in our Corporate and Other 
segment. 

SALE OF DRESDEN 

In September 2007, we completed die sale ofthe partially completed 
Dresden merchant generation facility to AEP Generating Company for $85 
million. 

PLANNED SALES 

In addition to the completed acquisitions and divestitures above, in March 
2006, we entered into an agreement wirti Equitable Resources, Inc. 
(Equitable) to sell two of our wholly-owned regulated gas distribution 
subsidiaries, Peoples and Hope. Peoples and Hope serve approximately 
500,000 customer accounts in Pennsylvania and West Virginia. This sale 
was subject to regulatory approvals in the states in which the companies 
operate, as well as antitrust clearance under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. In 
January 2008, Dominion and Equitable announced the termination ofthe 
agreement for the sale of Peoples and Hope, primarily due to the continued 
delay in achieving final regulatory approval. We are seeking other offers 
for the purchase of these utilities. These operations were included in our 
former Dominion DeUvery operating segment, however foUowing the 
realignment of our business units in the fourth quarter of 2007, the results 
of these operations are now included in our Corporate and Other segment. 

Common Stock Split 
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In October 2007, our board ofdirectors approved an increase in the number 
of shares of common stock the Company is authorized to issue from 
500 million to 1 billion and in November 2007, we distributed a 
two-for-one stock split. All historical share and dividend information 
presented within this report reflects the impact ofthe common stock split. 

OPERATING SEGMENTS 

Prior to a fourth quarter 2007 segment realignment, we managed our daily 
operations through four primary operating segments: Dominion Delivery, 
Dominion Energy, Dominion Generation and Dominion E&P. During the 
fourth quarter of 2007, we realigned our business units to reflect our 
strategic refocusing and began managing our daily operations through three 
primary operating segments: Dominion Virginia Power (DVP), Dominion 
Generation and Dominion Energy. We also report a Corporate and Other 
segment that includes our corporate, service company and other functions 
and the net impact of certain operations disposed of or to be disposed of, 
which are discussed in Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 
While we manage our daily operations through our operating segments as 
described below, our assets remain wholly-owned by our legal subsidiaries. 

For additional financial information on business segments and 
geographic areas, including revenues from extemal customers, see Notes I 
and 29 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. For addilional 
information on operating revenue related to our principal products and 
services, see Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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DVP 
DVP includes our regulated electric transmission, distribution and 
customer service operations, as well as our nonregulated retail energy 
marketing operations. Our electric transmission and disuibution operations 
serve residential, commercial, industrial and govemmental customers in 
Virginia and northeastern North Carolina. Revenue provided by our 
electric distribution operations is based primarily on rates established by 
state regulatory authorities and state law. Actual revenues are driven 
primarily by weather, customer growth and usage per customer. 
Operationally, electric distribution continues to focus on improving service 
levels while striving to reduce costs and link investments to operational 
results. As part of this continued focus, we have implemented an asset 
management process to ensure that we are optimizing our investments to 
balance cost, performance and risk. We are also using technology to 
enhance customer service options. As we move toward the future, safety, 
operational performance and customer relationships will remain as key 
focal areas. 

Revenue provided by our electric transmission operations is based 
primarily on rates approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC). The profitability of this business is dependent on its ability, 
through the rates it is permitted to chaige, to recover costs and eam a 
reasonable retum on its capital investments. Variability results from 
changes in rates, the demand for services, which is primarily weather 
dependent, and operating and maintenance expenditures. We are a member 
of PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJM), a regional transmission organization 
(RTO), and our electric transmission facilities are integrated into PJM 
wholesale elecUicity markets. Consistent with the increased authority given 
to the North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) by the 
Energy Policy Act of 2005 (EPACT), we are committed to meeting NERC 
standards, modernizing our infrastructure and maintaining superior system 
reliability. We will continue to focus on safety, operational performance 
and execution of PJM's Regional Transmission Expansion Plan (RTEP) as 
we move toward the fiiture. 

Our nonregulated retail energy marketing operations compete in 
nonregulated energy markets and have experienced strong growth during 
the past few years. The retail business requires limited capital investment 
and cturently employs fewer than 100 people. The retail customer base is 
diversified across three product lines - natural gas, electricity and home 
warranty services. In natural gas, we have a heavy concentration of 
customers in markets where utilities have a long-standing commitment to 
customer choice. In electricity, we pursue markets where utilities have 
divested generation and where customers are permitted and have opted to 
ptirchase from the market. Major growth drivers are customer additions, 
new markets/products and sales channels, and supply optimization. 

COMPETITION 

Within DVP's service territory in Virginia and North Carolina, there is no 
competition for electric distribution service. Additionally, since our electric 
transmission facilities are integrated into PJM, our electric transmission 
services are administered by PJM and are not subject to competition in 
relation lo transmission service provided to customers within the PJM 
region. In our transmission and distribution operations, we are seeing 
continued strong growth in new customers and increased usage per 
customer 

on a weather-normalized basis. Growth is particularly strong in the major 
metropolitan areas of Virginia. The combination of higher energy usage 
and efficient operations and maintenance spending has been critical to our 
performance. Operationally, we continue to enhance the customer 
experience through solid reliability perfonnance and by completing the 
automation of all of our electric residential meters. 

REGULATION 

DVP's electric retail service, including the rates it may charge to 
jurisdictional customers, is subject to regulation by the Virginia State 
Corporation Commission (Virginia Commission) and the North Carolina 
Utilities Commission (North Carolina Commission). See Regulation—State 
Regulations—Electric for additional information. DVP's electric 
transmission rates, tariffs and terms of service are subject to regulation by 
FERC. Electric transmission sidng authority remains the jurisdiction ofthe 
Virginia and North Carolina Commissions. However, EPACT provides 
FERC with certain backstop authority for transmission siting. See State 
Regulations and Federal Regulations in Regulation for additional 
information. 

PROPERTIES 
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DVP has approximately 6,000 miles of electric transmission lines of 69 
kilovolt (kV) or more located in the states of North Carolina, Virginia and 
West Virginia. Portions of DVP's electric transmission lines cross national 
parks and forests under permits entitling the federal govemment to use, at 
specified charges, any surplus capacity that may exist in these lines. While 
we own and maintain our electric transmission facilities, they are a part of 
PJM, which coordinates the planning, operation, emergency assistance and 
exchange of capacity and energy for such facilities. 

Each year, as part of PJM's RTEP process, reliability projects are 
authorized. In June 2006, PJM, through the RTEP process, authorized 
construction of numerous electric transmission upgrades through 2011. We 
are involved in two ofthe major constmction projects. The first project is 
an approximately 270-mile 500-kV transmission line from southwestern 
Pennsylvania to northem Virginia, of which we will construct 
approximately 65 miles in Virginia and a subsidiary of Allegheny Energy, 
Inc. (Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line Company) will constmct die 
remainder. This project is estimated lo cost approximately $243 million 
and is expected to be completed in June 2011. The second project is an 
approximately 60-mile 500-kV transmission line that we will constmct in 
southeastern Virginia. This project is estimated to cost $180 million and is 
expected to be completed in June 2011. These transmission upgrades are 
designed to improve the reliability of service to our customers and the 
region. The siting and constmction of these transmission Unes will be 
subject to applicable state and federal permits and approvals. 

In addition, DVP's electric distribution network includes approximately 
55,000 miles of distribution lines, exclusive of service level Unes, in 
Virginia and North Carolina. The rights-of-way grants for most of our 
electric lines have been obtained from the apparent owner of real estate, 
but underlying titles have not been examined. Where rights-of-way have 
not been obtained, they could be acquired from private owners by con-
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demnation, if necessary. Many electric fines are on publicly-owned 
property, where permission to operate can be revoked. 

SOURCES OF ENERGY SUPPLY 

DVP's supply of electricity to serve retail customers is produced or 
procured by Dominion Generation. See Dominion Generation for 
additional informafion. 

SEASONALITY 

DVP's eamings vary seasonally as a result ofthe impact of changes in 
temperature on demand by residential and commercial customers for 
electricity, to meet cooling and heating needs, and gas, to meet heating 
needs. 

Dominion Energy 
Dominion Energy includes our Ohio regulated natural gas distribution 
company, regulated gas transmission pipeline and storage operations, 
regidated LNG operations and our Appalachian natural gas E&P business. 
Dominion Energy also includes our producer services business, which 
aggregates gas supply, provides market-based services related to gas 
transportation and storage and engages in associated gas trading and 
marketing. 

The gas transmission pipeline and storage business serves Dominion's 
gas distribution businesses and other customers in the Northeast, 
mid-Atlantic and Midwest. Included in our gas transmission pipeline and 
storage business is our gas gathering and extraction activity, which sells 
extracted products at market rates. Revenue provided by our regulated gas 
transmission and storage, and LNG operations is based primarily on rates 
established by FERC. The profitability of these businesses is dependent on 
our ability, through the rates we are permitted to charge, to recover costs 
and eam a reasonable retum on our capital investments. VariabiUty in 
earnings results from changes in rates and the demand for services, which 
can be dependent on weather, changes in commodity prices and changes in 
the cost of routine maintenance and repairs (including labor and benefits). 

Our gas distribution operations serve residential, commercial and 
industrial gas sales and transportation customers in Ohio. Revenue 
provided by our gas distribution operations is based primarily on rates 
established by the Public Utilities Commission ofOhio (Ohio 
Commission). The profitability of this business is dependent on its ability, 
through the rates we are permitted lo charge, to recover costs and eam a 
reasonable retum on our capital investments. Variability in eamings relates 
largely to changes in volumes of natural gas transported, which are weather 
sensitive, and changes in the cost of routine maintenance and repairs 
(including labor and benefits). 

Our Appalachian natural gas E&P business generates income from the 
sale of natural gas and oil we produce from our reserves, including 
fixed-term overriding royalty interests formerly associated with our 
volumetric production payment agreements discussed in Note 13 to our 
ConsoUdated Financial Statements. Variability in eamings relates to: 
changes in commodity prices, which are largely market based; production 
volumes, which are impacted by numerous factors including drilling 
success and timing of development projects; and drilling costs which may 
be impacted by drilling rig availability and other extemal factors. We 
manage commodity price volatility by hedging a substantial portion of our 
expected production. These hedging activities may 

require cash deposits to satisfy collateral requirements. Our Appalachian 
natural gas E&P business added 72.5 bcfe to its gas and oi! reserves as a 
result ofits drilling program during 2007, as compared to production of 
42.1 bcfe in 2007, excluding production from fixed-term overriding royalty 
interests. 

Eamings from Dominion Energy's other nonregulated business, producer 
services, are subject to variability associated with changes in commodity 
prices. Producer services uses physical and financial arrangements to hedge 
diis price risk. 

COMPETITION 

Dominion Energy's gas transmission operations compete with domestic 
and Canadian pipeline companies. We also compete with gas marketers 
seeking to provide or arrange transportation, storage jmd other services. 
Altemative energy sources, such as oil or coal, provide another level of 
competition. Although competition is based primarily on price, the array of 
services that can be provided to customers is also an important factor. The 
combination of capacity rights held on certain long-line pipelines, a large 
storage capability and the availability of numerous receipt and delivery 
points along our own pipeUne system enables us to tailor our services to 
meet the needs of individual customers. 
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Wilh respect to our Ohio natural gas distribution subsidiary, there has 
been no legislation enacted to require suppUer choice for residential and 
commercial natural gas consumers. However, we have offered an Energy 
Choice program to customers, in cooperation with the Ohio Commission. 
See Regulation—State Regulations~^as for additional information. 

REGULATION 

Dominion Energy's natural gas transmission pipeline, storage and LNG 
operations are regulated primarily by FERC. Dominion Energy's gas 
distribution service, including the rates that il may charge customers, is 
regulated by the Ohio Commission. 

PROPERTIES 

Dominion Energy's gas distribudon network is located in the state of Ohio. 
This network involves approximately 18,500 miles of pipe, exclusive of 
service lines of two inches in diameter or less. The rights-of-way grants for 
many natural gas pipelines have been obtained from the actual owner of 
real estate, as underlying titles have been examined. Where rights-of-way 
have not been obtained, they could be acquired from private owners by 
condemnation, if necessary. Many natural gas pipelines are on 
publicly-owned property, where company rights and actions are 
determined on a case-by-case basis, with results that range from 
reimbursed relocation to revocation of permission to operate. 

Dominion Enei^y has approximately 10,300 miles of gas transmission, 
gathering and storage pipelines located in the states of Maryland, New 
York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and West Virginia. Dominion Energy 
operates 20 undei^round gas storage fields located in New York, Ohio, 
Pennsylvania and Wesl Virginia, with more than 2,000 storage wells and 
approximately 343,000 acres of operated leaseholds. 

The total designed capacity of die underground storage fields operated 
by Dominion Energy is approximately 942 bcf Certain storage fields are 
jointly-owned and operated by Dominion Enei^y. The capacity of those 
fields owned by our partners totals about 242 bcf. Dominion Energy also 
has about 8 bcf of above-
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ground storage capacity at its Cove Point LNG facility. Dominion Energy 
has about 114 compressor stations with more than 670,000 installed 
compressor horsepower. 

Dominion Energy also owns about 1.1 Tcfe of natural gas and oil 
reserves and produces approximately 124 miUion cubic feet equivalent of 
natural gas and oil per day from its leasehold acreage and facility 
investments in Appalachia. 

'DoMisio?* ENERGY PHOPERTTES'-

— Njtyr^l -S*!̂  Itan^mcy^s^ Pipelines 

A C-sm f̂ iWil USJG ¥sd^ f 

SOURCES OF ENEBGV SVPPLV 

Our large underground natural gas storage network and the location of our 
pipeline system are a significant link between the country's major interstate 
gas pipelines, including the proposed Rockies Express East pipeline and 
large markets in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions. Our pipelines are 
part of an interconnected gas transmission system, which provides access 
to supplies nationwide for local disUnbution companies, marketers, power 
generators and industrial and commercial customers. 

Our underground storage fecilities play an important part in balancing 
gas supply with consumer demand and are essential to serving the 
Northeast, mid-Atlantic and Midwest regions. In addition, storage capacity 
is an important element in the effective management of both gas supply 
and pipeUne transmission capacity. Dominion Energy's natural gas supply 
is obtained from various sources including our own equity production, 
purchases from major and independent producers in the Mid-Continent and 
Gulf Coast regions, local producers in the Appalachian area and gas 
marketers. 

SEASON ALtrv 

Dominion Energy's tiatural gas distribution business eamings vary 
seasonally, as a result ofthe impact of changes in temperature on demand 
by residential and commercial customers for gas to meet heating needs. 
Demand for services at our pipelines and storage business can also be 
weather sensitive. Dominion Energy's Appalachian E&P business can be 
impacted by seasonal changes in the demand for natural gas and oil. 
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Commodity prices, including prices for our unhedged natural gas and oil 
production, can be impacted by seasonal weather changes and by ihc 
effects of weather on operations. Our producer services business is affected 
by seasonal changes in the prices of commodities that it transports, stores 
and actively markets and trades. 

Dominion Generation 
Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of our merchant 
fleet and regulated electric utility, as well as energy marketing and price 
risk management activities for our generation assets. Our generation mix is 
diversified and includes coal, nuclear, gas, oil, renewabies and purchased 
power. The generation facilities of our electric utility fleet are located in 
Virginia, West 
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Virginia and North Carolina. The generation facilities of our merchant fleet 
are located in Connecticut, Illinois, Indiana, Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, 
Rhode Island, West Virginia and Wisconsin. As discussed in Properties, 
we have plans to add additional generation capacity to satisfy future 
growth in demand. 

Dominion Generation's eamings primarily result from the sale of 
electricity we generate. Due to 1999 Virginia deregulation legislation, as 
amended in 2004 and 2007, revenues for serving Virginia jurisdicfional 
retail load are based on capped rates through 2008. Additionally, fuel costs 
for the utility fleet, including purchased power, were subject to fixed-rate 
recovery provisions until July 1, 2007. Pursuant to the 2007 amendments to 
the fuel cost recovery statute, annual fuel rate adjustments, wilh deferred 
fuel accounting for over- or under-recoveries of fuel costs, were instituted 
beginning July 1, 2007 for our Virginia jurisdictional customers. As 
discussed in Status of Electric Reflation in Virginia under Regulation, the 
Virginia General Assembly enacted legislation in April 2007 that retumed 
the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation operations to a modified 
cost-of-service rate model, subject to rate caps in effect through December 
31,2008. During the remainder ofthe capped rate period, changes in our 
utility operating costs relative to costs used to establish capped rates, will 
Ukely impact our eamings. 

Variability in eamings provided by the merchant fleet relates to changes 
in market-based prices received for electricity and the demand for 
electricity, which is primarily dependent upon weather. We manage price 
volatiUty by hedging a substantial portion of our expected sales. Variability 
also results from changes in the cost of fuel consumed, labor and benefits 
and the timing, duration and costs of scheduled and unscheduled outages. 

COMPETITION 

Retail choice has been available for Dominion Generation's Virginia 
jurisdictional electric utility customers since January 1,2003; however, to 
date, competition in Virginia has not developed to any significant extent. In 
April 2007, the Virginia General Assembly passed legislation ending retail 
choice for most of otu-Virginia jurisdictional electric utility customers 
effective January 1,2009. See Regulation—State Regulations—Electric. 
Currently, North CaroUna does not offer retail choice to electric customers. 

Dominion Generation's merchant generation fleet owns and operates 
several large faciUties in the Midwest that operate within functioning 
RTOs. The output from these facilities is primarily sold under long-term 
contracts, with expiration dates ranging from December 31,2012 to August 
31, 2017, and is therefore largely unaffected by competition. 

Dominion Generation's remaining merchant assets operate within 
functioning RTOs. Competitors include other generating assets bidding to 
operate within the RTOs. These RTOs have clearly identified market mles 
that ensure the competitive wholesale market is functioning properly. 
Dominion Generation's merchant units have a variety of short and 
medium-term conducts, and also compete in the spot market with other 
generators to sell a variety of products including energy, capacity and 
operating reserves. It is difficuh to compare various tj^es of generation 
given the wide range of fuels, fiiel procurement strategies, efTiciencies and 
operating characteristics ofthe fleet within any 

given RTO. However, we apply our expertise in operations, dispatch and 
risk management to maximize the degree to which our merchant fleet is 
competitive compared to similar assets within the region. 

REGULATION 

The operations of Dominion Generation are subject to regulation by FERC, 
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA), the Department of Energy (DOE), the Army Corps of 
Engineers, die Virginia Commission, the North Carolina Commission and 
other federal, state and local authorities. See Slate Regulations and Federal 
Regulations in Regulation for more information. 

PROPERTIES 

For a listing of Dominion Generation's current generation faciUties, see 
Item 2. Properties. 

Based on available generation capacity and current estimates of growth 
in customer demand in our utility service area, we will need additional 
generation capacity over the next ten years. We have announced a 
comprehensive generation grovrth program, referred to as Powering 
Virginia^ which involves the development, financing, constmction and 
qaeration of new multi-fuel, multi-technology generation capacity to meet 
the growing demand in our core market in Virginia. As part of this 
program, the foUowing projects are in various stages of development: 

In April 2007, we filed an application with the Viiginia Commission 
requesting approval to add two 150 Mw natural gas-fired electric 
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generating units (Units 3 and 4) to our Ladysmith power station 
(Ladysmith) to supply electricity during periods of peak demand. The 
Virginia Commission approved the appUcation in August 2007, and 
constmction has commenced. In December 2007, we received approval 
from the North Carolina Commission for a related affiliate transaction. The 
facility is expected to be in operation by August 2008, at an estimated coat 
of $135 million. 

In November 2007, we filed an appUcation with the Virginia 
Commission for approval to add a fifth combustion turbine (Unit 5) at 
Ladysmith at an estimated cost of $79 million. 

In July 2007, we filed an application with the Virginia Commission 
requesting approval to constmct and operate a 585 Mw (nominal) carbon 
capture compatible, clean coal powered electric generation facility 
(Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center) to be located in Wise County, 
Viiginia. We also requested approval to continue to accme an allowance 
for funds used during constmction until capped rates end and, beginning 
jMiuary 1,2009, receive current recovery of financing costs including a 
return on common equity of 11.75% together with a 200 basis point 
enhancement through a rate adjustment clause. An evidentiary hearing was 
held in February 2008. An application for a permit to constmct and operate 
the Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center, in compliance with federal and 
state air pollution laws, was filed in July 2006 with the Virginia 
Department of Environmental QuaUty. Pending regulatory approval and 
necessary permits, the facility is expected to be in operation by 2012 at an 
estimated capital cost of approximately S1.8 billion. 

Also in Febmary 2008, we announced the proposed conversion of our 
Bremo power station (Bremo) from coal to natural gas as part of our plan 
to build the Virginia City Hybrid Energy 
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Cenler. The proposal is contingent upon Ihe Virginia Hybrid Energy Cenler 
entering service and receiving approvals from the Viiginia Commission 
and Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. The proposed 
conversion project is part of our overall effort to reduce air emissions. 
Subject to applicable regulatory approvals, the conversion would occur 
within two year$ ofthe Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center entering 
service. 

We are considering the constmction of a third nuclear unit within the 
next twenty years at a site located at the North Anna power station (North 
Arma) which we own along with Old Dominion Electric Cooperative 
(ODEC). In November 2007, the NRC issued an Early Site Permit (ESP) 
for a site located at North Anna. Also in November 2007, we, along with 
ODEC filed an application with the NRC for a Combined Constmction 
Permit and Operating License (COL), which would allow us lo build and 
operate a new nuclear unit at North Anna. In January 2008, the NRC 
accepted our appUcation for the COL and deemed it complete. We have a 
cooperative agreement with the DOE to share equally the cost ofthe COL. 
We have not yet committed to building a new unit. 

In December 2007, we announced an agreement to purchase a power 
station development project in Buckingham County, Virginia that will 
generate about 600 Mw. The project already has air and water permits for a 
combined-cycle, natural gas-fired power station; however, such permits 
may need lo be modified. In addition, constmction ofthe project is subject 
to approval by the Virginia Commission, including approval under state 
regulations relating to bidding for the purchase of electric capacity and 
energy from other power suppliers, and the receipt of other environmental 
permits. A gas pipeline will also be required to be constmcted to provide 
gas supply to the power station. Pending a closing under the purchase 
agreement and the receipt of regulatory approval, we plan to build a 
combined cycle unit widi operations expected lo begin in summer 2011. 

In addition to the Powering Virginia projects, we have invested in two 
wind farm projects. In December 2006, we acquired a 50% interest in a 
joint venture with Shell WindEnergy Inc. (Shell) to develop a wind-turbine 
facility in Grant County, West Virginia (NedPower). NedPower consists of 
two constmction phases totaling 264 Mw. The first phase (164 Mw) is 
expected lo become fully operational by June 2008 and the second phase is 
expected to be fully operational by December 2008. 

In January 2008, we acquired a 50% interest in a joint venture with BP 
Altemative Energy Inc. (BP) to develop a wind-turbine facility in Benton 
County, Indiana. The faciUty is expected to be built in two phases and 
generate a total of 750 Mw. We will jointly own 650 Mw with BP and BP 
will retain sole ownership of 100 Mw. We have committed to contribute 
approximately $340 miUion of cash at various dates through January 2009, 
which includes our initial investment and funding for the development of 
the first 300 Mw phase. Constmction ofthe second 350 Mw phase could 
begin as early as 2009, with funding to be contributed to the joint venture 
to maintain 50/50 ownership between the partners. Our ultimate fiinding 
requirements may decrease to the extent that the joint venture obtains 
non-recourse constmction and term financing. 

SOURCES OF ENERGY SUPPLY 

Dominion Generation uses a variety of fuels to power our electric 
generation including procuring purchased power for system load 
requirements, as described below. 

Nuclear FHe/—Dominion Generation primarily utilizes long-term 
contracts to support its nuclear fuel requirements. Some of these 
agreements have fixed commitments and are included as contractual 
obligations in Future Cash Payments for Contractual ObUgations and 
Planned Capital Expenditures in Item 7. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A). 
Worldwide market conditions are continuously evaluated lo ensure a range 
of supply options at reasonable prices which are dependent on the market 
environment. Current agreements, inventories and spot market availability 
are expected to support current and plumed fuel supply needs for the near 
term. Additional fliel is purchased as required to ensure optimal cost and 
inventory levels, 

Fossil Fuel—Dominion Generation primarily utilizes coal, oil and 
natural ^is in its fossil fuel plants. Dominion Generation's coal supply is 
obtained through long-term contracts and short-term spot agreements from 
both domestic and intemationai suppliers. 

Dominion Generation's natural gas and oil supply is obtained from 
various sources including: purchases from major and independent 
producers in the Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast regions; purchases from 
local producers in the Appalachian area; purchases from gas marketers; and 
withdrawals from undei^ound storage fields owned by Dominion or third 
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parties. 
Dominion Generation manages a portfolio of natural gas transportation 

contracts (capacity) that aUows flexibility in delivering natural gas to our 
gas turbine fleet, while minimizing costs. 

Purchased Power—Dominion Generation purchases electricity from the 
PJM spot market and through power purchase agreements wilh other 
suppliers to provide for utility system load requirements. 

SEASONALITY 

Sales of electricity for Dominion Generation typically vary seasonally as a 
result of tiie impact of changes in temperature on demand by residential 
and commercial customers to meet cooling and heating needs. Sales of 
electricity from our merchant generation plants are also affected by 
seasonal changes in demand and commodify prices. 

NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING 

Dominion Generation has a total of seven Ucensed, operating nucl^ir 
reactors at its Surry power station (Stmy) and North Anna power station in 
Virginia, Millstone power station (Millstone) in Connecticut and 
Kewaunee power station in Wisconsin. 

Surry and Nortii Anna serve customers of our regulated electric utility 
operations. Millstone and Kewaunee are merchant power stations. 
Millstone has two operating units. A third Millstone unit ceased operations 
before we acquired die power station. 

We have decommissioning obUgations for each of these power stations 
as discussed in Note 16 lo our Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Decommissioning involves the decontamination and removal of 
radioactive contaminants from a nuclear power station 
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once operations have ceased, in accordance with standards established by 
the NRC. Amounts collected from ratepayers and placed into tmsls have 
been invested to fijnd the expected future costs of decommissioning the 
Surry and North Anna units. As part of our acquisition of both Millstone 
and Kewaunee, we acquired decommissioning funds for die related units. 
We believe that the amounts currently available in our decommissioning 
tmsts and their expected eamings will be sufficient to cover expected 
decommissioning costs for die Millstone and Kewaunee units, without any 
additional contributions to those tmsts. 

The total estimated cost to decommission our eight nuclear units is $4.2 
billion in 2007 dollars and is primarily based upon site-specific studies 
completed in 2006. For all units except Millstone Unit 1 and Unit 2, the 
curtent cost estimates assume decommissioning activities wUI begin 
shortly after cessation of 

operations, which will occur when the operating licenses expire. Millstone 
Unit 1 is not in service and selected minor decommissioning activities are 
being performed. This unit will continue to be monitored until full 
decommissioning activities begin for the remaining Millstone units. We 
expect to start minor decommissioning activities at MUlstone Unit 2 in 
2035, with full decommissioning of Millstone Units 1,2 and 3 during the 
period 2045 to 2059. We expect to decommission the Surry and North 
Anna units during the period 2032 to 2059. We intend to apply for a 
20-year life extension in 2008 for our Kewaunee unit. Ifthe NRC approves 
the Ufe extension application, we expect to decommission Kewaunee 
during the period 2033 to 2059. The license expiration dates for our units 
are shown in the following table. 

(dollars in millions) 
NRGlidenss expiration year;;:; i i 
Most recent cost estimate (2007 dollars) 
Funds in tmsts at December 31,2007 L 
2007 contributions to trusts 

Suny 

Unit i 

2032 
S 471 

, 3?4 
1.4 

Unit 2 

2033 
S 499 

369 
1.5 

North Anna 

Unit i 

2038: 
S 449 

306 
1.0 

Unit 2 

2040 
$ 471 

290 
0.9 

Unit i 

$ 632 
317, 

Millstone 

Unit 2 

;;p=2Q35 
$ 534 

i 374 

Units 

2045 
S 542 

367 

Kewaunee 

Unit i 

2013 
$ 602 

491 

Total 

$ 4,200 
2,888 

4.8 

(I) Unit I ceased operations in 1998, before our acquisition of Millstone. 

Corporate and Other 
We also have a Corporate and Other segment that includes Our corporate, 
service company and other functions (including unallocated debt), 
corporate-wide commodity risk management, the remaining assets of 
Dominion Capital, Inc. (DCI), and the net impact of certain operations 
disposed of or to be disposed of, which are discussed in Note 6 to our 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Operations disposed of during 2007 
included aU of our non-Appalachian E&P operations, three natural 
gas-fired merchant generation peaking facililies and certain DCI 
operations. Operations to be disposed of include two regulated gas 
distribution subsidiaries. Peoples and Hope, which we agreed to sell to 
Equitable in March 2006- However, as previously discussed, this 
agreement was terminated in January 2008 and we are seeking other offers 
for the purchase of these utiUties. In addition, Coiporate and Other includes 
specific items attributable to our operating segments that are not included 
in profit measures evaluated by executive management in assessing the 
segments' performance or allocating resources among die segments. 

ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGY 

Dominion is committed to bemg a good environmental steward. Our 
ongoing objective is to provide reliable, affordable energy for our 
customers while being environmentally responsible. Our integrated 
strategy to meet this objective consists of four major elements: 

• Conservation and efficiency; 

• Renewable generation development; 

• Other generation development to maintain our fuel diversity, including 
clean coal, advanced nuclear energy, and natural gas; and 
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• Improvements in other energy infrastructure. 

Conservation plays a critical role in meeting the growing demand for 
electricity. Virginia re-regulation legislation enacted in 2007 provides for 
incentives for energy conservation and sets a goal to reduce electricity 
consumption by retail customers in 2022 by ten percent ofthe amount 
consumed in 2006 dirough the implementation of conservation programs. 
We announced plans in September 2007 for a series of pilot programs 
focused on energy conservation and demand response. 

The pilots will be offered to a selection of 4,550 customers in our 
central, eastem and northem Viiginia service areas. To help ensure that the 
results are representative, customers will not be able to volunteer for the 
pilots nor participate in more than one pilot. We will report results from the 
pilots at least quarterly to the Virginia Commission staff to help evaluate 
their effectiveness. 

The pilots approved by the Virginia Commission include; 

• 1,000 residential customers in each of four different 
energy-saving pilots. The pilots are designed to cycle cenh^l 
heating and air conditioning units during peak-energy demand 
times, inform customers about their real-time energy 
consumption pattems, promote programmable thermostats 
that allow customers to control their use of elechicity, and 
educate customers about the value of reducing energy use 
during peak-use times. 

• Free enei^ audits and energy efficiency kits to 150 existing residential 
customers, 100 new homes meeting energy efficiency guidelines set by 
die EPA, and 50 small commercial customers. In addition, 250 new 
homes will receive energy efficiency welcome kits that include compact 
fluorescent light bulbs. 

• Incentives for commercial customers to reduce load during periods of 
peak demand by mnning their generators to produce up to 100 Mw of 
electricity. This would be in addition to existing Dominion options in 
which commercial and industrial customers have reduced demand by 
more than 300 Mw during peak-demand periods. 
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Renewable energy is also an important component of a diverse and 
reliable energy mix. Both Virginia and North Carolina have passed 
legislation setting goals for renewable power. We are committed to 
meeting Vii^inia's goal of 12 % renewable power by 2022 and North 
Carolina's renewable portfolio standard of 12.5 % by 2021. 

We are actively assessing development opportunities in our service 
territories for renewable technologies. In November, 2007 we issued a 
request for proposals (RFP) for renewable energy projects in Virginia, 
North Carolina or elsewhere in the PJM Interconnect region. The RFP 
seeks the purchase of renewable enei^y generation projects, as well as 
renewable energy credits. Our regulated utiUty currently provides 
approximately two percent ofits generation from renewable sources. In 
addition. Dominion is a 50% owner of a wind energy facility in Grant 
County, West Virginia. When operational, our share of this project will 
produce 132 Mw of renewable energy. Dominion has also acquired a 50% 
interest in a joint venture with BP Altemative Energy, Inc. (BP) to develop 
a wind-turbine facility in Benton County, Indiana. The facility is expected 
to be built in two phases and generate a total of 750 Mw of which we will 
jointly own 650 Mw wilh BP. See Dominion Generation-Properties for 
more information. 

We also anticipate using up to 20% biomass (woodwaste) at the 
proposed Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center discussed in Dominion 
Generation-Properties. 

We have announced a comprehensive generation growth program, 
referred to as Powering yirginia, which involves the development, 
financing, constmction and operation of new multi-friel, multi-technology 
generation capacity to meet the growing demand in our core market of 
Virginia. The new generation planned in connection with this program is 
discussed further under Dominion Generation-Properties. We expect that 
these investments collectively will provide the following benefits; 
expanded electricity production capabiUty; increased technological and 
fuel diversity; and a reduction in the carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions 
intensity of our generation fleet. A critical aspect of the/'owenng Virginia 
program is the extent to which we seek to reduce the carbon intensity of 
our generation fleet by developing generation facilities with zero CO2 and 
low CO2 emissions, as well as economically viable facilities that can be 
equipped for CO2 separation and sequestration. There is no current 
economically viable technological solution to retro-fit existing fossil-fueled 
technology to capture 3nd sequester greenhouse gas emissions. Given that 
new generation units have usefiil lives of up to 50 years, we will give full 
consideration to CO2 and olher greenhouse gas emissions when making 
long-term investment decisions. 

Finally, we plan to make a significant investment in improving the 
capabilities and reliability of our electric transmission and distribution 
system. These enhancements are primarily aimed at meeting our continued 
goal of providing reUable service. An addilional benefit will be added 
capacity lo efficiently deliver electricity from the renewable projects now 
being developed or to be developed in the fiidjre. 

REGULATION 

We are subject to regulation by the Virginia Commission, North Carolina 
Commission, SEC, FERC, EPA, DOE, NRC, Anny 

Corps of Engineers and other federal, state and local authorities. 

State Regulations 
ELECTRIC 

Our elechic utiUty retail service is subject to regulation by the Virginia 
Commission and the North Carolina Commission. 

Our electric utiUty subsidiary holds certificates of public convenience 
and necessity which authorize it to maintain and operate its electric 
facilities now in operation and to sell electricity to customers. However, 
tiiis subsidiary may not constmct or incur financial commitments for 
constmction ofany substantial generating facilities or large capacity 
transmission lines without the prior approval of various state and federal 
govemment agencies. In addition, the Virginia Commission and North 
CaroUna Commission regulate our electric utility subsidiary's transactions 
with affiliates, transfers of certain facilities and issuance of securities. 

Status of Electiic Regulation in Virginia 

2007 Virginia Restructuring Act and Fuel Factor Amendments 

On July 1,2007, legislation amending the Virginia Electric UtiUty 
Restmcturing Act (the Restmcturing Act) and the fuel factor became 
effective, which significantly changes electricity regulation in Vi^inia. 
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Prior to the Restmcturing Act, our base rates in Virginia were capped at 
1999 levels until December 31, 2010. The Restmcturing Act ends capped 
rates two years early, on December 31,2008. After capped rates end, retail 
choice will be eliminated for all but individual retail customers wilh a 
demand of more than 5 Mw and non-residential retail customers who 
obtain Virginia Commission approval to aggregate their load to reach the 5 
Mw threshold. Individual retail customers will be permitted to purchase 
renewable energy from competitive suppliers ifthe incumbent electric 
UtiUty does not offer a renewable enei^y tariff. Also after the end of capped 
rates, the Virginia Commission wiU set our base rates under a modified 
cost-of-service model. Among other features, the new model provides for 
the Virginia Commission to: 

• Initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, reviewing 
the 2008 lest year, as a resuh of which the Virginia Commission: 

• shall establish a return on equity (ROE) no lower than that reported by 
at least a majority of a group of utilities witiiin the southeastern U.S., 
with certain limitations, as described in the legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis points based on 
generating plant performance, customer service and operating 
efficiency, if appropriate; 

• shall increase base rales, if needed, to allow the Company the 
opportunity to recover its costs and eam a fair rate of retum if we are 
found to have eamings more than 50 basis points below the established 
ROE; or 

• may reduce rates prospectively upon completion ofthe 
2009 review or, altematively, order a credit to customers if 
we are found to have lest year earnings of more than 50 
basis points above the established ROE. 
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• Afler the initial rate case, review base rates biennially, as a 
result of which die Virginia Commission: 

• shall establish an ROE no lower than that reported by at least a 
majority of a group of utilities within the southeastem U.S., with 
certain limitations, as described in the legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis points based on 
generating plant perfoitnance, customer service and operating 
efficiency, if appropriate; 

• after 2010, authorize an increased ROE on overall rate base upon 
achieving the goals established for the renewable energy portfolio 
standard programs. Such increased ROE would be in lieu ofany 
increased or decreased ROE from the preceding paragraph, unless 
there has been an increase to the ROE awarded under the preceding 
paragraph that is higher than the renewable energy portfolio standard 
increase; and 

• shall increase base rates, if needed, to allow the Company the 
opportunity to recover its costs and eam a fair rate of retum if we are 
found to have eamed, during the test period, more than 50 basis pointe 
below the then currently established ROE; or 

• may order a credit to customers if we are found to have eamed, during 
the test period, more than 50 basis points above the then currently 
established ROE, and reduce rates if we are found to have such excess 
eamings during two consecutive biennial review periods. 

' Authorize stand-alone rate adjustments for recovery of certain costs, 
including new generation projects, major generating unit modifications, 
envirorunental compliance projects, FERC-approved costs for 
transmission service and energy efficiency, conservation and renewable 
energy programs; and 

• Authorize an enhanced ROE on new capital expenditures as a financial 
incentive for constmction of certain major generation projects. 

The legislation also continues stamtory provisions directing us to file 
annual fuel cost recovery cases wilh the Virginia Commission beginning in 
2007 and continuing thereafter, as discussed in Virginia Fuel Expenses. 

As discussed previously, the legislation provides for the Virginia 
Commission to initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, 
as a result of which the Virginia Commission may reduce rates or 
altematively, order a credit to customers if we are found to have eamings 
more than 50 basis points above the established ROE. We are unable to 
predict the outcome of future rate actions at this time, however an 
unfavorable outcome could adversely affect our results of operations. 

Virginia Fuel Expenses 
Under amendments to the Viiginia fuel cost recovery statute passed in 
2004, our fuel factor provisions were frozen until July 1, 2007. Fuel prices 
have increased considerably since 2004, which resulted in otu- fuel 
expenses being significantly in excess of our fuel cost recovery. Pursuant 
to the 2007 amendments lo the fuel cost recovery statute, annual fuel rate 
adjustments, wilh deferred fijel accounting for over- or under-recoveries of 
fuel costs, were re-instituted on July I, 2007. While the 2007 amendments 
did not allow us to collect any unrecovered fuel expenses that were 
incurred prior to July 1, 2007, once our fuel factor was adjusted, 

this mechanism ensures dollar-for-dollar recovery for pmdently incurred 
fuel costs. 

In April 2007, we filed a Virginia fuel factor application with the 
Virginia Commission. The application showed a need for an annual 
increase in fuel expense recovery for the period July 1,2007 through 
June 30,2008 of approximately $662 million; however, the requested 
increase was limited to $2I9 million under the 2007 amendments to the 
fuel cost recovery statute. Under these amendments, our fiiel factor 
increase as of July 1,2007 was limited to an amount that results in the 
residential customer class not receiving an increase of more than 4% of 
total rates in effect as ofJune 30, 2007. The Virginia Commission 
approved the fuel factor increase for Virginia jurisdictional customers of 
approximately $219 million, effective July I, 2007, with the balance of 
approximately $443 miUion to be deferred and subsequently recovered 
subject to Virginia Commission approval, without interest, during the 
period commencing July I, 2008 and ending June 30, 2011. 

North Carolina Regulation 
In 2004, the Nortii Carolina Commission commenced an investigation into 
our North Carolina base rates and subsequently ordered us to file a general 
rale case to show cause why our North Carolina jurisdictional base rales 
should not be reduced. The rate case was filed in September 2004, and in 
March 2005 the North Carolina Commission approved a settlement that 
included a prospective $12 miUion annual reduction in current base rates 
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and a five-year base rate moratorium, effective as of April 2005. Fuel rates 
are still subject to change under annual fuel cost adjustment proceedings. 

GAS 
Our gas distribution services are regulated by the Ohio Commission, the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Pennsylvania Commission) and 
the Public Services Commission of West Virginia (West Virginia 
Commission). 

Status of Competitive Retail Gas Services 
Each ofthe three Slates in which we have gas distribution operations has 
enacted or considered legislation regarding a competitive deregulation of 
namral gas sales at the retail level. 

Ohio—Ohio has not enacted legislation requiring supplier choice for 
residential or commercial natural gas consumers. However, in cooperation 
with the Ohio Commission, we have offered retail choice to residential and 
commercial customers. At December 31,2007, approximately 820,000 of 
our 1.2 milUon Ohio customers were participating in this Energy Choice 
program. Large industrial customers in Ohio also source their own natural 
gas supplies. In May 2006, tiie Ohio Commission approved a two-year 
pilot program to improve and expaivd our Energy Choice Program through 
a Standard Service Offer (SSO) rate. Under the previous stmcture, 
non-Energy Choice customers purchased gas directly from us at a monthly 
gas cost recovery rate that included tme-up adjustments that could change 
significantly from one quarter to the next. In August 2006, die Ohio 
Commission approved an auction that enabled us to enter into gas purchase 
contracts with selected suppliers al a fixed price above the New York 
Mercantile Exchange month-end settlement. This SSO pricing mechanism, 
implemented in October 2006, replaces the traditional gas cost recovery 
rate with a monthly 

10 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K. FebrtJary 28. 2008 



Table of Contents 

market price that eliminates the tme-up adjustment, making it easier for 
customers to compare and switch to competitive suppUers by the end ofthe 
transition period. In December 2007, Dominion East Ohio filed an 
application seeking approval of Phase 2 ofits plan lo restmcture its 
commodity service, whereby the company will still buy natural gas for 
Energy Choice-eligible customers currently receiving SSO service, but wiU 
identify the customer's designated supplier on the bill. Subject to ultimate 
Ohio Commission approval, we plan to exit the gas merchant function in 
Ohio entirely and have all customers select an altemate gas supplier. We 
will continue to be the provider of last resort in the event of defkult by a 
supplier. 

Pennsylvania—In Pennsylvania, supplier choice is available for all 
residential and small commercial customers. At December 31,2007, 
approximately 95,000 residential and small commercial customers had 
opted for Eneigy Choice in our Pennsylvania service area. Nearly all 
Pennsylvania industrial and large commercial customers buy natural gas 
from nonregulated suppUers. 

fVest i^rginia—At this time, Wesl Virginia has not enacted legislation to 
require customer choice in its retail natural gas markets. However, the 
West Virginia Commission has issued regulations to govem pooling 
services, one ofthe tools that natural gas suppUers may utiUze to provide 
retail customer choice in the future and has issued mles requiring 
competitive gas service providers to be licensed in West Virginia. 

Rates 
Our gas distribution subsidiaries are subject to regulation of rates and 

other aspects of their businesses by the states in which they 
operate—Pennsylvania, Ohio and West Viiginia. When necessary, our gas 
distribution subsidiaries seek general base rate increases to recover 
increased operating costs. In August 2007, Dominion East Ohio filed an 
application to increase base rates. In this rate case. Dominion East Ohio 
requested approval of an increase in operating revenues of over $73 miUion 
to provide a rate of return on rate base of 8.72%. 

In Febmary 2008, Dominion East Ohio filed an appUcation seeking 
approval from the Ohio Commission lo implement a 25-year program to 
replace approximately 19% ofits 21,000-mile pipeline system and to 
recover the resulting costs. The application also requests Ohio Commission 
approval for Dominion East Ohio to assume responsibility for the service 
lines that run from the ciu-b to the customer's meter. Currently, customers 
own those service lines and are responsible for bearing the cost of 
installation and for any repairs or replacement that may be needed. 

The cost ofthe program in total will exceed $2.6 billion in 2007 doUars. 
The resulting expenditure of more than $ 100 million per year will more 
than double Dominion East Ohio's curreni annual spending on its pipeline 
infrastructure. However, the cost to customers would be spread out over 
many decades due to the 25-year time frame of the replacement program 
and the period over which recovery in rates would be allowed. 

Dominion East Ohio also made a related filing asking the Ohio 
Commission to consoUdate its review ofthe pipeline infrastmcture 
replacement program with Dominion E^ l Ohio's current rate case 
application in order to give the Ohio Commission and other parties die 
opportunity to consider the two filings together. 

In addition to general rate increases, our gas distribution subsidiaries 
make routine separate filings with their respective state 

regulatory commissions to reflect changes in the costs of purchased gas. 
These purchased gas costs are subject to rale recovery through a 
mechanism that ensures dollar for dollar recovery of prudentiy incurred 
costs. Costs that are expected to be recovered in ftiture rates are deferred as 
regulatory assets. The purchased gas cost recovery filings generally cover 
prospective one, three or twelve-month periods. Approved increases or 
decreases in gas cost recovery rates result in increases or decreases in 
revenues with corresponding increases or decreases in net purchased gas 
cost expenses. 

Federal Regulat ions 

EPACT AND THE REPEAL OF P U H C A 

EPACT was signed into law in August 2005. Among olher things, EPACT 
repealed the Public Utilities Holding Company Act (PUHCA) of 1935, 
effective Febmary 2006. PUHCA regulated many significant aspects of a 
registered holding company system, such as Dominion's. As a result of 
PUHCA's repeal, utiUty holding companies, including Dominion's system, 
are no longer limited to a single integrated public utility system. Further, 
UtiUty holding companies are no longer restricted from acquiring 
businesses that may not be related to the utility business. Jurisdiction over 
certain holding company related activities has been transferred to the 
FERC, including die issuances of securities by pubUc utilities, the 
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acquisition of securities of utilities, the acquisition or sale of certain utility 
assets, and mergers with another electric utility or holding company. In 
addition, both FERC and state regulators are permitted to review the books 
and records ofany company within a holding company system. 

EPACT contains key provisions affecting the electric power industry. 
These provisions include tax changes for the utility industry, incentives for 
emissions reductions and federal in&urance and incentives to build new 
nuclear power plants. It gives the FERC "backstop" transmission siting 
authority, as well as increased utility mei^er oversight. The law also 
provides incentives and fimding for clean coal technologies and initiatives 
to voluntarily reduce greenhouse gases. FERC has issued regulations 
implementing EPACT. We do not expect compliance with these 
regulations to have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or 
results of operations. 

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION 

Electric 
Under the Federal Power Act, FERC regulates wholesale sales and 
U:ansmission of electricity in interstate commerce by public utilities. Our 
electric utility subsidiary sells electricity in the PJM wholesale market and 
our merchant generators seU eleclridty in die PJM, Midwest ISO and ISO 
New England wholesale markets under our market-based sales tariffs 
autiiorized by FERC. In addition, our electric utility subsidiary has FERC 
approval of a tariff to sell wholesale power at capped rates based on our 
embedded cost of generation. This cost-based sales tarilT could be used to 
sell to loads within or outside our service territory. Any such sales would 
be voluntary. In May 2005, FERC issued an order finding that PJM's 
existing transmission service rate design may not be just and reasonable, 
and ordered an investigation and hearings on the matter. In January 2008, 
FERC affirmed its earlier decision that the PJM transmission rate design 
for existing 
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facilities had not become unjust and unreasonable. For recovery of costs of 
investments of new PJM-planned transmission facilities that operate at or 
above 500 kV, FERC estabUshed a regional rate design where all 
customers pay a uniform rate based on the costs of such investment. For 
recovery of costs of investment in new PJM-planned transmission fecilities 
that operate below 500kV, FERC affirmed its earlier decision to allocate 
costs on a beneficiary pays approach. A notice of appeal of this decision 
was filed in Febmary 2008 at the United States Court of Appeals for the 
Seventh Circuit. We cannot predict the outcome ofthe appeal. 

We are also subject to FERC's Standards of Conduct that govem 
conduct between interstate gas and electricity transmission providers and 
their marketing function or their energy-related affiliates. The mle defines 
tiie scope ofthe affiliates covered by the standards and is designed to 
prevent transmission providers from giving their marketing functions or 
affiliates undue preferences. 

EPACT included provisions to create an Electric Reliability 
Organization (ERO). The ERO is required to promulgate mandatory 
reliabiUty standards goveming the operation ofthe bulk power system in 
tiie U.S. In 2006, FERC certified NERC as the ERO beginning on 
January 1,2007. In late 2006, FERC also issued an initial order approving 
many reliability standards that went into effect on January 1,2007. 
Beginning on June 4, 2007, entities that violate standards will be subject to 
fines of between SI thousand and SI milUon per day, and can also be 
assessed non-monetary penalties, depending upon the nature and severity 
ofthe violation. 

We have planned and operated our facilities in compliance with earlier 
NERC voluntary standards for many years and are fully aware of the new 
requirements. We participate on various NERC committees, track 
development and implementation of standards, and maintain proper 
compliance registration with NERC's regional organizations. While we 
expect that there will be some additional cost involved in maintaining 
compliance as standards evolve, we do not expect the expenditures to be 
significant. 

Gas 
FERC regulates the transportation and sale for resale of natural gas in 
interstate commerce under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural 
Gas PoUcy Act of 1978, as amended. Under the Natural Gas Act, FERC 
has authority over rates, terms and conditions of services performed by our 
interstate natural gas company subsidiaries, including DTI, Dominion Cove 
Point LNG, LP (DCP) and tiie Dominion South Pipeline Company, LR 
FERC also has jurisdiction over siting, constmction and operation of 
natural gas import facilities and interstate natural gas pipeline facilities. 

Our interstate gas transmission and storage activities are conducted on an 
"open access" basis, in accordance with certificates, tariffs and service 
agreements on file with FERC. 

We are also subject to tiie Pipeline Safety Act of 2002 (2002 Act), which 
mandates inspections of interstate and intrastate natural gas transmission 
and storage pipelines, particularly those located in areas of high-density 
population. We have evaluated our natural gas transmission and storage 
properties, as required by the Department of Transportation regulations 
under the 2002 Act, and have implemented a program of identification, 
testing and potential remediation activities. These activities are ongoing. 

In May 2005, FERC approved a comprehensive rate settlement with our 
subsidiary, DTI, and its customers and interested state commissions. The 
settlement, which became effective July 1,2005, revised our natural gas 
transmission rates and reduced fuel retention levels for storage service 
customers. As part of the settlement, DTI and all signatory parties agreed 
to a rate moratorium until 2010, 

In December 2007, DTI and the Independent Oil and Gas Association of 
West Virginia, Inc. reached a settlement agreement an DTI's gathering and 
processing rates for the period January 1,2009 tiirough December 31, 
2011. This settlement maintains the gas retainage fee stmcture that DTI has 
had since 2001. Under the settlement, the gathering retainage rate increases 
from 9.25% to 10.5% and the processing retainage rate—in recognition of 
tiie increased market value of natural gas liquids—decreases fix>m 3.25% to 
0.5%. 

This reduction in the combined retainage, from 12,5% to 11%, should 
provide a lower overall cost for most producers. Due to the increase in 
natural gas prices from three years ago, the consolidated impact of these 
rate changes is expected to increase DTI's gathering and processing 
revenues. In addition, DTI will continue to retain all revenues from its 
Uquids sales, thus maintaining its cash fiow from this activity. 

In connection with the settlement, DTI also agreed lo invest at least $20 
million annually in Appalachian gathering-related assets. The new rates are 
subject to FERC approval. 
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In June 2006, we filed a general rale proceeding for DCP. The rates 
established in this case took effect on January 1, 2007. This rate proceeding 
enabled DCP to update the cost of service underlying its rates, including ' 
recovery of costs associated with the 2002 to 2003 reactivation ofthe LNG 
import terminal. The FERC-approved settiement established a rate 
moratorium that ends in mid-2011. 

We implemented various other rate filings, tariff changes and negotiated 
rate service agreements for our FERC-regulated businesses during 2007. In 
all material respects, these filings were approved by FERC in the form 
requested by us and were subject to only minor modifications. 

Environmental Regulations 
Each of our operating segments faces substantial laws, regulations and 
compliance costs with respect to environmental matters. In addition to 
imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations 
authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance, 
including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. If our expenditures 
for pollution control technologies and associated operating costs are not 
recoverable from customers through regulated rates (in regulated 
jurisdictions) or market prices (in deregulated jurisdictions), those costs 
could adversely affect future results of operations and cash flows. The cost 
of complying with applicable environmental laws, regulations and mles is 
expected to be material to Dominion. For a discussion of significant 
aspects of these matters, including curreni and planned capital expenditures 
relating to environmental compUance, see Environmental Matters in 
Future Issues and Other Matters in MD&A. Additional information can 
also be found in Item 3. Legal Proceedings and Note 24 to our 
ConsoUdated Financial Statements. 

The Clean Air Act (CAA) is a comprehensive program utilizing a broad 
range of regulatory tools to protect and preserve the nation's air quality. At 
a minimum, states are required to establish 
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regulatory programs to address all requirements ofthe CAA. However, 
states may choose to develop regulatory programs that are more restt-ictive. 
Many of our facilities are subject to the CAA's permitting and other 
requirements. For example, the EPA has established the Clean Air 
Interstate Rule (CAIR) and the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR). These 
mles, when implemented, will require significant reductions in sulfur 
dioxide (SO2), nitrogen oxide (NOx) and mercury emissions from electric 
generating facilities. States are currentiy developing implementation plans, 
which will determine the levels and timing of required emission reductions 
in each ofthe states within which we own and operate affected generating 
facilities. Separate from CAIR and CAMR, Massachusetts has regulations 
specifically tai^eting reductions in NOx, SO2, CO2 and mercury emissions 
from our affected facilities in Massachusetts. In Febmary 2008, the U.S. 
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia issued a mling that vacates 
CAMR as promulgated by the EPA. At this time we cannot determine if 
this mling will be subject to further appeals and how the EPA, and 
subsequentiy the states, may alter their approach to reducing mercury 
emissions. We also caimot estimate at this time the impact that this mling 
will have on our future capital expenditures. 

Based on the increasing intensity of national and intemalional studies 
regarding climate change and its relationship to greenhouse gas emissions, 
we expect that there may be federal legislative or regulatory action in this 
area in ihe future. 

The outcome in terms of specific requirements and timing is uncertain 
but may include a greenhouse gas emissions cap-and-trade program or a 
carbon tax for electric generators and namral gas businesses. In April 2007, 
the U.S. Supreme Court mled that the EPA has the authority to regulate 
greenhouse gas emissions, which could result in future EPA action. In June 
2007, the President announced U.S. support for an effort to develop a new 
post-2012 fi^mework on climate change involving the top ten to fifteen 
greenhouse gas emitting countries that would focus on establishing a 
long-term global goal to reduce greenhouse gas emissions with each 
country establishing its own mid-term targets and programs. In addition to 
possible federal action, some states in which we operate have already or 
may adopt greenhouse gas emission reduction programs. For example, 
Massachusetts has implemented regulations requiring reductions in CO2 
emissions. The Virginia Energy Plan, released by the Govemor of Virginia 
in September 2007, includes a goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
statewide back to 2000 levels by 2025. The Govemor has formed a 
Commission on Climate Change to develop a plan to achieve this goal. 
Until this goal results in legislative or regulatory action, the outcome in 
terms of specific requirements, timing and cost of compliance is uncertain. 

The Clean Water Act (CWA) is a comprehensive program requiring a 
broad range of regulatory tools including a pennit program to authorize 
and regulate discharges to surface waters with strong enforcement 
mechanisms. We must comply with all ^pects ofthe CWA programs at 
our operating facilities. Provisions under CWA section 316b also include 
requirements that the location, design, constmction, and capacity of 
cooling water intake stmctures reflect the best technology available for 
minimizing adverse environmental impact. Additional programs under the 
CWA address the impact of thermal discharges to surface waters. 

In October 2003, the EPA and the Massachusetts Department of 
Environmental Protection (MADEP) each issued new 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits for 
Brayton Point. The new permits contained identical conditions that in 
effect require the installation of cooling towers to address concems over 
the withdrawal and discharge of cooling water. Following various appeals, 
in December 2007, the EPA issued an administrative order to Brayton 
Point that contained a schedule for implementing the permit. On the same 
day, Brayton Point witiidrew its appeal ofthe permit from the U.S. Court 
of Appeals. Brayton Point's state appeal will be dismissed upon MADEP 
finalizing the process for implementing the parallel state pennit. Currently, 
we estimate the total cost to install these cooling towers at approximately 
$500 million, of which $176 milUon is included in our planned capital 
expenditures through 2010. 

We have determined that we are associated with 21 former manufactured 
gas plant sites. Studies conducted by other utilities at their former 
manufactured gas plants have uidicated that their sites contain coal tar and 
other potentially harmful materials. None of tiie 21 former sites with which 
we are associated is under investigation by any state or federal 
environmental agency. For more information on these sites see Note 24 to 
our ConsoUdated Financial Statements. 

From time to time we may be identified as a potentially responsible party 
(PRP) to a Superfund site. Refer to Note 24 to our Consolidated Financial 
Statements for a description of our exposure relating to identification as a 
PRP. We do not believe that any currently identified sites will result in 
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significant Uabilities. i 
We have applied for or obtained the necessary environmental permits for 

the operation of our facilities. Many of these permits are subject to 
re-issuance and continuing review. 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
All aspects ofthe operation and maintenance of our nuclear power stations, 
which are part of our Dominion Generation segment, are regulated by the 
NRC. Operating licenses issued by the NRC are subject to revocation, 
suspension or modification, and the operation of a nuclear unit may be 
suspended if die NRC determines that the public interest, health or safety 
so requires. 

From time to time, the NRC adopts new requirements for the operation 
and maintenance of nuclear faciUries. In many cases, these new regulations 
require changes in the design, operation and maintenance of existing 
nuclear faciUties. Ifthe NRC adopts such requirements in the fijture, tiiat 
action could result in substantial increases in tiie cost of operating and 
maintaining our nuclear generating units-

The NRC also requires us to decontaminate our nuclear facilities once 
operations cease. This process is referred to as decommissioning, and we 
are required by the NRC to be financially prepared. For information on oiflr 
decommissioning tmsts, see Dominion Generation—Nuclear 
Decommissioning and Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Item IA. Risk Factors 
Our business is influenced by many factors that are difficult lo predict, 
involve uncertainties that may materially affect actual results and are often 
beyond our control. We have identified a number of these factors below. 
For other factors that may cause actual results to differ materiaUy from 
those indicated in any forward-looking statement or projection contained in 
this report, see Forward-Looking Statements in MD&A. 
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Our operations are weather sensitive. Our results of operations can be 
affected by changes in the weather. Weather conditions directly influence 
the demand for electricity and natural gas, and affect the price of energy 
commodities. In addition, severe weather, including hiuricanes and winter 
storms, can be destmclive, causing outages and property damage that 
require us to incur additional expenses. In addition, droughts can result in 
reduced water levels that could adversely affect operations at some of our 
power stations. 

We are subject to complex govemmental regulation fhat could adversely 
affect our operations. Our operations are subject to extensive federal, state 
and local regulation and require numerous permits, approvals and 
certificates from various governmental agencies. We must also comply 
with environmental legislation and associated regulations. Management 
beUeves that the necessary approvals have been obtained for our existing 
operations and that our business is conducted in accordance with applicable 
laws. However, new laws or regulations, the revision or reinterpretation of 
existing laws or regulations, or penalties imposed for non-compliance with 
existing laws or regulations may require us to incur additional expenses. 

We could be subject to penalties as a result of mandatory reliabilify 
standards. As a result of EPACT, owners and operators of bulk power 
transmission systems, including Dominion, are subject to mandatory 
reliability standards enacted by NERC and enforced by FERC. If we are 
found not be in compliance with the mandatory reliability standards we 
could be subject to sanctions, including substantial monetary penalties. 

Our costs of compliance with environmental laws are significant, and the 
cost of compliance with future environmental laws could adversely affect 
our cash flow and profitabilify. Our operations are subject to extensive 
federal, state and local environmental statutes, mles and regulations 
relating to air quality, water quality, waste management, natural resources, 
and health and safety. CompUance with these legal requirements requires 
us to commit significant capital toward permitting, emission fees, 
environmental monitoring, installation and operation of pollution control 
equipment and purchase of aUowances and/or offsets. Additionally, we 
could be responsible for expenses relating to remediation and containment 
obligations, including at sites where we have been identified by a 
regulatory agency as a PRP. Our expenditures relating to envirorunental 
compUance have been significant in the past, and we expect that they will 
remain significant in the fijture. Costs of compliance with environmental 
regulations could adversely affect our results of operations and financial 
position, especially if emission and/or discharge limits are ti^tened, more 
extensive permitting requirements are imposed, additional substances 
become regulated and the number and types of assets we operate increases. 
We cannot estimate our compliance costs with certainty due to our inability 
to predict the requirements and timing of implementation ofany new 
environmental mles or regulations related to emissions. Other factors 
which affect our ability lo predict our future environmental expenditures 
with certainty include the difficulty in estimating clean-up costs and 
quantifying liabilities under environmental laws that impose joint and 
several liability on all responsible parties. 

If federal and/or state requirements are imposed on energy companies 
mandating further emission reductions, including limitations on carbon 
dioxide emissions, such requirements could make some of our electric 
generating units uneconomical to maintain or operate. Environmental 
advocacy groups, other organizations and some 

agencies are focusing considerable attention on carbon dioxide emissions 
from power generation facilities and their potential role in climate change. 
We expect that federal legislation, and possibly additional state legislation, 
may pass resulting in the imposition of limitations on greenhouse gas 
emissions from fossil fiiel-fired electric generating tmits. Such Umits could 
make certain of our electric generating units uneconomical to operate in the 
long term, unless there are significant improvements in the commercial 
availability and cost of carbon capmre and sequestration technology. There 
are also potential impacts on our natural gas businesses as federal 
greeitiiouse gas legislation may require greenhouse gas emission reduction 
requirements from the natural gas sector. Several regions ofthe U.S. have 
moved forward with greenhouse gas regulations including regions where 
we have operations. For example, Massachusetts has implemented 
regulations requiring reductions in carbon dioxide emissions and the 
Regional Greertiiouse Gas Initiative, a cap and trade program covering 
carbon dioxide emissions from power plants in the Northeast, will affect 
several of our facilities. In addition, a number of bills have been introduced 
in Congress that would require greenhouse gas emissions reductions from 
fossil ftiel-fired electric generation facilities, natural gas fadlities and other 
sectors ofthe economy, although none have yet been enacted. CompUance 
with these greenhouse gas emission reduction requirements may require us 
to commit significant capital toward carbon capture and sequestration 
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technology, purchase ofallowances and/or offsets, fuel switching, and/or 
retirement of high-emitting generation facilities and replacement with 
lower emitting generation facililies. The costs of compliance with expected 
greenhouse gas legislation are subject to significant uncertainties due to the 
outcome of several interrelated assumptions and variables, including 
timing ofthe implementation of mles, required levels of reductions, 
allocation requirements ofthe new mles, the maturation and 
commercialization of carbon capmre and sequestration technology and 
associated regulations, and our selected compliance alternatives. As a 
result, we cannot estimate the effecl ofany such legislation on our results 
of operations, financial condition or our customers. 

We are exposed to cost-recovery shortfalls because of capped base rates 
for our regulated electric utility. Under the Restmcturing Act, as amended 
in 2004 and 2007, our base rates remain capped through December 31, 
2008. Although the Restmcturing Act allows for the recovery of certain 
generation-related costs during the capped rates period, we remain exposed 
to numerous risks of cost-recovery stwrtfaUs, such as costs related to 
hurricanes or olher unanticipated events. 

The rates of our Virginia electric utility are subject to regulatory review. 
As a result ofthe Restmcturing Act, commencing in 2009 the base rates off 
our electric utility company will be reviewed by the Viiginia Commission 
under a modified cost-of-service model. Such rates will be set based on 
analyses of our electric utility's costs and capital stmctiu'es, as reviewed 
and approved in regulatory proceedings. Under the Restmcturing Act, the 
Virginia Commission may, in a proceeding conducted in 2009, reduce rat«s 
or order a credit to customers if our electric utility company is deemed to 
have eamings during a 2008 test period which are more Ihan 50 basis 
points above a retum on equity level to be established by the Virginia 
Commission in that proceeding. After the initial rate case, the Virginia 
Commission will review the rates of our electric utiUty company biermiaUy 
and may order a credit 
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to customers if it is deemed to have eamed more than 50 basis points above 
a remm on equity level established by the Virginia Commission and may 
reduce rales if our electric utility company is found to have had eamings in 
excess ofthe established return on equity level during two consecutive 
biennial review periods. 

Energy conservation could negatively impact our financial results. A 
number of regulatory and legislative bodies have introduced requirements 
and/or incentives to reduce energy consumption by certain dates. 
Conservation programs could impact our financial results in different ways. 
To the extent conservation resulted in reduced energy demand or 
significantly slowed the growth in demand, the value of our merchant 
generation, E&P assets and other unregulated business activities could be 
adversely impacted- In our regulated operations, conservation could 
negatively impact Dominion depending on tiie regulatory treatment ofthe 
associated impacts. Should we be required to invest in conservation 
measures that resulted in reduced sales from effective conservation, 
regulatory lag in adjusting rates fbr the impact of tiiese measures could 
have a negative financial impact. We are unable lo determine what impact, 
if any, conservation wiU have on our financial condition or results of 
operations. 

Our merchant power business is operating in a challenging market, which 
could adversely affect our results of operations and future growth. The 
success of our merchant power business depends upon favorable market 
conditions as well &s our abiUty to find buyers willing to enter into power 
purchase agreements at prices sufficient to cover operating costs. We 
attempt to manage these risks by entering into both short-term and 
long-term fixed price sales and purchase contracts and locating our assets 
in active wholesale energy markets. However, high fuel and commodity 
costs and excess capacity in tiie industry could adversely impact our results 
of operations. 

There are risks associated with the operation of nuclear facilities. We 
operate nuclear faciUties that are subject to risks, including the tiireai of 
terrorist attack and our ability to dispose of spent nuclear fiiel, the disposal 
of which is subject to complex federal and state regulatory constraints. 
These risks also include the cost ofand our abUity to maintain adequate 
reserves for decommissioning, costs of replacement power, costs of plant 
maintenance and ejtposure to potential liabiUties arising out ofthe 
operation of these faciUties. We maintain decommissioning tmsts and 
extemal insurance coverage to mitigate the financial exposure to these 
risks. However, it is possible that decommissioning costs could exceed the 
amount in our tmsts or that costs arising from claims could exceed the 
amount ofany insurance coverage. 

The use of derivative instruments could result in financial losses and 
liquidity constraints. We use derivative instmments, including fuhires, 
swaps, forwards, options and financial transmission rights to manage our 
commodity and financial market risks. In addition, we purchase and sell 
commodity-based contracts primarily in the namral gas market for trading 
purposes. We could recognize financial losses on these contracts as a result 
of volatility in the market values ofthe underlying commodities or if tiie 
counterparty fails to perform under a contract. In die absence of 
actively-quoted market prices and pricing information from extemal 
sources, the valuation of these contracts involves management's judgment 
or use of estimates. As a result, changes in tiie underlying assumptions or 
use of alternative valuation methods could affect the reported fair value of 
these contracts. 

In addition, we use derivatives to hedge future sales of our merchant 
generation and gas production, which may limit the benefit we would 
otherwise receive from increases in commodity prices. These hedge 
arrangements generally include collateral requirements that require us to 
deposit funds or post letters of credit with counterparties to cover the fair 
value of covered contracts in excess of agreed upon credit Umits. When 
commodity prices rise to levels substantially higher than tiie levels where 
we have hedged fiiture sales, we may be required to use a material portion 
of our available liquidity and obtain additional liquidity to cover these 
collateral requirements. In some circumstances, this could have a 
compounding effecl on our financial liquidity and results of operations. 

Derivatives designated under hedge accounting to the extent not fully 
offset by die hedged transaction can result in ineffectiveness losses. These 
losses primarily result from differences in the location and specifications of 
the derivative hedging instmment and the hedged item and could adversely 
affect our results of operations. 

Oiu' operations in regards lo these tr^sactions are subject to multiple 
market risks including market liquidity, counterparty credit su^ngth and 
price volatility. These market risks are beyond our control and could 
adversely affect our results of operations and future growth. 
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For additional information conceming derivatives and commodity-based 
trading contracts, see Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and Risk 
Managemeni in Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About 
Market Risk and Notes 2 and 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Our E&P business is affected by factors tiiat cannot be predicted or 
controlled and that could damage facilities, disrupt production or reduce the 
book value of our assets. Factors that may affect our financial results 
include, but are not limited to: damage to or suspension of operations 
caused by weather, fire, explosion or other events at our or third-party gas 
and oil facilities, fluctuations in natural gas and cmde oil prices, results of 
fiiture drilling and well completion activities, our ability to acquire 
additional land positions in competitive lease areas, drilling cost pressures, 
operational risks that could dismpt production, drilling rig availability and 
geological and other uncertainties inherent in the estimate of gas and oil 
reserves. 

Short-term market declines in the prices of namral gas and oil could 
adversely affect our financial results by causing a permanent write-down of 
our natural gas and oil properties as required by the full cost method of 
accounting. Under the fiill cost method, all direct costs of property 
acquisition, exploration and development activities are capitalized. If net 
capitalized costs exceed the present value of estimated fiiture net revenues 
based on hedge-adjusted period-end prices from the production of proved 
gas and oil reserves (the ceiling test) at the end ofany quarterly period, 
then a permanent write-down of the assets must be recognized in that 
period. 

We may not complete plant construction or expansion projects that we 
commence, or we may complete projects on materially different terms or 
timing than Initially anticipated and we may not be able to achieve the 
intended benefits of any such project, if completed. We have announced 
several plant constmction and expansion projects and may consider 
additional plant constmction and expansion 
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projects in the fiimre. We anticipate that we will be required to seek 
additional financing in the future to fund our curtent and future plant 
construction and expansion projects and we may not be able to secure such 
financing on favorable terms. In addition, we may not be able to complete 
die plsnt constmction or expansion projects on time as a result of weather 
conditions, delays in obtaining or failure to obtain regulatory approvals, 
delays in obtaining key materials, labor difficulties, difficulties with 
partners or other factors beyond our control. With respect to our LNG and 
gas transmission pipeline operations, if we do not meet designated 
schedules for approval and constmction of our plant and expansion 
projects, certain of our customers may have the right to terminate their 
precedent agreements relating to the expansion projects. Certain of our 
customers may also have the right to receive liquidated damages. Even if 
plant constmction and expansion projects are completed, the total costs of 
the plant constmction and expansion projects may be higher than 
anticipated and the perfomiance of our business following the plant 
construction and expansion projects may not meet expectations. 
Additionally, regulators may disallow recovery of some ofthe costs of a 
plant or expansion project if they are deemed not to be pmdently incurred. 
Any of these or other factors could adversely affect our abilily lo realize 
the anticipated benefits from the plant consdoiction and expansion projects. 

An inability to access financial markets could affect the execution of our 
business plan. Dominion and our subsidiary, Virginia Power, rely on 
access to short-term money markets, longer-term capital markets and banks 
as significant sources of liquidity for capital requiremenis and collateral 
requiremenis, related to hedges of future sales of merchant generation and 
gas and oil production, not satisfied by the cash flows from our operations. 
Management beUeves that Dominion and Virginia Power will maintain 
sufficient access to these financial markets based upon current credit 
ratings. However, certain dismptions outside of our control may increase 
our cost of borrowing or restrict otu- ability to access one or more financial 
markets. Such dismptions could include an economic downtum, the 
bankruptcy of an unrelated energy company or changes to our credit 
ratings. Restrictions on our ability to access financial markets may affect 
our ability to execute our business plan as scheduled. 

Market performance and other changes may decrease the value of 
decommissioning tmst funds and benefit plan assets or increase our 
liabilities, which then could require significant additional funding. The 
performance ofthe capital markets affects the value ofthe assets that are 
held in tmst to satisfy friturc obligations to decommission our nuclear 
plants and under our pension and postretirement benefit plans. We have 
significant obligations in these areas and hold significant assets in these 
UTists. These assets are subject to market fluctuation and will yield 
uncertain retums, which may fall below our projected retum rates. A 
decline in the market value ofthe assets may increase the fiinding 
requirements ofthe obligations to decommission our nuclear plants and 
under our pension and postretirement benefit plans. Additionally, changes 
in interest rates affect the liabilities under our pension and postretirement 
benefit plans; as mterest rales decrease, the liabilities increase, potentially 
requiring additional fiinding. Further, changes in demographics, including 
increased numbers of retirements or changes in life expectancy 
assumptions, may also increase the funding requirements ofthe obUgations 
related to the pension benefit plans. If we are unable lo successfully 
manage the 

decommissioning tmst funds and benefit plan assets, our results of 
operation and financial position could be negatively affected. 

Changing rating agency requirements could negatively affect our growth 
and business strategy. As of February 1,2008, Dominion's senior 
unsecured debt is rated A-, stable outlook, by Standard & Poor's Ratings 
Services, a division ofthe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (Standard & 
Poor's); Baa2, stable outlook, by Moody's Investors Services (Moody's); 
and BBB+, stable outlook, by Fitch Ratings Ltd. (Fitch). Ia order to 
maintain oitf current credit ratings in light of existing or future 
requirements, we may find it necessary to take steps or change our business 
plans in ways that may adversely affect our growth and eamings per share. 
A reduction in Dominion's credit ratings or the credit ratings of our 
Virginia Power subsidiary by Standard & Poor's, Moody's or Fitch could 
increase our borrowing costs and adversely affect operating results and 
could require us to post additional collateral in connection with some of 
our price risk management activities. 

Potential changes in accounting practices may adversely affect our 
financial results. We cannot predict the impact thai future changes in 
accounting standards or practices may have on public companies in 
general, the energy industry or our operations specifically. New accounting 
standards could be issued that could change the way we record revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities. These changes in accounting standards 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K. Febmary 28. 2008 



could adversely affect our reported eamings or could increase reported 
liabilities. 

Failure to retain and attract key executive officers and other skilled 
professional and technical employees could have an adverse effect on our 
operations. Our business is dependent on our abilily to recmit, retain and 
motivate employees. Competition for skilled employees in some areas is 
high and the inability to retain and attract these employees could adversely 
affect our business and future operating results. 

Item IB. Unresolved Staff Comments 
None. 

Item 2. Properties 
As of December 31, 2007, we owned our principal executive office and 
two other corporate offices, all located in Richmond, Virginia. We also 
lease corporate offices in other cities in which our subsidiaries operate. 

Our assets consist primarily of our investments in our subsidiaries, the 
principal properties of which are described here and in Item 1. Business. 

SubstantiaUy aU of our electric utility's property is subject to the lien of 
the mortgage securing its First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds. Although 
there are no publicly issued bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2007, 
we may issue additional bonds in the future. Certain of our merchant 
generation facilities are also subject to liens. 

The following information detaiUng our gas and oil operations reflects 
otu- Appalachian E&P operations, which are included in the Dominion 
Energy segment, as well as our non-Appalachian E&P operations divested 
during 2007, which are included in the Corporate and Other segment. 
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COMPANY-OWNED PROVED GAS AND O I L 

RESERVES 

Estimated nel quantities of proved gas and oil reserves were as follows: 

At December 31, 

Proved gas : 
. reserves (bGf̂  

U.S. 
Cariatfe •: ^̂ ^ 
Tolal proved gas 

reserves 
Proved oil r^erves 

(OOObbljM: > 
U.S. 
Canada i 
Tolal proved oil 

reserves 
Total proved gas 

and oil reserves 
tbcle) 

Proved 
Developed 

636 

636 

12,613 

12.613 

712 

2007 2006 2005 
Total Proved Total Proved Total 

Proved Developed Proved Developed Proved 

1,019 

1,019 

12,613 

12,613 

1,095 

3,424 4,961 
132 175 

3,556 5,136 

173,718 216,849 
7.061 15,410 

180,779 232,259 

4,640 6.530 

3,605 4.856 
101 106 

3,706 4.962 

145,735 198,602 
7.154 19.096 

152,889 217,698 

4,623 6.268 

bbl = tKirrel 
bcfe = Mlion cubic feet equivalent 

Ceitain of our subsidiaries file Form EIA-23 with the DOE which reports 
gross proved reserves, including tiie working interest shares of other 
owners, for properties operated by such subsidiaries. The proved reserves 
reported in the previous table represent our share of proved reserves for all 
properties, based on our ownership interest in each property. For properties 
we operate, the difference between the proved reserves reported on Form 
EIA-23 and the gross reserves associated with the Company-owned proved 
reserves reported in the previous table, does not exceed five percent. 
Estimated proved reserves as of December 31, 2007 are based upon studies 
for each of our properties prepared by our staff engineers and audited by 
Ryder Scott Company, L.P. Calculations were prepared using standard 
geological and engineering methods generally accepted by the petroleum 
industry and in accordance with SEC guidelines. 

QUANTITIES OF GAS AND O I L PRODUCED 

Quantities of gas and oil produced follow: 

Year Bnded December 31, 
Gas production (bcO • : n i: n; n: : 
U.S. 
Canada ' • •^ i i ' i \ - - ' ' : :> ' = ::;:= -" n " '••• ^ 
Total das production 
OB production (OOObblll:; : . =: 
U.S. 
Cahada:r,.»^:::;r^;:;=^ • • • i^-':;, - -"ill-
Total oil production 
Total das and oil productionCbcfe) •; '̂  

2007 

206 
' ; : i :"8 • 

214 

11,826 
• 'i:i-'559=': 

12,185 
.̂•287;̂  

2006 

302 
16 

318 

23,923 
: 1.024 
24.947 

467 

2005 

275 
'15 
290 

14,714 
861 

15,575 
;383 

The average realized price per thousand cubic feet (mcf) of gas with 
hedging results (including transfers to other Dominion operations at market 
prices) during tiie years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $5.99, $4.41 and $4.79, 
respectively. The respective average realized prices without hedging results 
per mcf of gas produced were $6.63, $6.67 and $8.01. The respective 
average realized prices for oil wilh hedging results were $37.78, $33.42 
and $30.46 per barrel and the respective average realized prices without 
hedging results were $50.08, $54.49 and $49.48 per barrel. The average 
production (lifting) cost per mcf equivalent of gas and oil produced (as 
calculated per SEC guidelines) during the years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was 
$1.39, $1.18 and $1.16, respectively. 

ACREAGE 

Gross and net developed acreage (in thousands) at December 31,2007 
were 1,367 and 1,281 acres, respectively. Gross and net undeveloped 
acreage (in thousands) at December 31,2007 were 376 and 223 acres, 
respectively. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K. February 28, 2008 



NET WELLS DRILLED IN THE CALENDAR YEAR 

The number of net wells completed follows; 

Year Ended December 31, 
Exploratory: r: 
U.S. 
^pProductive'::.^:^;::"-.:: ";^;yv-: ••nr^i.,:^-' ' 

Dry 
/̂ 'Total U.S.̂ >̂  M'- \,;- ' } 

Canada 
^ P^oductive••^a:d^-:-,-^ " .Huu^-^'H"^^ 

Dry 
Total Canada i - r : r ; ; ^-n^ 

Total Exploratory 
Development:hnn''.-^-•":="-:-•- ^ii '.^'!;:;.:; :'" 
U.S. 
:-:Productiv6 '\\\\\\\. ^y-^l.i-^ •l^iM:i::!Mi; = •" 

Dry 
• -̂ Total U.a;;;:;r:-: i^•'*-•^»^i^•:: ^^ = :̂ -
Canada 

productive;nU:'H:,t:;:;^> HiU-'^iilMM'M: . 
Dry 

---'Total Canada ;:"•''';•;--^^;-, ^ > 
Total Development 

: Tolalwellsdrilled(net):;iii; r 

2007 

s l l ' i : r — 

,::= \; — 
A?- :n :u : , : ™ ; 

. : : : i ' ~ : — • ; • 

— 

10 
~̂.',̂ . 814-

^:-"^ni:= ^ ;•:. 10;: 

• '• . ^ o 

S24 
. : i ' - : ' i : ^ • • 8 2 4 ^ 

2006 

'';: = :;6' 
3 
9 

: ;33 
4 

37 
46 

1i039 
33 

1.072 

i:;:. 31 
4 

• • • • • 3 5 

1,107 
1,153.: 

2O05 

A 

6 

\^ 

'^ . t — 

— 
b 

909 
J4 

913 

59 
5 

-. i4 
1.0d7 

;i,ok9 
As of December 31, 2007,62 gross (57 net) wells were in the process o(f 

being drilled, including wells temporarily suspended. 

PRODUCTIVE WELLS 

At December 31, 2007, our subsidiaries had an interest in 9,048 and 8,283 
productive gas wells, gross and net, respectively. Our subsidiaries did not 
have an interest in any productive oil wells at December 31, 2007. 

The number of productive wells includes 1 gross (0.89 net) multiple 
completion gas well and no multiple completion oil wells. Wells with 
rnultiple completions are counted only once for productive well count 
purposes. 
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POWER GENERATION 

We generate eleclricity for sale on a wholesale and a retail level. We can supply electricity demand either from our generation facilities or through purchased power contracts, when needed. The 
following table lists C)orainion Generation's generating units and capability, as of December 31, 2007: 

Plant Location Primary Fuel Type 
Net Summer 

Capability {Mw} 
Utility Generatiph ; 
North Anna 
Surry 
Mt. Storm 
Chesterfi^d ; ; 
Chesapeake 
Clover;>^; = >-
Yorktown 
Bremo.^';' = ; 
Mecklenburg 
North Branch 
AltaVista 
Polyestertc);; 
Southampton 
VbrktOTtfn ;" 
Possum Point 
Gravel Neck (CT) . ;: . ^ 
Darbytown (CT) 
Chesapeake (CT) I ! 
Possum Point (CT) 
Northem Neck (CT): S: 
Low Moor (CT) 
Kitty Hawk (CT) : 
Remington (CT) 
Possum Point (CC) • 
Chesterileld (CC) 
Possum Point 
Elizabeth River (CT) 
Ladysmith (CT) : r 
Bellmeade (CC) 
Gordor)svil|e Energy (CC) 
Rosemary (CC) 

Gravel Neck (CT);;: 
Darbytown (CT) 
Bathqounly ;; "^ 
Gaston 
Roanoke Rapids 

Merchant Generation 
Millstone 
Kewaunee ,; . 
Kincaid 
Brayton Pt^nt 
State Line 
Sa\&m Harbor : ;. 
Morgantown 
Brayton Point 
Salem Harbor 
Fairless (CG) . • 
Elwood (CT) 
Manchester (CC) 
Other 

Mineral, VA 
Surry, VA 
Mt. Storm, WV 
Chester, VA 
Chesapeake, VA 

: Clover, VA 
Yorktown, VA 

: Bremo Bluff, VA 
Clarksville. VA 
Bayard, WV 
AltaVista, VA 
: Hopewell, VA . 
Southampton, VA 
Yorktown. VA 
Dumfries, VA 

: Surry, VA ; 
Richmond, VA 
Chesapeake, VA 
Dumfries, VA 
Lively, VA 
Covington, VA 
Kitty Hawk, NC 
Remington, VA 
Dumfries, VA 
Chester, VA 
Dumfries, VA 
Chesapeake, VA 
Ladysmith, VA 
Richmond, VA 
Gordonsville, VA S! 
Roanoke Rapids, 
NC 
Surry, VA ;, 
Richmond, VA 
Warm Springs, VA= 
Roanoke Rapids, NC 
Roanoke Rapids, 
NC 

Nuclear 
Nuclear 

Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal 

Oil 
Oil 
Oil 
Oil 
Oil 
Oil 
Oil 
Oil 
on 

Gas 
Gas 
Gas 
Gas 
Gas 

Gas 

Gas 
Gas 

Hydro 
Hydna 

Hydro 

Waterford, CT 
Kewaunee, WI 
Kincaid, IL 
Somerset, MA 
Hammond, IN 
Salem. MA 
Morgantown, WV 
Somerset, MA 
Salem, MA 
Fairless Hills, PA 
Elwood, IL 
Providence, RI 
Various 

Nuclear 
Nudear 

Coal 
Coal 
Coal 
Coal;;; 
Coal 

Oil 
J;Gas:::':: 

Gas 
V:;Gas.:,t 
Various 

1,596(a) 
1,598 
1,560 
1,253 

595 
433{b) 
323 
227 
138 

74 
63 
63 
63 

618 
786 
186 
156 
115 
72 
47 
48 
32 
582 
532 
397 
312 
300 
297 
232 
218 

165 
158 
156 

1.706(d) 
225 

Pittsylvania 
Other 

Hurt, VA 
Various 

Biomass 
• ,• : •^\^rious: ; n n n p ; T n n ; 

83 

15.723 
Power Purchase Aqreements 

Total Utilitv Generation 
' ^ - ; - - n . . - 2 ^ 7 6 i i i -

17.799 

1.951(e) 
H55©:"^"-

1,156(f} 
:;t.l22il;;̂ ^̂ . 

5 1 5 

25(f),(g) 
i;'438-'r:^n; 

440 
;f̂ 76(h)ni 
7i2(0.(i) 

?̂r432i'i 
17 

Total Merchant Generation 8,756 
Totai Capacity 26.555 
Note: (CT) denotes combustion turbine and (CC) denotes combmed cycle. 
(a) Excludes U. 6% undivided interest owned by Old Dominion Electric Cooperative (ODEC). 
(b) Excludes 50% undivided interest owned by ODEC. 
(c) Previously referred to as Hopewell. 
(d) Excludes 40% undivided interest owned hy A llegheny Generating Company, a subsidiary of A llegheny Energy. Inc. 
(e) Excludes 6.53% undivided interest in Unit 3 owned by Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company and Central Vermont Public Service Corporation. 
(f) Subject to a lien securing the facility's debt. 
(g) Excludes 50% partnership interest owned by Cogen Technologies Morgantown, Ltd. and Hickory Power Corporation, 
(h) Includes generating units that we operate under leasing arrangements. 
(i) Excludes 49.9% membership interest owned fy J. POWER Elwood, LLC and 0.!% membership interest owned by Peoples Elwood LLC. 
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings 
From time to time, we are alleged to be in violation or in default under 
orders, statutes, rules or regulations relating to the environment, 
compliance plans imposed upon or agreed to by us, or permits issued by 
various local, state and federal agencies for die construction or operation of 
facilities. Administrative proceedings may also be pending on these 
matters. In addition, in the ordinary course of business, we are involved in 
various legal proceedings. We believe that the ultimate resolution of these 
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our financial 
position, liquidity or results of operations. 

See Regulation in Item 1. Business, Future Issues and Olher Matters in 
MD&A and Note 24 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for 
additional information on various environmental, rate matters and other 
regulatory proceedings to which we are a party. 

In April 1998, Harrold E. (Gene) Wright filed suit against DEPI 
(formerly known as CNG Producing Company), a subsidiary ofthe former 
CNG, and numerous other companies under the False Claims Act. 
Mr. Wright alleged various fraudulent valuation practices in the payment 
of royalties due under federal oil and gas leases. A substantial portion of 
Ihe claim against us was resolved by settlement in late 2002. The case was 
remanded back to the U.S. District Court for the Eastem District of Texas, 
which denied our motion to dismiss on jurisdictional grounds in January 
2005. In February 2007, the Judge issued an order providing that trials will 
occur in phases on 25% of each defendant's leases to be selected by the 
opposing party. The phase I trial (currently involving another defendant) 
will commence in August 2008. A phase II trial will occur in February 
2009 against two defendants selected by the opposing parly, with 
subsequent phases of trials occurring against other defendants in the future 
with up to two defendants at each future trial. 

In October 2003, the EPA and MADEP each issued new NPDES permits 
for Brayton Point- The new permits contained identical conditions thai in 
effect require the installation of cooling towers to address concems over 
the withdrawal and discharge of cooling water. Following various appeals^ 
in December 2007, the EPA issued an administrative order to Brayton 
Point that contained a schedule for implementing the permit. On the same 
day, Brayton Point witiidrew its appeal ofthe permit from the U.S. Court 
of Appeals. Brayton Point's state appeal will be dismissed upon MADEP 
finalizing the process for implementing the parallel state permit. Currently, 
we estimate the total cost to install these cooling towers at approximately 
$500 million, of which $176 million is included in our planned capital 
expenditures through 2010. 

In December 2006 and January 2007, we submitted self-disclosure 
notifications to EPA Region 8 regarding three E&P facilities in Utah tiiat 
have potentially violated CAA permitting requiremenis. On July 31, 2007, 
a third party purchased Dominion's E&P assets in Utah, including these 
facilities, and under the purchase and sale agreement the third-party 
assumed responsibility for the resolution ofany enforcement action or 
Consent Decree, including penalties. 

In March 2006, Peoples and Equitable filed a joint petition witii the 
Pennsylvania Commission seeking approval ofthe purchase by Equitable 
of all ofthe stock of Peoples and Hope. In April 2006, Hope and Equitable 
filed a joint petition seeking West Virginia Commission approval ofthe 
purchase by Equitable of all ofthe stock of Hope. In April 2007, the 
Pennsylvania Commission approved a joint settlement approving the sale 
in Pennsylvania. Following the approval of the sale of Peoples by the 
Pennsylvania Commission, the FTC filed an action in federal court seekir^ 
to block the transaction. Such action was denied and the case was appealed 
by tiie FTC in the 3rd U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals. In January 2008, 
Dominion and Equitable agreed to terminate tiieir sale agreement. 
Following that termination, the FTC dismissed its administrative complaint 
challenging the transaction. In February 2008, the federal appeals court 
granted a motion by the FTC to dismiss the case and to vacate the district 
court mling. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security| 
Holders 
None. 

Source; DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K, February 28. 2008 
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Executive Officers ofthe Registrant 

Name and Age Business Experience Past Five Years(i) 
Chairman of the Board of Directori of Dominion Resources, Inc. (DRI) from April 2007 to date; president and ^ 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of DRI from January 2006 to date; Chairman of the Board of Directorsiand CEO of 
Virginia Electric and Power Company (VP) from February: 2006 to date; Chairman of the Board of Directors, 
President and CEO of Consolidated Natural Gas Company (CNG) from January 2006 to June 2007; Director of 
DRI from March 2005 to April 2007; President and Chief Operating Officer (COO) of DRI from January 2004 to 
December 2005; President and COO of CNG from January 2004 to December 2005; Executive Vice President of 
DRI from March 1999 to December 2003; President and CEO of VPfrbrri December 2002 to December 2003; 
Executive Vice President of CNG from January 2000 to December 2003. 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of DRI from May 1999 to date; Executive Vice 
President and CFO of CNG from January 2000 to June 2007; Executive Vice President and CFO of VP from 
February 2006 to date. 

: Executive Vice President—Public Policy & Corporate Communications of DRf from October 2007 to elate; 
i Executive Vice President—Extemal Affairs & Corporate Communications of DRI from January 2C>07 to Sesptember 
2007 and of CNG from January 2007 to June 2007; Senior Vice President-^xterria! Affairs & Corporate 
Communications of DRI from May 1999 to December 2006 and of CNG from January 2000 to D e c ^ b e r 2006. T 

Executive Vice President of DRI from December 2002 to date and of CNG from December 2002 to June 2007; 
President and COO—Dominion Virginia Power of VP from October 2007 to date; President and COO—Delivery of 
VP from February 2006 to September 2007; President and CEO of VP from December 2002 to January 2006. 

Executive Vice president of DRI fr4>m April 2006 to date; President and COO—Energy of VP from February 2006 
to September 2007; CEO—Energy of VP from January 2004 to January 2006; CEO—transmission of VP from 
January 2003 to December 2003. 

Executive Vice President of DRI from April 2006 to date; President and COO—Generation of VP from February 
2006 to date; President and CEO—Generation of VP from January 2003 to January 2006. 

: President and Chief Nuclear (^fficdr (CNO) of VP from October 2007 to date; Senior Vit^: Presidfent-^uclear 
Operations and CNO of VP from April 2000 to September 2007. ! 

Senior Vice President—Regulation and Integrated Planning of DRI, VP and Dominion Resources Services, Inc. 
(DRS) from October 2007 to date; Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer (GAO) of DRI from 
January 2003 to September 2007; President and CEO of DRS from January 2004 to September 2007; President 
of DRS from January 2003 to December 2003. 

Senior Vice President arid Treasurer of DRI from May 1999 to date; Sfehior Vic^ President an^ Treasurer of VP 
from January 2000 to date and of CNG from January 2000 to June 2007/^^ ̂ ^.v : ;i ̂  ̂  

President and CAO of DRS, Senior Vice President and CAO of DRI from October 2007 to date; Senior Vice 
President and Chief Accounting Officer of DRI and VP from January 2007 to September 2007 and CNG from 
January 2007 to June 2007; Senior Vice President and Controller of DRI and CNG from April 2006 to December 
2006; Senior Vice President (Principal Accounting Officer) (PAO) of VP from April 2006 to December 2006; Vice 
President and Controller of DRI and CNG and Vice President and PAO of VP from June 2000 to April 2006. 

Senior Viqe President and General Counsel of DRI and VP from January 2007 to date and CNG from January 
2007 to June 2007; Vice President and General Counsel of DRI from September 1997 to December 2006; Vice 
President and General Counsel of VP from January 2002 to December 2006; Vice President and General Counsel 
of CNG frohi January 2000 to December 2006. ; ; ; 

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of DRI, VP and DRS from October 2007 to date; Vice 
President—Budgeting, Forecasting & Investor Relations of DRS from Febmary 2006 to September 2007; Vice 
President—Financial Management of VP from January 2004 to January 2006; Director of Investor Relations of 
DRS from Febaiary 2000 to December 2003. 

(I) Any service listed for VP, CNG and DRS reflects service af a subsidiary of DRI. 
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ThomasF.Fariiel!,ll(53) 

Thomas N. Chewning (62) 

Gva Teig Hardy (63); ;n;;;L 

Jay L.Johnson (61) 

PaulD. Koonce (48) ;n= ; ; 

Mark F. McGettrick (50) 

David A; Christian (53yr:;; 

Mary C. Doswell (49) 

G. Scott Hetzer (51) y;^ 

Steven A. Rogers (46) 

James F. Stutts (63) 

Thomas R Wohlfarth (47) 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 



Table of Contents 

Part II 

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities 
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. At December 31,2007, there were approximately 154,000 registered shareholders, including 
approximately 62,000 certificate holders. Restrictions on our payment of dividends are discussed in Note 22 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. Quarterly 
information conceming stock prices and dividends is disclosed in Note 31 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During 2007, we issued 248 shares of common stock to a former employee as a deferred payment under a 1985 performance achievement plan. These shares 
were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (Securities Act). The issuance ofthis stock did not involve a public offering, and is therefore exempt from 
registration under the Securities Act. 

The following table presents certain information wilh respect to oiu" common stock repurchases during the fourth quarter of 2007. 

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

Period 

(a) 
Total 

Number 
of Shares 
(or Units) 

Purchased(i) 

(b) 
Average 

Price 
Paid per 

Share 
(or Unit) 

(c) 
Tolal Number 

of Shares (or Units) 
Purchased as Part 

of Publicly Announced 
Plans or Programs 

(d) 
Maximum Number (or 

Approximate Dollar Value) 
of Shares (or Units) that May 
Vet Be Purchased underthe 

Plans or Program 
10/1/07-10/31/07 
11/1/07-11/30/07 
12/1/07-12/31/07 

51,4«0 
15,988 

7.562 

$ 43.14 
$ 45.79 
$ 47.28 

N/A: 
N/A 
N/A 

53,9711148 shar«s/$2.e^ billion 
53,971,143 shares^2.6a billion 
53,971;148 shares/$2i6a billiofi 

Total 74.950 $ 44.120 N/A 53.971.148 shares/$2.63 billion 

(1) Amount includes registered shares tendered by employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations on vested restricted stock. 

(2) Represents the weighted-average price paid per share during the fourth quarter of 2007. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28. 2008 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

Year Ended December31, ^ 2QQ7{1) 2006(2) 2005(3) 2004(4) 2003(5) 
(millions, except per share amounts) 
Operatirigi^venue; ;: "^tn::::r:n:n:fi -̂^ ' ;$15,674 ; ; $16,297';;$17,809;;;n$l3.675u}^$11,802: 
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and cumulative effecl of changes in accounting 

principles 
Income (loss) from disconttnijedbpeiratiohs. net of tax(^) : 
Extraondinary item, net of tax 

2,705 
- • • ( 8 ) ; ; . 

(158) 

1,530 
::(150)-

— 

1,033 
: : : - v^ ' $Vr 

— 

1,255 
• f ' ^ m - y 

— 

908 
(601) 

— 
Cumulative erffecttrfchanges in aOMUhWg principles, net of 
Net income 
Income from cpntlouhg 0}^ratic»is before Caimulative effect of changes in accouhting principles per cx>mmon 

Net income per common share—basic 
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles per common 
":shar&4TdHuted:::::::::;'Mr^^i;^^^^/;••;;^:^:^:• : j = n; : \ 
Net income per common share—diluted 
Diwdends paid perishare-rH: - : !n : -^ 
Total assets 
Lbng-tehndebt;:'^:"t/;:':MS:;;;:;:J-^-':n'L;:: ::-••;;; ,.^_ ' , . ' - - • 

2,539 

4.15 
3.90 

4.13 
3.88 
1.46 

39,123 
13,235 

1.380 

2.19 
1.97 

2.17 
1.96 
1.38 

49,269 
14,791 

(6) 
1,033 

1.51 
1.51 

1.50 
1.50 
1.34 

52,660 
14,653 

1,249 

1.91 
1.90 

1.90 
1.89 
1.30 

45.418 
15.507 

11 
318 

1.43 
0.50 

1.42 
0.50 
1.29 

43,546 
15,776 

(1) Includes a $1.5 billion qfier-fax net income benefit from ihe disposition of our non-Appaiachian E&P operations as discussed in Note 6 lo our Consolidated Financial Statements. Also 
includes a $252 million after'tax impairment charge associated with the sale of our partially-completed Dresden Energy merchant generation facility and a SI 58 million after-lax 
extraordinary charge resulting from the reapplication of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting for the EJfects of Certain Types of Regulation, to the 
Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation operations as discussed in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. Also includes a SI 3 7 million after-lax charge resulting from the 
termination ofthe long-term power .sales agreement associated with our 515 Mw State Line power station. 

(2) Includes a $164 million after-tax impairment charge related to three of our natural ̂ s-fired merchant generation peaking facilities (Peakerfacilities) that were sold in March 2007 and a 
SI 04 million after-tax charge resulting from the write-off of certain regulatory assets related to the planned sale of two of our regulated gas distribution subsidiaries. See Note 6 to our 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(3) Includes a $272 million after-tax lo.ss related to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and oil derivatives, resulting from an interruption of gas and oil production in the 
Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. Also in 2005, we adopted a Kew accounting standard that resulted in the recognition ofthe cumulative effect of a change in 
accounting principle. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(4) Includes a $112 million after-tax charge related to our interest In a long-term power toiling contract that was divested in 2005 and a $61 miUion after-tax loss related to the discontinuance 
of hedge accounting for certain oil derivatives, resulting from an interruption of oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane Ivan, and .subsequent changes in the fair value of 
those derivatives during the third quarter 

(5) Includes SI 22 million of after-tax incremental restoration expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel. Also in 2003. we adopted SFAS No. 143. Accounting fbr Asset Retirement Obligations, 
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3, Issues Involved in Accountingfor Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk 
Management Activities, Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20, Interpretation of the Meaning of 'Not Clearly and Closely Related'in Paragrc^h 10(b) regarding Contracts with a 
Price Adjustment Feature, and Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R), which resulted 
in the recognition ofthe cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles. 

(6) Reflects the net impact oflhe discontinued operations of certain DCI operations sold in August 2007, Canadian E&P operations sold in June 2007, Peaker facilities .sold in March 2007 and 
telecommunications operations sold in May 2004. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations (MD&A) discusses our results of operations and general 
financial condition. MD&A should be read in conjunction with our 
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data. The terms "Dominion," "Company," "we," "our" and 
"us" are used throughout this report and, depending on tbe context of their 
use, may represent any ofthe following: the legal entity. Dominion 
Resources, Inc., one or more of Dominion Resources, Inc.'s consolidated 
subsidiaries or operating segments or the entirety of Dominion Resources, 
Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

COISTENTS OF M D & A 

Our MD&A consists ofthe following information: 

• Forward-Looking Statements 

• Introduction 

" Accounting Matters 

• Results of Operations 

• Segment Results of Operations 

• Selected Information—Energy Trading Activities 

• Liquidity and Capital Resources 

• Future Issues and Other Matters 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report contains statements conceming our expectations, plans, 
objectives, future fmancial performance and other statements that are not 
historical facts. These statements are "forward-looking statements" within 
the meaning ofthe Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In 
most cases, the reader can identity these forward-looking statements by 
such words as "anticipate," "estimate," "forecast," "expect," "believe," 
"should," "could," "plan," "may," "target" or other similar words. 

We make forward-looking statements with full knowledge that risks and 
uncertainties exist that may cause actual results to differ materially from 
predicted results. Factors that may cause actual results to differ are oflen 
presented with the forward-looking statements themselves. Additionally, 
other factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those 
indicated in any forward-looking statement. These factors include but are 
not limited to: 

• Unusual weather conditions and their effect on energy sales to 
customers and energy commodity prices; 

• Extreme weather events, including hurricanes and winter storms, that 
can cause outages and property damage to our facililies; 

• State and federal legislative and regulatory developments and changes 
to environmental and other laws and regulations, including those related 
lo climate change, lo which we are subject; 

• Cost of environmental compliance, including those costs related to 
climate change; 

•• Risks associated with the operation of nuclear facilities; 

• Fluctuations in energy-related commodity prices and the effect these 
could have on our eamings, liquidity position and the underlying value 
of our assets; 

Counterparty credit risk; 
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• Capital market conditions, including price risk due to marketable 1 
securities held as investments in nuclear decommissioning and benefii 
plan trusts; 

• Fluctuations in interest rates; 
• Changes in federal and slate tax laws and regulations; 
• Changes in rating agency requirements or credit ratings and their effect 

on availability and cost of capital; 
• Changes in financial or regulatory accounting principles or policies 

imposed by goveming bodies; 
• Employee workforce factors including collective bai^aining agreements 

and labor negotiations widi union employees; 
• The risks of operating businesses in regulated industries that are subject 

to changing regulatory structures; 
" Receipt of approvals for and timing of closing dates for acquisitions and 

divestitures; 
• Changes in rules for regional transmission organizations (RTOs) in 

which we participate, including changes in rate designs and new and 
evolving capacity models; 

• Political and economic conditions, including the threat of domestic 
terrorism, inflation and deflation; 

" The inability to complete planned construction projects within the terms 
and time frames initially anticipated; and 

• Completing the divestiture of the Peoples Natural Gas Company 
(Peoples) and Hope Gas, Inc. (Hope), and the disposition of investments 
held by our financial services subsidiary. Dominion Capital, Inc. (DCI). 

Additionally, odier risks that could cause actual results to differ from 
predicted results are set forth in Item I A. Risk Factors. 

Our forward-looking statements are based on our beliefs and 
assumptions using information available at the time the statements are 
made. We caution the reader not to place undue reliance on our 
forward-looking statements because the assumptions, beliefs, expectations 
and projections about future events may, and often do, differ materially 
from actual results. We undertake no obligation to update any 
forward-looking statement to reflect developments occurring after the 
statement is made. 

INTRODUCTION 

Dominion, headquartered in Richmond, Virginia, is one ofthe nation's 
largest producers and transporters of energy. Our strategy is lo be a leading 
provide of electricity, natural gas and related services to customers 
primarily in the eastem region ofthe United States (U.S.). Our portfolio of 
assets includes approximately: 

• 26,500 megawatts (Mw) of generation capacity; 

• 14,000 miles of interstate natural gas transmission, gathering and 
storage pipeline; 

• 6,000 miles of elechic transmission lines; 

' 55,000 miles of electric distribution lines in Virginia and North 
Carolina; 

•• 28,000 miles of gas distribution pipeline, exclusive of service 
lines of two inches in diameter or less; 

' 1.1 trillion cubic feet equivalent (Tcfe) ofproved gas and oil reserves; 
and 

• An underground natural gas storage system with over 975 billion cubic 
feet (bcf) of capacity. 

Prior to a fourth quarter 2007 segment realignment, we managed our 
daily operations through four primary operating 
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segments: Dominion Delivery, Dominion Energy, Dominion Generation 
and Dominion Exploration and Production (E&P). During the fourth 
quarter of 2007, we realigned our business units to reflect our sh-ategic 
refocusing and began managing our daily operations through three primary 
operating segments: Dominion Virginia Power (DVP), Dominion 
Generation and Dominion Energy. We also report a Corporate and Other 
segment that includes our corporate, service company and other functions 
and the net impact of certain operations disposed of or to be disposed of. 
While we manage our daily operations through our operating segments as 
described below, our assets remain wholly-owned by our legal subsidiaries. 

The contributions to net income by our primary operating segments are 
determined based on a measure of profit that we believe represents the 
segments' core eamings. As a result, certain specific items attributable to 
those segments are not included in profit measures evaluated by executive 
management in assessing the segment's performance or allocating 
resources among the segments. Those specific items are reported in the 
Corporate and Other segment. 

DVP includes our regulated electric transmission, distribution and 
customer service operations, as well as our noiu"egulated retail energy 
marketing operations. Electric transmission and distribution operations 
serve residential, conmnercial, industrial and govemmental customers in 
Virginia and northeastern North Carolina. Retail energy marketing 
operations include the marketing of gas, electricity and related products 
and services to residential and small commercial customers in the 
Northeast, mid-Atlantic and Midwest. 

Revenue provided by our electric transmission operations is based 
primarily on rates approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC). The profitability ofthis business is dependent on its ability, 
through the rates it is permitted to charge, to recover costs and earn a 
reasonable return on its capital investments. Variability results from 
changes in rates, the demand for services, which is primarily weather 
dependent, and operating and maintenance expenditures. We are a member 
of PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJM), an RTO, and our electric 
transmission facilities are integrated into PJM wholesale electricity 
markets. Consistent with the increased authority given to the North 
American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) by the Energy Policy 
Act of 2005, we are committed to meeting NERC standards, modemizing 
our infi^structure and maintaining superior system reliability. We will 
continue to focus on safety, operational performance and execution of 
PJM's Regional Transmission Expansion Plan (RTEP) as we move toward 
the future. 

Revenue provided by our electric distribution operations is based 
primarily on rates established by state regulatory authorities and state law. 
Actual revenues are driven primarily by weather, customer growth and 
usage per customer. Operationally, electric distribution continues to focus 
on improving service levels while striving lo reduce costs and link capital 
investments to operational results. As part ofthis continued focus, we have 
implemented an asset management process to ensure that we are 
optimizing our investments to balance cost, performance and risk. We are 
also using technology to enhance customer service options. As we move 
toward the future, safety, operational performance and customer 
relationships will remain as key focal areas. 

In our elechic transmission and distribution operations, we are seeing 
continued strong growth in new customers and increased usage per 
customer on a weather-normalized basis. Growth is particularly strong in 
the major metropolitan areas of Virginia. The combination of higher 
e n e i ^ usage and efficient operations and maintenance spending has been 
critical to our performance. Operationally, we continue to enhance the 
customer experience dirough solid reliability performance and by 
completing the automation of all of our electric residential meters. 

Our retail energy marketing operations compete in nonregulated energy 
markets and have experienced strong growth during the past few years. The 
retail business requires limited capital investment and currently employs 
fewer than 100 people. The retail cuslomer base is diversified across three 
product lines—namral gas, electricity and home warranty services. In 
natural gas, we have a heavy concentration of customers in markets where 
udlities have a long-standing commitment lo customer choice. In 
electricity, we pursue markets where utilities have divested generation and 
where customers are permitted and have opted to purchase from the 
market. Major growth drivers are customer additions, new 
markets/products and sales channels, and supply optimization. 

Dominion Energy includes our regulated Ohio natural gas distribution 
company, regulated gas transmission pipeline and storage operations, 
regulated liquefied natural gas (LNG) operations and our Appalachian 
natural gas E&P business. Dominion Energy also includes our producer 
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services business, which aggregates gas supply, provides market-based 
services related to gas transportation and storage and engages in associated 
gas trading and marketing. 

The gas transmission pipeline and storage business serves Dominion's 
gas distribution businesses and other customers in the Northeast, 
mid-Atiantic and Midwest. Included in our gas transmission pipeline and 
storage businesses is our gas gathering and extraction activity, which sells 
extracted products at market rates. Revenue provided by our regulated gas 
transmission and storage, and LNG operations is based primarily on rates 
established by FERC. The profitability of diese businesses is dependent on 
our ability, through the rates we are permitted to charge, to recover costs 
and eam a reasonable retum on our capital investments. Variability in 
eamings results from changes in rates and the demand for services, which 
can be dependent upon weather, changes in commodity prices, and changes 
in the cost of routine maintenance and repairs (including labor and 
benefits). 

Our gas distribution operations serve residential, commercial and 
industrial gas sales and transportation customers in Ohio, Revenue 
provided by our gas distribution operations is based primarily on rates 
established by the Public Utilities Commission ofOhio (Ohio 
commission). The profitability ofthis business is dependent on its ability, 
through the rates we are permitted to charge, to recover costs and eam a 
reasonable return on our capital investments. Variability in eamings relates 
largely to changes in volumes of natural gas transported, which are 
primarily weather sensitive, and changes in the cost of routine maintenance 
and repairs (including labor and benefits). 

Our Appalachian namral gas E&P business generates income from the 
sale of namral gas and oil we produce from our reserves, including 
fixed-term overriding royalty interests formerly 
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associated with volumetric production payment (VPP) agreements as 
discussed in Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. Variability 
m eamings relates to: changes in commodity prices, which are largely 
market-based; production volumes, which are impacted by numerous 
factors including drilling success and timing of development projects; and 
drilling costs which may be impacted by drilling rig availability and other 
extemal factors. We manage commodity price volatility by hedging a 
substantial portion of our expected production. These hedging activities 
may require cash deposits to satisfy collateral requirements. 

Eamings from Dominion Energy's other nonregulated business, producer 
services, are subject to variability associated with changes in commodity 
prices. Producer services uses physical and financial arrangements to hedge 
this price risk. 

Dominion Generation mcludes the generation operations of our merchant 
fleet and our regulated electric utility, as well as energy marketing and 
price risk management activities for our generation assets. Our generation 
mix is diversified and includes coal, nuclear, gas, oil, renewabies and 
purchased power. The generation facilities of our electric utility fleet are 
located in Virginia, West Viiginia and North Carolina. The generation 
facilities of our merchant fleet are located in Connecticut, Illinois, Indiana, 
Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, Wesl Virginia and Wisconsin. 

Dominion Generation's eamings primarily result from the generation and 
sale of electricity. Due lo 1999 Virginia deregulation legislation, as 
amended in 2004 and 2007, revenues for serving Viiginia jurisdictional 
retail load are based on capped rates through 2008. Additionally, fuel costs 
for the utility fleet, including purchased power, were subject to fixed rate 
recovery provisions until July 1,2007. Pursuant to the 2007 amendments to 
the fuel cost recovery stamte, annual ftiel rate adjustments, wilh deferred 
fuel accounting for over- or under-recoveries of fuel costs, were instituted 
beginning July I, 2007 for our Virginia jurisdictional customers. As 
discussed in Status of Electric Regulation in Virginia under Future Issues 
and Other Matters, the Viiginia General Assembly enacted legislation in 
April 2007 that remmed the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation 
operations to a modified cost-of-service rate model, subject to rate caps in 
effect through December 31, 2008. During the remainder ofthe capped rate 
period, changes in our utility operating costs relative to costs used to 
establish capped rates, will likely impact our eamings. 

Variability in earnings provided by the merchant fleet relates to changes 
in market-based prices received for electricity and the demand for 
electricity, which is primarily dependent upon weather. We manage price 
volatility by hedging a substantial portion of our expected sales. Variability 
also results from changes in the cost of fuel consumed, labor and benefits 
and the timing, duration and costs of scheduled and unscheduled outages. 

Corporate and Other includes our corporate, service company and other 
fimctions (including unallocated debt), corporate-wide commodity risk 
management, the remaining assets of DCI, and the net impact of certain 
operations disposed of or to be disposed of, which are discussed in Note 6 
to our Consolidated Financial Statements. Operations disposed of during 
2007 included all of our non-Appalachian E&P operations, three natural 
gas-fired merchant generation peaking facilities (Peaker facilities) and 

certain DCI operatiohs. Operations to be disposed of reflect two regulated 
gas distribution subsidiaries, Peoples and Hope, which we agreed to sell to 
Equitable Resources, Inc. (Equitable), in March 2006, This sale was 
subject to regulatory approvals in the states in which the companies operate 
as well as antitmst clearance under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. However, in 
January 2008, Dominion and Equitable announced the termination of the 
agreement for die sale of Peoples and Hope, primarily due to the continued 
delay in achieving final regulatory approval. We are seeking other offers 
for the purchase of these utilities. 

In addition. Corporate and Other includes specific items attributable to 
our operating segments that are not included in profit measures evaluated 
by executive management in assessing the segments' performance or in 
allocatmg resources dmong the segments. 

ACCOUNTING MATTERS 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

We have identified tbe following accounting policies, including certain 
inherent estimates, that as a result of die judgments, uncertainties, 
uniqueness and complexities ofthe underlying accounting standards and 
operations involved, could result in material changes to our financial 
condition or results of operations under different conditions or using 
different assumptions. We have discussed the development, selection and 
disclosure of each of these policies with the Audit Committee of our Board 
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of Directors. 

ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS AT FAIR 
VALUE 

We use derivative contracts such as futures, swaps, forwards, options an<il 
financial transmission rights (FTRs) to manage die commodity and 
financial markets risks of our business operations. Derivative contracts, 
wilh certain exceptions, are subject to fair value accounting and are 
reported in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Accounting 
requirements for derivatives and related hedging activities are complex and 
may be subject to further clarification by standard-setting bodies. 

Fair value is based on actively-quoted market prices, if available. In the 
absence of actively-quoted market prices, we seek indicative price 
information from external sources, including broker quotes and industry 
publications. If pricing information from extemal sources is not available, 
we must estunate prices based on available historical and near-term futune 
price infonnation and use of statistical methods, including regression 
analysis. For options and contracts with option-tike characteristics where 
pricing information is not available from extemal sources, we generally use 
a modified Black-Scholes Model that considers time value, the volatility of 
the underlying commodities and other relevant assumptions when 
estimating fair value. We use olher option models under special 
circumstances, including a Spread Approximation Model, when contracts 
include different commodities or commodity locations and a Swing Option 
Model, when contracts allow either the buyer or seller the ability to 
exercise within a range of quantities. For contracts with unique 
characteristics, we estimate fair value using a discounted cash flow 
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approach deemed appropriate under the circumstances and applied 
consistently from period to period. If pricing information is not available 
from extemal sources, judgment is required to develop the estimates of fair 
value. For individual contracts, the use of different valuation models or 
assumptions could have a material effect on a contract's estimated fair 
value. 

For cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions, we estimate the future 
cash flows of die forecasted transactions and evaluate the probability of 
occurrence and timing of such transactions. Changes in conditions or the 
occurrence of unforeseen events could require discontinuance of hedge 
accounting or could affect the timing ofthe reclassification of gains and/or 
losses on cash flow hedges from accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) (AOCI) into earnings. 

USE OF ESTIMATES IN GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT TESTING 

As of December 31, 2007, we reported $3.5 billion of goodwill in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. A significant portion resulted from the 
acquisition ofthe former Consolidated Natural Gas Company (CNG) in 
2000. 

In April of each year, we test our goodwiU for potential impairment, and 
perfonn additional tests more frequently if impairment indicators are 
present and after a portion of goodwill has been allocated to a business 
which we plan to dispose of The 2007, 2006 and 2005 annual tests did not 
result in the recognition ofany goodwill impairment, as the estimated fair 
values of our reporting units exceeded their respective carrying amounts. 

As a result ofthe 2007 disposition of our non-Appalachian E&P 
operations, goodwill was allocated lo such operations based on the relative 
fair values of the E&P operations being disposed of and the Appalachian 
portion being retained. The impairment test performed on the goodwill 
allocated to the retained Appalachian operations showed no impairment. 
Also, in connection wilh the 2007 segment realignment, the goodwill 
allocated to our three gas distribution subsidiaries was tested for 
impairment during the fourth quarter of 2007. This interim lest did not 
result in the recognition ofany goodwill impairment, as the estimated fair 
values of these businesses exceeded their respective carrying amounts. 

In general, we estimate die fair value of our reporting units by using a 
combination of discounted cash flows, and other valuation techniques that 
use multiples of eamings for peer group companies and analyses of recent 
business combinations involving peer group companies. For our 
non-Appalachian E&P operations, our regulated gas distribution 
subsidiaries held for sale and certain DCI operations, negotiated sales 
prices were used as fair value for the tests conducted in 2007. Fair value 
estimates are dependent on subjective factors such as our estimate of future 
cash flows, the selection of appropriate discount and growth rates, and the 
selection of peer group companies and recent transactions. These 
underlying assumptions and estimates are made as of a point in time; 
subsequent modifications, particularly changes in discount rates or growth 
rates inherent in our estimates of fiiture cash flows, could result in a future 
impairment of goodwill. Although we have consistently applied the same 
methods in developing the assumptions and estimates that underlie the fair 
value calculations, such as estimates of fumre cash flows, and based those 
estimates on relevant information available at the time, such cash flow 
estimates are highly uncertain by namre and may vary sig­
nificantly from actual results. Ifthe estimates of futiu'e cash flows used in 
the most recent tests had been 10% lower, the resulting fair values would 
have still been greater than the carrying values of each of those reporting 
units tested, indicating that no impairment was present. 

USE OF ESTIMATES IN LONG-LIVED ASSET IMPAIRMENT 

TESTING 

Impairment testing for an individual or group of long-lived assets or for 
intangible assets wilh definite lives is required when circumstances 
indicate those assets may be impaired. When an asset's carrying amount 
exceeds the undiscounted estimated future cash flows associated with the 
asset, the asset is considered impaired to the extent that the asset's fair 
value is less than its carrying amount. Performing an impairment test on 
long-lived assets involves judgment in areas such as identifying 
circumstances that indicate an impairment may exist; identifying and 
grouping affected assets; and developing the undiscoimted and discounted 
estimated future cash flows (used lo estimate feir value in the absence of 
market-based value) associated with the asset, including probability 
weighting such cash flows to reflect expectations about possible variations 
in their amounts or timing and the selection of an appropriate discount rate. 
Although our cash flow estimates are based on relevant information 
available at the time the estimates are made, estimates of future cash flows 
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are, by nature, highly uncertain and may vary significantly from actual 
results. For example, estimates of future cash flows would contemplate 
factors, which may change over time, such as the expected use oflhe asset, 
including future production and sales levels, and expected fluctuations of 
prices of commodities sold and consumed. 

In 2006, we tested the partially-completed Dresden Energy merchant 
generation facility (Dresden) for impairment and concluded that its 
carrying amount, as well as the estimated cost to complete, was 
recoverable based on the probability of continued construction and use al 
that time. As part of our ongoing asset review to improve Dominion's 
remm on invested capital, we began the process of exploring the sale of 
Dresden in the second quarter of 2007. Non-binding indicative bids were 
received and based on our evaluation of these bids, we believed that il was 
likely that Dresden would be sold rather than completed and operated in 
our merchant fleet. This change in intended use represented a triggering 
event for us to evaluate whether we could recover the carrying amount of 
our investment in Dresden. This analysis indicated that the carrying 
amouni of Dresden would not be recovered. As a result, in the second 
quarter of 2007, we recognized a $387 million ($252 million after-tax) 
impairment charge to reduce Dresden's carrying amount to its estimated 
feir value in connection with the planned sale of Dresden, which closed in 
September 2007. 

In 2005, we tested gas and sleam electric turbines held for future 
development with a carrying amount of $187 million for impairment and 
concluded diat the carrying amount was recoverable based upon the 
probability of future development as a merchant generation project at that 
time. In the third quarter of 2007, we recognized an $18 million 
impairment charge ($12 million after-tax) for two of these gas mrbines ttiat 
were sold by our merchant generation operations to our utility generation 
operations based upon amounts to be recovered by our utility in 
jurisdictional rate base. These turbines will be used in the 

26 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28.2008 



Table of Contents 

Ladysmith expansion project discussed in Utility Generation Expansion 
under Future Issues and Other Matters. 

In conjunction wilh the results of a review of our portfolio of assets, 
Peaker facilities, with a combined carrying amount of $504 million, were 
marketed for sale in the third quarter of 2006. An impairment analysis, 
performed in the third quarter of 2006, indicated that the carrying amount 
of each ofthe Peaker facilities was recoverable as the expected 
undiscounted cash flows, probability weighted to reflect both continued use 
and possible sale scenarios, exceeded the carrying amount. In December 
2006, we reached an agreement lo sell the Peaker facilities and 
accordingly, we reduced their carrying amounts to fair value less cost to 
sell and classified them as assets held for sale in our Consolidated Balance 
Sheet. Also in the fourth quarter of 2006, in conjunction with a review of 
our assets, a decision was made to no longer pursue the development of a 
gas transmission pipeline project with capitalized constmction costs of $28 
million. The pipeline project was previously tested for impairment during 
2005. The results of our analysis in 2005 indicated that this asset was not 
impaired based on the probability of continued constmction and use at that 
time. Impairment charges totaling $280 million ($181 million after-lax) 
were recorded in December 2006 related to the Peaker facilities and the gas 
transmission pipeline project. 

ACCOUNTING FOR REGULATED OPERATIONS 

The accounting for our regulated electric and gas operations differs from 
the accounting for nonregulated operations in that we are required to reflect 
the effect of rate regulation in our Consolidated Financial Statements. For 
regulated businesses subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate 
regulation, regulatory practices that a s s i ^ costs lo accounting periods may 
differ from accounting mediods generally applied by nonregulated 
companies. When it is probable thai regulators will permit the recovery of 
current costs through future rates charged to customers, we defer these 
costs as regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by 
nonregulated companies. Likewise, we recognize regulatory liabilities 
when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through 
fiiture rates or when revenue is collected from customers for expendimres 
that have yet to be incurred. Generally, regulatory assets are amortized into 
expense and regulatory liabilities are amortized into income over the period 
authorized by the regulator. 

As discussed further in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, 
in April 2007, the Virginia General Assembly passed legislation that 
retumed the Virginia jiaisdiction of our utility generation operations to 
cost-of-service rate regulation. As a result, we reapplied the provisions of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting 
for the EJfects of Certain Types of Regulation (SFAS No. 71), to those 
operations on April 4,2007, the date the legislation was enacted. The 
reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility 
generation operations resulted in a $259 million ($158 million after tax) 
exti^ordinary charge and the reclassification of $195 million ($119 million 
after tax) of unrealized gains from AOCI related to nuclear 
decommissioning trust funds. This established a $454 million long-term 
regulatory liability for amounts previously collected from Virginia 
jurisdictional customers and placed in extemal tmsts (including income, 
losses and 

changes in fair value thereon) for the fumre decommissioning of our utility 
nuclear generation stations, in excess of amounts recorded pursuant to 
SFAS No. 143, Accountingfor Asset Retirement Obligations (SFAS 
No. 143). In connection with the reapplication or SFAS No. 71, we 
prospectively changed certain of our accounting policies for the Virginia 
jurisdiction of our utility generation operations to those used by 
cost-of-service rate-regulated entities- Other than the extraordinary item 
previously discussed, the overall impact of these changes was not material 
to our results of operations or financial condition in 2007. 

We evaluate whether or not recovery of our regulatory assets through 
fiiture rales is probable and make various assumptions in our analyses. The 
expectations of fumre recovery are generally based on orders issued by 
regulatory commissions or historical experience, as well as discussions 
with applicable regulatory authorities. If recovery of a regulatory asset is 
determined to be less than probable, it will be written off in the period such 
assessment is made. In 2006, we wrote off $166 million of our regulatory 
assets as a result ofthe planned sale of Peoples and Hope since the 
recovery of those assets was no longer probable. We currently believe the 
recovery of our remaining regulatory assets is probable. See Notes 2, 6 and 
15 lo our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 
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We recognize liabilities for the expected cost of retiring tangible long-lived 
assets for which a legal obligation exists. These asset retirement 
obligations (AROs) are recognized at fair value as incurred, and are 
capitalized as part of the cost ofthe related long-lived assets. In the 
absence of quoted market prices, we estimate the fair value of our AROs 
using present value techniques, in which we make various assumptions 
including estimates ofthe amounts and timing of future cash flows 
associated with retirement activities, credit-adjusted risk fi^e rates and cost 
escalation rates. AROs currently reported in our Consolidated Balance 
Sheets were measured during a period of historically low interest rates. The 
impact on measurements of new AROs or remeasurements of existing 
AROs, using different rates in the future, may be significant. When we 
revise any assumptions used to calculate the fair value of existing AROs, 
we adjust the carrying amount of both the ARO hability and the related 
long-lived asset. We accrete the ARO liability to reflect the passage of 
time. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized $99 miUion, S109 miUion 
and $102 million, respectively, of accretion, and expect to incur $95 
million in 2008. Upon reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia 
jurisdiction of our utility generation operations, we began recording 
accretion and depreciation associated with utility nuclear decommissioning 
AROs, formerly charged to expense, as an adjustment to the regulatory 
liabihty for nuclear decommissioning tmst funds previously discussed, in 
order to match the recognition for rate-making purposes. 

A significant portion of our AROs relates lo the future decommissioning 
of our nuclear facilities. At December 31, 2007, nuclear decommissioning 
AROs, which are reported in the Dominion Generation segment, totaled 
SI .5 billion, representing approximately 85% of our total AROs. Based on 
their significance, ihe following discussion of critical assumptions inherent 
in determining the fair value of AROs relates to those associated with our 
nuclear decommissioning obligations. 

27 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K. February 28. 2008 



Table of Contents 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued 

We utilize periodic site-specific base year cost smdies in order to 
estimate the namre, cost and timing of planned decommissioning activities 
for our utility and merchant nuclear plants. We obtained updated cost 
smdies for all of our nuclear plants in 2006 which generally reflected 
increases in base year costs. These cost studies were based on relevant 
information available at the time they were performed; however, estimates 
of fiimre cash flows for extended periods of time are by namre highly 
uncertain and may vary significantly from acmal results. In addition, our 
cost estimates include cost escalation rates that are applied to the base year 
costs. The selection of these cost escalation rates is dependent on 
subjective factors which we consider to be a critical assumption. 

We determine cost escalation rates, which represent projected cost 
increases over time, due lo both general inflation and increases in the cost 
of specific decommissioning activities, for each of our nuclear facilities. 
The use of altemative rates could have been material to the liabilities 
recognized. For example, had we increased the cost escalation rate by 
0.5%, the amount recognized as of December 31, 2007 for our AROs 
related to nuclear decommissioning would have been $267 million higher. 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

We sponsor nonconU-ibutory defined benefit pension plans and other 
postretirement benefit plans for eligible active employees, retirees and 
qualifying dependents. The projected costs of providing benefits under 
these plans are dependent, in part, on historical information such as 
employee demographics, the level of contributions made to the plans and 
eamings on plan assets. Assumptions about the future, including the 
expected rate of retum on plan assets, discount rales applied to benefii 
obligations and the anticipated rate of increase in health care costs and 
participant compensation, also have a significant impact on employee 
benefit costs. The impact of changes in these factors, as well as differences 
between our assumptions and actual experience, is generally recognized in 
our Consolidated Statements of Income over the remaining average service 
period of plan participants, rather than immediately. 

The expected long-term rates of retum on plan assets, discount rates and 
medical cost trend rates are critical assumptions. We determine the 
expected long-term rates of remm on plan assets for pension plans and 
other postrelirement benefit plans by using a combination of: 

• Historical return analysis to determine expected future risk premiums; 

• Forward-looking remm expectations derived from the yield on 
long-term bonds and tiie price eamings ratios of major stock market 
indices; 

* Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions; and 

* Investment allocation of plan assets. The strategic target asset allocation 
for our pension fund is 34% U.S. equity securities, 12% non-U.S. equity 
securities, 22% debt securities, 7% real estate and 25% other, such as 
private equity investments. 

We develop assumptions, which are then compared to the forecasts of 
olher independent investment advisors to ensure reasonableness. An 
intemal committee selects the final assumptions. We calculated our 
pension cost using an expected retum on plan assets assumption of 8.75% 
for 2007,2006 and 2005. We calculated our 2007,2006 and 2005 otiier 
postretirement benefit cost using an expected remm on plan assets 
assumption of 8.00%, 

The rate used in calculating other postretirement benefit cost is lower than 
the rate used in calculating pension cost because of differences in the 
relative amounts of various t)T)es of investments held as plan assets. 

We determine discount rates from analyses of AA/Aa rated bonds with 
cash flows matching the expected payments to be made under our plans. 
The discount rates used to calculate pension cost and other postretirement 
benefit cost were 6.20% and 6.10%, respectively, in 2007 compared to 
5.60% and 5.50%, respectively, in 2006, and 6.00% for both discount rales 
in 2005. Higher long-term bond yields were the primary reason for the 
increase in the discount rate from 2006 to 2007. We selected discount rates 
of 6.60% and 6.50% for determining our December 31, 2007 projected 
pension and postretirement benefit obligations, respectively. 

We establish the medical cost trend rate assumption based on analyses of 
various factors including the specific provisions of our medical plans, 
actual cost trends experienced and projected, and demographics of plan 
participants. Our medical cost trend rate assumption as of December 31, 
2007 is 9.00% and is expected to gradually decrease to 5.00% in later 
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years. 
The following table illustrates the effect on cost of changing the critical 

actuarial assumptions previously discussed, while holding all other 
assumptions constant: 

Increase in Net Periodic Cosl 

Otfier 
Pension Postretiremenl 
Benefits Benefits 

Change in 
Actuarial 

Assumption^ 
(millions, except percentages) 

Rate of return on plan assets (0.25)% 12 2 
H^fthcarecosttfehdFatej:in:v:::-:::-^";j1%:n^ nJJN/A : : •; :•• |20 

In addition to the effects on cost, a 0.25% decrease in the discount rate 
would increase our projected pension benefit obligation by $ 117 million 
and would incTcase ow acc\im\ilaXed postTe^iremenl benefit oUigation by 
$43 million al December 31,2007-

ACCOUNTING FOR GAS AND OIL OPERATIONS 

We follow the full cost method of accounting for gas and oil E&P activities 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Under the 
full cosl method, all direct costs of property acquisition, exploration and 
development activities are capitalized and subsequently depleted using die 
units-of-production method. The depletable base of costs includes 
estimated fiiture costs to be inciured in developing proved gas and oil 
reserves, as well as capitalized asset retirement costs, net of projected 
salvage values. Capitalized costs in the depletable base are subject to a 
ceiling test prescribed by the SEC The test limits capitalized amounts lo a 
ceiling—the present value of estimated flimre net revenues to be derived 
from the production ofproved gas and oil reserves, discounted at 10 
percent, assuming period-end pricing adjusted for any cash flow hedges in 
place. We perfonn the ceiling test quarterly, on a country-by-country basis 
as applicable, and would recognize asset impairments to the extent that 
total capitalized costs exceed the ceiling. In addition, gains or losses on the 
sale or olher disposition of gas and oil properties are not recognized, unless 
the gain or loss would significantly alter the relationship 
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between capitalized costs and proved reserves of natural gas and oil 
attributable to a countty. In 2007. we recognized gains from the sales of 
our Canadian and U.S. non-Appalachian E&P businesses. See Note 6 to 
our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Our estimate ofproved reserves requires a large degree of judgment and 
is dependent on factors such as historical data, engineering estimates of 
proved reserve quantities, estimates ofthe amount and timing of future 
expendimres to develop die proved reserves, and estimates of fiamre 
production from the proved reserves. Our estimated proved reserves as of 
December 31,2007 are based upon smdies for each of our properties 
prepared by our staff engineers and audited by Ryder Scotl Company, L.P. 
Calculations were prepared using standard geological and engineering 
methods generally accepted by the pefroleum industry and in accordance 
with SEC guidelines. Given the volatility of namral gas and oil prices, it is 
possible that our estimate of discounted ftimre net cash flows from proved 
namral gas and oil reserves that is used to calculate the ceiling could 
materially change in the near-term. 

The process to estimate reserves is imprecise, and estimates are subject 
lo revision. If there is a significant variance in any of our estimates or 
assumptions in the future and revisions to the value of our proved reserves 
are necessary, related depletion expense and the calculation ofthe ceiling 
test would be affected and recognition of namral gas and oil property 
impairments could occur. See Notes 2 and 30 to our Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

INCOME TAXES 

Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the provision 
for income taxes and reporting of tax-related assets and liabilities. The 
interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since tax authorities may 
interpret the laws differently. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters 
may result in favorable or unfavorable impacts to net income and cash 
flows and adjustments to tax-related assets and liabilities could be material. 

Prior to 2007, we estabhshed liabilities for tax-related contingencies 
when we believed it was probable that a liability had been incurred and the 
amount could be reasonably estimated in accordance with SFAS No. 5, 
Accountingfor Contingencies, and subsequently reviewed them in light of 
changing facts and circumstances. However, as discussed in Note 3 to our 
Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2007, we adopted 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48, 
Accountingfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48). Taking into 
consideration the uncertainty and judgment involved in the determination 
and filing of income taxes, FIN 48 establishes standards for recognition 
and measurement, m financial statements, of positions taken, or expected 
to be taken, by an entity in its income tax remms. Positions taken by an 
entity in its income tax retums that are recognized in the financial 
statements must satisfy a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, 
assuming that the position will be examined by tax authorities with full 
knowledge of all relevant information. If we lake or expect lo take a lax 
return position that is not recognized in the financial statements, we 
disclose such amount as an unrecognized tax benefit. At December 31, 
2007 we had S407 million of unrecognized tax benefits. For the majority of 
our unrecognized tax benefits, the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, 
but there is uncertainty about the liming of such deductibility. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are provided, representing 
fumre effects on income taxes for temporary differences between the bases 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. We 
evaluate quarterly the probability of realizing deferred tax assets by 
reviewing a forecast of fumre taxable income and the availabihty of tax 
planning strategies that can be implemented, if necessary, to realize 
deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income or 
successfully implement tax planning strategies may affect the realization of 
deferred tax assets. We establish a valuation allowance when it is more 
likely than not that all, or a portion of, a deferred tax asset will not be 
realized. At December 31, 2007, we had estabhshed $23 million of 
valuation allowances on our deferred tax assets associated with loss 
carryforwards. 

Other 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

During 2007,2006 and 2005, we were required to adopt several new 
accounting standards, which are discussed in Note 3 to our Consolidated 
Financial Statements. See Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements 
for a discussion of recently issued accounting standards that will be 
adopted in the future. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Presented below is a summary of oiu" consolidated results: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 
(millions, except 
EPS) 
N^lncOTh^!; -U;; 
Diluted earnings per 

share (EPS)"^' 

2007 

3.88 

S Change 

\l$ -1,159 • 

1.92 

2006 

$1,380 

1.96 

$ Change 

$ 3 4 7 

0.46 

2005 

$1,033 

1,50 

(l)A ll per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect a iwo-for-one stock split 
distributed in November 2007. 

Overview 

2007 vs. 2006 
Net income increased by 84% to S2.5 billion. Diluted EPS increased to 
S3.88 and includes $0.24 of share accretion resulting from the repurchase 
of shares with proceeds received from the sale of our non-Appalachian 
E&P business. Favorable drivers include a gain on the sale of our 
non-Appalachian E&P business, higher realized prices for our gas and oil 
production, higher margins at our merchant generation business and the 
reinstatement of annual fuel rate adjustments, effective July 1,2007, for the 
Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation operations, witii deferred fuel 
accounting for over- or under-recoveries of fuel costs. Unfavorable drivers 
include a decrease in gas and oil production due to the sale of our 
non-Appalachian E&P business, an impairment charge related to the sale 
of Dresden, an extraordinary charge in connection with the reapplication of 
SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation 
operations, charges related to the early extinguishment of outstanding debt 
associated with the completion of our debt tender offer in July 2007, a 
charge due to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and 
oil derivatives and subsequent changes in the fair value of these derivatives 
as a resuh ofthe sale of our non-Appalachian E&P 
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business, a chaise for the termination of a long-term power sales 
agreement at our State Line power station (Stale Line) and the absence of 
business intermption insurance revenue received in 2006, associated with 
Hurricanes ICatrina and Rita (2005 hurricanes). 

2006 vs. 2005 

Net income increased 34% to $ 1.4 billion. Favorable drivers included 
increased gas and oil production, higher margins at our merchant 
generation business, an increased contribution from our retail energy 
marketing operations, higher business interruption insurance proceeds 
received in 2006 than in 2005 and the absence of losses incurred in 2005 
due to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain gas and oil 
derivatives resulting from hurricane-related interruptions of gas and oil 
production in the Gulf of Mexico. These favorable drivers were partially 
offset by an impairment charge related to the Peaker facilities, milder 
weather in our gas and electric service territories, lower realized gas prices 
for our E&P operations and a reduction in gains from sales of emissions 
allowances held for consumption. 

Analysis of Consolidated Operations 

Presented below are selected amounts related to our results of operations: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 
(millions) 
Operating Revenue :̂  
Operating Expenses 
:: pim^ric fuel and = - -

energy: : ; i ; 
: purchases •;• 

Purchased 
electric capacity 

Purch^edgasni ; 
Other 

energy-related 
commodity 
purchases 

Other operations 
and 
maintenance 

Gain on sale of 
U.S. 
non-Appalachian 
E&P business 

Depreciation, 
depletion and 
amortization 

Other taxes 
Other income 
Interest and related 

charges 

Income (loss) from 
discontinued 
operations, net of 
tax 

Eidracrdinary item^ < \'. 
: net of tax benefit: i< 

2007 

$15,674 

3,311 

439 
;: 2,766 i 

252 

4,354 

(3.635) 

1,368 
552 
102 

1.175 
1,783 

(8) 

- • ( 1 5 ^ ; : 

$ Chanqe 

;$: p;(623) 

h . ' . ' M l ' W ' . l ^ " :• 

-=,/ : = ;275 •'. 

(42) 
, : ::(171)^ 

(770) 

1.676 

(3,835) 

(189) 
(IS) 
(71) 

147 
356 

142 

r: ;;^158r 

2006 

$16,297 

; 3,236 : 

481 
2,937 > 

1,022 

3,178 

— 

1.557 
568 
173 

1.023 
927 

(150) 

^ r : ; ; - _ / 

$ Change 

$ (1,512) 

; (1.434) 

(23) 
; - ; (1,004) 

(369) 

198 

— 

198 
(9) 
10 

84 
354 

(156) 

, : ' : ^ ^ : " - • • ' , ; • • ^ , • : 

2005 

$17,809 

: 4.670 

504 
i 3,941 

1.391 

2,9B0 

— 

1,359 
577 
163 

944 
573 

6 

• H ' - . ^ A : . ^ 

An analysis of our results of operations for 2007 compared to 2006 and 
2006 compared to 2005 follows. 

2007 vs. 2006 
Operating Revenue decreased 4% to $15.7 billion, primarily reflecting: 

• A $535 million decrease in sales of gas and oil production primarily due 
lo lower volumes due to the sale of our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P 
business ($ 1.4 biUion), partially offset by higher realized prices ($880 
million); 

' A $422 million decrease in revenue from sales of oil purchased by E&P 
operations, primarily due to the impact of netting sales and purchases of 
oil under buy/sell arrangements associated with the implementation of 
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-13, Accountingfor 
Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty (EITF 
04-13) in 2006. This decrease was largely offset by a corresponding 
decrease in Other energy-related commodity purchases expense; 
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A $309 million decrease in nonutility coal sales, primarily from reduced 
sales volumes ($281 million) related to exiting certain sales activities 
and lower prices ($28 million). This decrease was offset by a 
corresponding decrease in Other energy-related commodity purchases 
expense; 

• A $273 million decrease reflecting the absence of business interruption 
insurance revenue received in 2006, associated with the 2005 
hurricanes; 

• A $222 million decrease in gas sales by our gas distribution operations 
reflecting the combined effects of; 

• A $ 185 million decrease reflecting lower gas prices; and 

• A $198 million decrease resulting from the migration of customers lo 
energy choice programs; partially offset by 

• A $ 161 million increase in volumes due to an increase in the tmmber 
of heating degree days, primarily in the first quarter of 2007, and 
changes in customer usage patterns and othef factors. The effect ofthis 
net decrease was more than offset by a corresponding decrease in 
Purchased gas expense; 

• A $77 million decrease in revenue from sales of gas purchased by E&P 
operations to facilitate gas transportation and other contracts primarily 
due lo the implementation of EITF 04-13 and a reduction in quantities 
of purchased gas. This decrease was more thafl offset by a 
corresponding decrease in Purchased gas expense; 

• A $54 million decrease in the sales of emissions allowances held for 
resale. This decrease was largely offset by a corresponding decrease in 
Other energy-related commodity purchases expense; and 

" A $47 miUion decrease in sales of extracted products due to the sale of 
our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business; 

These decreases were partially offset by: 

• A $593 million increase in revenue from our electric utility operations, 
largely resulting from: 

• A $166 miUion increase due to die impact of a comparatively higher 
fuel rate in certain customer jurisdictions; 

• A $162 million increase in sales to retail customers attributable to 
variations in rfttes resulting from changes in sales mix and other 
factors ($95 million) and new customer connections ($67 million) 
primarily in our residential and commercial customer classes; 
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• A $131 million increase in sales to retail customers due to an increase 
in the number of cooling and heating degree days. As compared lo the 
prior year, we experienced a 15% increase in cooling degree days and 
a 10% increase in heating degree days; 

• An $80 million increase in sales to wholesale customers; and 
• A $42 million increase resulting primarily from higher ancillary 

service revenue reflecting higher regulation and operating reserves 
revenue received from PJM. 

• A $511 million increase for merchant generation operations, primarily 
reflecting higher realized prices for nuclear and fossil operations ($363 
million), including higher edacity revenue associated with new 
capacity markets in ISO New England and PJM, and increased volumes 
for fossil operations ($148 milhon); and 

• A $134 million increase in gas sales by retail energy marketing 
activities due to increased customer accounts ($ 188 miUion), partially 
offset by lower contracted sales prices ($54 million). This increase was 
largely offset by a corresponding increase in Purchased gas expense; 

• An $88 million increase in gas transportation and storage revenue 
primarily attributable to our gas distribution operations due to increased 
volumes and higher prices; and 

•• A $68 million increase in electric sales by our retail energy marketing 
operations due to higher volumes ($31 million) and higher sales prices 
($37 million). This increase was more than offset by a corresponding 
increase in Electric juel and energy purchases expense. 

Operating Expenses and Other Items 
Etectric fuel and energy purchases expense increased 8% to $3.5 billion, 

primarily reflecting the combined effects of: 

• A $93 million increase for utility generation operations. The underiying 
fuel costs, including those subject to deferral accounting, increased by 
approximately $501 million due to higher consumption of fossil fuel 
and purchased power resulting from an increase in the number of 
heating and cooUng degree days, higher commodity costs and a change 
in generation mix. This increase was largely offset by a $408 million 
decrease primarily due to the deferral of fiiel expenses that were in 
excess of current period fuel rate recovery; 

• An $86 million increase for our merchant generation operations 
primarily due to higher commodity prices and increased fossil fiiel 
consumption; and 

' A $72 million increase related to our retail energy marketing 
operations, as discussed in Operating Revenue. 

Purchased gas expense decreased 6% to $2.8 billion, primarily due to the 
following factors: 

• A $248 million decrease in costs attributable to gas distribution 
operations, as discussed in Operating Revenue; and 

• A $97 miUion decrease related to E&P operations, as discussed in 
Operating Revenue. 

These decreases were partially offset by: 

• A$124 million increase associated with retail energy marketing 
activities, due io higher volumes (S168 million), partially offset by 
lower prices ($44 miUion), as discussed in Operating Revenue; and 

" A $50 million increase associated with our producer services business, 
due lo the net impact of an increase in volumes and lower prices. 

Other energy-related commodity purchases expense decreased 75% to 
$252 million, primarily attributable lo the following factors, which are 
discussed in Operating Revenue: 

' A $409 million decrease related to E&P operations; 

" A $310 million decrease in the cost of nonutility coal sales; and 

• A $5J million decrease in the cost of sales of emissions allowances held 
for resale. 

Other operations and maintenance expense increased 53% to $4.9 biUion, 
resulting primarily ftora: 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 



' A S541 miUion charge predominantiy due to the discontinuance of 
hedge accounting for certain gas and oil derivatives and subsequent 
changes in the fair value of these derivatives as a result ofthe sale of our 
U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business; 

• A $387 miUion impairment charge related to the sale of Dresden; 

• A $231 miUion charge related to the termination of a long-term power 
sales agreement al State Line; 

• A $171 mUlionchargeprimarily due lo the termination of VPP 
agreements as a result ofthe sale of our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P 
business. We have retained the repurchased fixed-term overriding 
royalty interests formerly associated with these agreements; 

• A $124 million increase in salaries, wages and benefits expense 
primarily resuUing from higher incentive-based compensation ($100 
million) and higher salaries and wages ($83 million) partially offset by 
lower pension and medical benefits expense ($59 miUion); 

• A $96 million increase in outage costs, primarily related to scheduled 
outages for both utility and merchant generation operations; 

• A $54 million increase due to a decrease in gains from the sale of 
emissions allowances held for consumption; 

• A $54 million increase resulting from litigation-related chaises; 

• A $48 million increase in bad debt expense for gas distribution 
operations, primarily related to low income eneigy assistance programs 
and an increase in sales volumes- These expenditures are recovered 
tiirough rates and do noi impact our net income; 

• A $31 million increase primarily due to the inclusion of certain FTR 
proceeds in Electric fuel and energy purchases expense, beginning 
July 1,2007, as a result oflhe reapplication of deferred fuel accounting 
for the Viiginia jurisdiction. These FTR proceeds are used to offset 
congestion costs associated with PJM spot market activity incurred by 
our utility generation operations; and 

• A $23 million increase related to outside services for tree trimming and 
brosh removal and other expenses. 

These charges were partially offset by the absence ofthe following 2006 
items: 

• A $166 miUion charge related to the write-off of certain regulatory 
assets in connection with the planned sale of Peoples and Hope; and 
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• A $60 million charge due to the elimination of hedge accounting for 
certain interest rate swaps associated with our junior subordinated notes 
payable to afftiiated trusts. 

Gain on sale of U.S. non-Appaiachian E&P business reflects a pre-tax gain 
of $3.6 billion resuhing from the completion ofthe sale of our U.S. 
non-Appalachian E&P business. 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense (DD&A) decreased 
12% to $1.4 billion, principally due to decreased oil and gas production 
resulting from the sale of our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business ($297 
million); partially offset by an increase in DD&A rates for our remaining 
Appalachian E&P business ($124 mUlion). 

Other income decreased 4 1 % to $102 million, resulting primarily from 
the recognition of decommissioning trust eamings as a regulatory liability 
due to the reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of our 
utility generation operations, as well as an increase in charitable 
contributions. 

Interest and related charges increased 14% to $1.2 billion, resulting 
principaUy from charges related to the early extinguishment of outstanding 
debt associated with our debt tender offer completed in July 2007, partially 
offset by a reduction in interest expense resulting from the retirement of 
this and other debt. 

income tax expense increased to $1.8 billion, primarily reflecting income 
tax expense on the gain realized from the sale of our U.S. non-Appalachian 
E&P business. 

Extraordinary item reflects a $158 million afrer-tax charge in connection 
with the reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of our 
utility generation operations. 

Loss from discontinued operations decreased to $8 million primarily 
reflecting the absence of a $164 million after-tax charge in 2006 related to 
the Peaker facilities, which were sold in March 2007. 

2006 vs. 2005 
Operating Revenue decreased 8% to $16.3 billion, primarily reflecting: 

• A $1.0 billion decrease primarily attributable to lower volumes 
associated with requirements-based power sales contracts that were 
exited. The effect ofthis decrease was more than offset by a 
corresponding decrease in Electric fuel and energy purchases expense; 

• An $844 million decrease m our producer services business consisting 
of a decrease in both volumes and prices associated with gas 
aggregation, partially offset by favorable price changes related to gas 
marketing activities. The effect of this decrease was partially offset by a 
corresponding decrease in Purchased gas expense; 

• A $367 million decrease from gas distribution operations, primarily 
reflecting a $219 million decrease resuUing from the loss of customers 
to Energy Choice programs and a $270 million decrease associated with 
milder weather and variations in rates resulting from changes in 
customer usage pattems, sales mix and other factors, partiaUy offset by 
a $122 million increase related to the recovery of higher gas prices. The 
effect ofthis net decrease was partially offset by a corresponding 
decrease in Purchased gas expense; 

• A $308 million decrease in nonutility coal sales, primarily resulting 
from decreased volumes. This decrease was largely offset by a 
corresponding decrease in Other energy-related commodity purchases 
expense; 

A $178 million decrease in sales of emissions allowances purchased for 
resale, reflecting lower prices ($115 million) and lower overall sales 
volume ($63 million)- The effect ofthis decrease was largely offset by a 
corresponding decrease in Other energy-related commodity purchases 
expense; and 
A $100 million decrease in revenue from sales of gas purchased by E&P 
Iterations to facilitate gas transportation and other contracts, primarily 
due to the impact of netting sales and purchases of gas under buy/sell 
arrangements associated with the implementation of EITF 04-13. 

These decreases were partially offset by: 

A $313 million increase from our merchant generation business, 
primarily reflecting higher revenue fw nuclear operations as a result of 
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higher realized prices and new business from the addition of Kewaunee 
nuclear power station (Kewaunee), which was acquired in July 2005. 
This in(;rease was partially offset by lower sales volume for fossil plants 
driven largely by comparably milder weather and lower prices; 

• A $235 million increase associated with hedging activities for our 
merchant generation assets. The effecl ofthis increase was offset by a 
corresponding increase in Other operations and maintenance expense\ 

• A $189 million increase in sales of gas and oil production, prunarily due 
to higher volumes ($351 million), partially offset by lower prices ($162 
million); 

• A $184 million increase in gas sales by our retail energy marketing 
operations primarily resulting from increased customer counts ($141 
million) and higher contracted sales prices ($43 million). This increase 
was largely offset by a corresponding increase in Purchased gas 
expense; 

• A $165 million increase in sales of extracted products, primarily due to 
increased prices and a contractual change for a portion of our gas 
production processed by third parties. We now take title to and market 
the extracted products from this gas; 

• An increase of $95 million resulting from higher business interruption 
insurance revenue received in 2006 related to the 2005 hurricanes ($274 
million) versus business interruption insurance revenue received in 2005 
($179 million) related to Hurricane Ivan; and 

• An $88 million increase due to a sale of gas inventory by our Ohio gas 
distribution subsidiary related to the implementation ofthe Standard 
Service Offer (SSO) pilot program as approved by the Public Utilities 
Commission ofOhio. The SSO was initiated to encourage and assist 
other suppliers to enter the gas procurement market. By the end of the 
transition period, we plan to exit the gas merchant function in Ohio and 
have all customers select an alternate gas supplier. The effecl of this 
increase was offset by a comparable increase in Purchased gas expense. 

Operating Expenses and Other Items 

Electric fuel and energy purchases expense decreased 3 1 % to $3.2 

billion, primarily reflecting the combined effects of: 

• A $1.2 biUion decrease associated with lower volumes associated with 
requirements-based power sales contracts, as discussed in iterating 
Revenue; 

• A $162 million decrease for our utility generation operations, 
primarily due to lower commodity prices, including purchased 
power, and decreased consumption of fossil fuel, 

32 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K, February 28, 2008 



Table of Contents 

reflecting the effects of milder weather on demand, partially offset by an 
increase in purchased power volumes; and 

• A $ 104 million decrease from our merchant generation business, due 
primarily to lower commodity prices and decreased consumption of 
fossil fuel, reflecting the effects of milder weather on demand, partially 
offset by higher replacement power costs incurred due lo an increase in 
scheduled outage days. 

Purchased gas expense decreased 25% to $2.9 billion, principally 
resulting from; 

• An $815 million decrease associated with our producer services 
business, due to lower volumes and prices; 

• A $192 million decrease related to gas distribution operations, due to a 
$252 million decrease associated with milder weather and the migration 
of additional customers to Energy Choice and a $222 miUion decrease 
due to lower average gas prices, partially offset by a $282 million 
increase related to the recovery of gas costs; 

• A $ 120 million decrease related to E&P operations, as the result of 
lower volumes and ihe impact of netting sales and purchases of gas 
imder buy/sell arrangements following the implementation of EITF 
04-13, as discussed in Operating Revenue; partially offset by 

• A $139 million increase associated with retail energy marketing 
operations, primarily due to increased volumes. 

Other energy-related commodity purchases expense decreased 27% to 
$1.0 billion, primarily attributable to the foUowing factors, aU of which are 
discussed in Operating Revenue; 

• A $237 million decrease in the cost of coal purchased for resale; and 

• A$I75 million decrease in emissions allowances purchased for resale; 
partially offset by 

• A $47 million increase related to purchases of oil by E&P operations, 
reflecting higher market prices ($63 million), partially offset by lower 
volumes ($16 million) of oil purchases under buy/sell arrangements. 

Ottier operations and maintenance expense increased 7% to $3.2 billion, 
resulting from: 

• A $235 miUion increase primarily related to hedging activities 
associated wilh our generation assets. The effect ofthis increase is 
offset by a corresponding increase in Operating Revenue; 

• A $166 miUion charge from the write-off of certain regulatory assets 
related to the planned sale of Peoples and Hope; 

• A $97 million increase resulting primarily from higher salaries, 
wages and benefits expenses; 

• A $93 million increase attributable to higher production handling, 
transportation and operating costs related to E&P operations; 

• $91 million of impairment charges related to DCI investments; 

• A $79 million increase resulting from Kewaunee, which was acquired in 
July 2005; 

• A $65 million decrease in gains from the sale of emissions allowances 
held for consumption; 

• A $60 million charge to eliminate the application of hedge accounting 
for certain interest rate swaps associated with our junior subordinated 
notes payable to affili£>ted trosts that sold trust preferred securities; 

A $41 million reduction in proceeds related to FTRs granted by PJM to 
our utility generation operations. These FTRs are used to offset 
congestion costs associated with PJM spot market activity, which are 
included in Electric fuel and energy purchases expense; 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 



A $35 million increase in general ion-related outage costs primarily due 
to an increase in the number of scheduled outages; 

• A $29 million increase related to major storm damage and service 
restoration costs associated with our distribution operations, tncluding 
costs resulting from tropical storm Ernesto in September 2006; 

• A $27 miUion charge resulting from the cancellation of a pipeUne 
project; 

These increases were partially offset by: 

• A $96 million decrease in hedge ineffectiveness expense associated with 
our E&P operations, primarily due to a decrease in the fair value 
differential between the delivery location and commodity specifications 
of derivative contracts held by us as compared to our forecasted gas and 
oil sales and the increased use of basis swaps; 

• A $62 million benefit resulting from favorable changes in the fair value 
of certain gas and oil derivatives that were de-designated as hedges 
following the 2005 hurricanes; 

• Abenefit resulting from the absence ofthe following items recognized 
in 2005: 

• A $423 million loss related to die discontinuance of hedge accounting 
for certain gas and oil derivatives resulting from an interruption of gas 
and oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by the 2005 
hurricanes; 

• A $77 million charge resulting from the termination of a long-term 
power purchase agreement; 

• A $59 million loss related to the discontinuance of hedge accounting 
for certain oil derivatives primarily resulting from a delay in reaching 
anticipated production levels in the Gulf of Mexico, and subsequent 
changes in the fair value of those derivatives; and 

• A $51 million charge related to credit exposure associated with the 
bankmptcy of Calpine Corporation; partially offset by 

• A $24 million net benefit resulting from the establishment of certain 
regulatory assets and liabilities in connection with the settiement of a 
North Carolina rale case in the first quarter of 2005. 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased 15% to $ 1.6 
billion, largely due to the impact of increased gas and oil production, as 
well as higher E&P finding and development costs. 

interest expense increased 9% to $ 1.0 billion principally reflecting the 
impact of additional borrowings and higher interest rates on variable rate 
debt. 

Loss from discontinued operations was $150 million as compared to 
income from discontinued operations of $6 miUion in 2005, primarily due 
to a $164 million charge related lo the Peaker faciUties, whose operations 
were reclassified to discontinued operations in December 2006. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 
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Outlook 
Our 2007 results were positively impacted by the gain recognized from the 
sale of our non-Appalachian E&P business. In 2008, we believe our 
remaining businesses will provide growth in earnings per share, including 
the impact of lower expected average shares outstanding. The following 
are factors that will impact our expected 2008 results: 

• A full year of deferred fuel accounting for Virginia jurisdiction fiiel 
costs as compared to six months in 2007; 

" Higher margins for our merchant generation fleet; 

• Increased production and higher realized prices for our Appalachian 
E&P operations and fixed-term overriding royalty interests formerly 
^sociated with VPP agreements, as discussed in Note 13 to our 
Consolidated Financial Statements; 

• Lower interest expense reflecting a M\ year's benefit from our debt 
tender offer completed in July 2007; 

• A decrease in outage costs reflecting a decrease in the number of 
scheduled outage days at certain of our electric utility generating 
facilities; and 

• Continued growth in utility customers. 
The increase in 2008 is expected to he partially offset by: 

• A potential decrease in regulated electric sales, as compared to 2007, 
assuming our utility service territory experiences a remm to normal 
weather in 2008; and 

• An increase in depreciation expense, partiaUy attributable to revised 
depreciation rales for our utility generation assets resulting from a new 
depreciation smdy implemented in the fourth quarter of 2007. 

S E G M E N T RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Segment results include the impact of intersegment revenues and expenses, 
which may result in intersegment profit or loss. Presented below is a 
summary of conlributions by our operating segments to net income: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

(millions, except 
EPS) 
DVP :^\•^^:,;K: ;.̂ \r-:̂  
Dominion Energy 
Dt^irtibh Generation 
Primary operating 

segments 
CcKpwate arkf Other 
Consolidated 

Net 
lncc»ne 

: ; i^:4i5i 
387 

Rn::7S6i 

1,558 
/ : ; ; : ^ i ; i 

$2,539 

2007 
Diluted 

EPS 

$ 0;64 
0.59 

;̂ •=ii*5 

2.38 
1 1̂ 50 
$ 3.88 

Nel 
Income 

i % 4 n , 
347 
537 

1,295 
•^;-v&5} 
$1,380 

2006 
Diluted 

EPS 

$i0.59 
0.49 
0.76 

1.84 
n 0.12 
$ 1.96 

Net 
Income 

$:n378^ 
362 

: r :n4l6n 

1.156 
(123) 

$1,033 

2005 
Diluted 

EPS 

$ 0.55: 
0.53 

; 0.60 

1.68 
(0.18) 

$ 1.50 

DVP 

Presented below are operating statistics related to DVP's operations: 

Year Ended 
December 31. 
Electricity delivered 

(million mwhra)^^) 
Degree days: 

Cooling(2! 
Heating{3> 

2007 

84.7 

1,794 
3,500 

% Change 

6% 

15 
10 

2006 

79.8 

1,557 
3.178 

% Change 

(2)% 

(9) 
(16) 

2005 

81.4 

1,707 
3.784 

Awrage etec^c 
di^tution 
customer 
accounts!*) 2,361 1 2.327 2 2.286 

Average retail 
energy marketing 
customer 
accounts^ 1,551 15 1,354 17 1.162 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K. February 28, 2008 



mwhrs = megawatt hours 

(l)Inctudes eleclricity delivered through the retail choice program for our Virginia 
jurisdictional electric utility customers. 

(2)Cooling degree days (CDDs) are units measuring the extent to which the average daily 
temperature is greater than 65 degrees. CDDs are calculated as the difference between 
the average temperature for each day and 65 degrees. 

(3)Healing degree days (HDDs) are units mea.%uring the extent to which ihe average dally 
temperature is less than 65 degrees. HDDs are calculated as the difference between ttie 
average temperature for each day and 65 degrees. 

(4)Thirteen-month average, in thousands. 

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors impacting DVP's 
net income contribution: 

2007 vs. 2006 

(millions, except EPS) 
Regulated electric sales: 

Weather 
: ^ Customer grcnvth 
Major storm damage and sen/ice restoration^^) 
RelEability and:cHLlt$lde services expenses 
Salaries, wages and benefits expense 
Other--; v . -n i i r r 
Share accretion 
Change in net income contribution 

Increase 

Amount 

$ 22 
11 
9 

(18) 
(15) 

(5) 

\ i ^ - \ i % - 4 : ^̂ ^ 

(Oecreas^) 

EPS 

% 0.03 
0.02 
0.01 

(0.02) 
(0.02) 
(o.ai) 
0.04 

$ 0.05 

(l)Primarily resulting from the absence in 2007 of expenses associated with tn^ical 
storm Ernejfto in September 2006. 
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2006 vs. 2005 

Increase (Decrease) 

Amount EPS 
(miilions, except EPS) 
Retail eherEB/-marketirigbpwationS; ^i i ' ." . $ 57 .: : $ ;0.D9 
Interest Bxpenset^l 10 0.01 
Regulated electric sales: ; 

Weather (34) (0.05) 
Customergrowtti : : : : ; i?v ^^ :0.02 

Major storm damage and service restorattonW (18) (0.03) 
Norfti Carafina rate case settlement : ' ; , ; ; . : : ; ; Hi (6) (̂O.OI) 
Other 11 0.02 
Sharedilution =̂ 'j = n^:^^:' -•- --'V : -^ - ^:: :n:: ' , : : : ' - : — ^ i^l. jQ.oi) 
Change In net income contribution $ 3 3 $ 0.04 

(l)Principally reflects additional intercompany borrowings and higher interest rates on 
those borrowings. 

(2)Reflecls an increase in major storm damage and service restoration expenses Including 
expenses associated with tropical storm Ernesto in September 2006. 

D o m i n i o n Energy 

Presented below are operating statistics related to Dominion Energy's gas 
transmission and distribution operations: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 
Gas;throughput(bcf):; .; 

Gas sales 
(distribution) 

: Gastransportatiori • 
;;(distritHitk)n):;;;r : 
Gas transportation 

(transmission) 
Healing:degree days 
Average gas distribution 

customer accounts*^': 
' Gas sales--

Gas transportation 

2007 

50 

21Qi 

719 
5,888 

410 
800 

% Change 

(11) 

'\^^^:^ 9"-

11 
, \ : ;nn; i2 

(15} 
9 

2006 

56 

M 9 3 

650 
5,274 

: 485 
732 

% Change 

(33) 

..̂ ...̂ , 2 

(18) 
(13) 

; (25) 
27 

2005 

84 

190 

794 
6.037 

643 
576 

bcf= billion cubic feet 

(l)Thirteen-monlh average, in thousand.̂ -

Presented below are operating statistics related to Dominion Energy's 
Appalachian E&P operations: 

Year Ended December 31, 
Liquids: production^i) (bcfe) ; ::: 
Average realized prices witfiout 

hedging results: 
; L(€juids(perrritc^);.v : 
Average realized prices witti 

hedging results: 
j,U*?Uids(perrnGfe) - ;;; ii^ 
DD&A (per mcfe) 
Average production, j : 
;i(Hfting)cbsf(permcfe)(2) r 

2007 
57.6 

$6.55; 

/:6,S5 = : 
1.68 

i i .28; 

% 
Chanqe 

. - \ 4 7 -

(8) 

:'-"'"r!;33i. 
31 

:-f:.:-',n8;. 

2006 
: 39.1 

$7.11; 

; 4:93 
128 

;ii1;19 

% 
Change 

2 

(14) 

(2) 
17 

'~- ' : -1 ^ 

2005 
38.4 

$8.31 

i 5.05 
1.09 

1.18 

bcfe = billion cubic feet equivalent 
mcfe = thousand cubic feet equivalent 

(l)lncludes natural gas. natural gas liquids and oil. 

(2)The inclusion of volumes associated with reacquired overriding royally Interests 
arising from the VPP's terminated in 2007 would have resulted in lifting costs of $1.00 
in 2007. 

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors impacting 
Dominion Energy's net income contribution: 

2007 vs. 2006 

Increase (Decrease) 

Amount EPS 
(millions, except EPS) 
Gasari^iOtl--^prt^h>ctioH i I! IM H:; I v ] : ;i i :•! H i i i i "i^MM-;! i i = VX66: n r; r; L j i l i ; 0.10'i 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K. February 28. 2008 



Gas and oil—prices 
Regulated gas sales—weather 
Producer services*^* 
DD8A—gas and oil 
Salaries, wages and benefits expense 
Gas transmission operations^^^ 
Other 
Share accretion 

33 
16 

(33) 
(27) 

(7) 
(8) 
(2) 

0.05 
0.02 

(0.Q5) 
(0.04) 
(0.01) 
(cell) 

— 
0.04 

Change in net income conlributFon $ 40 $ 0.10 

(l)Primarily related to lower margins reflecting reduced market volatility, as 
compared to the post-2005 hurricane market conditions in 2006. 

(2)Gas transmission operations decreased primarily due to a decline in market cenler 
services, partially offset by lower system fiiel costs and higher margins on extracted 
products. 

2006 vs. 2005 

Increase (Decrease) 

Amount EPS 
(miliions, except EPS) 
kiterelst;expense(^'; I i :•! ii i: :1! H! I "̂ ""'?: 
Gas and oil—prices 
Regulated gassalesT-fw^her;.; = 
Gas transmission rate reduction'^' 
DD&A-gaSartflioilUi;^S!U' ]hx\: 
Gas transmission operationst'̂ J 
pfoducw servljCesf̂ J. i \ \ \ : i : 0 :ii\li 
Gas and oil—produaion 
Others; :^\i::::::ililyr\r3z:iil)\:ii 
Share dilution 

$ (18) 
(17) 
(16); 
(13) 

31 
.iin23; 

13 
i i:(i3) 

$(o:o0) 
(O.CC) 
(0.012) 
(0.02) 
(0.01) 
0.04 
o.op 
o.oe 

;(o.op) 
(0.01) 

$ (Q.Q^) change in net inoame contribution $ (15) 

(l)Primarily reflects additional intercompany borrowings and higher interest rates 
on those borrowings. 

(2)Due to lower natural gas transportation and storage revenue as a result of a 2005 rale 
settlement 

(3}Primarily due to higher margins on extracted products and market center service 
opportunities. 

(4)IIigher income resulting from the impact of favorable price changes related to price 
risk management and gas marketing aclivities associated with certain transportation 
and storage contracts. 

Included below are the volumes and weighted-average prices associated 
with hedges in place for our Appalachian E&P operations and fixed-term 
overriding royalty interests formerly associated with the VPP agreements 
as of December 31, 2007, by applicable time period. As of December 31, 
2007, we have not hedged any of our anticipated production past 2009. 

Natural G^s 

Year 

Hedged 
production 

(bcf) 

Average 
hedge price 

<£SL 
2008 
2009 

51.2 
14.6 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K, Febojary 28, 2008 
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D o m i n i o n Genera t ion 

Presented below are operating statistics related to Dominion Generation's 
operations: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 
Electricity supplied ; 
; (miliion mwhrs):: • 

Utility 
Merchant ; i i i i i i 

Degree days 
(electric utility 
service area): 

. C ^ l i r ^ i i i : hi 
Heating 

2007 

84.7 
46.0:; 

iii 1,794 ; 
3,500 

% Cha nqe 

(>7D 

i ; i i r\ 

:15iS 
10 

2006 

79.7 
.; 41.5 

1,557 
3,178 

% Change 

(2)% 
y i y ^ i i y ' r - / 

, - {9 ) ; . i ; 
(16) 

2005 

81.4 
41:2 

i 1.707 
3,784 

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key fectors impacting 
Dominion Generation's net income contribution: 

2007 vs. 2006 

Increase (Decrease) 

Amount EPS 
(millions, except EPS) 
Merdiaht generation margin*''' ; i i ^ 
Unrecovered Virginia fuel expenses*^' 
Regulated elet^ric sales::: :;; 

Weather 
: Customs gixiWth: 
Ancillary service revenue 
CXilage-GQsts^ *̂ iv-.'-
Salaries, wages and benefits expense 
Sales of emtssicHis ailow^nces 
Depreciation and amortizationW 
Interest experise 
Olher 
Share accrietion 

211 y i : i 
120 

37 
20:^:1:1-
27 

(61) : 
(51) 
(34). ;, 
(32) 
: (9) i ; 

(9) 

$ 0.30 
0.17 

0.05 
i 0.03; 

0.04 
(0.09) 
(0.07) 

; (0.05) 
(0.05) 
(0.01) 
(0.01) 
0.08 

Change in net income contribution $ 219 $ 0.39 

(I)Primarily reflects higher realized prices for our New England nuclear and fossil 
generating assets and higher volumes and capacity revenue for olher fossil generation 
operations. Higher prices include the implementation of new capacity markets in ISO 
New England and PJM. 

(2)Primarily reflects the reapplication of deferred fuel accounting effective July I. 2007 
for the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation operations: this benefit is partially 
offset by increased consumption offossiljuel and higher purchased power co-vis during 
the first six monihs of 2007. 

(3)Primarily reflects higher scheduled outage costs for both utility and merchant 
generation operations. 

(4)Principally attributable to increased expense from capital additions and revised 
depreciation rates for our utility generation a'lsets resulting from a new depreciation 
study implemented during the fourth quarter of 2007. 

2006 vs. 2005 

(millions, except EPS) 
Merchantigenerationrnargin^V' :- • t : nJ: 
Unrecovered Virginia fuel expenses 
l^e^lated elecftic sales: X - i i i i i : : 

Customer growth 
imea^va r i ' ' • • : \ \ : : iv: i iv: : , : : : ••• 'v^: . 

Sales of emissions aliowances 
Eriergy supply maiiginp! i i . i i i i, : i :::: ^ 
Outage costs'^) 
Salaries; wage$and beriefrts expensed::; : ° 
2005 Norih Carolina rate case settlement 
othef'.:,:;nn;n;:r-':/rr;nHr:;n^':-::Mnn;: r:-:ini 
Share dilution 
Chang© in net incbrne contributioni r:.; : : :; 

Increase 

Amount 

. iT. i i !L: iS215;- i- ; 
40 

24 
.;:/^(64)=;.;/ 

(40) 
• - i : - . i i i ( 2 7 y i x 
, , , , „ . (20) 

i : : i ' - - i i ; ; ( l 3 r ^ - : = 
(10) 

. i i i i ' i i i i i i : x i e : / 'S 
— 

i i y . : -y /$ I2i--:^ii; 

(Decrease) 

EPS 

: $ 0.32: 
0.06 

0.04 
: : L : ( 0 . 0 9 ) 

(0.06) 

\i r m m 
(0.03) 

; : : : (0.021 
(0.01) 

.inaoi 
(0.03) 

i $ 0.16;; 

(I)Primarily reflects higher realized prices. 

(2)Primarily reflects a reduced benefit from FTRs in excess of congestion costs al our 
utility operations. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K, February 28, 2008 



(3)Prhnarily due to cm incrta.se in the durmion of scheduled outage days for both utility 
and merchant generation operations. 

Corporate and Other 
Presented below are the Corporate and Other segment's afler-tax results: 

Year Ended December 31, 
(millions, except EPS amounts) 
Specific items attributable to operating 

segments < 
Discontinued operations 
Net benefit from sate of U.S. 
; non-Appalachian E&P businesses 
U.S. non-Appalachian E&P divested 

operations 
Peoples and Hope - •; H ; • Ui-i iU- :i i: n;;;; n' ' ' 
Other corporate operations 
Total net benefit (expense) - r i i i: H n 
Earnings per share impact 

2007 

$ (618) 
(8) 

1,426 

252 
/;i^:-^Hn49,, i 

(120) 
y m ^ •• 

$ 1.50 

2006 

$(101 
(150) 

(5) 

625 
: (72),,: 

(303) 
85 

$0.12 

20d5 

$(ii) 
6 

• 1 ' ' 

. :4-
1G3 
43 

(202) 
(1^3) 

$(0.-i8) 

SPECIFIC ITEMS ATTRIBUTABLE To OPERATING SEGMENTS 

Corporaie and Other includes specific items attributable lo our primary 
operating segments thai are not included in profit measures evaluated by 
executive management in assessing the segments^ performance or 
allocating resources among the segments. See Note 29 to our Consolidated 
Financial Statements for discussion of these items. 

DiSCOiNTINUED OPERATIONS 

The decrease in the loss from the discontinued operations for 2007 as 
compared to 2006, as well as the increase in the loss for 2006 as compared 
to 2005, reflects a $164 million after-tax charge in 2006 associated with the 
impairment ofthe Peaker facilities that were sold in 2007. 

NET BENEFIT FROM SALE OF U.S. NON-APPALACHIAN E&P 
BUSINESS 

The nel benefit fi-om the sale of our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business 
reflects the $2.1 billion after-tax gain recognized in 2007 on the sale, 
partially offset by charges related to the divestitures as 
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well as charges associated with the early retirement of debt with proceeds 
from the sale. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for 
discussion of these items. 

U.S. NON-APPALACHIAN E&P DIVESTED OpERATiONs 

The lower conh-ibufion in 2007 as compared to 2006 is due primarily to a 
partial year of gas and oil production in 2007 as compared to 2006 and the 
absence of business interruption insurance revenue received in 2006, 
associated with the 2005 hurricanes. These decreases were partially offset 
by higher realized gas and oil prices. 

The higher contribution in 2006 as compared to 2005 primarily reflects 
the absence of a $357 million after-tax loss in 2005 related to the 
discontinuance of hedge accounting in August and September 2005 for 
certain gas and oil derivatives resulting from an interruption in gas and oil 
production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by 2005 hurricanes and 
subsequent changes in the fair value of those derivatives during the third 
quarter. 

PEOPLES AND HOPE 

The net loss in 2006 primarily reflects a $104 million after-tax charge 
resulting from the wrile-off of certain regulatory assets related to the 
planned sale of Peoples and Hope. 

OTHER CORPORATE OPERATIONS 

The net expenses associated with other corporate operations for 2007 
decreased by $183 million as compared to 2006, primarily due to a 
reduction in interest expense following completion ofthe debt tender offer 
in July 2007, die absence of a charge in 2006 to eliminate the application 
of hedge accounting for certain interest rate swaps as described below and 
a reduction in charges associated with the impairment of DCI investments. 
In addhion, income tax benefits were lower in 2006, resulting primarily 
from tfie recognition of deferred tax liabilities in connection witii the 
planned sale of Peoples and Hope. 

The net expenses associated with other corporate operations for 2006 
increased by $101 million as compared to 2005, primarily reflecting a $37 
million after-lax charge to eliminate the application of hedge accounting 
for certain interest rate swaps associated with our junior subordinated notes 
payable to affiliated trusts and the $85 million impairment of a DCI 
inveshnent in 2006. The recognition of deferred tax liabilities in 2006 was 
oflfeet by a reduction in valuation allowances to reflect the expected 
utilization of federal and slate loss carryforwards to offeet income thai was 
expected to be generated from the sale of Peoples and Hope. 

SELECTED INFORMATION—ENERGY TRADING 

ACTIVITIES 

We engage in eneigy trading, marketing and hedging activities to 
complement our integrated energy businesses and facilitate our risk 
management activities. As part of these operations, we enter into contracts 
for purchases and sales of energy-related commodities, including natm^al 
gas, electricity, oil and coal. Settlements of contracts may require physical 
delivery oflhe underlying 

commodity or cash settlement. We also enter into contracts with the 
objective of benefiting from changes in prices. For example, after entering 
into a contract to purchase a commodity, we typically enter into a sales 
contract, or a combination of sales contracts, with quantities and delivery 
or settlement terms that are identical or very similar lo those ofthe 
purchase contract. When the purchase and sales contracts are settled either 
by physical delivery ofthe underiying commodity or by net cash 
settlement, we may receive a net cash margin (a realized gain), or may pay 
a net cash margin (a realized loss). We continually monitor our contract 
positions, considering location and timing of delivery or settlement for 
each energy commodity in relation to market price activity. 

A summary ofthe changes in die unrealized gains and losses recognized 
for our energy-related derivative instruments held for trading pu^oscs 
during 2007 follows: 

Amount 
(millions) 
Net unrealized gained December 31.2006 $ 42 
Contracts realized or othenwise settled during the period (43) 
Net unrealized gain at inception of contracts initiated during the 

period — 
Change in unrealized gains and losses 53 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K, February 28. 2008 



Changes in unrealized gains and losses attributable to changes 
in valuation techniques — 

Net unrealized gain at December 31, 2007 $ 52 

The balance of net unrealized gains and losses recognized for our 
energy-related derivative instruments held for trading purposes at 
December 31,2007, is summarized in the following table based on the 
approach used to determine fair value: 

Source of Fair Value 
(rnillions) 
Actlyely-quoledn). •;;; 
Other extemal 

sources*^) 
f b i a l - y y ^ - : . . . y U i . : U i 

Less 
thanl 

year 

:r:$39i 

1 
^ - i i m ^ 

Maturity Based on 

1-2 
years 

^mmii 

y - ^ t n m i 

2-3 
years 

nSiiHfi' 

(2) 
n $ n - 4 i 

Contract Settlement or Delivery 
Date{s) 

3-5 In excess 
years of 5 vears Total 

; iS i i ^ ^ , / , . $ : ' • " : -— ^̂  «^51 

1 1 1 
y ^ : \ ^ v : i % . y i ^ , ^ . r y $ ~ ' $ 2 

(l)Exchange-traded and over-the-counter contracts. 

(2)yalues based on prices from over-the-counter broker activity and industry services 
and, where applicable, conventional option pricing models. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

We depend on both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide 
working capital and to fund capital requirements. Short-term cash 
requirements not met by cash provided by operations are generally satisfied 
with proceeds from short-term borrowings. Long-term cash needs are met 
through issuances of debt and/or equity securities. 

At December 31,2007, we had $3.0 billion of unused capacity under oar 
credit faciUties. See additional discussion under Credit FaciUties and 
Short-Term Debt. 
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A summary of our cash flows is presented below: 

(millions) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 
i • beginning of year • 

Cash flows provided by (used in): 
Operating activrlies 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) In cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at end 
: ofyear<i>,,,,:r. " l^^m^'l 

2007 

, $ 142, 

(246); 
10,192 

n n r9.801) 

145 

i^;ii$ ' '287^':' 

2006 

$ 146 ; 

4,005 
(3,494) 

(515) 

(4) 

$ l42 > 

2005 

$ 361 

2,623 
(3,360) 

522 

(215) 

;n$ 1146 

(1)2007 and 2006 amounts include $4 milUon of cash classified as held for sale in our 
ConsoUdated Balance Sheets. 

Operating Cash Flows 
In 2007, net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $4.3 billion 
as compared to 2006. The decrease primarily reflects income taxes paid on 
the gain from the sale of a majority of our E&P business, as well as other 
cash costs associated wilh the sale, such as gas and oil derivative 
settlement costs. In addition, cash flow was lower in 2007 as it included 
only a partial year of cash flow from the E&P operations sold. While taxes 
and other costs ofthe sale are reflected in cash flow from operations, the 
gross proceeds from the sale are reported in cash fiow from investing 
activities. 

Our operations are subject to risks and uncertainties that may negatively 
impact the timing or amounts of operating cash flows which are discussed 
in Item IA. Risk Factors. 

CREUIT RISK 

Our exposure to potential concentrations of credit risk results primarily 
from our energy marketing and price risk management activities. Presented 
below is a summary of our credit exposure as of December 31,2007 for 
these activities. Our gross credit exposure for each counterparty is 
calculated as outstanding receivables plus any unrealized on or off-balance 
sheet exposure, taking into account contracmal netting rights. 

(millions) 
Investment grade(^): J 
Non-investment grade'^^ 
No external ratings;; ; :-

Intemally rated—investment 
grade'^J 

:;:Intemajlyr^ed—non^H^veslment; ,; 

Total 

Gross 
Credit 

Exposure 

\ ; ; , $ r ""596:,-
13 

173 

^ -26^--
$ SOS 

Credit 
Collateral 

' : -S i ' - '98 i 

— 

5 

' : ; = i • : :• — : \ \ 

$ 103 

Net 
Credit 

Exposure 

$ 498 
13 

168 
' ' • ] : • • • - ' . ' ' • 

' = -26 
$ 705 

(l)Designations as investment grade are based upon minimum credit ratings assigned by 
Moody s In vestors Service (Moody s) and Standard & Poor s Ratings Services, a 
division ofthe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (Standard i£ Poor's). The five largest 
counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented approximately 32% of 
the total net credit exposure. 

(2)Thefive largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented 
approximately 2% ofthe total net credit exposure. 

(SjTheflve largest counterparty exposure.<t, combined, for this category represented 
approximately 16% ofthe total net credit exposure. 

(4)Thefive largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented 
approximaiely 1% ofthe total net credit exposure. 

Investing Cash Flows 
In 2007, net cash provided by investing activities was $10.2 billion as 
compared lo net cash used in investing aclivities of $3.5 billion in 2006. 
This change primarily reflects proceeds received in 2007 fi'om the sale of a 
majority of our E&P business. 

Financing Cash Flows and Uquidity 
We rely on banks and capital markets as significant sources of funding for 
capital requirements not satisfied by cash provided by the companies' 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K, February 28, 2008 



operations. As discussed in Credit Ratings, our abihty to borrow funds or 
issue securities and the retum demanded by investors are affected by the 
issuing company's credit ratings. In addition, the raising of extemal capital 
is subject to certain regulatory approvals, including registration with the 
SEC and, in the case of Virginia Electric and Power Company (Virginia 
Power), approval by the Virginia State Corporation Commission (Viiginia 
Commission). 

In December 2005, the SEC adopted the rules that currently govem the 
registration, communications and offering processes under the Securities 
Act of 1933. The rules provide for a streamhned shelf registration process 
to provide registrants with timely access to capital. Under these rules, 
Dominion and Virginia Power meet the definition of a well-known 
seasoned issuer. This allows the companies to use an automatic shelf 
registration statement to register any offering of securities, other than those 
for business combination transactions. 

In 2007, net cash used in financing activities increased by $9.3 billion as 
compared to 2006. The increase primarily reflects the use of proceeds from 
the sale of a majority of our E&P business to repurchase our common stock 
and repay debt. 

CREDIT FACILITIES AND SHORT-TERM DEBT 

As a result ofthe merger of CNG with Dominion in June 2007, all of 
CNG's former credit facilities have been assumed by Dominion. We use 
short-term debt, primarily commercial paper, to fund working capital 
requirements, as a bridge to long-term debt financing and as bridge 
financing for acquisitions, if applicable. The levels of borrowing may vary 
significantly during the course ofthe year, depending upon the liming and 
amount of cash requirements not satisfied by cash from operations. In 
addition, we utilize cash and letters of credit to fund collateral requirements 
under our commodities hedging program. Collateral requirements are 
impacted by commodity prices, hedging levels, our credit quality and the 
credit quality of our counterparties. Short-term financing is supported by a 
$3.0 billion five-year joint revolving credit facility with Virginia Power 
dated February 2006 that terminates in February 2011, and can also be 
used to support up to $1.5 billion of letters of credit. Short-terra financing 
al Dominion is also supported by an amended and restated $1.7 billion 
five-year revolving credit facility and a $200 million five-year bilateral 
credit facility, dated February 2006 and December 2005, respectively, and 
are scheduled to terminate in August and December 2010, respectively. At 
December 31,2007, we had committed lines of credit totaling $4.9 billion. 
These lines of credit support commercial paper borrowings, bank loans and 
letter of credit issuances. Our financial policy precludes issuing 
commercial paper in excess of our supporting lines of credit. At 
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December 31, 2007, we had the following commercial paper, bank loans 
and letters of credit outstanding, as well as capacity available under credit 
facUities: 

(millions) 
Five-year joint 
i'. irevolving 
i \ icredit facility 
Five-year 

Dominion 
credit facility 

Five-year 
Domkiion 
bilateral 
facility 

Outstanding 
Facility Commercial 

Umit Paper 
Outstanding 
Bank Loans 

Outstanding Facility 
Letters of Capaci^ 

Credit Available 

$3,000 $ 

1,700 

757 $ — $ ii ii ; 229 $ 2,014 

— 1,000 1 699 

200 
Totals $4.900 $ 

200 
757 $ 1,000 $ 230 $ 2.913 

In addition to the facilities above, we also entered into a $100 million 
bilateral credit facility in August 2004 that terminates in August 2009. At 
December 31,2007, there were no letters of credit outstanding under this 
facility. 

In connection with our commodity hedging activities, we are required to 
provide collateral to counterparties under some circumstances. Under 
certain collateral arrangements, we may satisfy these requirements by 
electing to either deposit cash, post letters of credit or, in some cases, 
utilize other forms of security. From time to time, we vary the form of 
collateral provided to counterparties after weighing the costs and benefits 
of various factors associated with the different forms of collateral. These 
factors include short-term borrowing and short-term investment rates, the 
spread over these shori-term rates at which we can issue commercial paper, 
balance sheet impacts, the costs and fees of altemative collateral postings 
with these and other counterparties and overall liquidity management 
objectives. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

During 2007 we issued the following long-term debt: 

Type 

S«i(or notes r; 
Senior notes 

Seniornotesii';;ii 
Senior notes 
S^Woi-notesin?;!: ;iii r 
Senior revolving notes 
TplaMong-tefrndeW " 
i r is9jed^:^--™-'"H;r: 

Principal 
(millions) 

m 

% 

350 

600 
eoon 
600 
450: 

75 

2,675 

Rata 

i i 6.00% 

6.00% 
i > 5,95% 

5.10% 
,6.35% 

Variable 

Maturity 

2017 

2037 
2017 
2012 
2037 
2017 

Issuing 
Companv 

^ Omninion 
Virginia 

Power 
S^rginia: Power 
Virginia Power 
^nr^lhla Power 

DCI 

In January 2008, Virginia Power borrowed $30 million in connection 
with the Economic Development Authority of the City of Chesapeake 
Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 A, which mamre 
in 2032 and bear a coupon rate of 3.6%. The proceeds were used to refund 
the principal amount ofthe Industrial Development Authority ofthe City 
of Chesapeake Money Market Municipals Pollution Control Revenue, 
Series 1985 that would otherwise have matured in February 2008. 

In November 2007, Virginia Power borrowed $14 million in connection 
with the Economic Development Authority ofthe County of Chesterfield's 
issuance of its Solid Waste and Sewage Disposal Revenue Bonds, Series 
2007 A, which mamre in 2031 

and bear a coupon rate of 5.60%. The bonds were issued pursuant to a tmsl 
agreement whereby ftinds are withdrawn from the trust as improvements 
are made at our Chesterfield Power Station located in Chester, Virginia. 
We have withdrawn less than $ 1 million from the tmst as of December 31, 
2007. 

DCI consolidates a collateralized debt obligation (CIX)) entity in 
accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), 
ConsoUdation of Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R). In August 2007, die 
CDO entity issued an additional $75 milUon of senior revolving notes that 
mamre in January 2017 and are nonrecourse to us. At December 31,2007, 
outstanding borrowings under this credit facility totaled $75 miUion. 

During 2007, we repaid $5.5 biUion of long-term debt and notes payable, 
which includes the completion of a debt tender offer repurchasmg $2.5 
billion of our debt securities in July 2007. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 



Included in the debt repayments above is the redemption of all 8 million 
units ofthe $200 million 7.8% Dominion CNG Capital Trust I debentures 
due October 31, 2041. These securities were redeemed at a price of $25 per 
preferred security plus accmed and unpaid distributions. Also included is 
the redemption of approximately 240 tiiousand units ofthe S250 million 
8.4% Dominion Capital Trust III debentures due January 15,2031. These 
securities were redeemed at a price of $ 1,209 per preferred security plus 
accmed and unpaid distributions. 

ISSUANCE OF COMMON STOCK 

In 2007, we received cash proceeds of $226 million for 7.6 million shares 
issued in connection with the exercise of employee stock options. During 
2007, we purchased our common stock on t ^ open market with the 
proceeds received through Dominion Direct (a dividend reinvestment and 
open enrollment direct stock purchase plan) and employee savings plans, 
rather than having additional new common shares issued. In January 2008, 
we began issuing addilional new common shares to be used for these 
programs. In 2008, we expect to receive proceeds from these programs of 
between $200 miUion to $250 million. 

REPURCHASES OF COMMON STOCK 

In 2007, we repurchased 129.0 million shares of common slock for 
approximately $5.8 billion. This amount includes the completion of our 
equity lender offer in August 2007, in which we purchased approximately 
115.5 millionsharesat apriceof $45.50per share for a total cost of 
approximately $5.3 billion, excluding fees and expenses related to the 
lender. 

In December 2006, we entered into a prepaid accelerated share 
repurchase agreement (ASR) with a financial instimtion as the 
counterparty. Under the ASR, we would receive between 11.2 million and 
13.0 million shares in exchange for the prepayment. At the time of 
execution of the ASR, we made a prepayment of $500 miUion and the 
counterparty initially deUvered approximately 10.1 million shares to us. 
The final number of shares to be delivered to the Company was determined 
by the volume weighted-average price of our common stock over the 
period commencing on December 12, 2006 and terminating on May 16, 
2007. In May 2007, the counterparty delivered approximately 1.6 million 
additional shares to us in completion of the ASR. 
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At December 31, 2007, the remaining stock repurchase authorization 
provided by our Board of Directors is the lesser of 54 million shares or 
$2.7 billion of our outstanding common stock. 

Credi t Rat ings 
Credit ratings are intended to provide banks and capital market participants 
with a framework for comparing the credit quality of securities and are not 
a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. We believe that the 
current credit ratings of Dominion and Virginia Power (the Dominion 
Companies) provide sufficient access lo the capital markets. However, 
dismptions in the banking and capital markets not specifically related to us 
may affect the Dominion Companies' ability to access these funding 
sources or cause an increase in the retum required by investors. 

Both quantitative (fmancial strength) and qualitative (business or 
operating characteristics) factors are considered by the credit rating 
agencies in establishing an individual company's credit rating. Credit 
ratings should be evaluated independently and are subject to revision or 
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization. The credit 
ratings for the Dominion Companies are most affected by each company's 
fmancial profile, mix of regulated and nonregulated businesses and 
respective cash flows, changes in methodologies used by the rating 
agencies and "event risk," if applicable, such as major acquisitions or 
dispositions. 

Credit ratings for the Dominion Companies as of February 1,2008 
follow: 

Dominion Resources; Inc. 
Senior unsecured debt securities 

:: Junior subordinated debt securities M L 
Enhanced junior subordinated notes 

i: Commercial paper i i 

Filch 

8BB+ 
^;;:ipB88;; 

BBB 
^,^^nJF2 i 

Moody's 

Baa2 
Baas 
Baa3 

- • P - 2 : •• 

Standard 
& Poor's 

A-
BBB 
BBB 

• : A - 2 

Virginia Power 
::l^>rtgagetonds;":"^i,ii,niiii:;.i:,r.,,".;:;;; i;:;;ni:,A;i:: ASj^ i i i , ; : A 

Senior unsecured (Including tax-exempt) 
debt securities BBB+ Baa1 A-

i Ultmlor subordinated debt securities ii i i i ^ B B i i Baa2: : : ; BBB 
Preferred stocit BBB Baa3 BBB 

-''Gdmirierciafpaper'""nn,,,, :i : : i i i i- '• ^r-iii:F2i^^i " : :p-2^^ : : : ; : - ^ : - A - 2 

As of February I, 2008, Fitch Ratings Ltd. (Fitch), Moody's and 
Standard & Poor's maintain a stable outlook for their ratings ofthe 
Dominion Companies. 

As a result ofthe merger of CNG with Dominion in June 2007, all of 
CNG's former rights and obligations under its indentures have been 
assumed by Dominion. Subsequent to the merger, Moody's lowered its 
rating of CNG Senior Unsecured debt from Baal to Baa2 to equal their 
rating of Dominion's Senior Unsecured debt. 

In December 2007, Standard & Poor's raised its corporate credit rating 
on the Dominion Companies to ' A-' from 'BBB' to reflect the companies' 
lower risk profile. Standard & Poor's also affirmed the 'A-2' commercial 
paper rating for both companies. 

Generally, a downgrade in m\ individual company's credit rating would 
not restrict its ability to raise short-term and long-term financing as long as 
its credit rating remains "invesftnent grade," but it would increase the cost 
of borrowing. We work 

closely with Fitch, Moody's and Standard & Poor's with the objective of 
maintaining our current credit ratings. In order to maintain our current 
ratings, we may find it necessary to modify our business plans and such 
changes may adversely affect our growth and eamings per share. 

Debt Covenan ts 
As part of borrowing funds and issumg debt (both short-term and 
long-term) or preferred securities, the Dominion Companies must enter 
into enabling agreements. These agreements contain covenants that, in the 
event of default, could resuh in the acceleration of principal and interest 
payments; restrictions on distributions related lo our capital stock, 
including dividends, redemptions, repurchases, liquidation payments or 
guarantee payments; and in some cases, the termination of credit 
commitments unless a waiver of such requirements is agreed to by tiie 
lenders/security holders. These provisions are customary, with each 
agreement specifying which covenants apply. These provisions are not 
necessarily unique to the Dominion Companies. 
Some ofthe typical covenants include: 
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• The timely payment of principal and interest; 

• Information requirements, including submitting financial reports filed 
with the SEC to lenders; 

•• Performance obligations, audits/inspections, continuation ofthe basic 
nature of business, restrictions on certain matters related to merger or 
consolidation, restrictions on disposition of all or substantially all of our 
assets; 

» Compliance with collateral minimums or requirements related to 
mortgage bonds; and 

• Limitations on liens. 
We are required lo pay minimal annual commitment fees to maintain our 

credit facilities. In addition, our credit agreements contain various terms 
and conditions that could affect our ability to borrow under these facilities. 
They include maximum debt to total capital ratios and cross-defeult 
provisions. 

As of December 31,2007, the calculated total debt lo total capital ratio 
for our companies, pursuant to the terms ofthe agreements, was as follows: 

Maximum Actual 
Company Ratio Ratidi) 
DomiriiohResources.lnc.-i i i i r i i i i i / : i - i • ' : ' ' . . i - ' " ' - 65% ' , 5?% 
Virginia Power ^ 65% 47% 

(l)Indebtedness as defined by the bank agreements excludes junior subordinated notes 
payable reflected av long-term debt in our Consolidated Balance Sheeis. 

These provisions apply separately to the Dominion Companies. If any 
one ofthe Dominion (Companies or any of that specific company's material 
subsidiaries fail to make payment on various debt obligations in excess of 
$35 million, the lenders could require that respective company lo 
accelerate its repayment of any outstanding borrowings under the credit 
facility and the lenders could terminate their commitment to lend fijnds to 
that company. Accordingly, any default by Dominion will not affect the 
lender's commitment to Virginia Power. However, any default by Viiginia 
Power would affect the lenders' commitment to Dominion under the joint 
credit agreement. 

In June 2006 and September 2006, we executed Replacement Capital 
Covenants (RCCs) in connection with our offering of 
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$300 million of 2006 Series A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes due 
2066 (Jime hybrids) and $5{X) million of 2006 Series B Enhanced Junior 
Subordinated Notes due 2066 (September hybrids), respectively. Under the 
terms ofthe RCCs, we agree not to redeem or repurchase aU or part ofthe 
June or September hybrids prior lo June 30 or September 30,2036, 
respectively, unless we issue qualifying securities to non-affiliates in a 
replacement offering in the 180 days prior to the redemption or repurchase 
date. The proceeds we receive from the replacement offering, adjusted by a 
predetermined factor, must exceed the redemption or repurchase price. 
Qualifying securities include common stock, preferred stock and other 
securities that generally rank equal to or junior to the hybrids and include 
disfribulion deferral and long-dated mamrity features similar to the hybrids. 
For purposes ofthe RCCs, non-affiliates include individuals enrolled in our 
dividend reinvestment plan, direct stock purchase plan and employee 
benefit plans. 

We initially designated the 8.4% Capital Securities of Dominion 
Resources Capital Trust III as covered debt for purposes ofthe RCCs. 
Under the terms of the RCCs, we are required under certain circumstances 
to change the series of our debt designated as covered debt under the 
RCCs. Due to our acquisition of most oflhe designated securities in our 
debt tender offer in July 2007, they ceased to be eligible as covered debt 
for the RCCs. In the third quarter of 2007, we designated the September 
hybrids as covered debt under the June hybrids' RCC and designated the 
June hybrids as covered debt under the September hybrids' RCC. 

We monitor the covenauiits on a regular basis in order to ensure that 
events of defauh will not occur. As of December 31,2007, there have been 
no events of default under our debt covenants. Other than the change in 
covered debt for the RCCs discussed above, as of December 31, 2007, 
there have been no changes lo our debt covenants. 

Dividend Restr ic t ions 

The Virginia Commission may prohibit any public service company, 
including Virginia Power, from declaring or paying a dividend to an 
affiliate, if foimd to be detrimental to the public interest. At December 31, 
2007, the Virginia Commission had not restricted the payment of dividends 
by Virginia Power. 

Certain agreements associated with our credh faciUties contain 
restrictions on the ratio of our debt to total capitalization. These limitations 
did not restrict our ability to pay dividends or receive dividends from our 
subsidiaries at December 31, 2007. 

See Note 19 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a description 
of potential restrictions on dividend payments by us and certain of our 
subsidiaries in connection with the deferral of disUnbution payments on 
trust preferred securities or deferral of interest payments on enhanced 
junior subordinated notes. 

Future Cash Payments for Contractual Obligations and Planned 
Capital Expenditures 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
We are party to numerous contracts and arrangements obligating us to 
make cash payments in fiiture years. These contracts include financing 
arrangements such as debt agreements and leases, as well as contracts for 
the purchase of goods and services and financial derivatives. Presented 
below is a table summarizing cash payments that may result from contracts 
to which we are a party as of December 31, 2007. For purchase obligations 
and other liabilities, amounts are based upon contract terms, including 
fixed and minimum quantities to be purchased at fixed or market-based 
prices. Actual cash payments will be based upon actual quantities 
purchased and prices paid and will likely differ Irom amounts presented 
below. The table excludes all amounts classified as curreni liabilities in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, other than current mamrilies of long-term 
debt, interest payable and certain derivative instmments. The majority of 
our current liabilities wiU be paid in cash in 2008. 

(millions) 
Lohg-tenndeblC) 
Interest payments'^) 
Leases 
Purchase obligationsf^): 

Purchased electric capacity 
for utility operatbna 

Fuel to be used for utility 
operations 

2008 

$1,478 
805 

81 

3S3 

794 
39 

2009-
2010 

$1,270 
1.468 

130 

713 

814 
133 

2011-
2012 

$1,980 
1.321 

91 

700 

566 
178 

2013 and 
thereafter 

$ ^0,008 
9,659 

151 

1,657 

435 
195 

Total 

$14,736 
13.253 

453 

3,653 

2,609 
645 
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Fuel to be used for 
nonregulated operations 

Pipeline transportation and 
storage 

Energy commodity purchases 
forresaleW -

Other(5) 
Oth^rkmg-term liabarIies(^J:i i:; i; 

Financial 
derivative-commodities^''' 

: '> Other contractual • • ! • ? ? " : . • 
n"iobliQatiohs(7)i'"i^^:^n:^iinn;1 

151 

517 
327 

215 

^•y- S I 

157 

;, :44 -
106 

12 

^ ' i i -A •-

84 

^ ' 2 8 - ^ ; 
31 

, — • • • ' ' 

86 

49 

478 

S89 
513 

227 

$4.842 S4,848 $4,979 $ 22,440 $37,109 Tolal cash payments 

(l)Based on slated maturity dales rather than the earlier redemption dates that could be 
elected by instrument holders. 

(2)Does not reflect our abiUty lo defer distributions related to our junior subordinated 
notes payable or interest payments on enhanced junior subordinated notes. 

(3)Amounts exclude open purchase orders for services that are provided on demand, the 
liming of which cannot he determined. 

(4)Represents the summation of settlement amounts, by contracts, due from us if all 
physical or financial transactions among our counterparties and the Company were 
liquidated and terminated. 

(5)Ittcludes capital and operations and maintenance commitments. 

(6)Excludes regulatory liabilities, AROs and employee benefit plan obligations, which are 
not contractually fixed as to timing and amount. See Notes 15. 16 and 23 to the 
ConsoUdated Financial Statements. Due lo uncertainty about the timing and amounts 
that will ultimately be paid, $246 million of income taxes payable associated with 
unrecognized tax benefits are excluded Deferred income taxes are also excluded since 
cash payments are based primarily on taxable income for each discrete fiscal year. Ste 
Note 9 to our Con.solidated Financial Statements. 

(7)Includes interest rate swap agreements. 
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PLANNED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

Our planned capital expendimres are expected to total approximately $3.7 
billion in 2008 and approximately $4.1 billion annually in both 2009 and 
2010. These expenditures are expected to include construction and 
expansion of electric generation and LNG facilities and natural gas 
transmission and storage facilities, environmental upgrades, constmction 
improvements and expansion of electric transmission and distribution 
assets, purchases of nuclear fuel and expenditures to explore for and 
develop namral gas and oil properties. We expect to fund our capital 
expenditures with cash from operations and a combination of securities 
issuMices and short-term borrowings. Our planned capital expenditures 
include capital projects that are subject to approval by regulators and our 
Board of Directors. 

Based on available generation capacity and current estimates of growth 
in customer demand, our Virginia electric utility will need additional 
generation in the future. See Generation Expansion in Future Issues and 
Other Matters for a discussion of our Virginia electric utility's expansion 
plans. 

We may choose to postpone or cancel certain planned capital 
expenditures in order lo mitigate the need for fumre debt financings and 
equity issuances. 

Use of Off-Baiance Sheet Arrangements 

GUARANTEES 

We primarily enter into guarantee arrangements on behalf of our 
consolidated subsidiaries. These arrangements are not subject to the 
recognition and measurement provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45, 
Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, 
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. See Note 24 to 
our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of these 
guarantees. 

Al December 31,2007, we had issued $41 million of guarantees to 
support third parties and equity method investees. In addition, in December 
2006, we acquired a 50% interest in a joint venmre with Shell to develop a 
wind-mrbine faciUty in Grant County, West Virginia (NedPower). We 
have issued a limited-scope guarantee and indemnification for one-half of 
the project-level financing for phase one ofthe NedPower wind project. 
Under this guarantee, we would be required to repay one-half of 
NedPower's debt, only if it is unable to do so, as a direct result of an 
unfavorable mling associated with current litigation seeking to halt the 
project. The guarantee will terminate when a final non-appealable ruUng in 
favor ofthe project is received. We do not expect an unfavorable ruling 
and no significant amounts have been recorded. Our exposure under the 
guarantee totaled $56 million as of December 31,2007 and will increase to 
$103 million in 2008 based upon NedPower's fiimre expected borrowings 
to complete phase one. Shell WindEnergy Inc. has provided an identical 
guarantee for the otiier one-half of NedPower's borrowings. 

LEASING ARRANGEMENT 

We lease the Fairless power station (Fairless) in Pennsylvania, which 
began commercial operations in June 2004. During construction, we acted 
as the construction agent for the lessor, controlled ihe design and 
constmction ofthe facility and have since been reimbiu'sed for all project 
costs ($898 million) advanced to the lessor. We make annual lease 
payments of $53 million. The lease expires in 2013 and at that time, we 
may renew the lease at negotiated amounts based on original project costs 
and current market conditions, subject to lessor approval; purchase Fairless 
at its original constiuction cost; or sell Fairless, on behalfofthe lessor, to 
an independent third party. If Fairless is sold and the proceeds from the 
sale are less than its original construction cost, we would be required to 
make a payment to the lessor in ao amouni up to 70.75% of original project 
costs adjusted for certain other costs as specified in the lease. The lease 
agreement does not contain any provisions that involve credit rating or 
stock price trigger events. 

Benefits ofthis arrangement include: 

• Certain tax benefits as we are considered the owner ofthe 
leased property for tax purposes. As a result, we are entitled to 
tax deductions for depreciation not recognized for financial 
accounting purposes; and 

" As an operating lease for financial accounting piuposes, the asset and 
related borrowings used to finance the constmction of the asset are not 
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included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Although this improves 
measures of leverage calculated using amounts reported in our 
Consolidated Financial Statements, credit rating agencies view lease 
obligations as debt equivalents in evaluating our credit profile. 
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FUTURE ISSUES AND OTHER MATTERS 

Common Stock Split and Dividend Increase 
In October 2007, our board of directors approved an increase in the number 
of shares of common stock the Company is authorized to issue from 
500 million to 1 billion and in November 2007 we distributed a 
two-for-one stock split. All historical share and dividend information 
presented within this report reflects the impact of the common stock split. 

In a separate matter, our board ofdirectors approved an increase in our 
quarterly common stock dividend rate. The quarterly dividend rate was 
increased to 39.5 cents per share, an 11% increase over our existing 
quarterly dividend rate of 35.5 cents per share. Stated as an annual rate, the 
board's action increases the dividend rate from $1.42 per share to $1.58 per 
share. 

Status of Electric Regulation in Virginia 

2007 VIRGINIA RESTRUCTURING ACT AND FUEL FACTOR 
AMENDMENTS 

On July 1,2007, legislation amending the Viiginia Electric Utility 
Restmcmring Act (the Resfrucmring Act) and the fuel factor became 
effective, which significantly changes electricity regulation in Virginia. 
Prior to the Restructoring Act, our base rates in Virginia were capped at 
1999 levels until December 31, 2010. The Resttoicmring Act ends capped 
rates two years early, on December 31, 2008. After capped rates end, retail 
choice will be eliminated for all bul individual retail customers with a 
demand of more than 5 Mw and non-residential retail customers who 
obtain Vu^inia Commission approval to aggregate their load to reach the 5 
Mw threshold. Individual retail customers will be permitted to purchase 
renewable energy from competitive suppliers ifthe incumbent electric 
utility does not offer a renewable energy tariff. Also after the end of capped 
rates, the Virginia Commission will set our base rates under a modified 
cost-of-service model. Among other featores, the new model provides for 
the Virginia Commission to: 

» Initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, reviewing 
the 2008 test year, as a resuh of which the Virginia Commission: 

• shall establish a return on equity (ROE) no lower than that reported by 
at least a majority of a group of utilities within the southeastera U.S., 
with certain limitations, as described in the legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis points based on 
generating plant performance, customer service and operating 
efficiency, if appropriate; 

• shall increase base rates, if needed, to allow the Company die 
opportunity to recover its costs and eam a fair rate of retum if we are 
found to have eamings more than 50 basis points below the established 
ROE; or 

• may reduce rates prospectively upon completion ofthe 
2009 review or, altematively, order a credit to customers if 
we are found to have test year eamings of more than 50 
basis points above the established ROE. 

Afler the initial rate case, review base rates biennially, s£ a 
result of which the Virginia Commission: 
' shall establish an ROE no lower than that reported by at least a 

majority of a group of utilities witiiin the soutiieastera U.S., with 
certain limitations, as described in the legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to lOO basis points based on 
generating plant performance, customer service and operating 
efficiency, if appropriate; 

• after 2010, authorize an increased ROE on overaU rate base upon 
achieving the goals established for the renewable energy portfolio 
standard programs. Such increased ROE would be in lieu ofany 
increased or decreased ROE from the preceding paragraph, unless 
there has been an increase to the ROE awarded under the preceding 
paragraph that is higher than the renewable energy portfolio standard 
increase; and 

• shall increase base rates, if needed, to allow the Company the 
oppormnity lo recover its costs and eam a fair rate of retom if we are 
found to have eamed, during the test period, more than 50 basis points 
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below the then currently established ROE; or 
• may order a credit to customers if we are found to have earned, during 

the test period, more than 50 basis points above the then currently 
established ROE, and reduce rates if we are found to have such excess 
eamings during two consecutive biennial review periods. 

• Authorize stand-alone rate adjustments for recovery of certain costs, 
including new generation projects, major generating unit modifications, 
environmental compUance projects, FERC-approved costs for 
transmission service and energy efficiency, conservation, and renewable 
enei^ programs; and 

• Authorize an enhanced ROE on new capital expendimres as a financial 
incentive for construction of certain major generation projects. 

The legislation also continues stamtory provisions directing us to file 
annual ftiel cost recovery cases wilh the Virginia Commission beginning in 
2007 and continuing thereafter, as discussed in Virginia Fuel Expenses. 

As discussed previously, the legislation provides for the Virginia 
Commission to initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, 
as a resuh of which the Viiginia Commission may reduce rates or 
altematively, order a credit lo customers if we are found to have eamings 
more than 50 basis points above the established ROE. We are unable to 
predict the outcome of fumre rate actions at this time, however an 
unfavorable outcome could adversely affect our results of operations. 
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VIRGINIA FUEL EXPENSES 

Under amendments to the Viiginia fuel cost recovery stamte passed in 
2004, our fuel factor provisions were frozen until July 1,2007. Fuel prices 
have increased considerably since 2004, which resulted in our fiiel 
expenses being significantly in excess of our fuel cost recovery. Pursuant 
to the 2007 amendments to the fuel cost recovery stamte, annual fuel rate 
adjustments, with deferred fuel accounting for over- or under-recoveries of 
fuel costs, were re-instituted on July 1,2007. While the 2007 amendments 
did not allow us to collect any unrecovered fuel expenses that were 
incurred prior to July 1,2007, once our fuel factor was adjusted, this 
mechanism ensures dollar-for-dollar recovery for prudentiy incurred fiiel 
costs. 

In April 2007, we filed a Viiginia ftiel factor application with the 
Virginia Commission. The application showed a need for an annual 
increase in fuel expense recovery for the period July 1,2007 tiirough 
June 30,2008 of approximately $662 million; however, the requested 
increase was Umited to S219 million under the 2007 amendments to the 
fuel cost recovery stamte. Under these amendments, our fuel factor 
increase as of July I, 2007 was limited to an amount that results in the 
residential customer class not receiving an increase of more than 4% of 
total rates in effect as ofJune 30, 2007. The Virginia Commission 
approved the fuel factor increase for Virginia jurisdictional customers of 
approximately $219 million, effective July I, 2007, with the balance of 
approximately $443 million lo be deferred and subsequently recovered 
subject to Virginia Commission approval, without interest, during the 
period commencing July 1,2008 and ending June 30, 2011. 

North Carolina Regulation 
In 2004, the North Carolina Utilities Commission (North Carolina 
Commission) commenced an investigation into our North Carolina base 
rates and subsequently ordered us to file a general rate case to show cause 
why our North Carolina jurisdictional base rates should not be reduced. 
The rate case was filed in September 2004, and in March 2005 the North 
Carolina Commission approved a settlement that included a prospective 
SI2 million annual reduction in current base rates and a five-year base rate 
moratorium, effective as of April 2005. Fuel rates are still subject to 
change under tiie annual fuel cost adjustment proceedings. 

Dominion Transmission Inc. (DTI) Rates 
In May 2005, FERC approved a comprehensive rate settlement with our 
subsidiary, DTI, and its customers and interested state commissions. The 
settlement, which became effective July 1,2005, revised our natural gas 
transmission rates and reduced fuel retention levels for storage service 
customers. As part ofthe settlement, DTI and all signatory parties agreed 
to a rate moratorium until 2010. 

In December 2007, DTI and the Independent Oil and Gas Association of 
West Virginia, Inc. reached a settlement agreement on DTI's gathering and 
processing rates for the period January 1,2009 tiirough December 31, 
2011. This settlement maintains the gas retainage fee stmcmre that DTI has 
had since 2001. Under the settlement, the gathering retainage rate increases 
from 9.25% to 10.5% and the processing retainage rale—in recognition of 
the 

increased market value of namral gas liquids—decreases from 3.25% to 
0.5%. 

This reduction in the combined retainage, from 12.5% to 11%, should 
provide a lower overall cost for most producers. Due to the increase in 
natural gas prices from three years ago, the consolidated impact of these 
rate changes is expected to increase DTI's gathering and processing 
revenues. In addition, DTI will continue to retain all revenues from its 
liquids sales, thus maintaining its cash flow from this activity. 

In connection wilh the settlement, DTI also agreed to invest at least $20 
million annually in Appalachian gathering-related assets. The new rates are 
subject to FERC approval. 

Dominion Cove Point Rates 
In June 2006, we filed a general rate proceeding for Dominion Cove Point 
LNG, LP (DCP). The rates established in this case took effect on January 
1,2007. This rate proceeding enabled DCP to update the cost of service 
underlying its rates, including recovery of costs associated with the 2002 to 
2003 reactivation ofthe LNG import terminal. The FERC-approved 
settlement established a rate moratorium that ends in mid-2011. 

Regional Transmission Expansion Plan 
Each year, as part of PJM's RTEP process, reliability projects are 
authorized. In June 2006, PJM authorized constmction of numerous 
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electric transmission upgrades through 2011. We are involved in two of the 
major constmction projects. The first project is an approximately 270-mile 
500-kilovolt (kV) transmission line from southwestern Pennsylvania to 
northem Virginia, of which we wiU construct approximately 65 miles in 
Virginia and a subsidiary of Allegheny Energy, Inc. (Trans-Allegheny 
Interstate Line Company) will construct the remainder. This project is 
expected to cost approximately $243 million and is expected to be 
completed in June 2011. The second project is an approximately 60-miIe 
500-kV transmission line that we will construct in southeastem Virginia. 
This project is estimated to cost $180 million and is expected to be 
completed in June 2011. These transmission upgrades are designed to 
improve the reliability of service to our customers and the region. The 
siting and construction of these transmission lines will be subject lo 
applicable state and federal permits and approvals. In April 2007, we, 
along wilh Trans-AUegheny Interstate Line Company, filed an application 
with the Virginia Commission requesting approval ofthe proposed 
constmction ofthe 65-mile d^nsmission line in northem Virginia. In May 
2007, we filed an application with the Virginia Commission requesting 
approval ofthe proposed constmction ofthe 60-mile transmission line in 
southeastera Virginia. Evidentiary hearings on tiiese applications 
commenced in Febmary 2008. 

Utility Generation Expansion 
Based on available generation capacity and current estimates of growth in 
customer deinand in our utility service area, we will need additional 
generation capacity over the next ten years. We have announced a 
comprehensive generation growth program, referred to as Powering 
Virginia, which involves the development, financing, constmction and 
operation of new multi-fiiel, multitechnology generation capacity to meet 
the growing demand in our core market in Virginia. As part of this 
program, the following projects are in various stages of development: 
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In April 2007, we filed an application witii the Virginia Commission 
requesting approval to add two 150 Mw natoral gas-fired electric 
generating units (Units 3 and 4) to our Ladysmith power station 
(Ladysmith) to supply electricity during periods of peak demand. The 
facility is expected to be in operation by August 2008, at an estimated cost 
of $135 million. The Virginia Commission approved the application in 
August 2007, and constmction has commenced. In December 2007, we 
received approval from the North Carolina Commission for a related 
affiliate transaction. 

In November 2007, we filed an application with the Vn^inia 
Commission for approval to add a fifth combustion mrbine (Unil 5) at 
Ladysmith at an estimated cost of $79 million. 

In July 2007, we filed an application with the Virginia Conanission 
requesting approval to constmct and operate a 585 Mw (nominal) carbon 
capture compatible, clean coal powered electric generation facility 
(Virginia City Hybrid Eneigy Center) lo be located in Wise County, 
Virginia. We also requested approvai to continue to accme an allowance 
for funds used during constmction until capped rates end and, beginning 
January 1, 2009, receive current recovery of financing costs including a 
retum on common equity of 11.75% together wilh a 200 basis point 
enhancement through a rate adjustment clause. An evidentiary hearing was 
held in Febmary 2008. An application for a permit to constmct and operate 
the Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center, in compliance witii federal and 
state air pollution laws, was filed in July 2006 with the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality. Pending regulatory approval and 
necessary permits, the facility is expected to be in operation by 2012 at an 
estimated cost of approximately $1.8 billion. 

Also in Febmary 2008, we announced the proposed conversion of our 
Bremo power station (Bremo) from coal to natoral gas as part of our plan 
to build the Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center. The proposal is 
contingent upon the Virginia Hybrid Energy Center entering service and 
receiving approvals from the Virginia Commission and Virginia 
Department of Environmentai Quality. The proposed conversion project is 
part of our overall effort to reduce air emissions. Subject to applicabie 
regulatory approvals, the conversion would occur within two years ofthe 
Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center entering service. 

We are considering the constmction of a third nuclear unit within the 
next twenty years al a site located at the North Anna power station (North 
Anna) which we own along with Old Dominion Electric Cooperative 
(ODEC). In November 2007, the NRC issued an Eariy Site Permit (ESP) 
for a site located at North Anna. Also in November 2007, we, along with 
ODEC filed an application with the NRC for a Combined Constmction 
Permit and Operating License (COL), which would aUow us to build and 
operate a new nuclear unit at North Anna. In January 2008, the NRC 
accepted our appUcation for the COL and deemed it complete. We have a 
cooperative agreement with the Department of Energy to share equally the 
cost ofthe COL. We have not yet committed to building a new unil. 

In December 2007, we announced an agreement to purchase a power 
station development project in Buckingham County, Virginia that will 
generate about 600 Mw. The project already has air and water permits for a 
combined-cycle, natoral gas-fired power station; however such permits 
may need to be modified. In addition, consfruction ofthe project is subject 
TO approval by the 

Virginia Commission, including approval under stale regulations relating 
to bidding for the purchase of electric capacity and energy from olher 
power suppliers, and the receipt of other environmental permits. A gas 
pipeline will also be required to be constmcted to provide gas supply to the 
power station. Pending a closing under tiie piux:hase agreement and the 
receipt of regulatory approval, we plan to build a combined cycle unit with 
operations expected to begin in summer 2011. 

Wind Power Acquisition 
In an effort to foster renewable generation development consistent wilh our 
environmental strategy, in January 2008, we acquired a 50% interest in a 
joint venmre with BP Altemative Energy Inc. (BP) to develop a 
wind-torbine facility in Benton County, Indiana. The facility is expected to 
be built in two phases and generate a total of 750 Mw. We will jointly own 
650 Mw witii BP and BP wUl retain sole ownership of 100 Mw. We have 
committed to contribute approximately $340 million of cash at various 
dates through January 2009, which includes our initial investment and 
funding for the development ofthe first 300 Mw phase. Constmction oflhe 
second 350 Mw phase could begin as early as 2009, with funding to be 
contributed lo the joint venture to maintain 50/50 ownership between the 
partners. Our ultimate funding requirements may decrease to the extent that 
die joint venture obtains non-recourse constmction and term financing. 
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PJM Rate Design 
In May 2005, FERC issued an order finding that PJM's existing 
transmission service rate design may not be just and reasonable, and 
ordered an investigation and hearings into the matter. In January 2008, 
FERC affirmed its earlier decision that the PJM transmission rate design ' 
for existing facilities had not become unjust and umeasonable. For 
recovery of costs of investments of new PJM-planned transmission 
facilities that operate at or above 500 kV, FERC established a regional rale 
design where all customers pay a uniform rate based on the costs of such 
investment. For recovery of costs of investment in new PJM-planned 
transmission facilities that operate below SOOkV, FERC affirmed its earUer 
decision to allocate costs on a beneficiary pays approach. A notice of 
appeal ofthis decision was filed in Febmary 2008 at the United States 
Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit. We cannot predict the outcome 
ofthe appeal. 

Ohio H0io Case 
In August 2007, The East Ohio Gas Company (Dominion East Ohio) filed 
an application to increase base rates. In this rate case, Dominion East Ohio 
requests approval of an increase in operating revenues of over S73 milUon 
to provide a rate of retum on rate base of 8.72%. As part ofits request, 
Dominion East Ohio is proposing to install automated meter reading 
devices for all ofits 1.2 million customers over a 5-year period and to 
spend up to an additional $5.5 million per year over a three-year period on 
demand side management programs iflhe Ohio Commission approves a 
decoupling mechanism that would automatically adjust base rates in order 
to maintain base rate revenues per customer at die level approved in the 
rate case. In addition, Dominion East Ohio is proposing to expand its gross 
receipts tax rider to apply to all amounts billed for services, rather than just 
gas cost recoveries, thereby excluding gross receipts tax ftom base rates. 
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In February 2008, Dominion East Ohio filed an application seeking 
approval from the Ohio Commission lo implement a 25-year program to 
replace approximately 19% ofits 21,000-mile pipeline syslem and to 
recover the resulting costs. The application also requests Ohio Commission 
approval for Domiriion Easl Ohio to assume responsibility for the service 
lines that run from the curb to the customer's meter. Currently, customers 
own those service lines and are responsible for bearing the cost of 
installation and for any repairs or replacement that may be needed. 

The cost ofthe program in total will exceed $2.6 biUion in 2007 dollars. 
The resulting expenditore of more than $100 million per year will more 
than double Dominion East Ohio's current armual spending on its pipeline 
infrastmcture. However, the cost to customers would be spread out over 
many decades due to the 25-year time frame of the replacement program 
and the period over which recovery in rates would be allowed. 

Dominion East Ohio also made a related filing asking the Ohio 
Commission lo consolidate its review ofthe pipeline infrastmcmre 
replacement program with Dominion Easl Ohio's current rate case 
application in order to give the Ohio Commission and olher parties the 
opportonity to consider tiie two filings together. 

Environmental Matters 
We are subject to costs resulting from a number of federal, state arvd local 
laws and regulations designed to protect human health and the 
environment. These laws and regulations affect futore planning and 
existing operations. They can result in increased capital, operating and 
other costs as a result of compliance, remediation, containment and 
monitoring obligations. 

To the extent environmental costs are incurred in connection with 
operations regulated by the Virginia Commission during the period ending 
December 31, 2008, in excess ofthe level currently included in Virginia 
jurisdictional rates, our results of operations could decrease. After that 
date, we are allowed to seek recovery through rates. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND MONITORING 

EXPENDITURES 

We incurred approximaiely $181 million, $138 million and $205 miUion of 
expenses (including depreciation) during 2007, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively, in connection with environmental protection and monitoring 
activities and expect these expenses to be approximately $218 million and 
$333 million in 2008 and 2009, respectively. In addition, capital 
expendimres related to environmental controls were $293 million, $332 
mUlion and $140 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively These 
expendimres are expected to be approximately $194 million and $191 
million for 2008 and 2009, respectively 

CLEAN AIR ACT (CAA) COMPLIANCE 

In March 2005, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Administrator 
signed both the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) and the Clean Air 
Mercury Rule (CAMR). These mles, when implemented, will require 
significant reductions in sulfur dioxide (SO2), nitrogen oxide (NOx) and 
mercury emissions from electric generating facilities. The SO2 and NOx 
emission reduction requirements are imposed in two phases, with initial 
reduction levels targeted for 2009 (NOx) and 2010 (SO2), and a second 
phase of reductions targeted for 2015 (SO2 and NOx). The mercury 
emission reduction requirements are also in two phases, with initial 
reduction levels targeted for 2010 and a second phase of reductions 
targeted for 2018. The federal mles allow for the use of cap-and-frade 
programs. West Viiginia has adopted final regulations for CAIR and 
CAMR. Virginia has adopted final regulations for CAIR with requirements 
more strict than the federal rule and will adopt final regulations for CAMR 
with requirements more strict than the federal mle. Illinois has finalized 
regulations to implement CAIR and CAMR with requirements more strict 
than tiie federal mle. Indiana has adopted CAIR and CAMR, with only 
minor changes. Massachusetts has finalized regulations to implement 
CAIR with requirements more sfrict than the federal mle. Separate from 
the CAA, CAIR and CAMR, Massachusetts has regulations specifically 
targeting reductions in NOx, SO2, and mercury emissions from our affected 
facilities in Massachusetts. These CAA regulatory and non-CAA state 
actions will require additional reductions in emissions from otu* fossil 
fiiel-fired generating facilities and are already addressed in our current 
compliMice planning. In June 2005, the EPA finalized amendments to the 
Regional Haze Rule, also known as the Clean Air Visibility Rule (CAVR). 
Although we anticipate that the emission reductions achieved through 
compliance with CAIR and CAMR will generally address CAVR, we do 
expect that additional emission reduction requirements will be imposed on 
several of our merchant facililies. Implementation of projects TO comply 
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with these SO2, NOx and mercury limitations, and olher state emission 
control programs are ongoing and will be influenced by changes in the 
regulatory environment, availability of emission allowances and emission 
control technology. In response to these CAA and non-CAA state 
requirements, we estimate that we will make capital expendimres at our 
affected generating facilities of approximately $900 miUion during the 
period 2008 through 2012. lo Febmary 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for 
tiie District of Columbia issued a mling dial vacates CAMR as 
promulgated by the EPA. At this time we cannot determine if this mUng 
will be subject to fiirtiier appeals and how the EPA, and subsequentiy the 
states, may alter their approach lo reducing mercury emissions. We also 
cannot estimate at this time the impact on our fiitore capital expenditures. 
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REGULATION OF GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

We operate two coal/oil-fired generating power stations in Massachusetts 
that are already subject to die unplementation of carbon dioxide (CO2) 
emission regulations issued by the Massachusetts Department of 
Environmental Protection (MADEP). Additionally, Massachusetts, Rhode 
Island and Connecticut have joined the Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative 
(RGGI), a multi-slate effort lo reduce CO2 emissions in die Northeast to be 
implemented through state specific regulations which are currently in 
development in these states. We own and operate a gas/oil-fired electric 
generating facility in Rhode Island that is subject lo RGGI, in addition to 
the two coal/oil-fired stations in Massachusetts. Implementing regulations 
for RGGI in Massachusetts and Rhode Island have yet to be fiilly 
developed. While the cost of complying witii the RGGI requirements for 
the period 2009 to 2011 couldadversely affect our results of operations, we 
cannot provide a reasonable estimate of such cost until the results ofthe 
first RGGI allowance auction are conducted later in 2008 and an allowance 
market develops. Additionally, any such costs of compliance could 
potentially be mitigated by increases in power prices impacting our 
affected power stations in the Northeast. 

In April 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court mled that the EPA has the 
authority to regulate greenhouse gas emissions which could result in futore 
EPA action. In June 2007, tiie President announced U.S. support for an 
effort to develop a new post-2012 framework on climate change involving 
the top ten to fifteen greenhouse gas Mftitting countries that would focus on 
establishing a long-term global goal to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
with each country establishing its own mid-term targets and programs. In 
addition to possible federal action, some states in which we operate have 
already or may adopt greenhouse gas emission reduction programs. For 
example, Massachusetts has implemented regulations requiring reductions 
in CO2 emissions. 

The Virginia Energy Plan, released by tiie Govemor of Virginia in 
September 2007, includes a goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
statewide back to 2000 levels by 2025. The Govemor formed a 
Commission on CUmate Change to develop a plan to achieve this goal. 
Until this goal results in legislative or regulatory action, the outcome in 
terms of specific requirements and timing is uncertain. The cost of 
compliance witii future greenhouse gas reduction programs could be 
significant. Given the highly imcertain outcome and timing of futore action 
by the U.S. federal govemment and states on this issue, we cannot predict 
the financial impact of future greenhouse gas reduction programs on our 
operations or our customers at this time. 

CLEAN WATER ACT COMPUANCE 

In July 2004, the EPA published regulations under the Clean Water Act 
Section 316b that govem existing utilities that employ a cooling water 
intake stmcture and that have flow levels exceeding a minimum tiireshold. 
The EPA's mle presents several compliance options. However, in January 
2007, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit issued a decision on 
an appeal of the regulations, remanding tfie mle to the EPA. In July 2007, 
tfie EPA suspended the regulations pending fiarther miemaking, consistent 
with the decision issued by the U. S. Court of Appeals for the Second 
Circuit. In November 2007, a number of industries appealed the lower 
court decision to the U. S. Supreme Court. We have sixteen facilities that 
are likely to be subject to these regulations. We cannot predict the outcome 
of the judicial or EPA regulatory processes, nor can we determine with any 
certainty what specific controls may be required. 

In August 2006, the Connecticut Department of Environmental 
Protection (CTDEP) issued a notice of a Tentative Determination to renew 
our Millstone power station's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) permit, which included a draft copy of tiie revised 
permit. In October 2007, CTDEP issued a report to the hearing officer for 
the tentative determination stating the agency's intent to further revise the 
draft permit. In December 2007, tiie CTDEP issued a new draft pennit. An 
administrative hearing will be held on the draft permit with a Final 
Determination expected to be issued by the CTDEP witiiin the next year. 
Until the final permit is reissued, il is not possible to predict the financial 
impact that may result. 

In October 2003, the EPA and MADEP each issued new NPDES permits 
for the Brayton Point power station (Brayton Point). The new permits 
contained identical conditions that in effect require the installation of 
cooling towers to address concems over the withdrawal and discharge of 
cooling water. Following various appeals, in December 2007, the EPA 
issued an administrative order to Brayton Point tiiat contained a schedule 
for implementing the permit. On the same day, Brayton Point witiidrew its 
appeal ofthe permit from tfie U.S. Court of Appeals. Brayton Point's state 
appeal will be dismissed upon MADEP finalizing the process for 
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implementing tiie parallel state pemiit. Currentiy, we estimate the total cost 
to instaU these cooling towers at approximately $500 million, of which 
$176 mUlion is included in our planned capital expenditures through 2010. 

FUTURE ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS 

We expect that there may be federal legislative or regulatory action 
regarding the regulation of greenhouse gas emissions and regarding 
compliance with more stringent air emission standards in the future. With 
respect to greenhouse gas emissions, the outcome in terms of specific 
requirements and timing is uncertain bul may include a greenhouse gas 
emissions cap-and-trade program or a cart)on tax for electric generators and 
natoral gas businesses. With respect to emission reductions, specific 
requirements under consideration would be phased in under periods of up 
to ten to fifteen years. If any of these new proposals are adopted, additional 
significant expenditures may be required. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGY 

Dominion is committed to being a good environmental steward. Our 
ongoing objective is to provide reliable, affordable energy for our 
customers while being environmentally responsible. Our integrated 
sfrategy lo meet this objective consists of four major elements: 

• Conservation and efficiency; 

• Renewable generation development; 

• Other generation development to maintain our fuel diversity, 
including clean coal, advanced nuclear energy, and natural gas; and 

• Improvements in other energy infrastmctore. 

Conservation plays a critical role id meeting die growing demand for 
electricity. Virginia re-regulation legislation enacted in 2007 provides for 
incentives for energy conservation and sets a goal to reduce electricity 
consumption by retail customers in 2022 by ten percent of tiie amount 
consumed in 2006 tiirough the implementation of conservation programs. 
We announced plans in September 2007 for a series of pilot programs 
focused on energy conservation and demand response. 

The pilots will be offered to a selection of 4,550 customers in our 
central, eastem and nortiiem Virginia service areas. To help ensure that the 
results are representative, customers will not be able to volunteer for the 
pilots nor participate in more than one pilot. We will report results from the 
pilots at least quarterly to the Virginia Commission staff to help evaluate 
their effectiveness. 

The pilots approved by the Virginia Commission include: 

• 1,000 residential customers in each of four different energy-saving 
pilots. The pilots arc designed to cycle central heating and air 
conditioning units during peak- energy demand times, inform 
customers about their real-time energy consumption patterns, 
promote programmable thermostats that allow customers to control 
tiieir use of electricity, and edu(:ate customers about the value of 
reducing energy use during peak-use times. 

• Free energy audits and energy efficiency kits to 150 existing 
residential customers, 100 new homes meeting energy efficiency 
guidelines set by the EPA, and 50 small commercial customers. In 
addition, 250 new homes will receive energy efficiency welcome kits 
that include compact fluorescent light bulbs. 

• Incentives for commercial customers to reduce load during periods of 
peak demand by mnning their generators lo produce up lo 100 Mw 
of electricity. This would be in addition to existing Dominion options 
in which commereial and industrial customers have reduced demand 
by more tiian 300 Mw during peak-demand periods. 

Renewable energy is also an important component of a diverge and 
reliable energy mix. Botfi Virginia and North Carolina have passed 
legislation setting goals for renewable power. We are committed to 
meeting Virginia's goal of 12 % renewable power by 2022 and North 
Carolina's renewable portfolio standard of 12.5 % by 2021. 

We are actively assessing development opportonities in our service 
territories for renewable technologies. In November 2007, we issued a 
request for proposals (RFP) for renewable energy projects in Virginia, 
North Carolina or elsewhere in the PJM Interconnect region. The RFP 
seeks the purchase of renewable energy generation projects, as well as 
renewable energy credits. Our regulated utility currentiy provides 
approximately two percent of its generation from renewable sources. In 
addition, Dominion is a 50% owner of a wind e n e i ^ facility in Grant 
County, West Virginia. When operational, our share ofthis project will 
produce 132 Mw of renewable energy. Dominion has also acquired a 50% 
interest in a joint venmre with BP Altemative Energy, Inc. (BP) to develop 
a wind-turbine facility in Benion County, Indiana. The facility is expected 
to be built in two phases and generate a total of 750 Mw of which we will 
jointly own 650 Mw with BP 

We also anticipate using up to 20% biomass (woodwaste) al die 
proposed Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center. 

We have announced a comprehensive generation growtii program, 
referred TO as Powering Virginia, which involves the development, 
financing, constmction and operation of new muUi-fliel, multi-technology 
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generation capacity to meet the growing demand in our core market of 
Virginia. We expect that these investments collectively will provide the 
following benefits: expanded electricity production capability; increased 
technological and fuel diversity; and a reduction in the carbon dioxide 
emissions intensity of our generation fleet. A critical aspect ofthe 
Powering Virginia program is the extent to which we seek to reduce the 
carbon intensity of our generation fleet by developing generation facilities 
wilh zero CO2 and low CO2 emissions, as well as economically viable 
faciUties that can be equipped for CO2 separation and sequestration. There 
is no current economically viable technological solution lo retro-fit existing 
fossil-fueled technology to capmre and sequester greenhouse gas 
emissions. Given that new generation units have useful lives of up to 50 
years, we will give full consideration to CO2 and other greenhouse gas 
emissions when making long-term investment decisions. 

Finally, we plan to make a significant investment in improving the 
capabilities and reliability of our electric transmission and distribution 
system. These enhancements are primarily aimed at meeting our continued 
goal of providing reliable service. An additional benefit will be added 
capacity to efficiently deliver electricity from the renewable projects now 
being developed or to be developed in the futore. 
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
About Market Risk 
The matters discussed in this Item may contain "forward-looking 
statements" as described in the introductory paragraphs of Item 7. 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations. The reader's attention is directed to those paragraphs and 
Item I A. Risk Factors for discussion of various risks and uncertainties that 
may affect our fiiture. 

MARKET RISK SENSITIVE INSTRUMENTS AND 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Our financial instmments, commodity contracts and related financial 
derivative instmments are exposed to potential losses due to adverse 
changes in commodity prices, interest rates and equity security prices as 
described below. Commodity price risk is present in our electric 
operations, gas production and procurement operations, and eneigy 
marketing and trading operations due to the exposure to market shifts in 
prices received and paid for electricity, natoral gas and other commodities. 
We use commodity derivative contracts to manage price risk exposures for 
these operations. Interest rate risk is generally related to our outstanding 
debt. In addition, we are exposed to equity price risk through various 
portfoUos of equity securities. 

The following sensitivity analysis estimates the potential loss of fijtore 
eamings or fair value from market risk sensitive instmments over a 
selected time period due to a 10% unfavorable change in commodity prices 
and interest rates. 

Connmodity Price Risk 
To manage price risk, we hold commodity-based financial derivative 
instmments held for non-trading purposes associated with purchases and 
sales of electricity, natoral gas and other energy-related products. As part 
of our sfrategy to market energy and to manage related risks, we also hold 
commodity-based financial derivative instmments for trading purposes. 

The derivatives used to manage risk are executed within estabUshed 
policies and procedures and may include instmments such as futures, 
forwards, swaps, options and FTRs that are sensitive to changes in the 
related commodity prices. For sensitivity analysis purposes, the fair value 
of commodity-based financial derivative instmments is determined based 
on models that consider the market prices of commodities in fiiture periods, 
the volatility ofthe market prices in each period, as weU as the time value 
factors ofthe derivative instmments. Prices and volatility are principally 
determined based on actively-quoted market prices. 

A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in market prices of our 
non-trading commodity-based financial derivative inslmments would have 
resulted in a decrease in fair value of approximately $338 miUion and $597 
million as of December 31,2007 and 2006, respectively. The decrease is 
primarily due to the termination of derivatives related to the divestiture of 
our non-Appalachian E&P business. A hypothetical 10% unfavorable 
change in commodity prices would have resulted in a decrease of 
approximately $8 million and $3 million in the fair value of our 
commodity-based financial derivative instmments held for trading 
purposes as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

The impact of a change in energy commodity prices on our non-trading 
commodity-based financial derivative instmments at a point in time is not 
necessarily representative ofthe results that will be realized when such 
contracts are ultimately settled. Net losses from commodity derivative 
instmments used for hedging purposes, to the extent realized, will 
generally be offset by recognition of die hedged transaction, such as 
revenue from sales. 

Interest Rate Risk 
We manage our interest rate risk exposure predominantly by maintaining a 
balance of fixed and variable rate debt. We also enter into interest rate 
sensitive derivatives, including interest rate swaps and interest rate lock 
agreements. For financial instruments outstanding at December 31, 2007 
and 2006, a hypothetical 10% increase in market interest rates would have 
resulted in a decrease in annual earnings of approximately $11 million and 
$25 million, respectively. The decrease is due primarily to a decrease in 
variable rate debt. 

Investment Price Risk 
We are subject to investment price risk due to marketable securities held as 
investments in decommissioning trust funds. These marketable securities 
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are managed by third-party investment managers and are reported in our > 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. i 

FoUowing the reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Viiginia jurisdiction | 
of our utility generation operations, gains or losses on those 
decommissioning tmsl investments are deferred as regulatory liabilities. 

We recognized net realized gains (including investment income) on 
nuclear decommissioning tmst investments of $43 miUion and $63 million 
in 2007 and 2006, respectively. In 2007, we recorded unrealized gains on 
these investments of $52 million to AOCI and regulatory liabilities. We 
recorded, in AOCI, unrealized gains on these investments of $ 194 milUon 
in 2006. 

We also sponsor employee pension and other posfretirement benefit 
plans that hold investments in trusts to fund benefii payments. To the 
extent that the values of investments held in these tmsts decline, the effect 
will be reflected in our recognition ofthe periodic cost of such employee 
benefit plans and the determination of the amount of cash to be confribuled 
to the employee benefii plans. Our pension and olher postretirement benefit 
plan assets generated actual retoms of $520 million and $674 million in 
2007 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31,2007, a hypothetical 
0.25% decrease in tiie assumed rales of return on our plan assets would 
result in an increase in net periodic cost of approximately $12 mUlion for 
pension benefits and $2 million for other postretiremenl benefits. As of 
December 31,2006, a hypothetical 0.25% decrease in the tcsumed rates of 
retora on our plan assets would have resulted in an increase in net periodic 
cost of approximately $ 11 million for pension benefits and $2 million for 
other postretirement benefits. 
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Risk Management Policies 
We have established operating procedures with corporate management to 
ensure that proper intemal controls are maintained. In addition, we have 
established an independent function at the corporate level to monitor 
compliance wilh the risk management policies of all subsidiaries. We 
maintain credit policies that include the evaluation of a prospective 
counterparty's financial condition, coUateral requirements where deemed 
necessary and the use of standardized agreements that fecilitate the netting 
of cash flows associated with a single counterparty. In addition, we also 
monitor the financial condition of existing counterparties on an ongoing 
basis. Based on our credit policies and our December 31,2007 provision 
for credit losses, management believes ih^ it is unlikely that a material 
adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows 
would occur as a result of counterparty nonperformance. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Dominion Resources, Inc. 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 
Dominion Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of 
December 31,2007 and 2006, and the related consoUdated statements of 
income, common shareholders' equity and comprehensive income, and of 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2007. These financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmancial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with tiie standards ofthe Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require tiiat we plan and perform the audit lo obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, tiie financial position of Dominion Resources, Inc. 
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for 

each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2007, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
Slates of America. 

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the 
Company changed its methods of accounting to adopt new accounting 
standards for uncertain tax positions in 2007, pension and otiier 
postrelirement benefit plans, share-based payments, and purchases and 
sales of inventory with the same counterparty in 2006, and conditional 
asset retirement obligations in 2005. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the PubUc 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2007, based on 
the criteria estabUshed in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued 
by tiie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway 
Commission and our report dated Febmary 26,2008 expresses an 
unqualified opinion on the Company's intemal control over financial 
reporting. 

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Richmond, Virginia 
Febmary 26,2008 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year Ended December 31. 
(millions, except per share amounts) 

C^ratirtg;K^^ritfe^=^"'^'nr":;r:^" v:̂  •;• 

2007 

m^$i5M4-: 

2006 

;n$i6.297 

2005 

$17,809 
Operating Expenses 
iiii Eledric fuel and er^rgy purchases ;:;r ^̂  ^^i^: 

Purchased electric capacity 
ih/purchased;̂ i:,:iii'ii;̂ ::i!;nv;:n^ 

Other energy-related commodity purchases 
: Other bperatiohs and rnaintenance n 

Gain on sale of U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business 
;T:Depreciati6n,itiei3letiori arid amortization 

Other taxes 

3i5i*n::^ 
439 

2 ^ m :;: 
252 

;4354n;:: 
(3,635) 
1,368 :; 

552 

3,236 i 
481 

; 2,937 ; 
1,022 

: ; 3 i m 
— 

H-1,557 r : 
568 

h; ;>t,670 
504 

13,941 
1,391 

: ;2,980 
— 

• 1,359 
577 

Total operating expenses 10,107 12,979 15;422 
Income from operations j ,567 3,318 2,387 
Other income 
Interest and related charges 

i;Interestexper^sSii n;h : 
interest expense—junior subordinated notes payable" 
Subsidiary preferred dividends 

1(J2 173 

(2) 

163 

mz-ri^-n 
127 

uienn;; ; 

;;;:888 
124 

vri 'v. ^Q \i 

; :;822 
106 

:rM;;:16 
Total interest and related charges 1,175 1,028 944 

Incortiefrom continuing operatipns before income tax expense, minority interest, exti^aordinary item and 
: rcgrriulative effect of change in ac^untingpririciple 4^494 

Income lax expense 1,783 
Miriorityinterest 'j i:. • J: - ' - ^--^ ^-^ •"- '!-^^:V: 6̂  

2,463 v1.606 
927 573 

,<3» 

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and cumuiative effect of change in 
accounting principle 

Income (loss) frdm^discontinued operations' 
Exfa"aordinary item 
Cumuiative effete of change in aixounlang principle (5J 

2,705 

m-(158) 

1.530 
; ; (150) -

— 

1,033 
r r" . ; : :6 

— 
m. 

Net income 
Earnings Per CorirtrtiQn Share—JBasic; I ~ T^_ ~̂  ~ ~ ~ ^ ~ 
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle 
Income (loss) from disMnfinuedoperatidns ; 
Extraordinary item 
Ciirnulative effect bf change in accduriting principle :: 

$ 2,539 $ 1.380 $ 1,033 

$ 4.15 

(0.24) 

$ 2.19 
:n(0.22) 

$ 1.51 

r;:0,oi-

Net income 
jter 

$ 3.30 $ 1.97 $ 1.51 
Earnings Per Comnlon Shati^^—Dilutecl' 
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle 
Inoonie-(lbss) from !aiscoritinue^ 
Extraordinary item 

$ 4.13 
nn;(o:Qtp 

(0.24) 

$ 2.17 
;::i;;(o:2i): 

1.50 
0:01: 

GurriulativeeffeCt ofidiahgeiri accounting pririclple 
Net income 
Divlderids paid perlcomrndh Share i r I ; i; 

' ' r: ^ ^ ^ i ^ ' ' - ^ : " \ " ' • ..y'l^ ' ; : j w ; ; ; 

$ 3.88 
' ^ $--''1.4©nh 

• - ; : : : : - , / — ' " 

$ 1.96 
-$ 1.38 ! 

: ;(d.oi) 
$ 1.50 

nmm^-

(1} In 2007, we incurred $242 million of expenses associated wilh the completion of a dhbt lender offer, $234 million of which is included in Interest expense. 

(2) Includes $73 million. $104 million and $106 million incurred wilh affiliated trusts in 2007. 2006 and 2005. respectively. 

(3) Net of income tax expense (benefit) of $115 miUion. ($ 107) million and $13 million in 2007. 2006 and 2005. respectively. The 2007 expense includes $76 million and $56 million for U.S. 
federal and Canadian taxes, respectively, related lo the gain on the sale of tfte Canadian E&P operations. 

(4) Nel of income lax benefit of$101 million in 2007. 

(5) Net of income lax benefit of $4 million in 2005. 

(6) All per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect a two-for-one .ttock split distributed in November 200 7. 

Tkeaccompanying notes are an integral part of our Consolidated Financial Statements, j 

I 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

At December 31, 2007 2006 
(miilions) 

ASSETS !! ' :•-
Current Assets 

::Cash and cash equivalents 
Customer receivables (less allovt/ance for doubtful accounts of $37 and $26) 
Other receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $10 and $13) 
Inventories: 

; n ; Materials and supplies 
Fossil fuel 

>''::U::Gasstored;.- .:,:!!"•/''•"" . ' ' ^ ' ^T/ 
Derivative assets 
Assets held fcr sale 
Prepayments 

=-^vOtherj:-

Total deferred charges and other assets 7,235 

$-;;283:in 
2,130 
:\22iBi;\ 

'^^:U27nr 
341 

::-:;:!277/;; 
761 

^^-1^1 go;;:; 
387 

^-r:;;6e4jh 

4 138 
2,395 
; 358 

"Hin:̂ n42& 
383 

J:;;::;!:;2B9 
1,593 

;; ;;i;,39i 
254 

-^n:!nni868 
Total current assets 

Investments ; ; 
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 

\.Other': :̂^ '̂ ^ ^ 
Total investments 

Property, Plaint and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 

Total property, plant and equipment, net 

6,656 

2,888 

3,380 

33,331 

21.352 

8,098 

2JQi 
n ;:n1;,034^ 

3,825 

43,575 
n 114,193) 

29,382 
Deferred Charges and Other Assets 

Goodwill 
:: Pension and other postretirement benefit assets 

Derivative assets 
!; Intangible assets ; ;; 

Regulatory assets 
•:^Other /M 

3,496 

188 

957 

4,298 
: 1,246 

642 
-;::;i:628= 

539 
! = ;;;:r:611!:; 

7.964 
Total assets $miz3 $49,269 
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At December 31, 2007 2006 
(millions) 

LiABitiTres AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current Liabilities 

. Securities due within cMie year -
Short-term debt 
Accpurits payable 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 
Derivative liabilities J : ; 
Liabilities held for sate 

; ^^Otherl;'7;:^r" 

1,477 
1J57 
1,734 

934 
680 
492 
672 

$ 2,478 
2,332 
2,142 

759 
2,276 

497 
745 

Total current liabilities 7,746 11.229 
Lo:ng-Term Debt :;;:\\;iV-'ii:i = '-

Long-tenm debt 
\ Junior subordiriiated notes payable to: 

Affiliates 
'^'•;; = ;;:Other''': :-:• ':/:'• •'X:-:-y\ -^^Uli 

11,759 

678 
798 

12.842 

1.151 
798 

Total long-term debt 13,235 14.791 
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Deferred Income taxes and Investment tax credits 
; J Asset retirement obligations 

Derivative liabilities 
n Regtriabry liabilities: y V M 

Other 

4.253 
1,722 

181 
1,223 
1,072 

5,858 
1,930 

681 
614 
973 

i ; ; Total deferred credits and other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

M,^.: = -: ;̂ ".8,451 -.K 
29,432 

: i 10^056 
36,076 

Commitments and Continqencies (see Note 24) 
Minority Interest 
Subsidiary Preferred StbcK Not Sub|ect To Mandatory Redemption 

28 
r 2 ^ 

23 
• 2 5 7 

Common Shareholders' ^quity 
Corrirribn stoCk-H-nb par̂  * i : ;; ^ 
Other paid-in capital 
Retained eiamings ^ 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

^733 
175 

3;51i}!! 
(12) 

11,250 
128 

; 1:960 
(425) 

Total common shareholders' equity 9,406 12,913: 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $39,123 $49,269 

(I) I billion shares authorized: 577 million shares and 698 million .ihares outstanding at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively. 

The accompanying noles are an integral pari of our Consolidated Financial StatemenLs. 
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Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income 

Common Stock 

Shares Amouni 
aher 

Paid-in Retained 
Capilal Eamings 

Acoimulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) 

(millions) 

Balance at December 31, 2004 680 ; $10,888 :$ : 92; $^ 1.442 $ 

Total 

(996): i $^1.426; 
Comprehensive income: 

Net income 
Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities, net of $1,648 tax 

;; Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of $19 tax ^ 
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $3 lax 

; Foreign oirrency translation adjustments 
Amounts reclassified lo net income: 

Net realized gains on investment secuirrties, net of $8 tax 
Net derivative losses—hedging actMties, net of $723 tax 
Foreign cun-ency translation adjustments • 

1,033 
(2.846) 

27 
4 

10: 

(ID: 
1,250 

;1.033 
(2,846) 
; 27 

4 
;: ^ ; ic j ; 

: (11): 
1.250 

m 
Total comprehensive income 

Issuance of slock—employee and direct stock purchase plans 
Stock awards and stock options exercised (nel of change in unearned compensation) 
Issuance of slock—forward equity transaction 
Slock repurchase and retirement 
Cash isettlemenl--fonward equity transaction : 
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 
Dividends and other adjustments - ' ^ •'"' 

„ _ 

12 
10 
(7) 

9 
363 
319 

(276) 
(17) 

31 
2 

1,033 

J[925i. 

(1.568) (535) 
; ,^: '9: 
363 
319 

(276) 

31 
(923) 

Balance at December 31, 2005 695 11.286 125 1,550 (2,564) 10.397 
Comprehensive income: 

Net income 
Net defen^d derivative gains—hedging activities, net of $625 tax 
Changes in unrealized gains on investment securities, net of $83 tax 

r Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $7 tax 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 
Amounts reclassified to net income: ; 

Net realized gains on investment securities, net of $6 lax 
Net derivative losses—hedging activities, net of $724 lax 

1,380 
1,173 : 

126 
: lOr 

(9) 
1,182 

1.380 
1.173 

126 

(9) 
1.182 

Total comprehensive income 
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, nel of $239 tax 
Issuance of slock— employee and direct slock purchase plans 
Stock awards and stock options exercised (nel of change in unearned compensation) 
issuance of stock—fonward equity transaction 
Stock repurchase arid retirement •; 
Tax benefii from stock awards and stock options exercised 
Dividends aiid other adjustments • : ^ 

2 
3 
9 

(11) ; 

95 
79 

330 
(540) 

8 
JS) 

1,380 

(97D) 

2,474 
.(335): 

3,854 
-(335) 

95 
; : i ; 79 ; 

330 
;(54Q) 

8 
119751 

Balance at December 31. 2006 11.250 128 il25L 12,913 
Comprehensive Income: . 

Net income 
;;; Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities..net of $140 lax : 

Changes in unrealized gains on investment securities, net of $75 tax 
Changes in net unrecognized penskin and other postretirement beneUt costs, 

:; net of $80 tax 
Amounts reclassified to net income: 

:: : Net realized losses on inveslmenl securities, net c^ $4 tax 
Net derivative losses—hedging activities, net of $376 tax 

: : Net pmsioh and other postretirement benefit costs, net of $10 tax 
Recognition of foreign currency translation gains upon sale of foreign subsidiary 

2.539 
:(223y 
j11*>), 

î 164:̂  

2,539 
; (223) 

(110) 

:;:1€4 

603 
2i ''\ 
(50) 
413:;; 

603 
n = ;";2r 

(50) 
;; 2,952: 

251 
;(S,76S) 

46 

TcAal comprehensive inosme 
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in unearned compensation) 
Stoclc repurchase and recrement 
tax benefii from stock awards and stock options exercised 

2,539 
8 251 

:f129) ; , (5.768); 
46 

Adoption Of FIN 48 ;-
Dividends and olher adiustments 
Balance at December 31, 2007 577 $ 5,733 

' 1 ' ' 
$ 175 

:=^';VJ(S8);-.: ; ; ; . : 
(931) 

$ 3,610 - $ : : : > : (I2)n 

^;;:i:-^{g8) 
(930) 

$ 9,406: 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of our Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
(millions) 

Ojpefating.Actiwit(@s^"^;'M::;r \ , r i 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: 

Gain on sale of non-Appalachian E&P business 
Impairmeril of merchant gerieraliori assets 
Charges associated with eariy retirement of debt 

.; •! Extraordinary Item, net of iriccHTie taxes 
Charges related lo the termination of volumetric production payment agreements 
Dominion Capital, Inc. impairnhent losses ; 
Charges related to planned sale of gas distribution subsidiaries 
Nel reaiized.and unrealized derivative (gains) losses 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Defeired income taxes and investment tax credits, net ; 
Gain on sale of emissions allowances held for consumption 
OUieradpjstments ;: 
Changes in: 

;;_;''",:;; Acc6unts"receivable!" ̂ ;;;;;;' 
Inventories 

. . , ; ; ; ; Deferred fuel and purchased gas costs, net ; 
Accounts payable 

' : j i ; : :;::Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 
Deferred revenue 

;:; > Margin d ^ s i t assets and liabilities 
Other operating assets and liabilities 

S 2,539 

(3,826) 
•:•• 3 8 7 : 

242 

139 
.: ̂ -^::: 8S: 

i::n:{245) 
1,533 

: : { 1 3 5 ) 
(20) 

;!i;-"::-23; 

= -:r294^: 
52 

; : { 3 ^ ) ; 
(190) 

,,^.^nf59:, 
(71) 

:;: : : ; : '63' 
63 

$ 1,380 

:253 

188 
(242) 

1,739 
V 510 

(74) 
::(31) 

;:;684: 
3 

239 
(526) 

92 
(262) 

(7); 
(30) 

$ 1.033 

:35 

: 335 
1,538 

64 
(139) 

SS 84 

(791) 
(220) 

: (57) 
686 

:;147 
(323) 

: 124 
107 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities J 2 4 ^ 4,005 2,623 
investing Activities 

i Plant constfucyort and other property additions 
Additions to gas and oil properties, including acquisitions 
Proceeds from: sales of gas and oit profjerties : 
Proceeds from sale of merchant generation facilities 
Proceeds from sale of non-Appalachian E&P business 
Acquisition of businesses 

, Proceeds from safes of seoJritJes and loan receivable collections and payoflb 
Purchases of securities and loan receivable originations 

::;; Proceeds from sate of emissions allowances held for consumption 
Proceeds from sale or disposal of other assets and investments 

r ' ' Othern;;^ • ':-• ',': = - ' ' 

(2.177) 
(1,795) 

12 
339 

13,877: 

1,285: 
(1.355) 

'":: 11': 
30 

(1.995) 
(2,057) 
:;:;393-

(91) 
1.110 

(1,196) 
: 76 

150 
:;:116;: 

(1,683) 
(1,675) 

:;;v:595' 

(877) 
754 

(854) 
234 

17 
129 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 10,192 (3.494) (3.360) 
Financing Activities, 

Issuance (repayment) of short-term debt, net 
h. Issuanceoflbng-lerindebt : ; . . , : ; : . . ; : ' 

Repayment of long-term debt, including redemption premiums 
Repayment :of affiliated notes payable : 
Issuance of common stock 

; : Repurchasebfcommonstqcicn..:;: 
C o m m o n dividend p a y m e n t e 

. ; j : -Other . : : ^ : : ^ :L .^^V ' ;-" -̂••• ~^^-i^i:::iV' • i --, - . 

(575) 
2 , 6 7 5 

(5,012) 
(440) ; 
2 2 6 

wm\ 
(931) 

- r ^ 2 4 : : 

713 
12.450^ 
(2,333) 
::(300) 

479 
:;;(54q): 

(970) 

1,045 
: 2,300 
(2,237) 

664 
; (276) 

(923) 
151) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (9,801) i515 i . 522 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yearH' 

143 
142 

:(4) 
146 

(215) 
361 

$ 287 $ ;i42 $ 146 
Supplemental Cash Flow Information: 
Cash:paid:during Jheyearlpr; :\i,V\-'-: H i; ̂  :•;;:: -

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts 
;,-,Jncome taxes'';,: n::./-;: 
Significant noncash investing and financing activities: 

: .Accrued eapitalexpendilures;;;:;::: : ; ; ; : 
Assumption of debt related to acquisitions of nonutility generating facililies 
Dominion Capital. Inc. eXchangeofnotes. :̂  :. • — :.; . 

$ 1.021 
3,155 

58 

920 
432 

258 

$ 1.007 
399 

220 
62 

258 

( I ) 2007 and 2006 amounts include $4 million of cash classified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheeis. 

The accompanying noles a re an Integral pa r t of our ConsoUdated Financial Statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Dominion Resources, Inc. (Dominion), headquartered in Richmond, 
Virginia, is one ofthe nation's largest producers and transporters of 
energy. On June 30, 2007, we merged our wholly-owned subsidiary, 
Consolidated Natural Gas Company (CNG), with our holding company. 
Dominion. As a result ofthe merger, all of CNG's subsidiaries became 
direct subsidiaries of Dominion. 

We completed the sale of our non-Appalachian natural gas and oil 
exploration and production (E&P) operations during the third qimrter of 
2007. We chose to retain our Appalachian assets due to their strategic fit 
with our natural gas transmission and storage assets. These transactions are 
discussed in Note 6. 

Following the sales of our non-Appalachian E&P operations, our 
principal subsidiaries are Virginia Electric and Power Company {Virginia 
Power), Dominion Enei^ , Inc. (DEI), Dominion Transmission, Inc. (DTI), 
Virginia Power Energy Marketing, Inc. (VPEM), Dominion Exploration 
and Production, Inc. (DEPI) and Tlie East Ohio Gas Company (Dominion 
Easl Ohio). 

Virginia Power is a regulated public utility that generates, transmits and 
distributes electricity for sale in Virginia and nonheaslem North Carolina. 
As of December 31,2007, Virginia Power served approximately 
2.4 million retail cuslomer accounts, including govemmental agencies, as 
well as, wholesale customers such as rural electric cooperatives and 
municipalities. Vn^inia Power is a member of PJM Interconnection, LLC 
(PJM), a regional transmission organization (RTO), and its electric 
transmission facilities are integrated into the PJM wholesale electricity 
markets. 

DEI is involved in merchant generation, energy marketing and price risk 
management activities and natural gas exploration and production in the 
Appalachian basin ofthe United States (IJ.S.). 

DTI operates a regulated interstate natural gas transmission pipeline and 
underground storage system in the Northeast, mid-Atlantic and Midwest 
states and is engaged in the production, gathering and extraction of natural 
gas in the Appalachian basin. 

VPEM provides fuel, gas suppiy management and price risk 
management services to other Dominion affiliates and engages in energy 
trading activities. 

DEPI explores for, develops and produces gas and oil in the Appalachian 
basin ofthe U.S. 

As of December 31,2007, our regulated gas distribution subsidiaries. 
Dominion East Ohio, Peoples Natural Gas Company (Peoples) and Hope 
Gas, Inc. (Hope), served approximately 1.7 million residential, commercial 
and indusbial gas sales and transportation cuslomer accounts in Ohio, 
Pennsylvania and West Virginia. Of these customers, approximately 
500,000 are served by Peoples and Hope, which are held for sale as 
discussed in Note 6. We also operate a liquefied natural gas (LNG) import 
and storage feciiily in Maryland. Our producer services operations involve 
the aggregation of natural gas supply and related wholesale activities. We 
also have nonregulated retail energy marketing operations that include the 
marketing of gas, eleclricity and related products and services to residential 
and small commercial customers. As of December 31,2007, our retail 
eneigy m^'keling operations served approximately 1.6 million residential 
and commercial customer accounts in the Northeast, mid-Atiantic and 
Midwest regions ofthe U.S. 

We have substantially exiled the core operating businesses of Dominion 
Capital, Inc. (DCI) whose primary business was financial services, 
including loan administration, commercial lending and residential 
mortgage lending. Refer to Note 28 for information on a third-party 
collateralized debt obligation (CDO) entity that we consolidate. 

Prior to a fourth quarter 2007 segment realignment, we managed our 
daily operations through four primary operating segments: Dominion 
Delivery, Dominion Energy, Dominion Generation and Dominion E&P. 
During the fourth quarter of 2007, we realigned our business units to 
reflect our strategic refocusing and began managing our daily operations 
through three primary operating segments: Dominion Virginia Power 
(DVP), Dominion Generation and Dominion Energy. In addition, we also 
report a Corporate and Olher segment that includes our corporate, service 
company and other functions and the net impact of certain operations 
disposed of or to be disposed of, which are discussed in Note 6. Our assets 
remain wholly owned by us and our legal subsidiaries. 

The terms "Dominion," "Company," 'Ve," "our" and "us" are used 
throughout this report and, depending on the context of their use, may 
represent any ofthe following: the legal entity, Dominion Resources, Inc., 
one or more of Dominion Resources, Inc. 's consolidated subsidiaries or 
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operating segments, or the entirety of Dominion Resources, Inc. and its 
consolidated subsidiaries. 

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 
We make certain estimates and assumptions in preparing our Consolidated 
Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United Slates of America (GAAP). TJiese estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial 
statements and the reported amoimts of revenues and expenses for the 
periods presented. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include, after eliminating 
intercompany transactions and balances, the accounts of Dominion and our 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and those variable interest entities (VIEs) 
where Dominion has been determined to be the primary beneficiary. 

Certain amounts in the 2006 and 2005 Consolidated Financial 
Statements and footnotes have been recast lo conform to the 2007 
presentation. 

Reapplication of SFAS No. 71 
In March 1999, we discontinued the application of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accountingfor the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation (SFAS No. 71), to the majority of our utility 
generation operations upon the enactment of deregulation legislation in 
Virginia. Our electric utility transmission and distribution operations 
continued to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 71 since ihey remained 
subject to cosl-of-service rate regulation. 

In April 2007, the Virginia General Assembly passed legislation that 
relumed the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility gen-
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eration operations to cost-of-service rate regulation. As a result, we 
reapplied the provisions of SFAS No. 71 to those operations on April 4, 
2007, the dale the legislation was enacted. In connection wilh the 
reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to these operations, we prospectively 
changed certain of our accounting policies to those used by cost-of-service 
rate-regulated entities. Other than the extraordinary item discussed here, 
the overall impact of these changes was not material to our results of 
operations or financial condition in 2007. These policy changes are 
discussed further in Derivative Instruments, Investment Securities, 
Properly, Plant and Equipment and Asset Retirement Obligations. 

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM 

The reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility 
generation operations resulted in a $259 million ($158 million after tax) 
extraordinary charge and the reclassification of $195 million ($119 million 
after tax) of unrealized gains from accumulated other comprehensive 
income (AOCI), related to nuclear decommissioning trust funds. This 
established a $454 million long-term regulatory liability for amounts 
previously collected from Viiginia jurisdictional customers and placed in 
extemal tmsts (including income, losses and changes in fair value thereon) 
for the future decommissioning of our utility nuclear generation stations, in 
excess of amounts recorded pursuant to SFAS No. VAT*, Accountingfor 
Asset Retirement Obligations (SFAS No. 143). 

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEPrrs 

Upon reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction of our 
utility generation operations, we reclassified $110 million ($67 million 
after tax) of pension and other postretirement benefit costs attributable to 
those operations previously recorded in AOCI to a regulatory asset. These 
costs represent net unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses, unrecognized 
prior service cost (credit) and unrecognized transition obligation remaining 
from our initial adoption of SFAS No. 106, Employers 'Accounting ft>r 
Postrelirement Benefits Other Than Pensions (SFAS No. 106), that will be 
recognized as a component of future net periodic benefit cost and are 
expected to be recovered through future rates. 

Operating Revenue 
Operating revenue is recorded on the basis of services rendered, 
commodities delivered or contracts settled and includes amounts yet to be 
billed to customers. Our customer receivables at December 31, 2007 and 
2006 included $305 million and $267 million, respectively, of accmed 
unbilled revenue based on estimated amounts of electricity or natural gas 
delivered but not yet billed to our utility customers. We estimate unbilled 
utility revenue based on historical usage, applicable customer rates, 
weather factors and, for electric customers, total daily electric generation 
supplied after adjusting for estimated losses of energy during transmission. 

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as operating 
revenue are as follows: 

. Regulated electric sales consist primarily of state-regulated retail 
electric sales, and federally-regulated wholesale electric sales and 
electric transmission services; 

• Nonregulated electric sales consist primarily of sales of electricity from 
merchant generation facilities at market-based 

rates, sales of electricity to residential and commercial customers at 
contracted fixed prices and market-based rates, and electric trading 
revenue; 

• Regulated gas sales consist primarily of state-regulated retail natural 
gas sales and related distribution services; 

- Nonregulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas 
production at market-based rates and contracted fixed prices, sales of 
gas purchased from third parties, gas trading and marketing revenue, 
and sales activity related to agreements used to facilitate the marketing 
of gas production and gas transportation (buy/seU arrangements) 
described in Note 3. Revenue from sales of gas production is recognized 
based on actual volumes of gas sold to purchasers and is reported net of 
royalties. Sales require deUvery of the product to the purchaser, passage 
of tide and probability of collection of purchaser amounts owed. 
Revenue from sales of gas production includes the sale of Company 
produced gas and the recognition of revenue previously deferred in 
connection with the volumetric production payment (VPP) transactions 
described in Note 13. We use ihe sales method of accounting for gas 
imbalances related to gas production. An imbalance is created when 
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Company volumes of gas sold pertaining to a property do not equate to 
the volumes to which we are entitled based on our interest in the 
property. A liability is recognized when our excess sales over entitled 
volumes exceeds our net remaining property reserves; 

• Other energy-related commodity sales consist primarily of sales of oil 
production and condensate, coal, emissions allowances held for resale 
and extracted products and sales activity related to agreements used to 
facilitate die marketing of oil production (buy/sell arrangements) 
described in Note 3; 

• Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of regulated sales of 
gathering, transmission, distribution and storage services. Also included 
are regulated gas distribution charges to retail distribution service 
customers opting for altemate suppliers; and 

• Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service revenue from 
electric and gas distribution operations, gas and oil processing and 
handling revenue, revenues from DCI operations and business 
intermption insurance revenue associated wilh delayed gas and oil 
production caused by hurricanes. 

Electric Fuel, Purchased Energy and Purchased Gas—Deferred 
Costs 
Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the differences between actual 
electric liiel, purchased energy and purchased gas expenses and the related 
levels of recovery for these expenses in cuirent rates are deferred and 
matched against recoveries in future periods. The deferral of costs in 
excess of curreni period fuel rate recovery is recognized as a regulatory 
asset, while rate recovery in excess of current period fiiei expenses is 
recognized as a regulatory liability. 

For electric fuel and purebred e n e i ^ expenses, effective January 1, 
2004, the fuel factor provisions for our Virginia retail customers were 
locked in until July 1, 2007. Effective July 1,2007, the fuel factor was 
adjusted as discussed under Virginia Fuel Expenses in Note 24. 
Approximately 83% ofthe cost of fuel used in electric generation and 
energy purchases used to serve urility customers is currently subject lo 
deferral accounting. 
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Income Taxes 
We file a consolidated federal income lax retum for Dominion and its 
subsidiaries. In addition, where applicable, we file combined income tax 
retums for Dominion and its subsidiaries in various states; otherwise, we 
file separate state income tax retums for our subsidiaries. We also filed 
federal and provincial income tax returns for certain former subsidiaries in 
Canada. 

SFAS No. \09, Accountingfor Income laxes (SFAS No. 109), requires 
an asset and liability approach to accounting for income taxes. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are provided, representing ftiture effects on 
income taxes for temporary differences between the bases of assets and 
liabilities for financial reponing and tax purposes. Where permitted by 
regulatory authorities, the treatment of temporary differences may differ 
fixim the requirements of SFAS No. 109. Accordingly, a regulatory asset is 
recognized if it is probable that future revenues will be provided for the 
payment of deferred tax liabilities. We establish a valuation allowance 
when it is more likely dian not that all, or a portion, of a deferred tax asset 
will not be realized. 

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, 
Accountingfor Uncertainly in Income Taxes (FIN 48). In our financial 
statements, we recognize positions taken, or expected to be taken, in 
income tax returns that are more-likely-than-not to be realized, assuming 
that the posidon will be examined by tax authorities with full knowledge of 
all relevant information. 

If we conclude that it is more-likely-lhan-nol that a tax position, or some 
portion thereof, will not be sustained, the related tax benefits are not 
recognized in the financial statements. For the majority of our 
unrecognized tax benefits, the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but 
there is uncertainty about the liming of such deductibility. Unrecognized 
tax benefits also include amounts for which uncertainty exists as to 
whether such amounts are deductible as ordinary deductions or capital 
losses. Unrecognized lax benefits may resuh in an increase in income taxes 
payable, a reduction of an income tax refund receivable, an increase in 
deferred tax liabilities, or a decrease in deferred tax assets. Also, when 
uncertainly about the deductibility of an amount is limited to the timing of 
such deductibility, the increase in taxes payable (or reduction in tax refund 
receivable) is accompanied by a decrease in deferred tax liabilities. 
Noncurrent income taxes payable related to unrecognized lax benefits are 
classified in other deferred credits and other liabilities; current payables are 
included in accmed interest, payroll and taxes, except when such amounts 
are presented net with amounts receivable from or amounts prepaid to tax 
authorities in prepayments. 

Prior lo the adoption of FIN 48, we established liabilities for lax-related 
contingencies when the incurrence oflhe liability was determined to be 
probable and the amount could be reasonably estimated in accordance wilh 
SFAS No. 5, Accountingfor Contingencies, and subsequently reviewed 
Ihem in light of changing facts and circumstances. 

We recognize changes in estimated interest payable on net 
underpayments and overpayments of income taxes in interest expense and 
estimated penalties dial may result from the settlemenl of some uncertain 
tax positions in odier income. In our Consolidated Statements of Income 
for 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized a $19 miUion reduction in interest 
expense and no penalties, $2 million of interest expense and no penalties 
and a $9 

million reduction in interest expense and no penalties, respectively. At 
December 31,2007 and 2006, respectively, we had accmed $9 million and 
SIO million for the payment of interest and penalties. 

Deferred investment tax credits are amortized over the service lives of 
the properties giving rise to the credits. 

Stock-based Compensation 
Effective January 1,2006, we measure and recognize compensation 
expense in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based 
Payment (SFAS No. I23R), which requires that compensadon expense 
relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial 
statements based on the fair value ofthe equity or liabilily instmments 
issued. We adopted SFAS No. I23R using the modified prospective 
application transition method. Under this transition method, compensation 
cost is recognized (a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. I23R for all 
share-based awards granted subsequent to January 1,2006 and (b) based on 
the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation, for all awards granted prior lo January I, 2006. but not 
vested as of that date. 

Prior lo January 1,2006, we accounted for our stock-based compensation 
plans under the measurement and recognition provisions of Accounting 
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Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accountingfor Slock Issued to 
Employees, and related interpretations. Under this method, stock option 
awards generally did not result in compensation expense, since their 
exercise price was typically equal to the market price of our common stock 
on the date of grant. Accordingly, stock-based compensation expense was 
included as a pro forma disclosure in the footnotes to our financial 
statements. 

The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net income and 
eamings per share (EPS), if we had applied the feir value recognition 
provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation: 

Year Ended December 31, 200b 
(miltions, except per share amounts) 
Net income—^reported^is- Ly.»!>^^hHh-iii! J r ' ! " ! h : i , ' ^ r - ^-$1,030' 
Add: actual stock-tiased compensation expense, net of tax^^) 15 
Cteduct: pro forrria stddt-bassd compehsatiorf expense, net of lax !: ::: (IB) 
Nel income—proforma $1,03B2 
BiasicEPS—asreported.i-nnni:^\l:":^^;'"/-:.-/:;;n;:nr,-,'-, ^^.-i^iWi..]. ; r - - - $ l.sh; 
Basic EPS—pnD fonna 1.51 
Diluted EPS---as.repa^ted•>;^;^•i;=:'"^'^^-VV;:^^":^!!^''>\^.:^;: : : :n: • " I s p ' 
Diluted EPS—pro forma 1.50 

(I)Actual stock-based compensation expense primarily relates to restricted stock. 

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. I23R, we presented the benefits of tax 
deductions resulting from the exercise of stock-based compensation as an 
operating cash flow in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS 
No. 123R requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess ofthe 
compensation cost recognized for stock-based compensation (excess tax 
benefits) to be classified as a financing cash flow. In accordance with 
FASB Slaff Position No. FAS l23(R)-3, Transition Election Related to 
Accountingfor the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards, we have 
elected to use the simplified method to determine the impact 
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of employee stock option awards that were fully vested and outstanding 
upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. During the years ended 
December 31,2007 and 2006, we realized $46 million and $8 million, 
respectively, of excess tax benefits from the vesting of restricted stock 
awards and exercise of employee stock options. Such amounts are reported 
as a financing cash flow. 

Restricted stock awards granted prior lo January 1,2006 contain terms 
that accelerate vesting upon retirement. Our previous practice was to 
recognize compensation cost for these awards over the stated vesting term 
unless vesting was actually accelerated by retirement. Following our 
adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we continue to recognize compensation cost 
over the slated vesting term for existing restricted stock awards, bul we are 
now required to recognize compensation cost over the shorter of: (1) the 
stated vesting term or (2) the period from the date of grant to the date of 
retirement eligibility for newly issued or modified restricted slock awards 
with similar terms. In the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we 
recognized approximately S3 million and $5 million, respectively, of 
compensation cost related to awards previously granted to retirement 
eligible employees. At December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation 
cosl for these restricted stock awards held by retirement eligible employees 
totaled approximately $1 million. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Curreni banking arrangements generally do not require checks lo be funded 
until they are presented for payment. Al December 31,2007 and 2006, 
accounts payable included $93 million and $125 million, respecrively, of 
checks outstanding but not yet presented for payment. For purposes of our 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, we consider cash and cash 
equivalents to include cash on hand, cash in banks and temporary 
investments purchased wilh an original maturity of three months or less. 

Inventories 
Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market (LOCOM). Materials 
and supplies and fossil fuel inventories are valued primarily using the 
weighted-average cost method. Stored gas inventory used in local gas 
distribution operations is valued using the last-in-first-oul (LIFO) method. 
Under the LIFO method, those inventories were valued at $8 million al 
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Based on the average price of gas purchased 
during 2007, the cosl of replacing the current portion of stored gas 
inventory exceeded the amount stated on a LIFO basis by approximately 
$152 million. Stored gas inventory held by certain nonregulated gas 
operations is valued using the weighted-average cost method. 

Gas Imbalances 
Natural gas imbalances occur when the physical amount of natural gas 
delivered from or received by a pipeline syslem or storage facility differs 
from the contractual amouni of natural gas delivered or received. We value 
these imbalances due lo, or from, shippers and operators at an appropriate 
index price al period end, subject to the terms of our tariff for regulated 
entities. Imbalances are primarily settled in-kind. Imbalances due to us 
from other parties are reported in other current assets and imbalances that 
we owe to other parties are reported in other current liabilities in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheeis. 

Derivative Instruments 
We use derivative instmments such as futures, swi^s, forwards, options 
and FTRs to manage the commodity, currency exchange and financial 
market risks of our business operations. 

SFAS No. 133, Accountingfor Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Aclivities, requh-es all derivatives, except those for which an exception 
applies, to be reported in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. 
Derivative contracts representing unrealized gain positions and purchased 
options are reported as derivative assets. Derivative contracts representing 
unrealized losses and options sold are reported as derivative liabilities. One 
of the exceptions to fair value accounting—normal purchases ^ d normal 
sales—may be elected when the contract satisfies certain criteria, including 
a requirement that physical delivery ofthe underiying commodity is 
probable. Expenses and revenues resulting fix)m deliveries under normal 
purchase contracts and normal sales contracts, respectively, are included in 
eamings at the time of contract performance. 

As part of our overall strategy to market energy and manage related 
risks, we manage a portfolio of commodity-based derivative instruments 
held for trading purposes. We use established policies and procedures to 
manage the risks associated with price fluctuations in these energy 
commodities and use various derivative instmments to reduce risk by 
creafing offsetting market positions. 
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We also hold certain derivative instruments that are not held for trading 
purposes and are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. 
However, lo the extent we do not hold offsetting positions for such 
derivatives, we believe these instmments represent economic hedges that 
mitigate our exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices, interest rates 
and foreign exchange rates. 

Statement of Income Presentation: 

• Derivatives Held for Trading Purposes: All changes in fair value, 
including amounts realized upon settlement, are presented in revenue on 
a net basis as nonregulated electric sales, nonregulated gas sales or other 
energy-related commodity sales. 

• Financially-Settled Derivatives—^Not Held for Trading Purposes 
and Not Designated as Hedging instruments: All unrealized changes 
in fair value and settlements are presented in other operations and 
maintenance expense on a net basis. 

• Pliysically-Settled Derivatives—Not Held for Trading Purposes and 
Not Designated as Hedging Instruments: All unrealized changes in 
fair value and settlements for physical derivative sales contracts are 
presented in revenues, while all unrealized changes in fair value and 
settlements for physical derivative purchase contracts are presented in 
expenses. 

We recognize revenue or expense from all non-derivative energy-related 
contracts on a gross basis at the time of contract performance, settlement or 
lerminafion. 

Following the reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the Virginia jurisdiction 
of our utility generation operations, for jurisdictions subject to cost-based 
regulation, changes in the fair value of these derivative instmments result 
in the recognition of regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. Realized 
gains or losses on the derivafive instmments are generally recognized when 
the related transactions impact earnings. 
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS HEDGING 

INSTRUMENTS 

We designate a substantial portion of our derivative instmments as either 
cash flow or fair value hedges for accounfing purposes. For all derivatives 
designated as hedges, we formally document die relationship between the 
hedging instmment and the hedged item, as well as the risk management 
objective and the strategy for using the hedging instmment. We assess 
whether the hedging relationship between the derivative and the hedged 
item is highly effective at offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values 
both al the inception of die hedging relafionship and on an ongoing basis. 
Any change in the fair value ofthe derivative that is not effective at 
offsetting changes in the cash flows or fair values of the hedged item is 
recognized currently in eamings. Also, we may elect to exclude certain 
gains or losses on hedging instmments fix)m the measurement of hedge 
effectiveness, such as gains or losses attributable to changes in the time 
value of options or changes in the difference between spot prices and 
forward prices, thus requiring that such changes be recorded currently in 
eamings. We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for derivatives 
that cease to be highly effective hedges. 

Cash Flow Hedges—A significant portion of our hedge strategies 
represents cash flow hedges ofthe variable price risk associated with the 
purchase and sale of electricity, natural gas and olher energy-related 
products. We also use foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the 
variability in foreign exchange rates and interest rate swj^s lo hedge our 
exposure to variable interest rates on long-term debt. For transactions in 
which we are hedging the variability of cash flows, changes in the fair 
value ofthe derivative are reported in AOCI, to the extent they are 
effective at offsetting changes in the hedged item, until eamings are 
affected by the hedged item. Following the reapplication of SFAS No. 71, 
to the Viiginia jurisdiction of our utility generation operations, for 
jurisdictions subject to cost-based regulation, changes in the fair value of 
these derivative instruments result in die recognition of regulatory assets or 
regulatory liabilities. Realized gains or losses on the derivative inslmments 
subject to regulatory accounting are generally recognized when the related 
transactions impact eamings. For cash flow hedge transactions, we 
discontinue hedge accounting ifthe occurrence ofthe forecasted 
transaction is determined to be no longer probable. We reclassify any 
derivative gains or losses reported in AOCI to eamings when the 
forecasted item is included in eamings, if it should occur, or earlier, if it 
becomes probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur. 

Fair Value Hedges—We also use fair value hedges lo mitigate the fixed 
price exposure inherent in certain firm commodity commitments and 
natural gas inventory. In addition, we have designated interest rate swaps 
as fair value hedges on certain fixed-rale long-term debt to manage our 
interest rate exposure. For fair value hedge transactions, changes in the fair 
value ofthe derivative are generally offset currently in eamings by the 
recognition of changes in the hedged item's fair value. Following the 
reapplication of SFAS No. 71, to the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility 
generation operations, for jurisdictions subject to cost-based regulation, 
changes in ihe fair value of these derivative instmments result in the 
recognition of regulatory assets of regulatory liabilities. Realized gains or 
losses on the derivative instmments subject to regulatory accounting are 
generally recognized when the related transactions impact eamings. For 
fair value 

hedge transactions, we discontinue hedge accounting ifthe hedged item no 
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. We reclassify derivative gains and 
losses from the hedged item to eamings when the hedged item is included 
in eamings, or earlier, ifthe hedged item no longer qualifies for hedge 
accounting. 

Statement of Income Presentation—Gains and losses on derivatives 
designated as hedges, when recognized, are included in operating revenue, 
operating expenses or interest and related charges in our Consolidated 
Statements of Income, Specific Htie item classification is determined based 
Ml the nature ofthe risk underlying individual hedge sttategies. The portion 
of gains or iosses on hedging instruments determined to be ineffective and 
the portion of gains or losses on hedging instmments excluded from the 
measurement ofthe hedging relationship's effectiveness, such as gains or 
losses attributable to changes in the time value of options or changes in the 
difference between spot prices and forward prices, are included in other 
operations and maintenarwe expeiise. 

VALUATION METHODS 

Fair value is based on actively-quoted market prices, if available. In the 
absence of actively-quoted market prices, we seek indicative price 
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information from external sources, including broker quotes and Industry 
publications. If pricing information from external sources is not available, 
we must estimate prices based on available historical and near-term future 
price information and certain statistical methods, including regression 
analysis. 

For options and contracts with option-like characteristics where pricing 
information is not available from external sources, we generally use a 
modified Black-Scholes Model that considers time value, the volatility of 
the underlying commodities and other relevant assumptions when 
estimating fair value. We use other option models under special 
circumstances, including a Spread Approximation Model, when contracts 
include different commodities or commodity locations and a Swing Option 
Model, when contracts allow either the buyer or seller the abilily to 
exercise within a range of quantities. For contracts with unique 
characteristics, we estimate fair value using a discounted cash flow 
approach deemed appropriate in the circumstances and applied consistently 
from period to period. If pricing information is not available from external 
sources, judgment is required to develop the estimates of fair value. For 
individual contracts, the use of different valuation models or assumptions 
could have a material effecl on the contract's estimated fair value. 

Investment Securities 
We account for and classify investments in marketable equity and debt 
securities into two categories. Debt and equity securities held in rabbi trusts 
associated with certain deferred compensation plans are classified as 
trading securities. Trading securities are reported at fair value with net 
realized and unrealized gains and losses included in eamings. All other 
debt and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale securities, 
which are also reported at fair value. Upon reapplication of SFAS No. 71 
in April 2007 for our utility generation operations, net realized and 
unrealized gains and losses on our utility nuclear decommissioning tmsts 
are recorded to a regulatory liability for certain jurisdictions. For our 
merchant generation nuclear decommissioning tmsls, net realized gains 
and losses and any other-than-temporary declines in fair 
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value are included in other income and unrealized gains are reported as a 
component of AOCI, net of tax. We continue to report all other 
available-for-sale securities at fair value with realized gains and losses and 
any other-than-temporary declines in fair value included in other income 
and unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of AOCI, net of 
tax. 

We analyze all securities classified as available-for-sale lo determine 
whether a decline in fair value should be considered other than temporary. 
We use several criteria to evaluate other-than-temporary declines, 
including the length of time over which the market value has been lower 
than its cost, the percentage ofthe decline as compared to its cosl and the 
expected fair value ofthe security. In addition, retained interests from 
securitizations of financial assets are first evaluated in accordance with 
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 99-20, Recognition of 
Interest Income and Impairments of Purchased and Retained Beneficial 
Interests in Securitized Financial Assets. If a decline in fair value ofany 
security is determined to be other than temporary, the security is written 
dovra to its fait value at the end ofthe reporting period. 

Our method of assessing other-than-temporary declines requires 
demonstrating the ability to hold individual securities for a period of time 
sufficient lo allow for the anticipated recovery in their market value prior 
to the consideration oflhe other criteria mentioned above. Since regulatory 
authorities limit our ability to oversee the day-to-day management of our 
nuclear decommissioning tmst ftind investments, we do not have the ability 
lo hold individual securities in the tmsts. Accordingly, we consider all 
securities held by our nuclear deconMnissioning tmsts with market values 
below their cost bases to be olher-than-temporarily impaired. 

Proper ty , Plant a n d Equ ipmen t 
Property, plant and equipment, including additions and replacements is 
recorded at original cosl, consisting of labor and materials and other direct 
and indirect costs such as asset retirement costs, capitalized interest and, 
for certain operations subject to cost of service rale regulation, MI 
allowance for funds used during constmction (AFUDC). The cost of 
repairs and maintenance, including minor additions and replacements, is 
charged to expense as it is incurred. In 2007,2006 and 2005, we 
capitalized interest costs and AFUDC of $103 million, $134 million and 
$103 million, respectively. Upon reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to the 
Virginiajurisdictionof our utility generation operations in April 2007, we 
discontinued capitalizing interest on utiUty generation-related construction 
projects since the Virginia State Corporation Commission (Virginia 
Commission) previously allowed for current recovery of constmction 
financing costs. 

For property subject to cost-of-service rate regulation, including electric 
distribution, electric transmission, utility generation property effective 
April 2007, and cenain natural gas property, the undepreciated cosl of such 
property, less salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation at 
retirement. Cosl of removal collections from utility customers and 
expenditures not representing asset retirement obligations (AROs) are 
recorded as regulatory liabilities or regulatory assets. 

For properly that is not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation, 
including nonutility property and utility generation property prior to the 
reapplication of SFAS No. 71 lo the Virginia 

jurisdiction of our utility generation operations in April 2007, cosl of 
removal not associated wilh AROs is charged to expense as incurred. We 
also record gains and losses upon retirement based upon the difference 
between the proceeds received, if any, and the property's nel book value at 
the retirement dale. 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed on the 
strai^t-line metiiod based on projected service lives. Our depreciation 
rates on utility property, plant and equipment are as follows: 

Year Ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005 
(percent) 
Genera t i onC* / ! ; h!; •»."".:;:::':y^;^-^V^li:-' •-^:v:-
Transmission 
DtstrilHrf|pn';;;;;i j ; - - : ^ = n.;;^n:': j " ' ' - ! - ' ^ ' ' - . " ' / i:;:": 
Storage 
Gas gattiering.^d processing :;: / : : : 
General and other 

(l)In October 2007. we revised the depreciation rates far our utility generation assets to 
reflect the results of a new depreciation study, which incorporates the property, plant 
and equipmeni accounting policy changes that were made upon the reapplication of 
SFAS No. 71, as well as updates lo other assumptions. This change is expected to 
increase annual depreciation expense by approximately $54 million ($33 million 
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aj'ler-tax). 

Our nonutility property, plant and equipment, excluding E&P properties, 
is depreciated using the slraight'line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

— — Estimated UseKil 
Asset Lives 
Merchantg^^tion-HfHJdear; i i ; i : ! K . ^ : i - : ^̂^ 29-44yea^ 
Merdiant generation—other 6-4D years 
General andQther^nnninji:^ ;.:.'.":nnn:n::v ; ; j ;;;: - - - ' • 3 -25yea^ 

Nuclear fuel used in electric generation is amortized over its estimated 
service life on a units-of-production basis. We report the amortization of 
nuclear fuel in electric fuel and energy purchases expense in our 
Consolidated Statements of Income and in depreciation, depletion and 
amortization in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 

We follow the full cost method of accounting for gas and oil E&P 
activities prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). 
Under the fijll cost method, all direct costs of property acquisition, 
exploration and development activities are capitalized. These capitalized 
costs are subject to a quarterly ceiling test. Under the ceiling test, amounts 
capitalized are limited to the present value of estimated future net revenues 
to be derived from the anticipated production ofproved gas and oil 
reserves, discounted al 10 percent, assuming period-end pricing adjusted 
for cash flow hedges in place. If net capitalized costs exceed the ceiling test 
al the end ofany quarterly period, then a permanent write-down ofthe 
assets must be recognized in that period. Approximately 6% of our 
anticipated production is hedged by qualifying cash flow hedges, for which 
hedge-adjusted prices were used to calculate estimated future net revenue. 
Whether period-end market prices or hedge-adjusted prices were used for 
the portion of production that is hedged, there was no ceiling lest 
impairment as of December 31,2007. Future cash flows associated with 
settling AROs that have been accmed in our Consolidated Balance Sheets 
pursuant to SFAS No. 143, are excluded from our calculations under the 
full cost ceiling test. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 
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Depletion of gas and oil producing properties is computed using the 
units-of-production method. Under the full cost method, the depletable 
base of costs subject to depletion also includes estimated fiiture costs to be 
incurred in developing proved gas and oil reserves, as well as capitahzed 
asset retirement costs, net of projected salvage values. The costs of 
investments in unproved properties including associated 
exploration-related costs are initially excluded from the depletable base. 
Until the properties are evaluated, a ratable portion ofthe capitalized costs 
is periodically reclassified to the depletable base, determined on a property 
by property basis, over terms of underlying leases. Once a property has 
been evaluated, any remaining capitalized costs are then transferred to the 
depletable base. In addition, gains or losses on the sale or other disposition 
of gas and oil properties are not recognized, unless the gain or loss would 
significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved 
reserves of natural gas and oil allribulable to a country. In 2007, we 
recognized gains from the sales of our Canadian and U.S. non-Appalachian 
E&P businesses. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Emissions Allowances 
Emissions allowances are issued by the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) and permit the holder ofthe allowance to emit certain gaseous 
by-products of fossil fuel combustion, including sulfur dioxide (SO2) and 
nitrogen oxide (NOx). Allowances may be transacted with third parties or 
consumed as these emissions are generated. Allowances allocated to or 
acquired by our generation operations are held primarily for consumption. 
Allowances acquired by our energy marketing operations are held for the 
purpose of resale to third parties. 

ALLOWANCES HELD FOR CONSUMPTION 

Allowances held for consumption are classified as intangible assets in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Carrying amounts are based on our cosl lo 
acquire the allowances or, in the case of a business combination, on the fair 
values assigned to them in our allocation oflhe purchase price ofthe 
acquired business. Allowances issued directly to us by the EPA are carried 
at zero cost. 

These allowances are amortized in the periods the emissions are 
generated, with the amortization reflected in depreciation, depletion and 
amortization expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income. We report 
purchases and sales of these allowances as investing activities in our 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and gains or losses resulting from 
sales in olher operations and maintenance expense in our Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 

ALLOWANCES HELD FOR RESALE 
Allowances held for resale are classified as materials and supplies 
inventory in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and valued at LOCOM. 

These allowances are not consumed and therefore are not subject to 
amortization. We report purchases and sales of these allowances as 
operating activities in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Sales of 
these allowances are reported in operating revenue and the cosl of 
allowances sold are reported in other energy-related commodity purchases 
expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 
We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually, as of April I, after a 
portion of goodwill has been allocated to a business to be disposed ofand 
whenever an event occurs or circumstances change in the interim that 
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below 
its carrying amount. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over 
their estimated useful lives or as consumed. 

Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets 
We perform an evaluation for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets or 
intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. A long-lived or 
intangible asset is written down to fair value ifthe sum ofits expected 
fixture undiscounted cash flows is less than its carrying amouni. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
For utiUty operations subject to federal or state cost-of-service rale 
regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting periods may 
differ from accounting methods generally applied by nonregulated 
companies. When il is probable that regulators will permit the recovery of 
current costs through fUlure rates charged to customers, we defer these 
costs as regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by 
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nonregulated companies. Likewise, we recognize regulatory liabilities 
when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through 
future rates or when revenue is collected from customers for expenditures 
that have yet to be incurred. Generally, regulatory assets are amortized into 
expense and regulatory liabilities are amortized into income over the period 
authorized by the regulator. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
We recognize AROs al fair value as incurred or when sufficient 
information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate ofthe 
fair value of future retirement activities to be performed. These amounts 
are capitalized as costs ofthe related tangible long-lived assets. Since 
relevant market information is not available, we estimate fair value using 
discounted cash flow analyses. With the reapplication of SFAS No. 71 to 
the Virginia jurisdiction of our utility generation operations on April 4, 
2007, we now report accretion ofthe AROs associated wilh nuclear 
decommissioning of our utility nuclear power stations due to the passage of 
time as an adjustment to the related regulatory liability consistent wilh our 
practice for our other cost-of-service rate regulated operations. Previously, 
we reported such expense in other operations and maintenance expense in 
our Consolidated Statements of Income. We report accretion of all other 
AROs in other operations and maintenance expense in our Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs 
We defer and amortize debt issuance costs and debt premiums or discounts 
over the expected lives of die respective debt issues, considering maturity 
dates and, if applicable, redemption rights held by others. As permitted by 
regulatory authorities, gains or losses resulting from the refinancing of debt 
allocable to utility operations subject lo cost-based rale regulation have 
also been deferred and are amortized over the lives of the new issues. 
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NOTE 3. NEWLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS 

2007 

FIN 48 

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48, on January I, 2007. As a result of 
the implementation of FIN 48, we recorded a $58 million charge lo 
beginning retained eamings, representing the cumulative effect oflhe 
change in accounting principle. 

In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FIN 48-1, 
Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FSP FIN 48-1), to 
provide guidance on how to determine whether a tax position is effectively 
settled for the purpose of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. 
In light of its delayed issuance, if an enterprise did not implement FIN 48 
in a manner consistent with the provisions of FSP FIN 48-1, it was required 
to retrospectively apply its provisions lo the date of its initial adoption of 
FIN 48. In our Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31,2007, we reported that our unrecognized tax benefits totaled 
$642 million as of January 1,2007. In accordance with FSP FIN 48-1, we 
reduced our January I, 2007 balance of unrecognized benefits to $625 
million to adjust for effectively settled tax positions. For the majority of 
our unrecognized tax benefits, the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, 
but there is uncertainty about the liming of such deductibility. 

EITF 06-3 

Effective January I, 2007, EITF Issue No. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from 
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented 
in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation), requires 
certain disclosures if an entity collects any lax assessed by a govemmental 
authority that is both imposed on and concurrent wilh a specific 
revenue-producing transaction between the entity, as a seller, and its 
customers. We collect sales, consumption and consumer utility taxes but 
exclude such amounts from revenue. 

SFAS 155 

Effective January 1,2007, we adopted SFAS No. 155, Accounting for 
Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments (SFAS No. 155), which permits fair 
value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instmment that contains an 
embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation. Our 
adoption of SFAS No. 155 had no impact on our results of operations or 
financial condition. 

2006 

SFAS 123R 

Effective January I, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. I23R which requires that 
compensation expense relating to share-based payment transactions be 
recognized in the financial statements based on the fair value of the equity 
or liability instruments issued. SFAS No. 123R covers a wide range of 
share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights and 
employee share purchase plans. We adopted SFAS No. 123R using the 
modified prospective application transition method. Under this transition 
method, compensation cost is recognized (a) based on the 

requirements of SFAS No. 123 R for all share-based awards gratited 
subsequent to January 1,2006 and (b) based on die original provisions of 
SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted prior to January 1, 2006, bul not 
vested as of that date. Accordingly, results for prior periods were not 
restated. 

SFAS No. 158 

Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 158, Employers' 
Accountingfor Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremenl Plans 
(SFAS No. 158). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the 
overfunded or underfunded status of its defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefit plans as an asset or liability, respectively, in its 
balance sheet and lo recognize changes in the funded status as a component 
of other comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. 
The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of a 
plan's assets and the benefit obligation. In addition, SFAS No. 158 requires 
an employer to measure benefit plan assets and obligations that determine 
the funded status of a plan as ofthe end ofthe employer's fiscal year, 
which we already do. 

Our adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no impact on our results of 
operations or cash flows and il will not affect our operating results or cash 
flows in future periods. The following table illustrates the incremental 
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effecl of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on our Consolidated 
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006: 

(millions) 
AM&ete:-i • ? i h !'V--;;;41»,̂ =; n M J M 
Pension and other 

postretirement benefit 
assets 

R^latoryassets!ii i iM:^ ;: > 
Liabilities: 
Other current liabimies >i:; i i;,; 
Defended income taxes and 

investment tax credits 
Regulatory liabiftties; 1 -̂  .win 
Other deferred credits and 

other liabilities 
Shareholders!'iEqultj^: i i i! n 
AOCI 

Priorlo 
adopting 

SFAS 
No. 158 

$ 1,858 
^iii:ii':i':404^;;: 

;;x;-;:::743n: 

6.097 
MV'M;6ou;^ 

891 
•̂ •'i i n i i i i H M' i; • i 

(90) 

Effect of 
Adopting 

SFAS 
No. 158 

$ (612) 
/;...;:-;i35 

A U : . . ' , [ : : , 2 : i l 

(239) 
Ji i i^ iTr lS- ' 

82 

..,.., . ^ . 

As Reported 
at December 31. 

2006 

' ' ' 

$ 1,246 
B3$ 

746 

5.858 
^:,6i4 

973 
- - •. , : ; ; ; ; n ; ; ' . ; ; i \ 

(425) 

Upon adoption, we recorded regulatory assets (liabilities), rather than an 
adjustment to AOCI, for previously um^cognized pension and other 
postretirement benefit costs (credits) expected to be recovered (refunded) 
through future rates by certain of our rate-regulated subsidiaries. The 
adjustments to AOCI, regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities at 
adoption of SFAS No. 158 represent net actuarial gains (losses), prior 
service cost (credit) and transition obligation remaining from our initial 
adoption of SFAS No. 106, all of which were previously not recognized in 
our Consolidated Balance Sheet. The amounts in AOCI, regulatory assets 
and regulatory liabilities will be subsequently recognized as a component 
of fiiture net periodic benefit cost. Further, actuarial gains and losses that 
arise in subsequent periods and are not recognized as net periodic benefit 
cosl (credit) in the same periods will be recognized as a component of 
olher comprehensive 
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income (loss) or regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities as appropriate. 
Those amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of net 
periodic benefit cost (credit) on the same basis as the amounts recognized 
in AOCI, regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities at adoption of SFAS 
No. 158. 

EITF 04-13 

Prior lo the sale of our non-Appalachian E&P business, we entered into 
buy/sell and related agreements primarily as a means to reposition our 
ofl&hore Gulf of Mexico cmde oil production to more liquid onshore 
maiiceting locations and to facilitate gas transportation. In September 2005, 
the FASB ratified the EITF's consensus on Issue No. 04-13, Accounting 
for Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty (EITF 
04-13), which requires buy/sell and related agreements lo be presented on a 
nel basis in our Consolidated Statements of Income if they are entered into 
in contemplation of one another. We adopted the provisions of EITF 04-13 
on April 1, 2006 for new arrangements and modifications or renewals of 
existing arrangements made after that date. As a result, a significant 
portion of our activity related to buy/sell arrangements is presented on a net 
basis in our Consolidated Statements of Income for 2007 and 2006; 
however, there was no impact on our results of operations or cash flows. 
Pursuant to the transition provisions of EITF 04-13, activity related to 
buy/sell arrangements that were entered into prior lo April 1, 2006 and 
have not been modified or renewed after thai date continue lo be reported 
on a gross basis and are included in the activity summarized below: 

Year Ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005 
(millions) 
Sale activity Hiduded in operating revenue $ 6 7 $576 < $623 
Purchase activity Included in operating expenses^^^ 72 578 651 

(l)Included in other energy-related commodity purcha-ies expense and purchased 
gas expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income. 

2005 

FIN 47 

We adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accountingfor Conditional Asset 
Retirement Obligations (FIN 47), on December 31, 2005. FIN 47 clarifies 
that an entity is required to recognize a liabilily for the fair value of a 
conditional ARO when the obligation is incurred—generally upon 
acquisition, constmction, or development and/or through the normal 
operation oflhe asset, iflhe fair value ofthe liability can be reasonably 
estimated. A conditional ARO is a legal obligation to perform an asset 
retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are 
conditional on a fiiture event that may or may not be within the control of 
the entity. Uncertainty about the timing and/or method of settlement is 
required to be factored into the measurement ofthe liability when 
sufficient information exists. Our adoption of FIN 47 resulted in the 
recognition of an after-tax charge of $6 million, representing the 
cumulative effect ofthe change in accounting principle. 

Presented below are our pro forma net income and EPS as if we had 
applied the provisions of FIN 47 as of January 1, 2005: 

Year Ended December 31, 2005 
(millions, except per share amounts) 
Net income—as r8ported-nin;ni:.".!.;:/;:;;;:!: î :--^^SliEJSS 
Net income—pro forma 1,038 
Basic EPS-Has iTepprted:;;;: u;;; =:; '.i','-\ui ::A{:: :•„ i. i 1.51 
Basic EPS—ijro forma 1.52 
Diluted EPS-Has reported K i'• i •" •' i^:\i'iiii^"' -it^SO 
Diluted EPS—pro fonna V ^ 

If we had applied the provisions of FIN 47 as of January 1, 2005, our 
AROs would have increased by $140 million. 

NOTE 4. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS 

SFAS No. 157 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value 
Measurements (SFAS No. 157), which defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures related to fair 
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 clarifies that feir value should be 
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based on assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an 
asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy of three levels that 
prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. The fair 
value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets 
and the lowest priority to unobservable data. SFAS No. 157 requires fair 
value measurements to be separately disclosed by level within the fair 
value hierarchy. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 became effective for us 
beginning January 1,2008. Generally, the provisions ofthis statement are 
to be applied prospectively. Certain situations, however, require 
retrospective application as ofthe beginning ofthe year of adoption 
through the recognition of a cumulative effect of accounting change. Such 
retrospective application is required for financial instmments, including 
derivatives and certain hybrid instmments with limitations on initial gains 
or losses under EITF Issue No. 02-3, Issues Involved in Accountingfor 
Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in 
Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities, amd SFAS No. 155. 
Retrospective application will result in an immaterial amount recognized 
through cumulative effect of accounting change. We are currently 
evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 157 will have on our resuhs of 
operations and financial condition for the provisions to be applied 
prospectively. 

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. \51 A, Application of 
FASB Statement No. 157 io FASB Statement No. 13 and Its Related 
Interpretive Accounting Pronouncements That Address Leasing 
Transactions, which excludes leasing transactions from the scope of SFAS 
No. 157. However, the exclusion does not apply to fair value 
measurements of assets and liabilities recorded as a result of a lease 
transaction but measured pursuant lo other pronouncements within the 
scope of SFAS No. 157. 

In Febmary 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 157-2, Effective Date 
of FASB Statement No. 157, which delays the effective date of SFAS No. 
157 by one year for non-financial assets and liabilities, except those that 
are recognized or disclosed 
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at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at le^t 
annually). 

In January 2008, the FASB proposed FSP FAS No. 157-c, Measuring 
Liabilities Under FASB Statement No. 157, which if issued would clarify 
the principles in SFAS No. 157 for the fair value measurements of 
liabilities. Specifically, this FSP would require an entity to measure 
liabilities fu^t based on a quoted price in an active market for an identical 
liability, however in the absence of such information, an entity would be 
allowed to measure the fair value ofthe liabihty at the amouni it would 
receive as proceeds if it were to issue that liability at the measurement date. 

SFAS No. 159 

In Febmary 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option 
for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (SFAS No. 159). SFAS 
No. 159 provides an entity with the option, at specified election dates, to 
measure certain financial assets and liabilities and other items at fair value, 
wilh changes in fair value recognized in eamings as those changes occur. 
SFAS No. 159 also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements 
that include displaying the fair value of those assets and liabilities for 
which the entity elected the fair value option on the face ofthe balance 
sheet and providing management's reasons for electing the fair value 
option for each eligible item. The provisions of SFAS No. 159 became 
effective for us beginning January 1,2008. We are currentiy evaluating 
whetiier feir value accounting is appropriate for any of our eligible items 
and cannot estimate the impact that SFAS No. 159 may have on our results 
of operations and financial condition. 

SFASNo. 141R 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), 
Business Combinations (SFAS No. I4IR). SFAS No. 14IR requires an 
acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any 
noncontrolUng interest in the acquiree at their acquisition-dale fair values. 
SFAS No. 141R also requires disclosure ofthe information necessary for 
investors and other users lo evaluate and understand the nature and 
financial effect ofthe business combination. Additionally, SFAS No. 141R 
requires that acquisition-related costs be expensed as incurred. SFAS 
No. MIR amends SFAS No. 109 to require the acquirer to recognize 
changes in the amount of its deferred tax benefits recognizable due to a 
business combination either in income from continuing operations in the 
period ofthe combination or directly in condibuted capital, de|x:nding on 
the circumstances. The provisions of SFAS No. 14IR will become 
effective for acquisitions on or after January I, 2009, except for die tax 
provisions which apply to business combinations regardless ofthe 
acquisition date. 

SFAS No. 160 

In December 2007, die FASB issued SFAS No. 160, NoncontrolUng 
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements (SFAS No. 160). SFAS 
No. 160 requires that noncontrolling (minority) interests be reported as a 
component of equity, net income attributable to the parent and to the 
non-controlling interest be separately identified in the income statement, 
changes in a parent's ownership interest while the parent retains its 
controlling interest be accounted for as equity transactions, and any 
retained non-
controlling equity investment upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary be 
initially measured at fair value. The provisions of SFAS No. 160 will 
become effective for us beginning January 1, 2009. We are currently 
evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 160 will have on our results of 
operations and financial condition. 

EITF 06-4 

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF 
on Issue No. 06-4, Accountingfor Deferred Compensation and 
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance 
Arrangements (EITF 06-4). EITF 06-4 specifies that if an employer 
provides a benefit to an employee under an endorsement split-dollar life 
insurance arrangement that extends to postretiremenl periods, it should 
recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 106 
(if, in substance, a postrelirement benefit plan exists) or APB Opinion 
No. 12, Deferred Compensation Con/rac/5(ifthearrangement is, in 
substance, an individual deferred compensation contract) based on the 
substantive agreement with the employee. The provisions of EITF 06-4 
became effective for us beginning January I, 2008 and will not have a 
material impact on our results of operations or financial condition. 

EITF 06-11 
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In June 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF on 
Issue No. 06-\ \ , Accountingfor Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on 
Share-Based Payment Awards (EITF 06-11). EITF 06-11 addresses the 
recognition of income tax benefits realized from dividends or dividend 
equivalents that are charged to retained eamings and are paid to employees 
for nonvested equity-classified share-based payment awards. Effective 
January 1, 2008, we began recognizing such income tax benefits as an 
increase to additional paid-in capital rather than as a reduction to income 
tax expense. We do not expect EITF 06-11 to have a material impact on 
our results of operations or financial condition. 

FSP FIN 39-1 

In April 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. FIN 39-\, Amendment of FASB 
Interpretation No. 39, Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts 
(FSP FIN 39-1). FSP FIN 39-1 amends FIN 39 lo permit the offsetting of 
amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation 
to return cash collateral against amounts recognized for derivative 
inslmments executed with the same counterparty under the same master 
netting arrangement that have been offset. FSP FIN 39-1 became effective 
for us beginning January 1, 2008 and must be applied retroactively to all 
financial statements presented, unless it is impracticable to do so. We are 
currentiy evaluating the impact that FSP FIN 39-1 may have on our 
fmancial condition. We do not expect FSP FIN 39-1 to have an impact on 
our results of operations or cash flows. 
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NOTE 5, ACQUISITIONS 

Pablo Energy LLC 
In Febmary 2006, we completed the acquisition of Pablo Energy LLC 
(Pablo) for approximately $92 million in cash. Pablo held producing and 
other properties located in the Texas Panhandle area. The operations of 
Pablo were formerly included in our Dominion E&P operating segment. 
Following the disposition of these, and all of our other non-Appalachian 
E&P operations during 2007 and the realignment of our business imits in 
the fourth quarter of 2007, the historical results of these operations are now 
included in our Corporate and Other segment. 

Kewaunee Nuclear Power Station 
In July 2005, we completed the acquisition oflhe 556 megawatt (Mw) 
Kewaunee nuclear power station (Kewaunee), located in northeastem 
Wisconsin, from Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, a subsidiary of 
WPS Resources Corporation, and Wisconsin Power and Light Company, a 
subsidiary of Alliant Energy Corporation, for approximately $192 million 
in cash. The operations of Kewaunee are included in our Dominion 
Generation operating segment. 

USGen Power Stations 
In January 2005, we completed the acquisition of three fossil-fijel fired 
generation facilities from USGen New England, Inc. for $642 million in 
cash. The plants, collectively referred to as Dominion New England, 
include the 1,568 Mw Brayton Point power station in Somerset, 
Massachusetts; the 754 Mw Salem Harbor power station in Salem, 
Massachusetts; and the 432 Mw Manchester Street power station in 
Providence, Rhode Island. The operations of Dominion New England are 
included in our Dominion Generation operating segment. 

NOTE 6. DISPOSITIONS 

Sale of Non-Appalachian Natural Gas and Oil E&P Operations 
and Assets 
We have completed the sale of our non-Appalachian natural gas and oil 
E&P operations and assets for approximately $13.9 billion. At 
December 31,2006, our non-Appalachian naUiral gas and oil assets 
included about 5.5 trillion cubic feet equivalent (Tcfe) ofproved reserves. 
The Appalachian assets that we have retained included about 1.1 Tcfe of 
proved reserves at December 31,2007 and 2006. 

Due to the sale of our entire Canadian cost pool, the results of operations 
for our Canadian E&P business are reported as discontinued operations in 
our Consolidated Statements of Income. The results of operations for our 
U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business were not reported as discontinued 
operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income since we did not sell 
our entire U.S. cost pool, which includes the retained Appalachian assets. 

We used most ofthe after-tax proceeds from these dispositions to reduce 
our outstanding debt and repurchase shares of our common stock, as 
discussed in Notes 19 and 21. 

The E&P operations we have sold are as follows: 

Canadian Operations 

On June 26,2007, we completed the sale of our Canadian E&P operations 
to Paramount Energy Tmst and Baytex Eneigy Trust for approximately 
$624 million. The sale resulted in an after-tax gain of $59 million ($0.08 
per share). We expect lo pay the tax related lo the gain on the sale by the 
end ofthe second quarter of 2008. 

The following table presents selected information regarding the results of 
operations of our Canadian E&P operations, which are reported as 
discontinued operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income: 

Year Ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005 
(millions) 
C^raUhg-T&Kehue'i;i:":H'i::!nii•' :i.::iniiii::;'{I'E:v =;• ii$'82;i:niii.$144\i\\]^:i$i34 
Income before income taxes 145(1) 24 29 

(I) Amount includes pre-tax gain of SI 91 milUon recognized on the sale. 

U.S. Operations 
On July 2,2007, we completed the sale of substantially all of our offshore 
E&P operations to Eni Petroleum Co. Inc. (Eni) for approximately $4.73 
billion. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K. Febnjary 28,2008 



On July 31, 2007, we completed ihc sale to HighMount Exploration & 
Production LLC, a newly formed subsidiary of Loews Corporation, of our 
E&P operations in the Alabama, Michigan and Permian basins for 
approximately $4.0 billion. 

Also on July 31, 2007, we completed the sale to XTO Energy Inc. of omr 
E&P operations in the Gulf Coast, Rocky Mountains, South Louisiana and 
San Juan Basin of New Mexico for approximately S2.5 billion. 

On August 31, 2007, we completed the sale to Linn Energy, LLC, of our 
E&P operations in the Mid-Continent Basin for approximately $2.0 billion. 

Costs Associated with Disposal of Non-Appalachian E&P Operations 

The sales of our tJ.S. non-Appalachian E&P operations resulted in the 
discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain cash flow hedges since it 
became probable that the forecasted sales of gas and oil will not occur. In 
connection with the discontinuance of hedge accounting for these 
contracts, we recognized charges, recorded in other operations and 
maintenance expense in our Consolidated Statement of Income, 
predominantiy reflecting the reclassification of losses from AOCI to 
eamings and subsequent changes in fair value of these contracts of $541 
million ($342 million after-tax) in 2007. We terminated these gas and oil 
derivatives subsequent lo the disposal ofthe non-Appalachian E&P 
business. We recognized a similar charge of $15 million ($9 million 
after-lax) in 2007 related to our Canadian operations, which is reflected in 
discontinued operations in our Consolidated Statement of Income. 

During 2007, we also recorded a charge of approximately $171 million 
($108 million after-tax) for the recognition of certain forward gas contracts 
that previously qualified for die normal purchase and sales exemption 
under SFAS No. 133. The $171 million charge includes $139 million 
associated with VPP agreements lo which we were a party. We paid $250 
million to terminate the VPP agreements and have retained the repurchased 
fixed-
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term overriding royalty interests formerly associated with tiiese 
agreements. 

Additionally, we recognized expenses for employee severance, retention 
and other costs of $91 million ($56 million after-tax) in 2007, related to the 
sale of our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P business, which are reflected in 
other operations and maintenance expense in our Consolidated Statement 
of Income. We also recognized expenses for employee severance, 
retention, legal, investment banking and olher costs of $30 million ($18 
million after-tax) in 2007 related to the sale of our Canadian E&P 
operations, which are reflected in discontinued operations in our 
Consolidated Statement of Income. 

We recognized a gain of approximately $3.6 bilUon ($2.1 billion 
after-tax) from ihe disposition of our U.S. non-Appalachian E&P 
operations. This gain is net of expenses related to the disposition plan for 
transaction costs, including audit, legal, investment banking and other costs 
of $48 million ($30 million after- tax), but excludes severance and 
retention costs and costs associated with the discontinuance of hedge 
accounting and recognition of forward gas contracts. We paid federal 
income taxes related to the gain on the sale in the fourth quarter of 2007. 
We expect lo pay the related state income taxes by the end ofthe second 
quarter of 2008. 

The total impact on net income from the sale of our Canadian and U.S. 
non-Appalachian E&P operations was a benefit of $1.5 billion for 2007. 
This benefit is net of expenses for transaction costs, severance and 
retention costs, costs associated with the discontinuance of hedge 
accounting and recognition of forward gas contracts, and costs associated 
with our debt tender offer completed in July 2007 using a portion ofthe 
proceeds received fix>m the sale, as discussed in Note 19. 

Disposition of Partially Completed Generation Facility 
In September 2007, we completed the sale of the Dresden Energy merchant 
generation facility (Dresden) to AEP Generating Company (AEP) for $85 
million. During 2007, we recorded a $387 million ($252 million after-lax) 
impairment charge in olher operations and maintenance expense to reduce 
Dresden's carrying amount to its estimated fair value based on AEP's 
purchase price. 

Sale of Certain DCI Operations 
In May 2007, we committed to a plan lo dispose of certain DCI operations 
including substantially all ofthe assets of Gichner LLC (Gichner), all of 
the issued and outstanding shares ofthe capital stock of Gichner, Inc. (an 
affiliate of Gichner), as well as all oflhe membership interests in 
Dallastown Realty (Dallastown). 

The consideration to be received indicated that die goodwill associated 
with these operations was impaired and we recorded a goodwill 
impairment charge of $8 million in olher operations and maintenance 
expense in our Consolidated Statement of Income. In August 2007, we 
completed the sale of Gichner and Dallastown for approximately $30 
million. The sale resulted in an after-tax loss of $4 million, which included 
$10 million of goodwill. 

The following table presents selected information regarding the results of 
operations of Gichner and Dallastown, which are reported as discontinued 
operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income: 

Year Ended December 31. 20D7 2006 2005 
(millions) 
Operatingirevenue;;:.:,.;n;:j;iii: "-'i"i';ii ji;'.i'^ hiv " I ' ^ ^ i ^ - : $i41".^;:;5'2a 
income (loss) before income taxes (7) 2 1_ 

Sale of Merchant Generation Facilities 
[n 2007, we sold three of our natural gas-fired merchant generation peaking 
facihties (Peaker facilities) for net cash proceeds of $254 million. The sale 
resulted in a $24 million after-tax loss ($0.03 per share). The Peaker 
facililies are: 

• Armstrong, a 625 Mw station in Shelocta, Pennsylvania; 

• Troy, a 600 Mw station in Luckey, Ohio; and 

• Pleasants, a 313 Mw station in St. Mary's, West Virginia. 
During 2006, we recorded a $253 million ($164 million after-tax) 

impairment charge in other operations and maintenance expense to reduce 
the Peaker facilities' carrying amount lo their estimated fair value less cost 
to sell. The carrying amounts ofthe major classes of assets and liabilities 
classified as held for sale in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at 
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December 31, 2006 were comprised of property, plant and equipment, nel 
($245 million), inventory ($13 million) and accounts payable ($3 million). 

The following table presents selected information regarding the results of 
operations ofthe Peaker facilities, which are reported as discontinued 
operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income: 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 20q5 
(millions) 
Operatlnig revenue,-r i ini i i ; ; ; : : :• $ . 5 $ 42 $ 7 1 
Loss before income taxes (31) (283) (19) 

The Peaker facilities' operating revenues were related to sales to other 
Dominion affiliates. In addition, the Peaker facilities purchased $1 million, 
$14 million and $38 million of electric fuel from affiliates in 2007,2006 
and 2005. 

Planned Sale of Regulated Gas Distribution Subsidiaries 
On March 1,2006, we entered into an agreement with Equitable 
Resources, Inc. (Equitable), to sell two of our wholly-owned regulated gas 
distribution subsidiaries. Peoples and Hope. Peoples and Hope serve 
approximately 500,000 customer accounts in Pennsylvania and West 
Virginia. This sale was subject to regulatory approvals in the states in 
which the companies operate, as well as antitmst clearance under the 
Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. In January 2008, Dominion and Equitable 
annoimced the termination ofthe agreement for the sale of Peoples and 
Hope, primarily due to the continued delay in achieving final regulatory 
approval. We are seeking other offers for the purchase of these utilities. 
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The carrying amounts ofthe major classes of assets and liabilities 
classified as held for sale in our Consolidated Balance Sheets are as 
follows: 

As of December 31, 
(millions) 
ASSETS.'•":-; = ':•;:., ' " ' i . , . - - .^.i i i i ir ,^:l 
Cuirent Assets 
Custrahw receivables • ; 
Other 

Total cunent assets • 
Property, Plant and Equipmeni 
Property plant and equifwnent i 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 

Total property; plant and equipment, net: n 
Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Regulatbiyassets: : ^ r ;, P: 
Other 
: i Total defend charges and other assets ^ • 

Assets held for sale 
L IABIL IT IES: ; : ; ' - / " ' . r : : : i : :uuv i - :h : : i : : , : 
Current LiabiMlies 
Defeired Credttsand OtherLiabilifies - w 
Defened income taxes and investment tax credits 
oiheiriinii^^='-i;ii;Miiii^i'"'':'^' = ;:i ' i: : •' 'rl:-- • • ;, ' 

Total defened credits and other liabilities 
Liabililfes held for sale ; : .; 

2007 

•/' $ / 147 i - , 
109 
256 

ii 1,160 • 
(367) 

; 793 

1(19 
2 

J i , . . i t l i r 
51,160 

S 210 

208 
74 

282 
$ 4 9 2 

2006 

$ 1 4 4 
125 
269 

1,129 
(375) 

; ; : - 7 5 4 

106 
4 

i i m 
$1,133 

$ 236 

187 
71 

258 
$ 494 

EITF Issue No. 03-13, Applying the Conditions of Paragraph 42 of 
FASB Statement No. 144 in Determining Whether to Report Discontinued 
Operations (EITF 03-13), provides that the results of operations of a 
component of an entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for 
sale shall be reported in discontinued operations if both ofthe following 
conditions are met: (a) the operations and cash flows ofthe components 
have been (or will be) eliminated from the ongoing operations ofthe entity 
as a result ofthe disposal transaction and (b) the entity will not have any 
significant continuing involvement in the operations ofthe component after 
the disposal transaction. While we do not expect lo have significant 
continuing involvement with Peoples or Hope after their disposal, we do 
expect to have continuing cash flows related primarily lo our sale to them 
of natural gas production from our Appalachian E&P operations, as well as 
nahiral gas transportation and storage services provided to them by our gas 
transmission operations. Due to these expected significant continuing cash 
flows, the results of Peoples and Hope have not been repoited as 
discontinued operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income. We 
will continue to assess the level of our involvement and continuing cash 
flows with Peoples and Hope for one year after the dale of sale in 
accordance with EITF 03-13, and if circumstances change, we may be 
required to reclassify the results of Peoples and Hope as discontinued 
operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income. 

The following table presents selected information regarding the results of 
operations of Peoples and Hope: 

Year Ended December31, 2007 2006 2005 
(millions) 
Op€rating,reyenue "/;^ I i i!: i r i;-j >"-:;.; i i i M: ii l> ̂ ^ 
Income (loss) before income taxes 78 (112) 54 

During 2006, we recognized a $166 million ($104 million after-tax) 
charge, recorded in other operations and maintenance expense in our 
Consolidated Statement of Income, resulting from the write-off of certain 
regulatory assets related to the planned sale of Peoples and Hope, since the 
recovery of those assets was no longer probable. During 2006, we also 
established $145 million of deferred tax liabilities, as discussed in Note 9. 

N O T E 7. P R O F O R M A FmANciAL STATEMENTS 

(UNAUDITED) 

The accompanying unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated 
Statements of Income for the year ended December 31,2007, reflect the 
sale of our non-Appalachian E&P operations as if it had occurred on 
January 1,2007. 

The pro forma adjustments have been based on the operations of our 
non-Appalachian E&P business during the period presented, the impact of 
the sale of these operations and other transactions resulting from the sale. 
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The pro forma adjustments have been made lo illustrate the anticipated 
financial impact ofthe sale upon Dominion and are based upon available 
information and assumptions that we believe lo be reasonable at the date of 
this filing. ConseCjuentiy, the pro forma financial information presented is 
not necessarily indicative ofthe consolidated results of operations thai 
would have been reported had the transaction actually occurred on the date 
presented. Moreover, the pro forma financial information does not purport 
to indicate the future results that Dominion will experience. 
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Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income 
Year Ended December 31,2007 

Less: E&P Pro Forma Pro Forma 
As Reported Dispoations Adjustments Results 

(millions, except per 
share amounts) 
Opei^ting Revenue $ 15,674 $ 1,318 $ $ 14,356 
Operating Expenses 

Electrlcfuei and 
: eriergy; purchases 

Purchased electric 
capacity 

IPurchasedgasr:;: " I , 
Other energy-r^ated 

commodity 
purchases 

: C ^ ^ bF»ratiOTS and; 
; -rhainteoahp© ;: ; i ; 
Gain on sale of U.S. 

non-Appalachian 
E&P business 

iCJ^reciation, 
ihd^Netionand 

3,S11 

439 
12^766 

252 

4i854; 

68 

(3,635) 

: 1^097; 

(3,635) 

( 8^1 

3,511 

439 
2.698 

252 

3.749 

::;. i amortizatiffli 
Other taxes 

: .Totaloperating 
r:::t;viexpenises 

Income from 
ofierations 

Other in«)me; 
Interest and related 

charges 

1,368 
552 

10,107 

5,567 
• in; \^; . i02, in 

1,175 

431 
82 

(1.957) 

3,275 
;::.^;::;ni;:::r: 

(8) 

8 

(234){-l) 
(153)(2) 

937 
470 

12,056 

2,300 
101 

788 
Income from continuing 

operations before 
income tax expense 
and minority interest 

InccMne tax expense 
Minority interest 
Income from contirHjing 

operations $ 
Earnings Per Share 
Income from cortfirujing 

operations—Basic $ 
Income fnam continuing 

operations—Diluted $ 
Weighted average 

shares 
mjtstandng—Basic 

Weighted average 
shares 
Dutslandinq—Diluted 

4,494 
1,783 

6 

2,705 $ 

4.15 

4.13 

650.8 

655.2 

3,276 
1.446 

— 
1.830 $ 

— 

— 

_ 

— 

395 
153{3) 

242 $ 

- . $ 

— $ 

(71.5){4» 

(71.5)W 

1,613 
490 

6 

1,117 

1.93 

1.91 

579.3 

583.7 

(l)Represents the removal of non-recurring expenses associaied with the completion of 
our debt tender offer in July 2007, using a portion of the proceeds from the disposition 
of our non-Appalachian E&P operations. 

(2)Represents the prorated decrease in interest expense resulting from the repayment of 
$3.4 billion in debt with a portion of Ihe proceeds from the disposition of our 
non-Appaiachian E&P operations. This amouni is comprised of $2.5 billion in long 
term debt retired in connection with our debt tender offer completed in July 2007: SSOO 
million of bank debt incurred at our CNG subsidiary which was repaid prior lo the 
merger of that subsidiary with and into Dominion, effective June 30, 2007; $200 
million of senior noles originally issued by our subsidiary Dominion Oklahoma Texas 
Exploration & Production, Inc.. which were redeemed in June 2007 and $200 million 
of trust preferred securities originally issued l^ Dominion CNG Capital Trust I. which 
were redeemed in July 2007. 

(3)Refiecls the income tax effects of the pro forma adjustments associated with Ihe 
disposition of our non-Appalachian E&P operations based on the weighted-average 
statutory rates for all jurisdictions that would have applied during the period. 

(4)Reflecls the prorated impact of our equity lender offer discussed in Note 21. We 
purchased approximately 115.5 million shares al a price of $45.50 per .thare, with a 
portion of the proceeds received from the disposition. 

Nonrecurring Items Related to the Dispositions 
Certain nonrecurring items resulting from the disposition of our 
non-Appalachian E&P operations have not been reflected in the 
accompanying Condensed Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Income. 
See Costs Associated with Disposal of Non-Appalachian E&P Operations 
in Note 6. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 



NOTE 8. OPERATING REVENUE 

Our operating revenue consists ofthe following: 

•2305 Year Ended December 31, 200? 2006 
(millions) 
Et^cbic sales: 

Regulated 
:: Nonregulated 

Regulated 
Nonregulated 

Other $n»gy-related commodity 
Gas transportation and storage 
Other 

Total operating revenue" 

$ 6.044 
3.099 

1,174 
3,238 

846;: 
1,031 

242: 

$ 5,451 
2,528 

:;1397 
3,524 

: ; 1i,939x 
943 

-: 515::: 

$ 5,543 
3.d44 

1.7163 
4.182 

;:;:2.0a5 
399 

; $73 
$15,674 $16,297 $17,809 

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES 

Details of income tax expense for continuing operations were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31. 
(millions) 
Ciih^nt::::: • : ' i : : u: r iy ' i i : iu:\u ^:: : : i n: i:: ̂  • --̂  

Federal 

Total current 
Defen«d:-'M^: ^:::i:..;::'v^ :•: ^>v:;:::::':^':::!':i:: 

Federal 
-State^::::: ^:'"nj;i'''":-= ""M-i"'S::î  

Total deferred 
i Miortizationof deferred:Hivestmenttax. 
"..i 'credits-' • i i > i i: H: i:: • i ^ -̂  i * '•' ̂^ i::: i i i! •;: - • ^ ' ^ ' l . 

Total income tax expense 

2007 

$2,875 

3.092 

(1,233) 

(1,298) 

i^^::"-{iV):i 
$1,783 

2006 

$195 
139 
334 

536 
: 73 

609 

' (16) 
$927 

"loar 

$420 

533 

86 

^7 

• : : / ( i 

$5^ 
7) 

b 
For continuing operations, the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate 
reconciles to the effective income tax rate as follows: 

200^ 
35.G|% 

Year Ended December 31. 2007 2006 
U.S. statutory^ rate. i^K'^y^ !.:/:. 4^1;:: 
\ncteases (reductions) resulting from: 
i: <30(rfwUV '̂̂ -̂ ate U,S; hbh^Appalat^lan i'•, 
'nilE&P'busHn6s5i:::;^;:::i'i 1;i,u::i:i:ii^i;,•: iIx^. 

Recognition of deferred taxes—stock of 
subsidiaries held for sale 

: :Stat€i ta»e«, riet: of federal beriefitd-i^ ;»; n ii 
Valuation allowances 

: Ippmestteiproduoiioh acSwiliesitteducaiorj: ; 
Amortlzalion of investment tax credits 

\ : Empbyeaj s^ck ; p ^ ^ N p 0arti d^iiction 
Employee pension and other benefits 

n;Other,irieti;-:.rv'ii;:'ii'^i';-i:S^i"::ii':''-'-^"V"'i::":: 

35:0% : 35.0% 

5.6 

(0.2) 
m ^ - r i 
(2.8) 
(0.5):; 
(0.2) 
(0-3);:: 
(0.2) 
0:2 

5.9 
.:::;5.8i:-^ 

(6.6) 
i>i(0.i);; 

(0.5) 
;-(0.5) ,; 

(0.3) 
(1.1) 

— 
' •- 3.9 

1.0 
'^"-^' 

(0.81 
i (0.8( 

(1.2) 
(1. ) 

Effective tax rate 39.7% 37.6% 35. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28. 2008 
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In 2007, our effective tax rate reflected the effects ofthe sale of our U.S. 
non-Appalachian E&P operations, including the impact of goodwill, not 
deductible for tax purposes, that reduced the book gain on sale. In addition, 
we recognized a lax benefit firom eliminating $126 million of valuation 
allowances on deferred tax assets that relate to federal and state loss 
carryforwards, which will now be utilized to partially offset taxes 
otherwise payable on the gain from the sale. 

In 2006, our effective tax rate reflected the tax benefit from a net $163 
million decrease in valuation allowances on deferred tax assets resulting 
from the elimination of valuation allowances related to federal and state tax 
loss carryforwards then expected lo be utilized to offset capital gain 
income anticipated from the sale of Peoples and Hope, partially offset by 
valuation allowance increases primarily associated with deferred tax assets 
recognized as a result of impairments of certain DCI investments discussed 
in Note 28. This net benefit was partially offset by the estabhshmenl of 
$145 million of deferred tax liabilities associated with the excess of our 
financial reporting basis over our tax basis in the stock of Peoples and 
iHope, in accordance with EITF Issue No. 93-17, Recognition of Deferred 
Tax A.sselsfor a Parent Company's Excess Tax Basis in the Stock of a 
Subsidiary that is Accounted for as a Discontinued Operation (EITF 
93-17). Although these subsidiaries are not classified as discontinued 
operations, EITF 93-17 requires that the deferred tax impact ofthe excess 
oflhe financial reporting basis over die tax basis of a parent's investment 
in a subsidiary be recognized when il is apparent that this difference will 
reverse in the foreseeable future. We recorded these deferred tax liabilities, 
since the financial reporting basis of our investment in Peoples and Flope 
exceeded our tax basis. This difference and the related deferred taxes were 
expected lo reverse and partially offset current tax expense recognized 
upon closing ofthe sale. 

In January 2008, Dominion and Equitable agreed lo terminate the 
agreement for the sale of Peoples and Hope. We anticipate that the ultimate 
disposal of these subsidiaries will be structured as a sale ofthe 
subsidiaries' stock; however, we now expect that the taxable gain will be 
detennined based on the sale ofthe subsidiaries' underlying assets. 
Accordingly, in January 2008, we reversed $136 million of deferred tax 
liabilities, representing the adjusted balance ofthe amounts established 
under EITF 93-17. 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net lax effects of temporary differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabihties for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Our net deferred 
income taxes consist ofthe following: 

As of December 31, 
(millions) ' . - ^ i ^ ^ ^ ' 
Deferred income taxes: 
: ; ; Total defwed income tax assets 

Total defened income tax liabilities 
Toiatnet defeoBd income tax liabilities 

Tolal deterred income taxes: 
i i Depredation rrtethod and plant basis differences : 

Gas and oil E&P related differences 
Defeiired state income taxes; i 
Pension benefits 

• Recognition of deferred taxes—stock of; 
: : n ; i i : subsidiaries held for sale : M ; ;:;:;:;: ; . ; , • -

Loss and credit carryfonvards 
: i : valuation allowances :;: . ; i i ; ;;: 

Other 
Total net defened income tax iiabiltties 

2007 

: $1,871 i: 
6,173 

$4,302 : 

$2,724 
520 
506 : 
582 

: ; M 3 6 I 
(157) 

^ ';23 ' L 
(32) 

i; $4,302: 

2006 

: $1,406 
6,91 B 

$5,512 

$2,878 
2,186 

: : 514 
431 

;:;;, 145^ 
(762) 
144 
(24) 

S5.512 

At December 31, 2007, we had the following loss and credit carryforwards: 

• Federal loss carryforwards of $49 million that expire if unutilized 
during the period 2009 through 2021. A valuation allowance on $ I 
million of carryforwards has been established due to the uncertainty of 
realizing these future deductions; 

• State loss carryforwards of $ 1,245 million that expire if unutilized 
during the period 2008 through 2027. A valuation allowance on $696 
million of these carryforwards has been established; and 

• State minimum tax credits of $81 million that do not expire and other 
state income lax credits of $21 million that will expire if unutilized 
during the period 2011 through 2017. 

Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I, 10-K. Febmary 28, 2008 



provision for income taxes and reporting of tax-rclaled assets and 
liabilities. The interpretation of lax laws involves uncertainty, since tax 
authorities may interpret the laws differently. We are routinely audited by 
federal and state tax authorities. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters 
may result in favorable or unfavorable impacts to net income and cash 
flows and adjustments to tax-related assets and liabilities could be material. 

Prior to 2007, we established liabilities for income tax-related 
contingencies when we believed that it was probable that a liability had 
been incurred and the amount could be reasonably estimated and 
subsequently reviewed them in light of changing facts and circumstances. 
At December 31, 2006, our Consolidated Balance Sheet included $187 
million of income tax-related contingent liabilities, tncluding $135 million 
related to our deduction of a calendar year 2003 net operating loss, a 
substantial portion of which resulted from a write-olf related to our 
discontinued telecommunications biainess and $27 million related to our 
use of certain tax credits to reduce tax payments. 

Wilh the adoption of FIN 48, effective January 1,2007, we recognize in 
the financial statements only those positions taken, or expected to be taken, 
in income tax retums that are more- likely-than-not to be realized, 
assuming that the position will be examined by tax authorities with fiill 
knowledge of all relevant information. As a result, we reversed the 
tax-related contingent liabilities, described above, and included such 
reversals wilh the 
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amounts resuhing from our evaluation of tax positions for recognition and 
measurement under FIN 48 in the charge to beginning retained eamings at 
January 1,2007, representing the cumulative effect ofthe change in 
accounting principle. 

If we take or expect to lake a tax retum position and any portion ofthe 
related tax benefit is not recognized in the financial statements, we disclose 
such amount as an unrecognized tax benefit. These unrecognized tax 
benefits impact the fmancial statements by increasing taxes payable, 
reducing tax refund receivables, increasing deferred tax liabilities or 
decreasing deferred tax assets. Also, when uncertainty about the 
deductibility of an amount is limited to the timing of such deductibility, the 
increase in taxes payable (or reduction in tax refund receivable) is 
accompanied by a decrease in deferred tax liabilities. 

A reconciliation of changes in our unrecognized lax benefits during 2007 
follows: 

Amount 
(millions) 
BalancealJanuary 1,2007 , Hi : , $ 625 

lncreases^~prior period positions 64 
: :Dderaases—Iwibrpertadposilioris - . ': ("W) 

Current period positions 70 
i PrkK;[^npd p(^itiOrisbE»^ming;dtherw^ 
:;- vperiod' i i ; i ; y ' - " : : ' : ' ' ~ i ' • • • - . . ^ ^ ' - ' ^ ' i - - ;-(252) 

Settlements with tax authorilies (60) 
Balance at December 31.2007 ; : . s . $ 407 

Unrecognized tax benefits, that, if recognized, would affect the elTective 
lax rate, increased Irom $76 million at January 1,2007 to $101 million al 
December 31,2007. Due lo this increase (excluding the effects of a $1 
million increase in unrecognized tax benefits related to refund claims and 
$1 million paid to tax authorilies for settlements), total income tax expense 
for 2007 increased by $25 million. 

For the majority of our unrecognized tax benefits, the ultimate 
deductibility is highly certain, but there is imcertainty about the timing of 
such deductibility. Some unrecognized tax benefits reflect uncertainty as to 
whether the amounts are deductible as ordinary deductions or capital 
losses. With the realization of gains from the non-Appalachian E&P sales 
(see Note 6), these prior year amounts, if ultimately determined to be 
capital losses, would be deductible in 2007. When uncertainty about the 
deductibility of amounts is limited to the liming of such deductibility, any 
tax liabilities recognized for prior periods would be subject to offset with 
the availability of refundable amounte from later periods when such 
deductions could otherwise be taken. Pending resolution of these timing 
uncertainties, interest is being accrued until the period in which the 
amounts would become deductible. 

For Dominion and its subsidiaries, the U.S. federal statute of limitations 
has expired for years prior to 1999, except that we have reserved the right 
lo pursue refunds related to certain deductions for the years 1995 through 
1998 and tax credits for 1997 and 1998 based on United Kingdom Windfall 
Profits taxes paid. Other parties are currently engaged in litigation to 
determine whether United Kingdom Windfall Profits taxes qualify for the 
U.S. federal foreign lax credit. Depending on the progress of those 
proceedings, we may file a refund claim for these credits in 2008. At this 
lime, we cannot estimate the amount of 

the change, if any, that could possibly resuh to our unrecognized lax 
benefits. 

For CNG and its former subsidiaries, tax years prior to Dominion's 
acquisition of CNG in January 2000 are no longer subject to examination, 
except with respect to amended retums 
filed in June 2007 for tax years 1996, 1997 and 1998, claiming refunds for 
certain lax credits. 

In 2007, the U.S. Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation completed 
its review of our settlement with the Appellate Division ofthe Intemal 
Revenue Service (IRS Appeals) for tax years 1993 through 1997. In 
October of 2007, we received a tax refund of $34 million for those years. 
Due to carryback adjustments, we will not receive the refund for 1998 until 
issues for later tax years, pending at IRS Appeals, are settled. 

We are currently engaged in settlement negotiations with IRS Appeals 
regarding certain adjustments proposed during the examination of tax years 
1999 through 2001. We have reached tentative settlement on substantially 
all ofthe issues, except we are reserving the right to pursue refunds related 
to certain deductions. Negotiations are expected to conclude in 2008 
without any impact to our resulte of operations. 

In 2007, the Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) completed its examination 
of our 2002 and 2003 consolidated retums and the 2002 and 2003 retums 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I. 10-K, February 28. 2008 



of certain affiliated partnerships. We tiled protests for certain proposed 
adjustments with IRS Appeals in July and October 2007. In addition, the 
IRS began its audit of tax years 2004 and 2005 in November 2007. 

With our appeals of assessments received from tax authorities, including 
amounts related to our settiement negotiations with IRS Appeals for 1999 
tiirough 2001, we believe that it is reasonably possible, based on settlement 
negotiations and risks of litigation, that unrecognized tax benefits could 
decrease by up to $47 million over the next twelve months. In addition, 
unrecognized tax benefits could be reduced by $18 million to recognize 
prior period amounts becoming otherwise deductible in the current period. 
With regard to tax years 2002 through 2005, we cannot estimate the range 
of reasonably possible changes to unrecognized tax benefits that may occur 
during the next twelve months. 

For major states in which we operate, the earliest tax year remaining 
open for examination is as follows: 

State 
Penns^vania 
Connecticut 
Massachusetts 
Virginia 
WestVin^nia 

Earticst 
Open Tax 

Year 
20|0O 
2O01 
2005 
2004 
2004 

We are also obligated to report adjustments resulting from IRS 
settiements to state tax authorities. In addition, if we utUize state net 
operating losses or tax credits generated in years for which the statute of 
limitations has expired, such amounts are subject to examination. 

In February 2008, the President ofthe U.S. signed into law the Economic 
Stimulus Act of 2008 (the Act). The Act includes provisions to stimulate 
economic growth, including incentives for increased capital investment by 
businesses. We are currently 
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evaluating the Act but have not yet determined its impact on our 2008 and 
future results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. 

NOTE 10. HEDGE ACCOUNTING ACTIVITIES 

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price of 
eleclricity, natural gas and other energy-related products marketed and 
purchased, as well as currency exchange and interest rate risks of our 
business operations. We use derivative instmments lo manage our exposure 
lo these risks and designate certain derivative instmments as fair value or 
cash flow hedges for accounting purposes as allowed by SFAS No. 133. As 
discussed in Note 2, for jurisdictions subject to cost-based regulation, 
changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedges are deferred as 
regulatory assets or regulatory liabiUties until the related transactions 
impact eamings. Selected information about our hedge accounting 
activities follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
(millions) 
F*prtion of galhs (tosses) ;6rt |hec^ing irtstruments^:;: ; 
: i detetrhih^dto be ineffet̂ ^^^ 
;:̂ ;riat1nidorriB:;::':: •-,:-':':iiiiiii>' =•-- ' '-:::,:;;; i : ' ; ;•;;: ' •:i:i '- '':• 

Fair value hedges $ 6 $(22) $ 18 
: Cash flow hedges(^) : : : ; ; : . : : : ; : : : ; : : :::;: 50 ; 44 ^ (79) 

Nel ineffectiveness $ 5 6 $ 22 $(61) 

(l)Represenls hedge ineffectiveness, primarily due to changes in the fair value differential 
between the delivery location and commodity specifications of derivatives held by our 
E&P operations and the delivery location and commodity specifications of our 
forecasted gas and oil sales. 

In 2007,2006 and 2005, amounts excluded fitim the measurement of 
effectiveness did not have a significant impact on nel income. 

See Note 6 for a discussion of die discontinuance of hedge accounting 
for non-Appalachian E&P gas and oil derivatives during 2007. 

In 2007, as a result ofthe termination ofthe long-term power sales 
agreement associated with our 515 Mw State Line power station (State 
Line), we discontinued applying the normal purchase and normal sale 
exception allowed under SFAS No. 133 to this agreement and recorded a 
$231 million ($137 million after-tax) chaise in other operations and 
maintenance expense in our Consolidated Statement of Income. During the 
fourth quarter of 2007, we paid approximately $229 million primarily in 
exchange for the termination ofthe power sales agreement, acquisition of 
coal inventory and assigmnent of certain coal supply, transportation and 
railcar lease contracts. 

In June 2006, we recorded a $60 million ($37 million after-tax) charge 
eliminating the application of hedge accounting for certain interest rate 
swaps associated with our junior subordinated notes payable to affiliated 
trusts that sold tmst preferred securities. 

As a resuh of a delay in reaching anticipated production levels in the 
Gulf of Mexico, we discontinued hedge accounting for certain cash flow 
hedges in March 2005, since it became probable that the forecasted sales of 
oil would not occur. The discontinuance of hedge accounting for these 
contracts resulted in the reclassification of $30 million ($19 million 
after-tax) of losses from AOCI to eamings in March 2005. 

Additionally, due to interruptions in gas and oil production in the Gulf of 
Mexico and southem Louisiana caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita 
(2005 hurricanes), we discontinued hedge accounting for certain cash flow 
hedges in August and September 2005, since it became probable that the 
forecasted sales of gas and oil would not occur. In connection with the 
discontinuance of hedge accounting for tiiese contracts, we reclassified 
$423 million ($272 million after-tax) of losses from AOCI to eamings in 
the third quarter of 2005. Losses related to the discontinuance of hedge 
accounting are reported in other operations and maintenance expense in our 
Consolidated Statements of Income. 

The following table presents selected information, for jurisdictions not 
subject to cost-of-service rate regulation, related to cash flow hedges 
included in AOCI in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 
2007: 

AOCf 
After Tax 

Portion Expected 
to be Reclassified 

lo Eamings 
during the Next 

Maximum 
Temn 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, Febrtiary 28, 2008 



12 Months 
After Tax 

(millions) 
Commodities: . 

Gas 
Electricity 
Otiier 

Interest ratei ; 
Foreign currency 
•Fb ta f = ^ . : : : • : . • 

$ 

,,,$' 

15 
(12) 
(17) 
(31) 

3 
(42) 

$ 

• $ 

5 
14 

(13) 
' " ' " 'vMi . .^ 

2 
4 

39 months 
4B rhbiitjhs 
36 months 

222 months 
41 months 

/=^^ i 
The amounts that wili be reclassified fix)m AOCI to eamings will 

generally be offset by the recognition ofthe hedged transactions (e.g., 
anticipated sales) in eamings, thereby achieving the reali2ation of prices 
contemplated by the underiying risk management strategies and will vary 
from the expected amounts presented above as a result of changes in 
market prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates. 
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NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table presents the calculation of our basic and diluted EPS: 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
(millions, except per share amounts) 
Iricdrtie frcHn contniuing operations before 

extraordinary Item and cumulative effect 
of change in acdoiintihg prindple: : i:: i i i: 

Income (loss) from discontinued 
operations, net of tax 

Extraordinary item, net of tax :: 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting 

principle, net of tax 

$2i705 i $1,530 ; $ij033 

(150) 6 (3) 
(158) 

n Nrf income $2,539 $1.380 $1,033 
Basic EPS 
Average shares of oornrnoh stodt : i • i i i i 
• ^(MtetfflTding-r-basic, ' l l : l l l ' l l l l l \ ' / l i l l l l l i l , 
income from continuing operations before 

extraordinary item and cumulative effect 
of change in accounting principle 

Income (ktss) fporh disowtinued operations 
Extraordinary item 
Cumulaflve effect Of d i^ng^ in acaiiHiting 

650.8 664.6 

$ 4.15 $ 2.19 $ 1.51 
(0.01) (0.22) 0.01 
(0.24) - -

^^^prindfrfe . 
Net income 
tSiluledEPS, : 
Average shares of common stock 

outstanding 
Net effed df potentially dilutive securittesl^) 
Average shares of common slock 

outstanding—diluted 

_ , 
$ 3.90 

650.8 
4.4 

655.2 

_ _ • 

$ 1.97 

699.5 
3.7 

703.2 

(0.01) 
$ 1.51 

664.6 
4.3 

688.9 
Income from:cQntinuing operations befwe 

extraordinary item and cumulative effect 
; of change in accounting principle 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations 
Bdrabrdihary item 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting 

principle 
Net Nicome 

$ 4,13 $ 2.17 $ 1.50 
(0.01) (0.21) 0.01 
(0.24}: : _ , , ^ _ 

- .^.^ jmi 
S 3.88 $ 1.96 $ 1.50 

(I) Potentially dilutive securities consist of options, restricted slock and contingently 
convertible senior notes. 2006 potentially dilutive securities also included equity-linked 
securities and 2005 potentially dilutive securities also included shares that were 
issuable under a forward equity sale agreement. 

Potentially dilutive securities wilh the right to purchase approximately 
2 million and 6 million average common shares for the years ended 
December 31,2006 and 2005, respectively, were not included in the 
respective period's calculation of diluted EPS because the exercise or 
purchase prices included in those instruments were greater than die average 
market price ofthe common shares. There were no such anti-dilutive 
securities outstanding for the year-ended December 31,2007. 

NOTE 12. INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

We hold marketable debt and equity securities in nuclear decommissioning 
trust funds, retained interests from prior securitizations of financial assets 
and subordinated notes related lo certain collateralized debt obligations, all 
of which are classified as available for sale. In addition, we hold 
marketable debt and equity securities, which are classified as trading, in 
rabbi tmsts associated widi certain deferred compensation plans. 

Available-for-sale securities as of December 31,2007 and 2006 are 
summarized below. There were no unrealized losses included in AOCI as 
of December 31,2007 or 2006. 

(millions) 
2007 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 
Total 
2006 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 
Total 

Fair 
Value 

$1,784 
1.047 

$2,831 

$1,753 
1.003 

$2,756 

Total 
Unrealized 

Gains 

$ 

$ 
$ 

* 

486 
33 

519(1) 

456 
15 

471(2) 

(Ijlncluded in A OCI and regulatory liabilities as discussed in Note 2. 
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(2)Inchided in AOC! in our Cunsolidated Balance Sheet. 

Debt securities backed by mortgages and loans do not have stated 
contractual maturities, as borrowers have the right to call or repay 
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. DCI held $38 
million of these debt securities at December 31,2006. During 2007, DCI 
recognized impairment losses of $27 miUion ($16 million after-tax) due to 
changes in market valuations. DCI also sold three of die residual tmsts in 
2007. DCI still owns six residual tmsts with no book basis at December 31, 
2007. 

The fair value of all other debt securities al December 31,2007, by 
contractual maturity are as follows: 

_ ^ Amount 

(millioris) 
Due in one y6ar,orless:,ii r - . ; : i : i : : : • ' 1 i : ! ; i i ! : vi: - %'\ 7 7 
Due alter one year through five years 291 
Due a f t ^ five years thr&ugh ter tyear&: :; : r: ;;::; i 2196 
Due after ten years ^ 3 
T o t a l ' ^̂ ^ = ^ M : ^ : : ^ ^ H M V - ^ ^ - : ; i ' - , : • > - , - • - . . i ^ : ^ : : ; ' : . - - - • , . . .... • - $ i , f l | 47 

Presented below is selected infonnation regarding our investment 
securities. In determining realized gains and losses, the cost of these 
securities was determined on a specific identification basis. 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2007 2006 2005 

(millioris) 
hta^at^-fot-ssiiB:^omi^s\'^i],lllll '•^:S:.^^ . ^ ^ ^ i;'-

Proceeds from sales $916 $1,025 $754 
^•:ReaAi2£idQsms^>i';-}'-XAilri;::r^^^^^^ 90 : • :|46 

Realized lossesf* 144 77 49 
Trading securities: v -.. • :"1:;. j : i :,;•" :i- / Xliii'iii',-,:ii' ^.y^:. lUri i: \̂~.̂ -l ,J ^ 

Net unrealized gain (loss) ^3] 9 6 

(l)Inclvdes realized gains and losses recorded to a regulatory liabiUty in 2007, as 
d'tsci'ssed in Note 2. 
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N O T E 1 3 , P R O P E R T Y , P L A N T AND E Q U I P M E N T 

Major classes of property, plant and equipment and their respective 
balances are: 

At Decemtjer 31. 
(millions) 
UtlKty:^;^-^; . - : : ' : i' ; • :.-"^,lii, "~:: i m i r l r , , 

Generation 
= 'Transmission-. r: ^:'::::::-:::>:>; 

Distribution 
. : : :S to ragev^ ' : ' : : : ^ " -""- ' • - - . r ^ i i ' i i r - • • • • ' ' • i i i i i - ' u . - ^ - ' i i 

Nuclear fuel 
i iGas gathering and processing i M 

General and other 
' Other-4ndudlhg plant tiHdsr constmction M 

Total utilitv 
NOnutiBty::.- :~̂  

Exploration and production properties being 
amortized: 

.r-:::.:Proved '•' i i i i i i ' i i - ,• '••: , • ; ; : i : i : • - y ' - i i , . / / . 
Unproved 

:: Unpnsved exploration and production properties not 
:;:;: ;betng amortized .v., • - - ; ; - " ; f. 

Merchant generation—nuctear 
Merchant generati6ni--oUier • 
Nuclear fuel 

:Other-Hncluding plant under constmction 
Total nonutility 
Total property, plant and equipment ^ ^ 

2007 

$10,237 
i'^;ii:3,Bi7'^: 

8,332 
1.146 

930 
647 
732 

1,819 
27,660 

1J39 

— 
;\;^ = \ n 

1,077 
1,393 : 

482 
920 

5,671 
$33,331 

2006 

$10,088 
3.627 
7,944 

:J 1.109 
907 

i::,:;,:433 
735 

1,136 
25,979 

,: 11.747 
913 

::i,067 
1,034 
1.311 

441 
1.083 

17,596 
$43,575 

Following the sale of our non-Appalachian E&P operations, costs of 
unproved properties capitalized under the full cosl method of accounting 
that were excluded from amortization at December 31, 2007 were not 
material. There were no significant properties under development, as 
defined by the SEC, excluded from amortization at December 31,2007. As 
gas and oil reserves are proved through drilling or as properties are deemed 
to be impaired, excluded costs and any related reserves are transferred on 
an ongoing, well-by-well basis into the amortization calculation. 

Amortization rales for capitalized costs under the fljll cost method of 
accounting for our U.S. and Canadian cost centers were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005 
(Per mcf equivalent) 
U.S;costc6nter:;i:::;: . $1.90 i i i $1.65 $1.41 
Canadian cosl center —(i) 2.19 1.82 

mcf= thousand cubic feet 

(})As a result ofthe sale of our Canadian E&P operations in June 2007. we discontinued 
the amortization of capitalized unproved property costs for the Canadian cost cenler as 
ofJune 30, 2007. The amortization rate for capitalized costs for our Canadian cost 
center as ofJune 2007 was $1.89 per mcf equivalent. 

Volumetric Production Payment Transactions 
In 2005, we received $424 million in cash for the sale of a fixed-term 
overriding royalty interest in certain of our natural gas reserves for the 
period March 2005 through Febmary 2009. The sale reduced our proved 
natural gas reserves by approximately 76 billion cubic feet (bcf) in 2005. 
While we were colligated under die agreement to deliver to the purchaser 
its portion of future natural gas production from the properties, we retained 
control ofthe properties and rights to future development drilling. If 
production from the properties subject to the sale was inadequate to deliver 
the approximately 76 bcf of natural gas scheduled for delivery to the 
purchaser, we had no obligation to make up the shortfall. Cash proceeds 
received Irom this VPP transaction were recorded as deferred revenue. We 
recognized revenue as natural gas was produced and delivered to the 
purchaser. We previously entered into VPP transactions in 2004 and 2003 
for approximately 83 bcf for the period May 2004 through April 2008 and 
66 bcf for the period August 2003 through July 2007, respectively. The 
remaining deferred revenue amounts were $248 miUion and $510 million 
at December 31,2006 and 2005, respectively. During 2007, in conjunction 
with the sale of our non-Appalachian E&P operations, we paid $250 
million to terminate the VPP agreements and have retained the repurchased 
fixed-term overriding royalty interests formerly associated wilh these 
agreements. 

Sale of E&P Properties 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 



In 2007, we sold our non-Appalachian natural gas and oil E&P operations 
and assets for approximately $13.9 billion, which included the sale of a 
portion of our U.S. full cost pool and our entire Canadian full cost pool. 

In 2006, we received approximately $393 million of proceeds from the 
sale of gas and oil properties, primarily resulting from the fourth quarter 
sale of certain properties located in Texas and New Mexico. The proceeds 
were credited to our U.S. full cost pool. 

Jointly-Owned Power Stations 
Our proportionate share of jointly-owned power stations at December 31, 
2007 is as foUows: 

(millions, except 
percentages) 
Ownership interest 
Plant in service 
Accuthulaled 

depredation 
Nuclear fuel 
Acojrhulated 
i I arridrtization 
i i of nuclear fuel 
Ptanl under 

construction 

Bath County 
Pumped 
Storage 
Station 

60.0% 
$1,013 

(415) 

— 

— 
10 

North Anna 
Power 

Station 

88.4% 
$2,053 

(998) 
457 

(356) 

110 

Qover 
Power 
Station 

50.0% 
5 557 

1141) 

— 

-_ 
1 

Millstone 
Powrer 

Stalion(i) 

93-9% 
$ 791 

i m 
253 

(16^):: 

59 

(l)Represents our ownership interest in unit 3. 

The co-owners are obligated to pay their share of all future constmction 
expenditures and operating costs of the jointiy-owned facilities in die same 
proportion as their respective ownership interest. We report our share of 
operating costs in the appropriate operating expense (electric fuel and 
energy purchases, other operations and maintenance, depreciation, 
depletion and amortization and other taxes, etc.) in our Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 
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NOTE 14. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Goodwill 
The changes in the carrying amount ofgoodwill during the year ended December 31, 2007 are presented below: 

Dominion 
Generation 

Dominion Dominion Dominion 
Energy Delivery E&P DVP 

Corporate 
and 

Other Total 

(millions) 
Balance at December 31,2006 iii 
Sale of non-Appalachian E&P business 
Sale trf Peaker facilities i i i i i . 
Sale of Gichner and Dallastown 
Reallocation due to segment realignment^^! 

$ 1.479 $ 

(24) ;: 

740 $ 1i184 $i 

121 (1.184) 

877 
(760) 

iHZL 

^S\--:ii$ 

1,084 

i16i:i:i$4.298 
(760) 

--;:r;ii=iiii(24j 
(13) (18) 

Balance at December 31, 2007 1,455 861 $ $ - $1,084 S 96 $3.496 

(1) Reflects the reallocation ofgoodwill due lo Ihe transfer of: 

• Regulated electric distribution and nonregulated retail energy marketing operations Jrom Dominion Delivery to DVP; 

Dominion East Ohio from Dominion DeUvery to Dominion Energy; 

Regulated electric transmission operations from Dominion Energy to D VP; 

• Appalachian E&P operations from Dominion E&P to Dominion Energy; and 

' Peoples and Hope operations from Dominion Delivery to Corporaie and Other. 

There was noimpairment of or material change to the carrying amount or segment allocation ofgoodwill in 2006 or 2005. 

Other In tang ib le A s s e t s 
All of our intangible assets, other than goodwill, are subject to amortization 
over their estimated useful lives. Amortization expense for intangible 
assets was $115 million, $106 million and $130 million for 2007, 2006 and 
2005, respectively. In 2007, we acquired $77 million of intangible assets, 
primarily representing software and emissions allowances, with an 
estimated weighted-average amortization period of approximately 10.9 
years. The components of our intangible assets are as follows: 

At December 31. 

(millions) 
Soft<Arafe and Softwrare 
••'licenses :•:;.,:::::::;-. 
Emissions allowances 
Otherr'if^'^ '''^^ll.l.l-ll 
Total 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

$:S9t 
168 

• ' • - • • • 2 6 2 : . 

$1,021 

2007 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

.=$:,̂  

$ 

340 
39 

•^44^i 

423 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amouni 

$ 642 
177 
235 

$1,054 

2006 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

% 1359 
3D 

• •37 

$ 426 

Annual amortization expense for these intangible assets is estimated to 
be $83 miUion for 2008, $76 million for 2009, $62 million for 2010, $35 
million for 2011 and $23 million for 2012. 
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N O T E 15. REGULATORY A S S E T S AND LIABILITIES 

Our regulatory assets and liabilities include the following: 

At December 31, 
(millions) 
Regiiilatory assets:'; Li I'M 

Unrecovered qas costs 
: ; Regulatory3sset&T-iCurTentt^^:::::i:-

2007 

$ 63 
^ ' - • ^ ' • 6 3 

2d06 

t -

$ ' l 1 

hi 
Unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit 

costst^} 
^Custorrieribad detrts^!; .^:-;:"' ' î ^̂ /LVi;".';': i i:;" i i: -̂ -.i 
RTO start-up costs and administration fees'^) 
Def6rt«d cost of fti^ussd in ©IsdTlc generations^); 
Other postrietirement benefit costs*^' 
Income taxesii^cdyeFablelh^cHi^fuHire^ates^?^ 
Other 

272 
70 

103 
386 

47 
30 
49 

135 
, 185 

74 
172 
61 

- we 
66 

Reguiatorv:ass9t&-mon-cuiTent :- 'r ::•:!: -...,:• • : 957 £39 
Total regulatory assets $1,020 $350 
Regulatory liabaiiies:. 

Provision for future cost of removaK^l 623 577 
.iDecdmrnissibningtriKt^'n:;- :::Miii ::: i' i : . . : .487 113 

Othert^OI ' 116 31 
Tbtalregulatorytiabiliti^: : : ' : : : ^ j ^ ••::•. \ ;;: $1,226 $6121 

(l)Reported in other current assets. 

(2)Represents unrecognized pen.<!ion and other postretirement benefit costs expected to be 
recovered through future rates by certain of our rate-regulated subsidiaries. 

(3)Inslead of recovering bad debt costs through our base rates, the Public Utilities 
Commis.sion of Ohio (Ohio Commission) allows us to recover all eligible bad debt 
expenses through a bad debt tracker Annually, we assess the need to adjust the tracker 
based on ihe preceding year s unrecovered deferred bad debt expense. The Ohio 
Commission also has authorized the collection of previously deferred costs associated 
with certain uncollectible cuslomer accounts from 2001 over five years, beginning i» 
July 2004 through the tracker rider Remaining costs lo be recovered totaled $15 
million at December 31, 2007. 

(4)FERC has conditionally authorized our deferral of start-up costs incurred in 
connection wilh joining an RTO and ongoing administrative fees paid to PJM. We have 
deferred $87 million in start-up costs and administration fees and $16 million of 
associated carrying costs. We expect recovery from Virginia jurisdictional retail 
customers to commence at the end of the Virginia retail rate cap period, subject to 
regulatory approval. 

(5)As discussed under Virginia Fuel Expenses in Note 24, in June 2007, the Virginia 
Commission approved a fuel factor increase of approximately $219 million, effective 
July I, 2007, wilh the balance of approximately $443 million lo be d^erred and 
subsequently recovered, without interest, during the period commencing July I, 2008, 
and ending June 30, 2011. 

(6)Costs recognized in excess of amounts included in regulated rates charged by our 
regulated gas operations before rates were updated lo reflect a new method of 
accounting and the cosl related 10 the accrued benefit obligation recognized as part of 
accountingfor our acquisition of CNG. 

(7)lncome taxes recoverable through Juture rates resulting from the recognition of ^ 
ac&iitional deferred income taxes, not recognized under ratemaking practices. 

(8)Rales charged to customers by our regulated businesses include a provision for the 
cast of future activities to remove assets that are expected to be incurred at the lime of 
retirement. 

(9)Primarily reflects a regulatory liability established in 2007 representing amounts 
previously collected Jrom Virginia jurisdictional customers and placed in external 
trusts (including income, losses and changes in fair value thereon) for Ihe future 
decommissioning of our utility nuclear generation stations, in excess of amounts 
recorded pursuant to SFAS No. 143. 

(lOjIncludes $3 million and $7 million reported in other current liabilities in 2007 and 
2006, respectively. 

At December 31, 2007, approximately $659 million of our regulatory 
assets represented past expenditures on which we do not eam a retum. 
These expenditures consist primarily of deferred fuel costs, unrecovered 
gas costs, RTO start-up costs and administration fees, and customer bad 
debts. Unrecovered gas costs and the ongoing portion of bad debts are 
recovered within two years. Previously deferred bad debts will be 
recovered through 2009. 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES I. 10-K, February 28, 2008 



N O T E 16. A S S E T RETIREME^T OBLIGATIONS 

Our AROs are primarily associated with the decommissioning of our 
nuclear generation facilities. In addition, our AROs include plugging and 
abandonment of gas and oil wells; interim retirements of natural gas 
gathering, transmission, distribution and storage pipeline components; and 
Uie future abatement of asbestos in our generation facilities. These 
obligations result from certain safety and environmental activities we are 
required to perform when any pipeline is abandoned or asbestos is 
disturbed. 

We also have AROs related to the retirement of the gas storage wells in 
our underground natural gas storage network, certain electric transmission 
and distribution assets located on property that we do not own, 
hydroelectric generation facilities and LNG processing and storage 
facilities. We currentiy do not have sufficient information to estimate a 
reasonable range of expected retirement dates for any of these assets. Thus, 
AROs for these assets will not be reflected in our Consolidated Financial 
Statements until sufficient information becomes available to determine a 
reasonable estimate oflhe fair value ofthe activities to be performed. 
GeneraUy, this will occur when the expected retirement or abandonment 
dates are determined by our operational planning. The changes to our 
AROs during 2007 were as follows: 

Amount 
(millions) 
Asset retirenrientobligaljpns at December 31 ;2(X)6^P; ; S 1.932 
Obligations incurred during the period IB 
ObligationssietBedduringth© period; i : ! : : ; . ; : : i (35) 
Obligations relieved due lo sale of non-Appalachian E&P business {275} 
AcCTetion-̂ - ' ' ' ' ' i ^ . ' ' l - ' : : . . : . iH.u. i , ' 9 9 ' 
Other {21 
Asset retirement obligations at Dw^mber 31.:2007^"'> $1,737 

(t)Includes $2 million and $15 million reported in other current liabilities at 
December 31. 2006 and 2007. respectively. 

We have established trusts dedicated to funding the fiiture 
decommissioning of our nuclear plants. At December 31,2007 and 2006, 
the aggregate fair value of these trusts, consisting primarily of debt and 
equity securities, totaled $2.9 biUion and $2.8 billion, respectively. 
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NOTE 17. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES 

FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of 
Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R) addresses the consolidation of VIEs. 
An entity is considered a VIE under FIN 46R if it does not have sufficient 
equity to finance its activities without assistance from variable interest 
holders or if its equity investors lack any ofthe following characteristics of 
a controUing financial interest: 

• control dirough voting rights, 

• the obligation to absoriD expected losses, or 

• the right to receive expected residual retums. 
FIN 46R requires the primary beneficiary of a VIE to consolidate the 

VIB and to disclose certain information about its significant variable 
interests in die VIE. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is the entity that 
receives the majority of a VIE's expected losses, expected residual retums, 
or both. 

We have long-term power and capacity contracts with 4 potential VIEs, 
which contain certain variable pricing mechanisms to the counterparty in 
the form of partial fiiel reimbursement. We have concluded we are not the 
primary beneficiary ofany of these potential VIEs. The contracts expire at 
various dates ranging from 2015 to 2021. We are not subject to any risk of 
loss trom these potential VIEs other than our remaining purchase 
commitments which totaled S2.1 billion as of December 31,2007. We paid 
$211 milUon, $214 million and $222 miUion for electric capacity and $ 160 
million, $130 miUion and $159 million for electric energy to these entities 
for the years ended December 31,2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31,2006, reflected 
$337 million of net property, plant and equipment and $370 million of 
debt, related to the consolidation, in accordance with FIN 46R, of a 
variable interest lessor entity through which we had financed and leased a 
power generation plant for our utility operations. The debt was 
non-recourse to us and was secured by the entity's property, plant and 
equipment. The lease under which we operated the power generation 
facility terminated in August 2007 and we took legal tide to the facility 
through the repayment ofthe lessor's related debt. 

As discussed in Note 28, DCI holds an investment in the subordinated 
notes of a third-party CDO. In June 2006, the CDO entity's equity investor 
withdrew its capital, which required a redetermination of whether the CDO 
entity is a VIE under FIN 46R. We concluded dial the CDO entity is a VIE 
and that DCI is the primary beneficiary ofthe CDO entity, which we have 
consolidated in accordance wilh FIN 46R. 

NOTE 18. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT 
AGREEMENTS 

As a result oflhe merger of CNG with Dominion in June 2007, all of 
CNG's former credit facilities have been assumed by Dominion. We use 
shoft-term debt, primarily commercial paper, to fund working capital 
requirements, as a bridge to long-term debt financing and as bridge 
financing for acquisitions, if applicable. The levels of borrowing may vary 
significantly during the course of the year, depending upon the timing and 
amount of cash requirements not satisfied by cash from operations. In addi­
tion, we utilize cash and letters of credit to fund collateral requirements 
under our commodities hedging program. Collateral requirements are 
impacted by commodity prices, hedging levels, our credit quality and the 
credit quality of our counterparties. At December 31,2007, we had 
committed lines of credit totaling $4.9 billion. These lines of credit support 
commercial paper borrowings and letter of credit issuances. At 
December 31,2007 and 2006, we had the following commercial paper, | 
bank loans, and letters of credit outstanding, as well as capacity available 
under our credit facilities: 

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Faciliy 
Facility Commercial Bank Letters of Capacity 

Limit Paper Bonowings Credit Available 
(millions) 
2007 
Five-year joint 

revolving credit 
facilityCT 53,000 $ 757 $ — $229 $2,014 

Five-year 1.700 — 1,000 1 6S9 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K, Febnjary 28 .2008 



Dominion 
credit facilityt^J 

Five-year 
Dominion 
bilateral 
facility*^) 200 - - — — 200 
Totals 

2006 
Five-year joint 

revolving credit 
facilityOT 

Five-year 
Dominion 
credit facility<2) 

Five-year 
Domirwon 
bilateral 
facility(3) 

364-day credit 
facility(*J 

/Tbtals:: - v 

$4,900 

$3,000 

1,700 

200 

1,050 
$5,950 

$ 

$ 

-$-T 

757 $ 

1.759 $ 

— 

— 

— 
HL759i $ . 

1.000 

— 

500 

™ 

_ 
. 500 

$230 

$236 

484 

— 

_ 
$720 

$2,913 

$1,005 

716 

200 

1.050 
$2,971 

(l)The $3.0 billion five-year credit facility was entered into Febmary 2006 and terminates 
in February 2011. This credit facility can be used to support bank borrowings and the 
issuance of commercial paper, as well as lo support up lo SI .5 billion of letters of 
credit. The weighted-average interest rates ofthe outstanding commercial paper 
supported by this facility were 5.66% and 5.41% at December 31, 2007 and 2006. 
re-tpeciively. 

(2)The SI. 7 biUion five-year credit facility was entered into in August 2005 and terminates 
in August 2010. This facility can be used to suppon bank borrowings, the issuance of 
letters of credit and commercial paper The weighted-average interest rates of the 
outstanding bank borrowing supported by this facility were 5.69% and 5.76% al 
December 31, 2007 and2006, respectively. 

(3) The S200 mUlion five-year faciUty was entered into in December 2005 and terminales 
in December 2010. This credit facility can he used to support commercial paper and 
letter of credit issuances. 

(4)The $1.05 billion 364-day credit facility was used to support the issuance of letters of 
credit and commercial paper by our former CNG consolidated subsidiary to fund 
collateral requirements under its gas and oU hedging program. The facility was 
entered into in February 2006 and terminated in February 2007. 

In addition to the facilities above, we also entered into a $ 100 million 
bilateral credit facility in August 2004 that terminates in August 2009. At 
December 31,2007, there were no letters of credit outstanding under this 
feciUty. At December 31, 2006, outstanding letters of credit under this 
faciUty totaled $ 100 miUion. At December 31,2006, we also had a $ 100 
miUion three-year credit facility entered into in June 2004 that terminated 
in June 2007. At December 31,2006, outstanding letters of credit under 
this facility totaled $25 million. 
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NOTE 19. LONG-TERM DEBT 

At December 31, 

2007 
Weighted-

Average 
Coupon(i) 2007 2006 

(millions, except percentages) 
DomiriiDnResot*rcesJric.:ia':j:::'::;;^,-".'i:,;,;';: - " ; ^ ' / • ' • , [ ' • 

Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Noles: 
4.125% to 8.125%, due 2008 to 2012: : : : i i: i 
5.0% to 7.195%, due 2013 to 2035(2) 

: V^ablerates,due20<^;and2008:::::n . i i : :; : '= 
Unsecured Convertible Senior Notes, 2.125%, due 2023*^) 

: ;Unsecured Junior ̂ Subordinated; Notes Payable to AfRliated Tnists, 7.83% to 8.4%, due 2027 to 2031 
Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes, 6.3% to 7.5%, due 2066 

,: Unsecured Debenture® arid Seriior Notes***:: ' 
6.0% to 6.875%, due 2007 to 2011 

i 5.a%to6:875%,due2{M3to2027 : :: 
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust. 7.8%. due 2041 '*! 

VirgiriiaBectrlc and Powsr Compahy: 
Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds 7.625%, due 2007(5) 

: i Secured Barik Debt; Variable rate, due 2007(^M 
Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Notes: 

i 4.5% to 5.73%. due 2007 to 2012 : i 
4.75% to 8.625%, due 2013 to 2037 

Unsecured Callable and PuttaWe Enhanced Securit ies^ 4.10%, due 20381^1 
Tax-Exempt Financings:'^' 

: \feriable rate, due 2008 : 
Variable rates, due 2015 to 2027 

i 4.95%to7.65%,due2007to2010 i :: 
4.25% 10 7.55%. due 2014 to 2031 

Unsecured JunbriSubordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 7.375%. du* 2042 
Oominton Energy. Inc.: 

Secured SeniorNQteii7.33%;due 2020(^1.:: \ 
Tax-Exempt Financing, 5.0%, due 2036 

DominionCapin^i:!n]C-;"i--"'^''^'h' 
Notes, 12.5%, due 2007 
Senior Revolving Notes, Variable rate, due 2017t^'') 
Senior Note, N^riable rate, due 2017(^°> 

5.38%; 
5.61% 
S.53%Mi 

7,85%i' 
6,75% 

6.22% 
5;28% : 

5.03% i; 
5.83% 

:3.86%i: 
3.80% 
5.42%;, 
5.26% 

5.66% 

$ 2,262:: 
3,047 

: 4W : 
220 

':r:^-.268'ii^ 
800 

720 
:i:-^h7ir""' 

• : . ' i - ' i : . - ^ : 

-̂:950̂ :'i 
3,385 

"r 72^ 

'UV:\yl'-m:-. 
137 

,;./:205:^: 
223 

"i:ni:ii412-

i':;iii:^4: > 
47 

:':j^iiiMT5--
385 

::$ 3.050 
3,110 

: 1.400 
220 

: ii :516 
800 

1,500 
: ::i:l.200 

206 

" ' 2 1 5 
: , :370 

i:ii:.000 
1,748 

225 

"::6Q 
137 

:::::"^232 
263 

i>^ 412 

= :^iMi:2i3i 
47 

Fair value hedge valuationi' •' 
Amounts due within one yeaK;12):;: 
Unamortized discount and premium, net 
Total long-temri debt 

i r - r :_-- - \:;';; •5.19%\:. 

:::;14,736:;:: 
9 

:i--=;r(1,471^^ii 
(33) 

:::$13,235 -• 

:, 17.313 
(6) 

(2,478) 
(38) 

$14,791 

(1) Represents weighted-average coupon rates for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2007. 

(2) At the option of holders in Augu.tt 2015, $510 million of Dominion's 5.25% senior noles due 2033 are subject to redemption al 100% ofthe principal amouni plus accrued interest. 

(3) Convertible into a combination of cash and shares of our common stock al any time when the closing price of our common stock equals 120% ofthe applicable conversion price or higher 
for al least 20 out ofthe last 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day ofthe previous calendar quarter At the option of holders on December 15, 2006. December 15, 
2008, December 15, 20/3, or December 15, 2018. these securities are subject to redemption at I OOVo of the principal amount plus accrued interest. On December 15, 2006 less than $100 
thousand ofthe debt was redeemed due to holders exercising their put option. 

(4) Represents debt assumed by DRI from the merger of our former CNG consolidated subsidiary. 

(5) Substantially aU of Virginia Power i property ($ 13.1 billion at December 31. 200 7) ii subject to the lien ofthe mortgage securing its First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds. A llhough there 
are no publicly issued bonds outstanding as of December 31. 2007, we may issue addilional bonds in the future. 

(6) Represented debt associated with certain special purpose lessor entities consolidated in accordance wilh FIN 46R. The debt was nonrecourse to us and was secured by the entities 'property, 
plant and equipment, which totaled $337 million at December 31. 2006. This debt was repaid in August 2007. when the lease terminated. 

(7) On December IS. 20QS, the securities are subject lo redemption al par plus accrued interest, unless holders of related options ^ercise their rights to purchase and remarket the notes. 

(8) These financings relate to certain pollution control equipment al Virginia Power ir generating facilities. The variable rate tax-exempt financings are supported by a $200 million five-year 
credit facility that terminates in February 2011. In February 2007, we exercised our call option and redeemed $62 million of Virginia Power's tax-exempt financings with a weighted 
average rate of 7.52%, with proceeds raised through the issuance of commercial paper 

(9) Represents debt associated with our Kincaid power station. The debt is non-recourse to us and is secured by the facility's assets ($557 million at December 31, 2007) and revenue. 

(I0)As discussed in Note 28, in June 2006, DCI began consolidating a CDO entity, in actordance with FIN 46R. The debt is nonrecourse lo us. 

(ll)Represenls the valuation of certain fair value hedges associated with ourfixed-rale debt. 

(I2)Inchides $1 milUon of net unamortized discount and fair value hedge valuation. 
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Based on stated maturity dates rather than early redemption dales that could be elected by instrument holders, the scheduled principal payments of long-term 
debt at December 31,2007, were as foUows: 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total 
(millions, except percentages) 
Secured Seriior Notes i: 
Unsecured Senior Notes (including Medium-Term Notes) 
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced Securities''^ 
Tax-Exempt Financings 
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affifiated Tmsts 
Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes 
Othe r • " : ; : : ^ : . ^ : i i , ^ i . : / ^ : / ' i ; ^ : ' i : ' ' ' " i i . i ^ 

10 
1,315 

153 

_ -̂
' 'U_' : 

$ 1 1 
313 

_̂ 
111 

• "~ 
~K —. 

'$\ .12:: ; 
822 

— 
1 

:,'-:̂ — , 

:;^::~ / 

' i $ ^ i 3 : ; 
484 

_ _ • ' 

— 
: : . - : -~ '̂̂ i 

; : ; ; ' • : _ _ • 

^i:$"-' t s i i i 
1,470 

::;:' : -:- ; 
— 

ii,i ' u_::.; 

. \ i '": '-i^il 

.̂$̂ ^ .';:^:145 
7,305 

225 
392 

;.,;,68<^ 
BOO 
460 

i;S,-.$'.i.^294 
11,709 

.••^;:22'5 
657 

i i ' i i - - -681 
800 

i i i i ; ' i A - 4 6 0 

Total 

Weighted-average coupon : : : : 
$1,478 

5.19% 
$435 

5.36% 
$835 

5.39% 
$497 

6.35% 
$1,483 $ 10,008 

- ':;5.82% ' ::':: ' -5.75%: 
$14,736 

n i l ' - l i ' ' : . : • • : • 

We repaid $5.5 billion of long-term debt and notes payable during 2007, 
which includes the completion of a debt tender offer repurchasing $2.5 
billion of otu-debt securities in July 2007. We recognized charges of $242 
million ($148 million after-tax) primarily in connection with the early 
redemption ofthis debt. Ofthis amount, $234 million ($143 miUion 
after-tax) was recorded in interest and related charges in our Consolidated 
Statement of Income. 

Our short-term credit facilities and long-term debt agreements contain 
customary covenants and default provisions. As of December 31,2007, 
there were no events of default under these covenants. 

Convertible Securities 
In 2004, we entered into an exchange transaction with respect to $220 
million of our outstanding contingent convertible senior notes in 
contemplation ofthe transition method provided by EITF Issue No. 04-8, 
"Die Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings 
per Share (EITF 04-8). We exchanged the outstanding notes for new notes 
with a conversion feature that requires that the principal amount of each 
note be repaid in cash. At issuance, the notes were valued at a conversion 
rate of 27.173 shares of common stock per $ 1,000 principal amount of 
senior notes, which represented a conversion price of $36.80, recast to 
reflect our November 2007 stock split. Amounts payable in excess ofthe 
principal amount will be paid in common stock. The conversion rate is 
subject to adjustment upon certain events such as subdivisions, splits, 
combinations of common stock or the issuance lo all common stock 
holders of certain common stock rights, warrants or options and certain 
dividend increases. As of December 31, 2007, the conversion rale had been 
adjusted to 27.5294, primarily due lo individual dividend payments above 
the level paid at issuance. 

The notes outstanding on December 31,2004 were included in the 
diluted EPS calculation retroactive to the date of their issuance using the 
method described in EITF 04-8, when appropriate. Under this method, the 
number of shares included in the denominator of the diluted EPS 
calculation is calculated as the net shares issuable for the reporting period 
based upon the average market price for the period. This results in an 
increase in the average shares outstanding used in the calculation of our 
diluted EPS when the conversion price of $36.80 is lower than the average 
market price of our common stock over the period, and results in no 
adjustment when the conversion price exceeds the average market price. 

The senior notes are convertible by holders into a combination of cash 
and shares of our common stock under any ofthe following circumstances: 

(1 )The closing price of our common slock exceeds the appUcable 
conversion price ($43.51 as of February 27, 2008) for at least 20 out of 
the last 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day ofthe 
previous calendar quarter; 

(2)The senior notes are called for redemption by us; 

(3)The occurrence of specified corporate transactions; or 

(4)The credit rating assigned to die senior notes by Moody's Investors 
Service (Moody's) is below Baa3 and by Standard & Poor's Ratings 
Services, a division ofthe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (Standard & 
Poor's), is below BBB- or the ratings are discontinued for any reason. 

As of December 31,2007, the closing price of our common stock was 
equal to $44.16 per share or higher for at least 20 out of die last 30 
consecutive trading days. Therefore, the senior notes are eligible for 
conversion during the first quarter of 2008. Beginning in 2007, the notes 
have been eligible for contingent interest if the average trading price as 
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defined in the indenture equals or exceeds 120% oflhe principal amount of 
the senior notes. Holders have the right to require us to purchase these 
senior notes for cash al 100% ofthe principal amount plus accrued interest 
in December 2008,2013 or 2018, or if we undergo certain fundamental 
changes. We continue to classify these senior notes as long-term debt in 
our Consolidated Balance Sheet since we have the intent and ability to 
refinance them on a long-term basis. 

Equity-Linked Securities 
In 2002, we issued 6.6 million equity-linked debt securities, consisting of 
stock purchase contracts and senior noles. Total net proceeds were $320 
million. Long-term debt of $330 million and an equity charge of $36 
million were recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheet related to the 
issuance. 

The slock purchase contracts obligated the holders to purchase shares of 
our common stock from us by May 2006. The purchase price, recast to 
reflect our November 2007 stock split, was $25 and the number of shares 
to be purchased was determined under a formula based upon the average 
closing price of our common stock near the settlement date. The senior 
noles, or treasury securities in some instances, were pledged as collateral to 
secure die purclwise of common stock under the related stock purchase 
contracts. The holders were given the option to either satisfy Iheir 
obligations under the stock purchase contracts by 
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allowing the senior noles to be remarketed with the proceeds being paid to 
us as consideration for the purchase of stock or continue to hold the senior 
notes and use other resources as consideration for the purchase of slock 
under the stock purchase contracts. In February 2006, we successfially 
remarketed the senior notes related to our equity-linked debt securities. The 
senior noles, which will mature in 2008, now carry an annual interest rate 
of 5.687%; prior to the remarketing, the notes carried an annual interest 
rate of 5.75%. 

Prior lo conversion, we made quarterly interest payments on the senior 
notes and quarterly payments on the stock purchase contracts. Prior lo 
conversion, we recorded the present value ofthe stock purchase contract 
payments as a Uability, offset by a chaige to common stock in 
shareholders' equity. The stock purchase contracts carried an annual 
interest rate of 3.00% prior to their settlement in May 2006, by issuance of 
9 milUon shares, recast to reflect the impact of our November 2007 stock 
split, of our common stock. Interest payments on the senior notes are 
recorded as interest expense and stock purchase contract payments were 
charged against the liability. Prior to conversion, accretion ofthe stock 
purchase contract liability was recorded as interest expense. In calculating 
diluted EPS, we applied the treasury stock method to the equity-linked debt 
securities. These securities did not have a significant effect on diluted EPS 
in 2006 or 2005. 

J u n i o r Subo rd ina ted Notes Payable t o Af f i l ia ted Trus ts 
From 1997 through 2002, we established five subsidiary capital trusts, each 
as a finance subsidiary of die respective parent company, which holds 
100% ofthe voting interests. The tnists sold trust preferred securities 
representing preferred beneficial interests and 97% beneficial ownership in 
the assets held by the trusts. In exchange for the funds realized from the 
sale ofthe trust preferred securities and common securities that represent 
the remaining 3% beneficial ownership interest in the assets held by the 
capital trusts, we issued various junior subordinated notes. The junior 
subordinated notes constitute 100% of each capital trust's assets. Each trust 
must redeem its trust preferred securities when their respective junior 
subordinated notes are repaid at maturity or if redeemed prior to maturity. 

In July and August 2007, we redeemed approximately 240 thousand 
units ofthe $250 million 8.4% Dominion Capital Trust III debentures due 
January 15, 2031. Thesecurities were redeemed at apriceof $1,209 per 
preferred security plus accrued and unpaid distributions. 

In July 2007, we redeemed all 8 milUon units ofthe $200 milUon 7.8% 
Dominion CNG Capital Trust I debentures due October 31,2041. The 
securities were redeemed at a price of $25 per preferred security plus 
accrued and unpaid distributions. 

In October 2006, we redeemed all 12 million units ofthe $300 million 
8.4% Dominion Resources Capilal Trust II debentures due January 30, 
2041. The securities were redeemed at a price of $25 per preferred security 
plus accrued and unpaid distributions. 

The following table provides summary infonnation about the trust 
preferred securities and junior subordinated noles outstanding as of 
December 31,2007: 

Date 
Established Capital Tnjsts Units 

Tmst 
Prefened 
Securities 

Rale Amount 

Common 
Securities 

Amount 

December 1997 

January 2001 

August 2002 

Dominion 
Resources 
Capital Trust 

Dominion 
Resources 
Capita! Trust 
111(2) 
^^rginia Power 
Capital Trust 
11(3) 

(thousands) (millions) 

250 7.83% $250 $ 7.7 

10 8.4% 10 0.3 

16.000 7.375% 400 12.4 

Junior subordinated notes/debentures held as assets by each capital trust were as follows: 

(I)$258 milUon—Dominion Resources. Inc. 7.83% Debenmres due 12/1/2027. 

(2)$10 million—Dominion Resources. Inc. 8.4% Debentures due 1/13/2031. 

(3)$412 million—Virginia Power 7.375% Debentures due 7/30/2042. 
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Distribution payments on the trust preferred securities are considered to 
be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the respective parent company 
that issued the debt instruments held by each trust, when aU ofthe related 
agreements are taken into consideration. Each guarantee agreement only 
provides for the guarantee of distribution payments on the relevant trust 
preferred securities to the extent that the trust has funds legally and 
immediately available to make distributions. The trust's ability to pay 
amounts when they are due on the trust preferred securities is dependent 
solely upon the payment of amounts by Dominion or Virginia Power when 
they are due on the junior subordinated noles. We may defer interest 
payments on the junior subordinated notes on one or more occasions for up 
to five consecutive years and the related trusts must also defer 
distributions. If the payment on the junior subordinated notes is deferred, 
ihe company dial issued them may not make distributions related to its 
capital stock, including dividends, redemptions, repurchases, liquidation 
payments or guarantee payments. Also, during the deferral period, the 
company that issued them may not make any payments on, redeem or 
repurchase any debt securities that are equal in right of payment with, or 
subordinated to, the junior subordinated notes. 

Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes 
In June 2006 and September 2006, we issued $300 million of 2006 Series 
A Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes due 2066 (June hybrids) and $500 
miUion of 2006 Series B Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes due 2066 
(September hybrids), respectively. The June hybrids will bear interest at 
7.5% per year until June 30, 2016. Thereafter, they will bear interest at the 
three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 2.825%, reset 
quarterly. The September hybrids will bear interest at 6.3% per year until 
September 30, 2011. Thereafter, they will bear interest at the three-month 
LIBOR plus 2.3%, reset quarterly. We may defer interest payments on the 
hybrids on one or more occasions for up to 10 consecutive years. Ifthe 
interest payments on the hybrids are deferred, we may not make dis-
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tributions related lo our capital stock, including dividends, redemptions, 
repurchases, liquidation payments or guarantee payments. Also, during the 
deferral period, we may not make any payments on or redeem or 
repurchase any debt securities that are equal in right of payment with, or 
subordinated to, the hybrids. 

NOTE 20. SUBSIDIARY PREFERRED STOCK 

Dominion is authorized to issue up to 20 miUion shares of preferred stock, 
however, none were issued and outstanding at December 31,2007 or 2006. 

Virginia Power is authorized to issue up lo 10 million shares of preferred 
stock, $100 liquidation preference, and had 2.59 million preferred shares 
issued and outstanding at December 31,2007 and 2006. Upon involuntary 
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Virginia Power, each share would 
be entitled to receive $100 plus accmed dividends. Dividends are 
cumulative. 

Holders of Virginia Power's outstanding preferred stock are not entitied 
to voting rights except, under certain provisions ofthe amended and 
restated articles of incorporation and related provisions of Virginia law 
restricting corporate action, or upon default in dividends, or in special 
statutory proceedings and as required by Virginia law (such as mergers, 
consolidations, sales of assets, dissolution and changes in voting rights or 
priorities ofprsferred stock). 

Presented below are the series of Virginia Power preferred stock not 
subject to mandatory redemption that were outstanding as of December 31, 
2007: 

Dividend 

$5.00: i^-l.-
4.04 

\4 .20- : . - ' l l l l ' - . ryi i i : :^:^.: 
4.12 

^ 4 . 8 0 - ^ ^ " > - = ..:^^-: • • : - ^ , > . > : i ; M i i ; ' ; - -

7.05 
i :B.98::- y^rhl l ,^--. ^ - } f r \ l ' 
Flex MMP 12/02, SeriesA 
TOtaf r , ' ^ l l l r - l 

Issued and 
Outstanding 

Shares 
(thousands) 

107 
13 

A l . . :•• , , ; : ; : : : , ; : 1 5 : \ 

32 
i i i i ' : . - - i i i i i i^73' i ;^ 

500 
,̂  .,;^:,: = '800 ,. 

1,250 
r;;:::;-^-^2,590 '̂ ^ 

Entitled Per Share 
Upon Uquidation 

$ : : :; 112.50 
102.27 

;i102.50 
103.73 
101.00 
102.12(1) 
102.10(2} 
100.00(3) 

(I) Through 7/3I/200S; $101.77 commencing 8/1/2008; amounts decline in steps 
thereafter to $100.00 by 8/1/2013. 

(2)Through 8/31/2008; $101.75 commencing 9/1/2008; amounts decline in steps 
thereafter lo $100.00 by 9/1/2013. 

(3)Dividend rate was 5.50% through 12/20/2007. Dividend rale is now 6.25% through 
3/20/2011; after which, the rate will be determined according to periodic auctions for 
periods estabUshed by Virginia Power at the lime oflhe auction process. 

NOTE 21. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Issuance of Common Stock 
In 2007, we received cash proceeds of $226 million for 7.6 million shares 
issued in connection with die exercise of employee stock options. During 
2007, we purchased our common stock on t ^ open market with the 
proceeds received through Dominion Direct (a dividend reinvestment and 
open enrollment direct stock purchase plan) and employee savings 

plans, rather than having additional new common shares issued. In January 
2008, we began issuing additional new common shares lo be used for these 
programs. 

Repurchases of Common Stock 
In 2007, we repurchased 129.0 miUion shares of common stock for 
approximately $5.8 billion. This amouni includes the completion of our 
equity tender offer in August 2007, in which we purchased approximately 
115.5 million shares at a price of $45.50 per share for a total cost of 
approximately $5.3 billion, excluding fees and expenses related to the 
tender. 

In December 2006, we entered into a prepaid accelerated share 
repurchase agreement (ASR) with a financial institution as the 
counterparty. Under the ASR, we would receive between 11.2 million and 
13.0 million shares in exchange for the prepayment. At the time of 
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execution of the ASR, we made a prepayment of $500 million and the 
counterparty initially delivered approximately 10.1 million shares to us. 
The final number of shares to be delivered lo the Company was determined 
by the volume weighted average price of our common slock over the 
period commencing on December 12,2006 and terminating on May 16, 
2007. In May 2007, the counterparty delivered approximately 1.6 million 
additional shares to us in completion ofthe ASR. 

At December 31,2007, the remaining stock repurchase authorization 
provided by our Board of Directors is the lesser of 54 miUion shares or 
$2.7 billion of our outstanding common stock. 

Shares Reserved f o r I ssuance 
At December 31, 2007, we had a total of 46 million share|reserved and 
available for issuance for the following: Dominion Direct , employee 
stock awards, employee savings plans, director slock compensation plans 
and contingent convertible senior notes. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
Presented in the table below is a siunmary of AOCI by component: 

At December 31. 2007 2006 
(millions) 
Netunraatized:los$^c>ridi6riyative&--^iedging^^<^ J 

:activities.net6f;taxi6f:$30land$266,respectively : ; i:;i;i5.(42) '|; $(432) 
Net unrealized gains on investment securities, net of 

tax of $116 and $187, respectively 180 282 
N^tdrirecxjgriized pensaon; and other postreitirement; i 

benefit caste, r̂ et of tax; Of $149:arid $239, 
, :Tespect ively i : ; ' ; i i ' ; i ; : ' :n i 'x , . : ' i i ; ' i : : " : ' i -v- : : : ' ' •r '^: : ;{150): i"^ ''(33|5) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments —<i} 90 
Total accumulated ottiercomprehensive loss:: : : ; $ (12) $(42)5) 

(l)Decreaseisduetothesaleofour Canadian E&P business in June 2007. 

Stock -Based A w a r d s 
In April 2005, our shareholders approved the 2005 Incentive Compensation 
Plan (2005 Incentive Plan) for employees and the Non-Employee Directors 
Compensation Plan (Non-Employee Directors Plan). The 2005 Incentive 
Plan permits stock-based awards that include restricted stock, perfonnance 
grants, goal-based stock and stock options, and the Non-Employee 
Directors 
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Plan permits restricted stock and stock options. Under provisions of both 
plans, employees and non-employee directors may be granted options to 
purchase common stock at a price not less than its fair market value at the 
date of grant with a maximum lerm of eight years. Option terms are set at 
the discretion ofthe Compensation, Governance and Nominating (CGN) 
Committee of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors itself, as 
provided under each individual plan. At December 31,2007, 
approximately 29 million shares were available for future grants under 
these plans. Prior lo April 2005, we had an incentive compensation plan 
that provided stock options and restricted stock awards to du-ectors, 
executives and other key employees with vesting periods from one to five 
years. Stock options generally had contractual terms from six and one half 
to ten years in length. 

Our results for the years ended December 31, 2007,2006 and 2005 
include $57 million, $31 milUon and $25 million, respectively, of 
compensation costs and $21 million, $11 million and $10 miUion, 
respectively, of income tax benefits related to our stock-based 
compensation arrangements. Stock-based compensation cost is reported in 
other operations and maintenance expense in our Consolidated Statements 
of Income. 

STOCK OPTIONS 

The following table provides a summary of changes in amounts of stock 
options outstanding as of and for the years ended December 31,2007,2006 
and 2005. No options were granted under any plan in 2007, 2006 or 2005. 

pijtstanding at 
!: December 31, 
i2004 

Exercisable at 
December 31. 
2004 

Exercised • i i 
Fodeited/expired 
Outstanding and 

exercisable at 
December 31. 
2005 

Exercised 
Forfeited/expired 
Outstanding and 

exercisable at 
December 31, 
2006 

Exercised 
Forfeited/expired 
Outstanding and 

Bxnrclsabte at 
December 31, 
20U7 

Shares 
(thousands) 

27.616 

21.536 
: (11.158) 

(30) 

16,428 
(1.395) 

(42) 

14.491 
(7.453) 

(17) 

7,021 

Weighled-
average 

Exercise Price 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
s 

. , 1 „ 

30.09 

30.01 
I 29m 

31.27 

30.21 
29.88 
30.40 

30.26 
30.06 
30.44 

30.46 

Weighted-
average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 

(years) 

2.B 

Aggregated 
Intrinsic 

Value (1) 
(millions) 

$ - 77 

$ 19 

$ 108 

$ 120 

(l)lntrinsic value represents the difference between the exercise price ofthe option and 
the market value of our slock. 

We issue new shares to salisly stock option exercises. We received cash 
proceeds from the exercise of stock options of approximately $226 million, 
$54 million and $335 million in the years ended December 31, 2007,2006 
and 2005, respectively. 

RESTRICTED STOCK 

The fair value of our restricted stock awards is equal to the market price of 
our stock on the date of grant. These awards generally vest over a 
three-year service period and are settled by issuing new shares. The 
following table provides a summary of restricted stock activity for the 
years ended December 31,2007,2006 and 2005: 

Weighted-
average 

Grant 
Date Fair 

Shares Value. 
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(thousands) 
Nonvested at December 31,2004 1,920 $ 30.17 
Granted 498 37,26 
Vested (60) 31.23 
Cancelled and forfeited [96J 31.64 
Nonvested at December 31,2005 
Granted 
Vestedri;, " ' ^ ; • i ^ ;!, - - A A - . r 
Cancelled and forfeited 
Nonvested at December 31,20Q6 . : 
Granted 
Vested- •. ' ; i ' : , i i i i '^-:•-••;>:--^' i::-:: 
Cancelled and forfeited 
Nonvested at December 31. 2007 : 

2.262 
675 

• . " - : T - ( 3 6 1 ) / : ' ; 
(83) 

2.493 
SOB 

(S97) 
(90) 

2.014 

$ 

$ 

$ 

31.b4 
35.22 
30.38 
33.77 
32.tr2 
44.53 
33.00 
38.33 
35.^1 

As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation cost related to 
nonvested restricted stock awards totaled $25 million and is expected to be 
recognized over a wei^ted-average period of 1.5 years. The fair value of 
restricted stock awards tiiat vested was $30 million, $14 milUon and $2 
million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Employees may elect to have 
shares of restricted stock withheld upon vesting to satisfy tax withholding 
obUgations. The number of shares withheld will vary for each employee 
depending on the vesting date fair value of Dominion stock and the 
applicable federal, state and local tax withholding rates. 
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GOAL-BASED STOCK 

Goal-based stock awards are generally granted to key non-officer 
employees on an annual basis. Goal-based stock awards were also granted 
in lieu of cash-based performance grants to certain officers who had not 
achieved a certain level of share ownership. The issuance of awards is 
based on the achievement of multiple performance mehics during a 
two-year period, including return on invested capital and total shareholder 
return relative to that of a peer group of companies. The actual number of 
shares issued will vary between zero and 200% of targeted shares 
depending on the level of performance metrics achieved. The fair value of 
goal-based stock is equal to the market price of our stock on the date of 
grant. These awards generally vest over a three-year service period and are 
settled by issuing new shares. The following table provides a summary of 
goal-based stock activity for tiie years ended December 31,2007 and 2006: 

Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vfested":-:::;;,: 
Cancelled and forfeited 
Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 
Nonvested af December 31 

2005 , . 

2006 ;: ;: : 

2007 ;̂  

Targeted 
Number of 

Shares 
(ttiQusands) 

' :.. ~ .̂~: -'—'-: ^ 
200 

. . • • • — • L : i - ' — ' Z ^ -

(6) 
; . „ 194 

160 
: (32) 

(33) 
289 

Weighted-
average 

Grant 
Date Fair 

Value 

,,% . ' : -
34.77 

l ~ l : l i : r ' ' — 

34.77 
$ 34.77 

44.24 
34.77 
35.03 

$ 39.16 

At December 31, 2007, the targeted number of shares expected to be 
issued under these awards was approximately 289 thousand. In January 
2008, the CGN determined tiiat die total number of shares expected lo be 
issued under the goal-based stock awards is 359 thousand, based on the 
actual performance against metrics, as amended in January 2008, 
established for those awards whose performance period ended on 
December 31,2007, 

As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation cosl related to 
nonvested goal-based stock awards totaled $8 million and is expected to be 
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years. 

CASH-BASED PERFORMANCE GRANT 

In April 2006, a cash-based performance grant was made to officers. 
Payout of the performance grant will occur by March 15,2008 and is based 
on the achievement of two performance metrics during 2006 and 2007: 
remm on invested capital and total shareholder retum relative to that of a 
peer group of companies. Actual payout will vary between zero and 200% 
ofthe taiigeted amount, depending on the level of performance metrics 
achieved. At December 31, 2007, the targeted amount of the grant was $ 13 
miUion, however the actual payout will be $18 million based on the 
performance metrics achieved. 

In April 2007, a cash-based performance grant was made to officers. 
Payout of the performance grant will occur by March 15, 2009 and is based 
on the achievement of two performance metrics during 2007 and 2008: 
return on invested capital and tolal shareholder retum relative to that of a 
peer group of companies. 

At December 31,2007, the tai^eted amount ofthe grant is $14 million, but 
actual payout will vary between zero and 200% ofthe targeted amount 
depending on the level of performance metrics achieved. 

At December 31,2007, a liability of $25 million has been accrued for 
these awards. 

N O T E 22 , DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS 

The Virginia Commission may prohibit any public service company, 
including Virginia Power, irom declaring or paying a dividend to an 
affiliate, if found to be detrimental to the public interest. At December 31, 
2007, the Virginia Commission had not restricted the payment of dividends 
by Virginia Power. 

Certain agreements associated with our credit facilities contain 
restrictions on the ratio of our debt to total capitalization. These limitations 
did not restrict our ability to pay dividend.* or receive dividends from our 
subsidiaries at December 31, 2007. 

See Note 19 for a description of potential restrictions on dividend 
payments by us and certain of our subsidiaries in connection with the 
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deferral of distribution payments on trust preferred securities or interest 
payments on enhanced junior subordinated notes. 

NOTE 23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

We provide certain benefits to eligible active employees, retirees and 
qualifying dependents. Under the terms of our benefit plans, we reserve the 
right to change, modify or terminate the plans. From time to time in the 
past, benefits have changed, and some of these changes have reduced 
benefits. 

We maintain qualified noncontributory defined benefit pension plans 
covering virtually all employees. Retirement benefits are based primarily 
on years of service, age and the employee's compensation. Our funding 
policy is to generally contribute annually an amount that is in accordance 
with the provisions ofthe Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974. The pension program also provides benefits to certain retired 
executives under company-sponsored nonqualified employee benefit plans. 
Certain of tiiese nonqualified plans are funded through contributions to a 
grantor trust. 

We provide retiree health care and life insurance benefits with annual 
employee premiums based on several factors such as age, retirement date 
and years of service. 

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and 
Modernization Act of 2003 (the Medicare Act) was signed into law. The 
Medicare Act introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare 
(Medicare Part D), as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health 
care benefii plans that provide a benefii that is at least actuarially 
equivalent lo Medicare Part D. We have determined that the prescription 
drug benefii offered under our other postretirement benefit plans is at leasl 
actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D and therefore, we expect to 
receive the federal subsidy offered under the Medicare Act. 

We use December 31 as the measurement date for all of our employee 
benefit plans. We use the market-related value of pension plan assets to 
determine the expected return on pension plan assets, a component of net 
periodic pension cost. The market-

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K, February 28, 2008 
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related value recognizes changes in fair value on a straight-line basis over a 
four-year period. Changes in fair value are measured as the difference 
between the expected and actual plan asset returns, including dividends, 
interest and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses. 

The following table summarizes the changes in our pension and other 
postretiremenl benefii plan obligations and plan assets and includes a 
statement ofthe plans' funded status: 

Year Ended December 31, 
(millions) 
Ct^nge in benefit 
: Obligation: 

Benefit obligation at 
beginning of year 

:; Service cost 
Interest cosl 

t:Benef!tspad , ; : 
Actuarial (aain) loss during 

Iheyeart^l 
; •; Pian amemfrnente . i : :: 

Curtailments 
Benefii obligation at end of : 
^^ye^r 7 \ : r - " i - - ' -A : : i : i - - ^ : 
Change in plan assete: 

Fair vakie Of plan assets at 
;;: beginhifigi of year :::;:•-;; 

Actual return on plan 
assets 

; Contribulrohs 
Ber\ef\ts paid from plan 

assets 
Fair value of plan assets af 
:: end of year - i 
Funded status at end of year 
Amounts recognized in the : 

Cohsolldated Balanice r 
Sheets at becismber 31:: j 

Noncurrent pension and 
Other postretirement 
benefit assets 

OthwCgrrentHabHities:^ :::::;; 
Other deferred credits and 

other liabilities 
Net amount recognized • ::: — 

Pension Benefrts 
2007 

$3,666 
: : / ' ' : i i Z r 

222 
: (164) 

(139) 
• /•L ' :4 -

(8) 

iî $3,693';':^ 

iii$Hi7S(3:, 

461 
1:1 B '' 

(164) 

$5,098 ; 
$1,405 

$1,544 
i i :(29) 

(110) 
$1,405 

2006 

$3,834 
: : 124 

21Q 
::;(175) 

(329) 
:': M-i2: 

— 
$3,666 

i $4,360 

589 
: ,19: : 

(175) 

i $4,793 
41.127 

$1,240 
: y : : m 

(111) 
$1,127 

$ 

:$, 

:$̂  

• $ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Other Postretirement 

2007 

1,297 
55 
77 

(69) 

125 
(14) 
(7) 

1,464 

909 

59 
25 

(33) 

960 
(504) 

21 
:(2) 

(523) 
(504): 

Benefits 

$ 

$ 

,$ 

$' 
$ 

$ 

$ 

2006 

1,622 
72 
81 

: (72) 

(395) 
: (11) 

1,297 

i794 

as 
68 

(38) 

909 
(388) 

6 
• ^ — ' 

(394) 
(3861 

(I) The actuarial gains for pension benefits primarily resulted from an increase in the 
discount rate for 2007 and an increase in the discount rate and the expected retirement 
ogefor 2006. The 2006 actuarial gain for other postretirement benefits primarily 
re-sultedfrom an increase in the discount rate and a decrease in expected Juture benefit 
claims. 

The accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) for all of our defined benefit 
pension plans was $3.2 billion each at December 31,2007 and 2006. Under 
our funding policies, we evaluate plan funding requirements annually, 
usually in the fourth quarter after receiving updated plan information from 
our actuary. Based on the fiinded status of each plan and other factors, we 
determine the amount of contributions for the current year, if any, at that 
time. 

We do not expect any pension or postretirement benefit plan assets to be 
retumed to the Company during 2008. 

The following table provides information on the benefit obligation and 
fair value of plan assets for plans with a benefit obligation in excess of plan 
assets: 

As of December 31, 
(millions) 
BehefitobBgationr; i i iJ i 
Fair value of plan assets 

Pension Benefits 
2007 2006 

•,:'M;$;:i39;i:::i'$L131:;: 
— 18 

Other Postretirement 
Benefits 

2007 2006 

::$ 1,3?8ii U $ 1,159 
803 765 

The following table provides information on the ABO and fair value of 
plan assets for pension plans with an ABO in excess of plan assets: 

As of December 31, 2007 2006 
(millions) 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28,2008 



Accumulated benefit obligation $ 84 $ 65 
Fair value of plan assets - ^ — 

86 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 
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The following benefit payments, which refiect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

Pension 
Benefits 

$ :-194: = i ' - / • • ' 
177 

^̂ '••1911= v ' - i ^ i ' 
196 

7i-^212/-'-^ii^i:i 
1,341 

Other 
Postretirement 

::':::;;:i$:i'i 

i-i' " ' i 'w ' i i ! 

Benefits 

i i i : ' : . - - " ^ 
90 

iJii,-:?:.-:97 
104 

;^r^!;:1^(J 
637 

(millions) 
2008'• • 
2009 
20l0--";\;r:-::i' .,,-•- •= , ,:^i ^ '-^i'^: .A Uiŷ  "•. r̂̂ -̂̂ . \ ,,;;; ^'v.:.-i 
2011 
20l2.c;a,:::vi^- ' >̂  ^̂ =V̂  A^'-A^AAAI.II \^^. .•'^._---\'^-—- A ' I , ^ - A 
2013-2017 

The above benefit payments for other postretirement benefit plans are expected to be offset by Medicare Part D subsidies of approximately $5 million 
annually for 2008 and 2009, approximately $6 mUlion annually for the period 2010 through 2012 and approximaiely $39 miUion during the period 2013 through 
2017. 

Our overall objective for investing our pension and other postretirement plan assets is to achieve the best possible long-term rates of retum commensurate 
with prudent levels of risk. To minimize risk, funds are broadly diversified among asset classes, investment strategies and investment advisOTS. The strategic 
target asset allocation for our pension funds is 34% U.S. equity securities, 12% non-U.S. equity securities, 22% debt securities, 7% real estate and 25yo other, 
such as private equity investments. Financial derivatives may be used to obtain or manage market exposures and to hedge assets and liabilities. The asset 
allocations for our pension plans and other postretirement plans follow: 

As of December 31, 
Fair 

Value 

2007 
%of 
Total 

Pension Plans 
2006 

Fair % of 
Value Total 

Fair 
Value 

Other Postrelirement Plans 
2007 2006 
% of Fair % of 
Total Value Total 

(millions, except percentages) 
Equityi securities 

U.S. 
International 

Debt securities 
Real estate 
Other 

$1,767 
757 

1,228 
406 
940 

35% 
15 
24 
8 

18 

$1,491 
751 : 

1,356 
376 
819 

31% 
16 :,̂  
28 

:: a : 
17 

S384 
1(^ 
347 

= ':':31 -̂  
91 

40% 
^ ' i -m ' - ' 

36 
l - r '2 f^ 

10 

$369 
; i06 i . 
335 

••':i25^'.: 
74 

41 
i : n i i : 

37 
•::: : :3 

8 
Total $5,098 100% $4,793 100% §960 100% $909 100%: 
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Thecomponentsof the provision for net periodic benefit (credit) cost, other comprehensive income, and regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities were; 
follows: 

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits 

Year Ended Decemt>er 31, 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 
(millions) 
S e r v i c f f l ' C O ^ . ; ; ; - ; • • • - • • ; " l - ; - ' i ; - ; ; n ; ^ ' ' ' V ' " ' 

Interest cost 
Expected retum on plan asse^: ;: ; 
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 
^^TCwtiratibn trf tradition obligation :; 
Amortization of net loss 
Settlements and curtailmBritst^': : i: i; : : 
Plan amendments'^) 

'$ 112, :•' %'̂ 2A,\VA% -̂S :̂irsmmi 
222 210 

(39i}:i:i:(357} 
4 4 

37 89 
• . i immii ' ' ' : i 2 ; 

4 — 

201 
(341) 

3 

77 

77 
(71)^ 

(6) 
; 3 . 

6 
irm 

$ 7 2 ; 
81 

-i(62)i 
(4) 

• : I : M . 3 -

24 

$ 64 
83 

i : : (5 i ) 
(1) 

V:..'.^-3 

19 

Net periodic benefit (credit) co^ : $ : (1) $ 82 $ 50::: $ 70: $114 

^ $ i : ^ 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income and regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities 
ilZI iZL 

:$;i;^i^ 

^-r:(il)i 

(6) 
':W:': 
(3) 
(2) 

.$U;r̂ : 

$(268) $ (17). $ (7) :$ 107 

$117 

5ui^ 

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income and 
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities: 

Cunremyeat)rielactuarial(g^h>lQss: r"̂ ^ Mi^i i "ii i^^^^; i ' . ; . %i2(i^) 
Prior service (credit) cost 3 
TranslBonasset, ;;: '"•• '•^-•'•"':\::;::'::. = .:."''" = '^' = :î =̂ • ' : : ; : ' : : ' - ' ; : ; ; ' : - i ^ . 
SetWements and curtailments (21) 
Less amountsiiiduded in net pwiodict>eneRi;(credit)cost; i ;; 

Amortization of net loss (37) 
: ;^ortizalibn of prior service c i ^ i t (cost) - i i ' • • : :t4) 

Amortization of transition obligation — 
Ranamendrnents: ^•;i':̂ "0 .:;.";:::':;:.:-'•-=;,:|p^'''' ' ; , : \ ' ' \ ' ™ -
Change in additional minimum liability 

(1) Relates to the sale of our non-Appalachian ESP operations and the planned sale of Peoples and Hope for 2007 and 2006. respectively, and the impact of distributions to retired executives. 

(2) Represents a one-time benefit enhancement for certain employees in connection with the disposition of our non-Appalachian E&P busine.'is. 

The components of AOCI and regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities 
that have not been recognized as components of periodic benefit (credit) 
cost: 

As of December 31, 
(millions) 
Ti^nsilion otjlig^iori i i i i: i i:;:: 
Net actuarial loss 
Pfior̂  service (credit) cost :; 
TotalU) 

Pension Benefits 
2007 2006 

t^; : : : i$ i i i : - -^-K.,$Hi:- : -
365 631 

tJ i . . - : : : :23-^"; i ' i - = :25--
$ 388 $ 656 

Other Postretiremenl 
Benefit^ 

2007 

185 
; : {40) 
$ 145 

2003 

v r , $ 2(J 
S7 

$ 3* 

(i)Ofthe $388 million and $145 million related to pension benefits and other 
postretirement benefits, respectively, as of December 31, 2007. S183 million 
and $116 million, respectively, are included in AOCI. Of the $656 million and 
$38 million related to pension benefits and other postretirement benefits, 
respectively, as of December 31. 2006, $561 milUon and $13 million, 
respectively, are included in AOCI. 

The following table provides the components of AOCI, regulatory assets 
arid regulatory liabilities as of December 31,2007 that are expected to be 
amortized as components of periodic benefit cost in 2008: 

Other Postretiremeni 
Benefits Pension Benefits 

(millions) 
Net achjanal loss,: i . i 
Prior service (credit) 

cost m 
Significant assumptions used in determining the nel periodic cost 

recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Income were as foUows, on;a 
weighted-average basis: 

Pension Benefits Olher Postrelirement Benefits 
Ŷ ar Ended 
December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 
Dfecount rate 
E>:pected retum 

on plan assets 
R^e of increase 

fbrMwnp-
«>sa^on 

6.20% 

8.75% 

4.79% 

5.80% 

8.75% 

4.70% 

6.00% 

8.75% 

4.70% 

6.10% 

8.00% 

4.70% 

5.50% 

8.00% 

4.70% 

6.00'(& 

aooi 

4.7o4 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K. February 28. 2008 



Medical cost 
trend rate<l) 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 

(I)The medical cost trend rate for 2007 is assumed lo gradually decrease to 5.00% by 
2011 and continues at that rate for years thereafter 

Significant assumptions used in determining the projected pension 
benefit and postretirement benefit obligations recognized in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets were as foUows, on a weighted-average basis: 

Other 
Pension Postretirement 

^ Benefits Beneffis 
At December 31. 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Discount rate = ,; ,;i,i : : : : : : ; ; , ;;;6.60% ,; 6.20% , - 6 . 5 0 % 6.10% 
Rate of increase for compensation 4.79% 4.79% 4.70% 4.70% 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1,10-K, February 28, 2008 
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We determine the expected long-term rates of retum on plan assets for ' 
pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans by using a 
combination of: 

' Historical retum analysis to determine expected future risk premiums; 

• Forward-looking retum expectations derived from the yield on 
long-term bonds and the price eamings ratios of major stock market 
indices; 

• Expected inflation and risk-tree interest rate assumptions; and 

• The types of investments expected to be held by the plans. 
We develop assumptions, which are then compared to the forecasts of 

other independent investment advisors to ensure reasonableness. An 
intemal committee selects the final assumptions. 

We determine discount rates from analyses of AA/Aa rated bonds with 
cash flows matching the expected payments to be made under our plans. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant etfect on the 
amounts reported for our retiree health care plans. A one-percentage-point 
change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have had the 
following effects: 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

One On* 
percentage percentage 

point point 
increase 

(17) 

(millions) 
0l©::tpntotaliseri/fcearrf:interest :::,;:: i i: - • iii •: i i i i i 
iiicoslicomporientsfpr2Q07>t--:i.:i I/;:i'M':iir; tpi ; ; : ; : ; ' . • '$ ' i : i 
Effect on postretirement benefit 

obligation at December 31,20Q7 184 (14ft) 

In addition, we sponsor defined contribution thrift-type savings plans. 
During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized $37 million, $36 million and 
$33 million, respectively, as contributions to these plans. 

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recovered in utility 
customers' rates for olher postretirement benefits, in excess of benefits 
actually paid during the year, must be deposited in tmst fiinds dedicated for 
the sole purpose of paying such benefits. Accordingly, certain of our 
subsidiaries fiind postretirement benefit costs through Voluntary 
Employees' Beneficiary Associations (VEBAs). Our remaining 
subsidiaries do not prefiind postretirement benefit costs but instead pay 
claims as presented. We expect to contribute $32 million to the Dominion 
VEBAs in 2008. 

NOTE 24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

As the result of issues generated in the ordinary course of business, we are 
involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings before various courts, 
regulatory commissions and govemmental agencies, some of which 
involve substantial amounts of money. The ultimate outcome of such 
proceedings carmot be predicted at this time, however, for current 
proceedings not specifically reported herein, management does not 
anticipate that the liabilities, if any, arising fi'om such proceedings would 
have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity or results of 
operations. 

Long-Term Purchase A g r e e m e n t s 
At December 31,2007, we had the following long-term commitments tha| 
are noncancelable or are cancelable only under certain conditions, and that 
third parties have used to secure financing for the facilities that will 
provide tlie contracted goods or services: 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Totpl 
(miliions) 
PiAt^hased e l ^ r l c ] i i 
i^capacityt^) $383 $364 $349 $348 $352 $ 1.857 $3.6^3 

(l)Commilments represent estimated amounts payable for capacity under power purchof, ? 
contracts with qualijying facilities and independent power producers, the last ofwhici' 
ends in 2021. Capacity payments under the contracts are generally based on fixed 
dollar amounts per month, subject to escalation using broad-ba.<ied economic indices 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K, February 28, 2008 



Al December 31, 2007, the present value of our total commitment fur capacity 
payments is $2.4 billion. Capacity payments totaled $410 million. $437 milUon and 
$472 miUion, and energy payments totaled $360 million. $291 miUion and $378 miUion 
for 2007. 2006 and 2005. respectively 

Lease Commitments 
We lease various faciUties, vehicles and equipment primarily under 
operating leases. Payments under certain leases are escalated based on an 
index such as the consumer price index. Future minimum lease payments 
under noncancelable operating and capital leases that have initial or 
remaining lease terms in excess ofone year as of December 31,2007 are as 
foUows: 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2Q12 Thereafter Total 
(millions) 

:::: : $ 81 | 72 f 58 $ SO $ 41 $ 151 $453 
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Rental expense totaled $185 million, $178 million and $160 million for 
2007,2006 and 2005, respectively, the majority of which is reflected in 
other operations and maintenance expense. 

We lease the Fairless power station (Fairless) in Pennsylvania, which 
began commercial operations in June 2004. During construction, we acted 
as the constmction agent for the lessor, controlled the design and 
constmction ofthe facility and have since been reimbursed for all project 
costs ($898 milUon) advanced to the lessor. We make annual lease 
payments of $53 million that are reflected in the lease commitments table. 
The lease expires in 2013 and at that lime, we may renew the lease at 
negotiated amounts based on original project costs and current market 
conditions, subject to lessor approval; purchase Fairless at its original 
constmction cost; or sell Fairless, on behalfofthe lessor, to an independent 
third party. If Fairless is sold and the proceeds fi-om the sale are less than 
its original construction cost, we would be required to make a payment to 
the lessor in an amount up to 70.75% ofthe original project costs adjusted 
for certain other costs as specified in the lease. The lease agreement does 
not contain any provisions that involve credit rating or stock price trigger 
events. 

Wind Farm Power Projects 

M T . STORM WIND FARM 

In December 2006, we acquired a 50% interest in a joint venture with Shell 
WindEnergy Inc, (Shell) to develop a wind-turbine facility in Grant 
County, West Virginia (NedPower). NedPower consists of two 
constmction phases totaling 264 Mw. The first phase (164 IMw) is expected 
to become fully operational by June 2008 and the second phase is expected 
to be fully operational by December 2008. During 2007, we made cash 
conlributions of $67 million to NedPower and expect to contribute an 
addilional $57 mUIion in 2008. The remaining cost of both phases is 
expected to be funded by NedPower through non-recourse constmction 
financing with third-party banks. 

FOWLER RIDGE WIND FARM 

In January 2008, we acquired a 50% interest in a joint vendjre with BP 
Altemative Energy Inc. (BP) to develop a wind-turbine facility in Benton 
County, Indiana. The facility is expected to be built in two phases and 
generate a total of 750Mw. We will jointly own 650 Mw with BPandBP 
will retain sole ownership of 100 Mw. We have committed to contribute 
approximately $340 miUion of cash at various dales through January 2009, 
which includes our initial investment and funding for the development of 
the first 300 Mw phase. Construction ofthe second 350 Mw phase could 
begin as early as 2009, with fiinding to be confi-ibuted lo the joint venmre 
to maintain 50/50 ownership between the partners. Our ultimate funding 
requirements may decrease to the extent that the joint venture obtains 
non-recourse constmction and term financing. 

Environmental Mattel^ 
We are subject to costs resulting fi-om a number of federal, state and local 
laws and regulations designed to protect human health and the 
environment. These laws and regulations affect future planning and 
existing operations. They can result in increased capilal, operating and 
other costs as a result of compliance, remediation, containment and 
monitoring obligations. 

To the extent environmental costs are incurred in connection with 
operations regulated by the Virginia Commission during the period ending 
December 31,2008, In excess ofthe level currentiy included in Virginia 
jurisdictional rates, our results of operations could decrease. After that 
date, we may seek recovery through rates. 

SUPERFUND SITES 

From time to time^ we may be identified as a potentially responsible party: 
(PRP) to a Superfund site. The EPA (or a state) can either (a) allow such a 
party to conduct and pay for a remedial investigation, feasibility study and 
remedial action or (b) conduct the remedial investigation and action and 
then seek reimbursement from the parties. Each party can be held jointly, 
severally and strictiy hable for aU costs. These parties can also bring 
contribution actions against each other and seek reimbursement fi-om their 
insurance companies. As a result, we may be responsible for the costs of 
remedial investigation and actions under the Superfund Act or other laws 
or regulations regarding the remediation of waste. We do not believe that 
any currentiy identified sites wiU result in significant liabiUties. 

OTHEIR 

Source: DOMINION RESOURCES 1.10-K. February 28. 2008 



We have determined that we are associated with 21 former manufactured 
gas plant sites. Studies conducted by other utilities at their former 
manufactured gas plants have indicated that their sites contain coal tar and 
other potentially harmful materials. None ofthe 21 former sites with which 
we are associated is under investigation by any stale or federal 
environmental agency. One ofthe former sites is conducting a 
state-approved post closure groundwater monitoring program and an 
environmental land use restriction has been recorded. At another site we 
have been accepted into a state-based voluntary remediation program and 
have not yet estimated the future remediation costs. It is not known to what 
degree the other former sites may contain environmental contamination. 
We are not able to estimate the cost, if any, that may be required for the 
possible remediation of these other sites. 

Nuclear Operations 

NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING—MINIMUM FINANCIAL 
ASSURANCE 

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) requires nuclear power plant 
owners to annually update minimum financial assurance amounts for the 
fiiture decommissioning of their nuclear faciUties. Our 2007 calculation for 
die NRC minimum financial assurance amount, aggregated for our nuclear 
units, was $2.4 biUion and has been satisfied by a combination ofthe ftinds 
being collected and deposited in the nuclear decommissioning tmsls and 
the real annual rate of retum growth ofthe funds allowed by die NRC. 

NUCLEAR INSURANCE 

The Price-Anderson Act provides the pubUc up to $10.8 bUlion of liabUity 
protecticm per nuclear incident via obligations required of owners of 
nuclear power plants. The Price-Anderson Act Amendment of 1988 allows 
for an inflationary provision adjustment every five years. We have 
purchased $300 milUon of 
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At December 31, 2007, we had issued the following subsidiary guarantees: 

Stated Umit Valued) 
(millions) 
Subsidiary debt*^* . i 
Commodity transactions*^* 
Lease obligation for power generatbn fiicilit/^l; 
Nuclear obligations*^' 
Other 

48 
2,985 
917 
383 
341 

$ 48 
326 
917 
302 
192 

Total $ 4,674 $1,785 

(l)Represents the estimated portion ofthe guarantee's slated limit that is utilized as of 
December 31, 2007 based upon prevailing economic conditions and fact patterns 
specific lo each guarantee arrangement. For those guarantees related lo obligations 
that are recorded as Uabilities hy our .subsidiaries, the value includes the recorded 
amount. 

(2)Guarantees of debt of a DEI subsidiary. In the event of default by the subsidiary, we 
would be obligated lo repay such amounts. 

(3)Guarantees related to energy trading and marketing activities and olher commodity 
commitments of certain subsidiaries, including subsidiaries of Virginia Power and 
DEI. These guarantees were provided to counterparties in order to facilitate physical 
and financial transactions in gas^ oil, eleclricity. pipeline capucily. transportation and 
related commodities and services. If any of these subsidiaries fail to perform or pay 
under the contracts and the counterparties seek performance or payment, we would be 
obligated lo satisfy such obUgation. We and our subsidiaries receive similar 
guarantees as collateral for credit extended to others. The value provided includes 
certain guarantees that do not have stated limits. 

(4)Guarantee of a DEI subsidiary's leasing obligation for Fairless. 

(5)Guaranlees related to certain DEI subsidiaries 'potential retrospective premiums that 
could be assessed if there is a nuclear incident under our nuclear insurance programs 
and guarantees for a DEI subsidiary's and Virginia Power's commitment to buy 
nuclear fuel. In addition to the guarantees Usted above, we have also agreed to provide 
up to $150 million and $60 miUion to two DEI .'subsidiaries, to pay the operating 
expenses of Millstone and Kewaunee, respectively, in the event of a prolonged outage, 
as part of satisfying certain NRC requirements concerned with ensuring adequate 
funding for the operations of nuclear power stations. 
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Additionally, as of December 31, 2007, we had purchased $56 miUion of 
surety bonds and authorized the issuance of standby letters of credit by 
financial institutions of $230 milUon to facilitate commercial transactions 
by our subsidiaries with third parties. 

Indemnifications 

As part of commercial contract negotiations in the normal course of 
business, we may sometimes agree to make payments to compensate or 
indemnify other parties for possible fiiture unfavorable financial 
corisequences resulting from specified events. The specified events may 
involve an adverse judgment in a lawsuit or the imposition of additional 
taxes due to a change in tax law or interpretation ofthe tax law. We are 
unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of ftiture 
payments under these contracts because events that would obligate IK have 
not yet occurred or, if any such event has occurred, we have not been 
notified of its occurrence. However, at December 31, 2007, we believe 
future payments, if any, that could ultimately become payable under these 
contract provisions, would not have a material impact on our results of 
operations, cash flows or fmancial position. 

We have entered into other types of contracts that require 
indemnifications, such as purchase and sale agreements and financing 
agreements. These agreements may include, but are not Umited to, 
indemnifications around certain title, lax, contractual and environmental 
matters. With respect to sale agreements, our exposure generally does not 
exceed the sale price and is typically limited in duration depending on the 
nature of the indemnified matter. Since January 1, 2005, we have entered 
into sale agreements with maximum exposure related to the collective 
purchase prices of approximately $15 billion. We believe that it is 
improbable that we would be required to perfonn under these 
indemnifications and have not recognized any significant liabilities related 
to these arrangements. 

Status of Electric Regulation in Virginia 

2007 VIRGINIA RESTRUCTURING ACT AND FUEL FACTOR 

AMENDMENTS 

On July I, 2007, legislation amending the Virginia Electric UtiUty 
Restmcturing Act (the Restmcturing Act) and the fiiel factor became 
effective, which significantly changes electricity regulation in Virginia. 
Prior to the Restmcturing Act, our base rates in Virginia were capped at 
1999 levels until December 31,2010. The Restmcturing Act entfc capped 
rates two years early, on December 31, 2008. After capped rates end, retail 
choice will be eliminated for all but individual retail customers with a 
demand of more than 5 Mw and non-residential retail customers who 
obtain Virginia Commission approval to aggregate their load to reach the 5 
Mw threshold. Individual retail customers wUl be permitted to purchase 
renewable energy fi-om competitive suppliers if the incumbent electric 
utility does not offer a renewable energy tariff. Also after the end of capped 
rates, the Virginia Commission will set our base rates under a modified 
cost-of-service model. Among other features, the new model provides for 
the Viiginia Commission to: 

• Initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, reviewing 
the 2008 test year, as a result of which the Virginia Commission: 

• shall establish a return on equity (ROE) no lower than that 
reported by at least a majority of a group of utilities 

witiiin the southeastem U.S., with certain limitations, as described in 
the legislation; 

• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis points based on 
generating plant performance, customer service and operating 
efficiency, if appropriate; 

• shall increase base rales, if needed, to allow the Company the 
opportunity to recover its costs and earn a fair rate of retum if we are 
found to have eamings more than 50 basis points below the establishejd 
ROE; or 

• may reduce rates prospectively upon completion ofthe 
2009 review or, altematively, order a credit to customers if 
we are found to have test year eamings of more than 50 
basis points above the established ROE. 

• After the initial rate case, review base rates biennially, as a 
result of which the Virginia Commission: 
• shall establish an ROE no lower than that reported by at least a 

majority of a group of utilities within the southeastera U.S., with 
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certain limitations, as described in the legislation; 
• may increase or decrease the ROE by up to 100 basis points based on 

generating plant performance, customer service and operating 
efficiency, if appropriate; 

• after 2010, authorize an increased ROE on overall rate base upon 
achieving the goals estabUshed for the renewable energy portfolio 
standard programs. Such increased ROE would be in Ueu of any 
increased or decreased ROE from the preceding paragraph, unless 
there has been an increase to the ROE awarded under the preceding 
paragr^h that is higher than the renewable eneigy portfolio standard 
increase; and 

• shall increase base rates, if needed, to allow the Company the 
opportunity to recover its costs and eam a fair rate of return if we are 
found to have eamed, during the test period, more than 50 basis points 
below the then currently established ROE; or 

• may order a credit to customers if we are found to have earned, during 
the test period, more than 50 basis points above the then currently 
established ROE, and reduce rates if we are found to have such excess 
earnings during two consecutive biermial review periods. 

• Authorize stand-alone rate adjustments for recovery of certain costs, 
including new generation projects, major generating unit modifications, 
environmental compliance projects, FERC-approved costs for 
transmission service and energy efficiency, conservation, and renewable 
eneigy programs; and 

• Authorize an enhanced ROE on new capital expenditures as a financial 
incentive for constmction of certain major generation projects. 

The legislation also continues statutory provisions directing us to file 
annual fuel cost recovery cases with the Virginia Commission beginning in 
2007 and continuing thereafter, as discussed in Virginia Fuel Expenses. 

As discussed previously, the legislation provides for the Virginia 
Commission to initiate a base rate case during the first six months of 2009, 
as a result of which the Virginia Commission may reduce rates or 
altematively, order a credit to customers if we are found to have earnings 
more than 50 basis points above the established ROE. We are unable to 
predict the outcome of fiiture 
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rale actions at this time, however an unfavorable outcome could adversely 
affect our results of operations. 

VIRGINIA FUEL EXPENSES 

Under amendments to the Virginia fuel cost recovery statute passed in 
2004, our fiiel factor provisions were fi-ozen until July 1,2007. Fuel prices 
have increased considerably since 2004, which resulted in our fijel 
expenses being significantly in excess of our fiiel cosl recovery. Pursuant 
to the 2007 amendments to the fiiel cost recovery statute, armual fuel rate 
adjustments, with deferred fuel accounting for over- or under-recoveries of 
fuel costs, were re-instituted on July 1,2007. While the 2007 amendments 
did not allow us to collect any imrecovered fuel expenses that were 
incurred prior to July 1,2007, once our fuel factor was adjusted, this 
mechanism ensures dollar-for-dollar recovery for pmdently incurred fuel 
costs. 

In April 2007, we filed a Virginia fuel factor application with the 
Virginia Commission. The application showed a need for an annual 
increase in fuel expense recovery for the period July 1, 2007 through June 
30,2008 of approximately $662 million; however, the requested increase 
was Umited to $219 miUion under the 2007 amendments to the ftiel cost 
recovery statute. Under these amendments, our fuel factor increase as of 
July 1,2007 was limited to an amount that results in the residential 
customer class not receiving an increase of more than 4% of total rates in 
effect as ofJune 30,2007. The Virginia Commission approved the fuel 
factor increase for Virginia jurisdictional customers of approximately $219 
million, effective July I, 2007, with the balance of approximately $443 
million to be deferred and subsequently recovered subject to Virginia 
Commission approval, without interest, during the period commencing July 
1,2008 and ending June 30,2011. 

STRANDED COSTS 

Stranded costs are generation-related costs incurred or commitments made 
by utilities under cost-based regulation that may not be reasonably 
expected to be recovered in a competitive market. In the past, our exposure 
to potential stranded costs included long-term power purchase contracts 
that could ultimately be determined to be above market prices; generating 
plants that could possibly become uneconomical in a deregulated 
environment; and unfunded obligations for nuclear plant decommissioning 
and postretirement benefits. Capped electric retail rates provided an 
opportunity to recover our potential stranded costs, depending on market 
prices of eleclricity and other factors. Recovery of our potential stranded 
costs was subject to numerous risks even in the capped-rate environment. 
Those risks included, among others, exposure to long-term power purchase 
commitment losses, future environmental compliance requirements, 
changes in certain tax laws, nuclear decommissioning costs, increased fiael 
coste, inflation, increased capital costs and recovery of certain other items. 
However, with the retum to a modified cost-of-service rate model under 
the 2007 Virginia Restmcturing Act Amendments, our exposure to 
potential stranded costs and the risk of non-recovery will be eliminated. 

North Carolisa Regulation 
In 2004, the North CaroUna Commission commenced an investigation into 
our North Carolina base rates and subsequently 

ordered us to fde a general rate case to show cause why our North Carolina 
jimsdictional base rates should not be reduced. The rate case was filed in 
September 2004, and in March 2005 the North Carolina Commission 
approved a settlement that included a prospective $12 million annual 
reduction in current base rates and a five-year base rate moratorium, 
effective ?& of April 2005. Fuel rates are still subject to change under 
annual fuel cost adjustment proceedings. 

Dominion Transmission Rates 
In May 2005, FERC approved a comprehensive rate settlement with our 
subsidiary, DTI, and its customers and interested state commissions. The i 
settiement, which became effective July I, 2005, revised our natural gas 
transmission rates and reduced fiiel retention levels for storage service 
customers. As part ofthe settlement, DTI and all signatory parties agreed 
to a rate moratorium until 2010. 

In December 2007, DTI and the Independent Oil and Gas Association of 
West Virginia, Inc. reached a settlement agreement on DTI's gathering and 
processing rates for the period January 1, 2009 through December 31, 
2011. This settlement maintains the gas retainage fee stmcture that DTI hap 
had since 2001. Under the settiement, the gathering retainage rate increases 
from 9.25% to 10.5% and the processing retainage rale—m recognition of 
the increased market value of natural gas liquids—decreases from 3.25% 13 
0.5%. 
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